
 EAST FORK FIRE 
PROTECTION DISTRICT 

 
 District Board Meeting 

Agenda and Supporting Information For 
The Meeting of July 18, 2023 
 



                                                              
 

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
1694 County Road 

Minden, Nevada 89423 
 

Meeting Agenda 
                         

John Bellona, Secretary, District 1 
Barbara Griffin, Director, District 2 
Bernard Curtis, Director, District 3 

Jacques Etchegoyhen, President, District 4 
Mike Sommers, Director, District 5 

 
 

Tod F. Carlini, District Fire Chief       Holly Megee, Board Clerk 
Tuesday, July 18, 2023 1:00 PM Board Meeting To attend virtually-Contact Holly Megee 

In person-1694 County Road, Minden 
                                                                                                    

MISSION STATEMENT 
“Serving the Fire and Life Safety Needs of Our Community” 

 
East Fork Fire Protection District will be conducting its meeting in person and electronically.  The public is 
welcome to attend the meeting virtually or in person at the East Fork Fire Protection District Office located 
at 1694 County Road, Minden, NV.  If you would like to view the East Fork Fire Protection District Board 
meeting, please contact Holly Megee prior to the day of the meeting at 775-782-9040 or 
hmegee@eastforkfire.org for details on how to log into the meeting. 
 
Public comment will be accepted prior to the East Fork Fire Protection District Board meeting through 
either the email address provided below or by setting up a phone appointment with the East Fork Fire 
Protection District Office up until the day before the East Fork Fire Protection District Board meeting. 
 
• Blank public comment forms will be available at the East Fork Fire Protection District Office (1694 
County Road, Minden, Nevada) and completed forms may also be left at the same location. 
• Written public comments may also be emailed to hmegee@eastforkfire.org.  All public comments must 
be received prior to the date of the meeting if the comments are to be included in the supplemental 
materials. 
• All written public comments received prior to 4:00 PM the day before the Board meeting will be 
compiled and will be added as supplemental material for the East Fork Fire Protection District Board and 
the public to review prior to the meeting. 
• Any written public comment received the day of the East Fork Fire Protection District Board meeting 
will be compiled and added as supplemental materials to the East Fork Fire District’s website and 
distributed to the East Fork Fire Protection District Board within 24 hours after the meeting. 
 
Members of the public may call Holly Megee at 775-782-9040 to obtain help making public comment using 
the public comment methods. 
  
Copies of the finalized agenda are posted at the following locations prior to meeting day:  East Fork 
Protection District Administrative Office, Gardnerville Post Office, Minden Post Office, Minden Library, 
and Douglas County Administration Building.  Members of the public may request an electronic copy of the 

mailto:hmegee@eastforkfire.org
mailto:hmegee@eastforkfire.org


 2 July 18, 2023 
 

agenda or supporting materials by contacting Holly Megee at hmegee@eastforkfire.org.  An electronic copy 
of the agenda and supporting materials are available at the following website: 
 
• East Fork Fire website: https://eastforkfire.org/  
 
Agenda items may be taken out of order, may be combined for consideration, or may be removed from the 
agenda at any time.  All items designated “for possible action” shall include discussion and possible action 
to approve, modify, deny, take “no action,” or continue the item. 
 
It is the intent of the East Fork Fire Protection District Board to protect the dignity of citizens who wish to 
comment before the Board.  It is also the desire of the East Fork Fire Protection District Board to provide 
the citizens with an environment that upholds the highest professional standards. Citizens should have the 
ability to freely comment on items and/or projects that are brought before the East Fork Fire Protection 
District Board for action without interference. 
 
Notice to Persons with Disabilities:  Members of the public who are disabled and require special assistance 
or accommodations are requested to notify Holly Megee in writing at 1694 County Road, Minden, Nevada 
89423 or by calling 775-782-9040 at least 20 hours in advance. 
 

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
1694 COUNTY ROAD 

MINDEN, NEVADA 
FINAL AGENDA 
July 18, 2023 

 
BOARD MEETING 
 
1:00 PM 

CALL TO ORDER 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Bernard Curtis 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action) 
At this time, public comment will be taken on those matters that are within the 
jurisdiction and control of the East Fork Fire Protection District Board of Directors 
but are not on the agenda for this meeting or those agenda items where public 
comment will not be taken as a public hearing is not legally required as where an 
item is for presentation only. 
 
Public Comment may be limited to three minutes per speaker, which will be 
decided by the Board President or other presiding officer in his/her absence.  If 
you are going to comment on a specific agenda item that the East Fork Fire 
Protection District Board of Directors will take action on, please make your 
comments when the item is considered and is opened for public comment.   
 
For members of the public not able to be present when an item on the agenda is 
heard, Speaker/Comment Cards are available in the Lobby at the entrance to the 

mailto:hmegee@eastforkfire.org
https://eastforkfire.org/


 3 July 18, 2023 
 

meeting room. These cards should be completed and given to the District Fire 
Chief or designee. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA 
 
The Administrative Calendar will be handled as follows: 
 
(1.) The President will read the agenda title into the public record. 
(2.) Staff will introduce the item and provide a report, if any. 
(3.) The applicant, if any, will have an opportunity to address the Board. 
(4.) The Board will then discuss the item. 
(5.) Once the Board has concluded their discussion, public comment will be 
allowed and is limited to three minutes per speaker. 
(6.) Once public comment is completed, the Board will then ask any follow-up 
questions and take action. 
 
On agenda items that are listed as a “presentation” with no action listed, public 
comment is not legally required and must be made at the beginning of the 
meeting. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
1. For Possible Action.  Approval of proposed agenda. The East Fork Fire 

Protection District Board of Directors reserves the right to take items in a 
different order to accomplish business in the most efficient manner, to combine 
two or more agenda items for consideration, and to remove items from the 
agenda or delay discussion relating to items on the agenda. (Jacques 
Etchegoyhen, President) 5 minutes. 

 
APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
2. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve the draft 

meeting minutes of the June 20, 2023 meeting of the East Fork Fire Protection 
District Board of Directors. (Jacques Etchegoyhen, President) 5 minutes. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
3. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are items that can be adopted with one 
motion unless separate consideration is requested by a District Director or a 
member of the public. Members of the public who wish to have a consent item 
placed on the Administrative Agenda shall make that request during the public 
comment section at the beginning of the meeting and specifically state why they 
are making the request.   When items are pulled for discussion, they will 
automatically be placed at the beginning of the Administrative Agenda or may be 
continued until another meeting. 
 
Motion to approve the Consent Calendar Items A-F 
 
FINANCE 



 4 July 18, 2023 
 

A. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to accept the report on 
general ledger cash balances as of June 30, 2023. (Kathy Lewis, CPA, 
CFO/Director of Finance) 
 

B. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve the receipt 
and filing of the list of accounts payable checks issued and cash 
disbursements/automatic withdrawals in June 2023 per NRS 474.210. (Kathy 
Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director of Finance) 
 

C. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve payroll 
expenses paid in June 2023 per NRS 474.210. (Kathy Lewis, CPA, 
CFO/Director of Finance) 
 

D.  For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve the 
Procurement Card Transactions paid in June 2023 per NRS 474.210. (Kathy 
Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director of Finance) 
 

E. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve the East Fork 
Fire Protection District’s ambulance billing bad debt write-offs for the period of 
May 2023 in the amount of $77,115.52. (Kathy Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director of 
Finance) 
 

F. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to accept the report on 
state consolidated taxes collection and distribution as of April 2023. (Kathy 
Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director of Finance) 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED FOR FURTHER DISCUSSION IF ANY 
 
4. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve the District’s 

annual property and liability insurance package as provided by Warren Reed 
Insurance representing Volunteer Fireman’s Insurance Services at an annual 
cost of $213,785. (Tod F. Carlini, District Fire Chief) 15 minutes. 
 

5. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve the first 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the East Fork Fire Protection 
District and the East Fork Professional Firefighters’ Association-General 
Membership, which revises the contract in effect to reflect changes in Article 68 
(Lateral Transfers) to expand the District’s ability to recruit positions laterally. 
(Lisa Owen, Director of Administrative Services) 10 minutes. 
 

6. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to adopt revisions to 
Policy #606.2 (Annual Leave) for full time non-represented employees, specific 
to annual leave accrual rates and maximums, to align with full-time 
represented employees. (Lisa Owen, Director of Administrative Services) 10 
minutes. 
 

7. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to adopt revisions to 
Policy #606.4 (Sick Leave) for full time non-represented employees, specific to 
sick leave accrual rates and maximums, to align with full-time represented 
employees. (Lisa Owen, Director of Administrative Services) 10 minutes. 



 5 July 18, 2023 
 

 
8. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to authorize the transfer 

of $322,224 into the contingency line item for FY23/24 and take the 
contingency amount to the maximum of 3%. (Kathy Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director 
of Finance) 10 minutes. 
 

9. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve The East Fork 
Fire Protection District, Fire Prevention Division schedule for Development 
Review Fees in accordance with the requirements of NAC 477 and the 2018 
International Fire Code, September 1, 2023. First reading. (Amy Ray, Deputy 
Chief/Fire Marshal) 10 minutes. 

 
10. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve The East 

Fork Fire Protection District, Fire Prevention Division schedule for Fire and Life 
Safety Plan Review Fees in accordance with the requirements of NAC 477 and 
the 2018 International Fire Code, effective September 1, 2023. First reading. 
(Amy Ray, Deputy Chief/Fire Marshal) 10 minutes. 
 

11. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve The East 
Fork Fire Protection District, Fire Prevention Division schedule for 
Miscellaneous fees for service, in accordance with the requirements of NAC 477 
and the 2018 International Fire Code effective September 1, 2023. First reading. 
(Amy Ray, Deputy Chief/Fire Marshal) 10 minutes. 
 

12. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve The East 
Fork Fire Protection District, Fire Prevention Division schedule for Required 
Operational Permits and Inspection Fees in accordance with the requirements 
of NAC 477 and the 2018 International Fire Code effective September 1, 2023. 
First reading. (Amy Ray, Deputy Chief/Fire Marshal) 10 minutes. 
 

13. For Presentation Only.  Reports/updates from East Fork Professional 
Firefighters Association concerning the various assignments and committees 
they may be a member of, a liaison to, and meetings/functions they have 
attended.  No action will be taken on these reports/updates. (Jacques 
Etchegoyhen, President) 5 minutes. 
 

14. For Presentation Only.  Reports/updates from East Fork Volunteer 
Firefighters Association concerning the various assignments and committees 
they may be a member of, a liaison to, and meetings/functions they have 
attended.  No action will be taken on these reports/updates. (Jacques 
Etchegoyhen, President) 5 minutes. 
 

15. For Presentation Only.  Reports/updates from District Board Members and 
Administration concerning the various assignments and committees they may 
be a member of, a liaison to, and meetings/functions they have attended.  No 
action will be taken on these reports/updates. (Jacques Etchegoyhen, 
President) 10 minutes. 

 
CLOSING PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action) 
 



 6 July 18, 2023 
 

At this time, public comment will be taken on those items that are within the 
jurisdiction and control of the East Fork Fire Protection District Board of Directors 
or those agenda items where public comment has not already been taken. 
(Jacques Etchegoyhen, President) 
 

16. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to adjourn the East Fork 
Fire Protection District Board Meeting. (Jacques Etchegoyhen, President) 5 
minutes. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
THE TIMING FOR AGENDA ITEMS IS APPROXIMATE UNLESS OTHERWISE 
INDICATED AS A TIME SPECIFIC ITEM. ITEMS MAY BE CONSIDERED AHEAD OF 
OR AFTER THE SCHEDULE INDICATED BY THIS AGENDA. 



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

1. Title:  For Possible Action. Approval of proposed agenda. The East Fork Fire Protection 
District Board of Directors reserves the right to take items in a different order to 
accomplish business in the most efficient manner, to combine two or more agenda items 
for consideration, and to remove items from the agenda or delay discussion relating to 
items on the agenda. (Jacques Etchegoyhen, President) 5 minutes. 

 
2. Recommended Motion:  Motion to approve the meeting agenda for July 18, 2023. 
  
3.          Funds Available:  NA Amount:  NA 

 
 Fund Name:  NA Account Number:  NA 
 
4.          Prepared by:  Tod F. Carlini, District Fire Chief 
 
5.          Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 Time Required: 5 minutes 
 
6.          Agenda:  Initial Meeting Business 
 
7. Background Information:  The Board of Directors is required to approve the meeting 

agenda prior to the commencement of business. The East Fork Fire Protection District 
Board of Directors reserves the right to take items in a different order to accomplish 
business in the most efficient manner, to combine two or more agenda items for 
consideration, and to remove items from the agenda or delay discussion relating to items 
on the agenda. 

 
8. Reviewed by: 

       District Fire Chief      Board President  
      Legal Counsel      Other 

 
9. Board Action: 

    Approved       Approved with Modifications 
    Denied       Deferred 
    Other 

 
Agenda Item # 1 



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

1. Title:  For Possible Action. Discussion and possible action to approve the draft meeting 
minutes of the June 20, 2023 meeting of the East Fork Fire Protection District Board of 
Directors. (Jacques Etchegoyhen, President) 5 minutes. 

 
2. Recommended Motion:  Motion to approve the minutes of the June 20, 2023 meeting. 
  
3.          Funds Available:  NA Amount:  NA 

 
 Fund Name:  NA Account Number:  NA 
 
4.          Prepared by:  Tod F. Carlini, District Fire Chief 
 
5.          Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 Time Required: 5 minutes 
 
6.          Agenda:  Initial Meeting Business 
 
7. Background Information:  The Board of Directors is required to approve the minutes of 

the previous meeting.  The previous meeting was held on June 20, 2023.  Attached are the 
draft minutes. 

 
8. Reviewed by: 

       District Fire Chief      Board President  
      Legal Counsel      Other 

 
9. Board Action: 

    Approved       Approved with Modifications 
    Denied       Deferred 
    Other 

 
Agenda Item # 2 



 
DRAFT 
The Board Meeting of the East Fork Fire Protection District Board was held on 
Tuesday, June 20, 2023, in-person and virtually, beginning at 1:00 PM. 
 
East Fork Fire Protection District Board Present: 
John Bellona, Secretary, District 1 
Barbara Griffin, Director, District 2 
Bernard Curtis, Director, District 3, 
Jacques Etchegoyhen, President, District 4 
Mike Sommers, Director, District 5 
 
Staff present: 
Tod F. Carlini, District Fire Chief 
Larry Goss, Deputy Chief of/Training and Safety 
Amy Ray, Deputy Chief/Fire Marshal 
Scott Gorgon, Deputy Chief/Operations 
Mark Forsberg, District Legal Counsel 
Lisa Owen, Director of Administrative Services 
Kathy Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director of Finance 
Holly Megee, Clerk to the Board 
 
Additional attendees that addressed the Board: 
Joseph Langkilde, Former East Fork Fire Employee 
Troy Valenzuela, East Fork Fire Battalion Chief 
Kevin May, President for East Fork Fire Professional Firefighters 
Adam Wennhold, East Fork Fire Engineer 
Tom Hein, President for East Fork Volunteer Firefighter Association  
Jared Rossi, LP Insurance 
Bill Adamson, 7710 Insurance, CEO 
Bill Wahl, 7710 Insurance, Vice President of MKTG and Business Development 
Sandra Jones, 7710 Insurance, Director of Claims Services 
Elaine Pace, East Fork Fire Volunteer Liaison 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Board President Jacques Etchegoyhen 
 
INITIAL MEETING BUSINESS 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Barbara Griffin, Director led the Pledge of Allegiance  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action) 
 
At this time, public comment will be taken on those items that are within 
the jurisdiction and control of the East Fork Fire Protection District 
Board of Directors or those agenda items where public comment will not 
be taken as a public hearing is not legally required. 
 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

Public Comment may be limited to three minutes per speaker, which will 
be decided by the Board President or other presiding officer in his/her 
absence.  If you are going to comment on a specific agenda item that the 
East Fork Fire Protection District Board of Directors will take action on, 
please make your comments when the item is considered and is opened 
for public comment. 
 
For members of the public not able to be present when an item on the 
agenda is heard, Speaker/Comment Cards are available in the Lobby at 
the entrance to the meeting room.  These cards should be completed and 
given to the District Fire Chief or designee. 
 
President Jacques Etchegoyhen opened public comment. 
 
Joseph Langkilde, a former East Fork Fire employee, voiced his opinion during 
his tenure.  He expressed what he considered fraud, waste and abuse on part 
of the District; specific employees both named and unnamed, and regarding 
certain Federal grants.  He offered his additional view on negotiated labor 
contracts, which he felt were over generous and made other comments 
regarding District line staff and their conditions of employment and work ethic.  
He additionally commented on the District’s resource deployment model, 
specific to ambulance response and station staffing in the TRE area. 
 
Board Clerk Holly Megee informed President Etchegoyhen that Mr. Langkilde 
had reached the three-minute public comment time limit. 
 
Mr. Langkilde asked to speak for a few more minutes. 
 
President Etchegoyhen stated he will allow an additional minute and 
recommended Mr. Langkilde put his concerns in writing. 
 
Mr. Langkilde stated he will submit additional concerns to the Board in writing. 
 
District Fire Chief Tod Carlini requested a moment of silence for Battalion Chief 
Scott Fraser. 
 
A moment of silence was taken to honor Battalion Chief Scott Fraser. 
 
There was no further public comment. 
 
Public comment closed. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA 
 
The Administrative Calendar handled as follows: 
 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

3 | P a g e  
 

1. The President will read the agenda title into the public record. 
2. Staff will introduce the item and provide a report, if any. 
3. The applicant, if any, will have an opportunity to address the Board. 
4. The Board will then discuss the item.  Once the Board has concluded their 

discussion, public comment will be allowed. 
5. Public comment will be allowed and is limited to three minutes per speaker. 
6. Once public comment is completed, the Board will then ask any follow-up 

questions and take action. 
 
Agenda items listed as a “presentation” with no action listed, public comment 
is not legally required, and must be made at the beginning of the meeting. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
1. For Possible Action. Approval of proposed agenda. The East Fork Fire 
Protection District Board of Directors reserves the right to take items in a 
different order to accomplish business in the most efficient manner, to 
combine two or more agenda items for consideration, and to remove 
items from the agenda or delay discussion relating to items on the 
agenda. (Jacques Etchegoyhen, President) 5 Minutes. 
 
Secretary John Bellona requested to move agenda item #8 for discussion and 
approval after agenda item #3. 
 
MOTION to approve the meeting agenda for June 20, 2023 moving agenda item 
#8 for discussion and approval after agenda item #3. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOTION BY: John Bellona 
SECOND BY: Bernard Curtis 
AYES: Bellona, Griffin, Curtis, Etchegoyhen, Sommers 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 

 
APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
2. For Possible Action. Discussion and possible action to approve the draft 
meeting minutes of the May 16, 2023 meeting of the East Fork Fire 
Protection District Board of Directors. (Jacques Etchegoyhen, President) 5 
minutes. 
 
President Jacques Etchegoyhen opened public comment. 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
Public comment closed. 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

4 | P a g e  
 

 
MOTION to approve the minutes of the May 16, 2023 meeting as presented. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOTION BY: Bernard Curtis 
SECOND BY: Barbara Griffin 
AYES: Bellona, Griffin, Curtis, Etchegoyhen, Sommers 
ABSTAIN: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 

 
AWARDS, RECOGNITIONS, PROCLAMATIONS & DONATIONS 
 
3. For Possible Action Discussion and possible action regarding 
Proclamation 2023P-07 recognizing Troy Valenzuela on his 25 years of 
service with the East Fork Fire Protection District. (Jacques Etchegoyhen, 
President) 5 minutes. 
 
President Jacques Etchegoyhen read Proclamation 2023P-07 recognizing Troy 
Valenzuela on his 25 years of dedicated service and employment with the East 
Fork Fire Protection District. 
 
MOTION to approve Proclamation 2023P-07 recognizing Troy Valenzuela on his 
25 years of service with the East Fork Fire Protection District. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOTION BY: John Bellona 
SECOND BY: Bernard Curtis 
AYES: Bellona, Griffin, Curtis, Etchegoyhen, Sommers 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 

 
President Jacques Etchegoyhen opened public comment. 
 
Battalion Chief Troy Valenzuela stated it has been quite the ride but wouldn’t 
have it any other way.  He had opportunities to go to other agencies, but he 
chose to stay with East Fork Fire.  He stated he is happy to be with East Fork 
Fire and will finish his career here.  East Fork Fire is home to him.  He thanked 
many people including District Fire Chief Tod Carlini for his friendship and 
their support.  He stated East Fork Fire means a lot to him.  He thanked his 
family for their support and the many sacrifices they have made.  He thanked 
the Board of Directors. 
 
District Fire Chief Carlini stated it is rare for individuals to work through an 
evolution of an organization.  It is nice to see people like Battalion Chief 
Valenzuela rise to the top and start leading that evolution.  Battalion Chief 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

5 | P a g e  
 

Valenzuela has jumped into all the positions he has held, headfirst and does 
not stop.  There have been challenges and disagreements along the way, but 
it’s all about the organization, progress and moving the organization forward.  
He stated Battalion Chief Valenzuela has a good reputation for getting things 
done.  All three East Fork Fire Battalion Chiefs are strong individuals with the 
mission to get things done.  Battalion Chief Valenzuela has a great work ethic 
and is a detail oriented individual.  Many projects are given to Battalion Chief 
Valenzuela because of his efforts.  He thanked Battalion Chief Valenzuela for 
his friendship and leadership, and congratulated him on his 25 years. 
 
Deputy Chief Larry Goss thanked Battalion Chief Valenzuela for his hard work, 
leadership, incident management and project work and congratulated him on 
his 25 years. 
 
Secretary John Bellona shared a funny story involving Battalion Chief 
Valenzuela and Battalion Chief Ron Haskins (ret.). 
 
There was no further public comment. 
 
Public comment closed. 
 
MOTION to approve Proclamation 2023P-07 recognizing Troy Valenzuela on his 
25 years of service with the East Fork Fire Protection District. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOTION BY: John Bellona 
SECOND BY: Bernard Curtis 
AYES: Bellona, Griffin, Curtis, Etchegoyhen, Sommers 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 

 
President Etchegoyhen called a short recess. 
 
President Etchegoyhen called the meeting back in session. 
 
Item #8 was moved to be discussed after agenda item #3. 
 
8. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action on the naming of 
the East Fork Fire Protection District Training Center. (Board Secretary, 
John Bellona) 15 minutes. 
 
Secretary John Bellona stated he knew Battalion Chief Scott Fraser (ret.) for a 
long time.  He recalls going on a project with Battalion Chief Fraser (ret.) when 
Battalion Chief Fraser (ret.) inquired why East Fork Fire didn’t have a training 
center.  He explained Carson City has the regional fire training center.  Over 
the years and through training Battalion Chief Fraser (ret.) expressed the need 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

6 | P a g e  
 

for a training center here.  Battalion Chief Fraser (ret.) had pushed for a 
training center since he was a volunteer, suggesting the District try to obtain a 
grant.  There were so many other priorities and the training center continued to 
be pushed to the back burner.  The training center is now happening and with 
the passing of Battalion Chief Fraser (ret.) he contacted District Fire Chief 
Carlini to request the training center be named after Battalion Chief Fraser 
(ret.). 
 
District Fire Chief Carlini stated Battalion Chief Fraser (ret.) was passionate 
about incident management/command and training.  Battalion Chief Fraser 
(ret.) was a Training Captain for many years.  He loved to teach, train and 
arrange training exercises.  He stated when Secretary Bellona approached him 
with the request to name the training center after Battalion Chief Fraser (ret.), 
there wasn’t any hesitation.  He supports the training center be named after 
Battalion Chief Fraser (ret.) and believes this is the right thing to do. 
 
Director Bernard Curtis agreed with the request. 
 
Director Mike Sommers asked what the actual title of the training center would 
be. 
 
District Fire Chief Carlini stated the long-term plan would be a structure that 
could accommodate structural firefighting training.  When the building was 
built in 1994, there was a drawing that identified a location for a training 
facility.  The bigger vision is to establish different training props around the 
property.  He believes at some point the goal is for the area to be a complete 
training center.  He feels training center or facility would be appropriate. 
 
There was discussion on the appropriate name. 
 
Secretary Bellona stated it’s a facility for the men and women of East Fork Fire. 
 
There was additional discussion on the appropriate name. 
 
Director Sommers stated he believes it is a facility more than a center.  A 
center is physical location but a facility is offered for everyone to utilize. 
 
Kevin May, President for East Fork Fire Professional Firefighters stated the 
definition of facility leans a little more towards what Director Sommer’s is 
saying. 
 
President Jacques Etchegoyhen opened public comment. 
 
Adam Wennhold, East Fork Fire Professional Firefighters Association stated the 
Association is in support of this.  In 2005, he completed the first entry level 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

7 | P a g e  
 

firefighter class taught by Battalion Chief Fraser (ret.) and he is grateful to 
Battalion Chief Fraser (ret.) 
 
Tom Hein, President for East Fork Volunteer Firefighter Association stated the 
Volunteer Firefighter Association is in support of this. 
 
There was no further public comment. 
 
Public comment closed. 
 
Director Barbara Griffin stated Battalion Chief Fraser (ret.) had a big heart and 
did everything he did with so much sincerity and commitment.  He was always 
supportive of everyone.  She is grateful Secretary Bellona brought this forward 
and feels this is appropriate.  She is in support of this. 
 
Director Sommers asked for the motion to be repeated. 
 
President Jacques Etchegoyhen stated this is a wonderful thing for the District.  
 
MOTION to approve the naming of the East Fork Fire Protection District 
Training Facility as the Battalion Chief Scott Fraser, East Fork Fire Protection 
District Training Facility. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOTION BY: John Bellona 
SECOND BY: Bernard Curtis 
AYES: Bellona, Griffin, Curtis, Etchegoyhen, Sommers 
NAYS: 
ABSENT:  

 
President Etchegoyhen called a short recess. 
 
President Etchegoyhen called the meeting back in session. 
 
President Etchegoyhen returned to agenda item #4. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are items that can be adopted 
with one motion unless an item is pulled by a District Director or a 
member of the public. Members of the public who wish to have a consent 
item placed on the Administrative Agenda shall make that request during 
the public comment section at the beginning of the meeting and 
specifically state why they are making the request. When items are pulled 
for discussion, they will automatically be placed at the beginning of the 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

8 | P a g e  
 

Administrative Agenda, or may be continued until another meeting. 
(Jacques Etchegoyhen, President) 5 Minutes. 
 
President Jacques Etchegoyhen explained these items can be adopted with one 
motion, unless an item is pulled by a District Director, staff, or a member of 
the public. 

 
a. For Possible Action.  Discussion to accept the report on general 

ledger cash balances as of May 31, 2023. (Kathy Lewis, CPA, 
CFO/Director of Finance) 
 

b. For Possible Action.  Discussion to approve the receipt and filing of 
the list of accounts payable checks issued and cash 
disbursements/automatic withdrawals in May 2023 per NRS 474.210. 
(Kathy Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director of Finance) 
 

c. For Possible Action.  Discussion to approve payroll expense paid in 
May 2023 per NRS 474.210. (Kathy Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director of 
Finance) 
 

d. For Possible Action.  Discussion to approve the Procurement Card 
Transactions paid in May 2023 per NRS 474.210. (Kathy Lewis, CPA, 
CFO/Director of Finance) 
 

e.  For Possible Action.  Discussion to approve the East Fork Fire 
Protection District’s ambulance billing bad debt write-offs for the 
period of April 2023 in the amount of $44,196.11. (Kathy Lewis, CPA, 
CFO/Director of Finance) 
 

f. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to accept the 
report on state consolidated taxes collection and distribution as of 
March 2023. (Kathy Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director of Finance) 

 
Director Mike Sommers asked Director of Finance Kathy Lewis if the District is 
still on track to receive 100% payments for the various taxes by June 30, 2023. 
 
Director of Finance Lewis stated she and District Fire Chief Tod Carlini have 
been watching this closely.  The sales tax payment appears to close to project, 
but the real property transfer tax and governmental service tax are not meeting 
projection.  She stated the real property transfer tax comes quarterly and 
appears it will come in lower than what was projected. 
 
Director Sommers clarified the collections through March do not have the 1st 
quarter tax payment. 
 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

9 | P a g e  
 

Director of Finance Lewis stated it does include the 1st quarter but not the 2nd 
quarter. 
 
President Etchegoyhen opened public comment. 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
Public comment closed. 
 
MOTION to approve Consent Calendar items 4 a, b, c, d, e, & f. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOTION BY: Mike Sommers 
SECOND BY: John Bellona 
AYES: Bellona, Griffin, Curtis, Etchegoyhen, Sommers 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 

 
5. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve the 
District’s annual worker’s compensation insurance package as provided by 
7710 Insurance for FY 23/24 at an annual cost of $872,931 and to 
authorize the District Chief to sign all related documents. (Tod F. Carlini, 
District Fire Chief) 20 minutes. 
 
District Fire Chief Tod Carlini presented the PowerPoint (included in the Board 
packet). 
 
District Fire Chief Carlini reported the District has been exploring a single 
option outside of the current worker’s compensation insurance provider 
POOL/PACT.  Jared Rossi with LPC Insurance, representatives with 7710 and 
Wayne Carrison with POOL/PACT are in attendance.  A lot of consideration 
was put into this decision.  If the Board does not want to approval to move 
ahead with 7710, the District will continue with POOL/PACT. 
 
Below is the PowerPoint presentation outlining the comparison of the worker’s 
compensation services between POOL/PACT and 7710: 
 
Basic Philosophy: 

• PACT: 
• “A core philosophy at POOL/PACT is that sound risk management 

practices can reduce the frequency and severity of claims. We are 
committed to helping our members manage their losses and we 
offer a variety of resources—including publications, webinars, and 
online courses--to help you do so. As a member driven 
organization, the services offered are developed by and tailored 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

10 | P a g e  
 

specifically to the needs of you, the member.”  (Source: PACT 
Website) 

• 7710: 
• “We focus completely on one thing and one thing only…providing 

superior workers’ compensation insurance for your fire and/or 
EMS operation. We provide a unique underwriting approach that is 
based on our firefighter/management expertise in loss prevention, 
safety and claims management. Our focus allows us to provide you 
with a long term, stable partner for your workers’ compensation 
needs.”  (Source: 7710 Website) 

 
Claims Processing Time: 

• PACT: 
• “Claims management is provided by Davies Claims Solutions. 

Headquartered in Nashville, Tennessee, Davies Claims Solutions is 
an integrity-based, quality driven third-party administrator. With 
offices located strategically throughout the United States, Davies 
Claims Solutions has offered multi-line property and casualty 
claims management services to a wide range of organizations for 
over 30 years.”  (Source: PACT Website) 

• 7710: 
• Contact is made with injured employee and Fire District within 24-

48 hours after a claim number is assigned to the claim. 7710’s 
Care Team is designed to oversee the third-party administrators 
and to interact directly with the employee, insured and the TPA. 
This increases communication between all parties leading to better 
claims results for all parties involved. 

• 7710 closes their claims in a shorter time than the industry 
average. This gets the employee back to work earlier and saves on 
premiums. 

 
Incentive Programs: 

• PACT: 
• Loss Control Excellence Program - The objective of the Program is 

to measure, monitor, and increase the overall entity performance. 
• 7710: 

• Shield Risk Management Program - Created by and completely 
focused on firefighters and EMS professionals. 

• 7710 Insurance SHIELD program provides hands-on expertise that 
expands risk management efforts and optimizes claim outcomes 
while augmenting the long-term safety and insurability of fire 
districts and EMS companies  

• It is fully aligned with NFPA guidelines. 
• SHIELD Team provides a specific combination of cost-conscious 

evaluation protocols, in-person training and specialized resources 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

11 | P a g e  
 

in a formal and traceable best practices program - dedicated to 
getting everyone home safely. 

 
Human Resource Services: 

• PACT: 
• PACT offers a full suite of Human Resource Services; however, they 

are not providing Human Resource services where legal advice is 
necessary. They provide both a Risk Management and HR Service 
Library for members. Value: $12,800.  (Source: PACT) 

• 7710: 
• 7710 does not offer Human Resource Services. 

 
Grant Programs: 

• PACT: 
• PACT, from time to time, offers grants for items which reduce 

worker’s injury exposures.  The District has been successful in 
receiving funding for equipment that reduces potential back 
injuries. 

  7710: 
• No grant programs are available at this time. 7710 tries to save the 

insured’s premiums upfront, so they can choose how they can 
allocate their funds. 

 
Training Programs: 

• PACT: 
• Annual Member Conference. 
• On-line Training - Target Solutions – Value: $13,448 but provided 

to the District at no additional cost. 
• Absorb e-learning – Value $16,960 but provided to the District at 

no additional cost. 
• Other trainings on their website: Poolpact.com.  (Source: PACT) 

• 7710: 
• Trainings listed on their website: 7710 insurance.com under risk 

control services to view available training opportunities and 
programs. 

 
Extended Services/Employee Benefits: 

• PACT: 
• Voluntarily Specialty Health exams and diagnostics. 
• Has low utilization by the District. 
• Value $650 Per Employee, but provided to District at no additional 

cost. 
• 7710: 

• Since 2019, 7710 Insurance has partnered with Ready Rebound to 
achieve a common goal; to help Fire Department personnel and 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

12 | P a g e  
 

other EMS professionals heal from injuries as soon as possible, so 
they can get back to work and their lives as quickly as possible. 

• Ready Rebound was founded upon the principle of applying both 
the sense of urgency and rehab strategies of sports medicine to 
first responders involved in a work-related injury. 

• With a background in both college level and professional sports, 
the founders of Ready Rebound believed that if athletes could get 
diagnosed and treated for injuries quickly, so should the people 
who put their lives on the line for us every day. 

• Additional Cost to District is $200 per employee. 
 
Rate History – Before Application of Modification Factors: 

• PACT: 
• 19/20 Rate:  19.23 increase 
• 20/21 Rate:  22.60 increase 
• 21/22 Rate:   23.87 increase 
• 22/23 Rate:  25.78 increase 
• 23/24 Rate:  28.87 increase 
• 5 Year Increase: 50.13% increase 

• 7710: 
• 19/20 Rate:  11.78 increase 
• 20/21 Rate:  11.68 increase 
• 21/22 Rate:  12.85 increase 
• 22/23 Rate:  12.45 increase 
• 23/24 Rate:  14.18 increase 
• 5 Year Increase: 20.37% increase 

 
Rate Guarantees: 

• PACT: 
• Rates are decided annually and based on several factors.   
• January 1, 2024 New Rates and X-Mods effective 1-1-24 for entire 

2024 calendar year. 
• Entities must Budget for this in FY2023-24 Budget.  (Source: PACT 

Assessment Policy) 
• Creates unfunded, unknown financial liability. 

• 7710: 
• Rates are decided annually and based on several factors. 
• The District’s proposed Rate and Modification Factor is effective for 

the entire policy period of July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024. In 
April 2024, the District will know the new rate and modification 
factor for the next fiscal year (FY24/25). 

• Maintains fiscal year status for renewal and budgeting. 
 
District Fire Chief Carlini stated the rates would change if personnel are added. 
 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

13 | P a g e  
 

District Accountant Lewis continued with the presentation. 
 
Rates: 

• PACT: 
• 7710 (Firefighters): $28.87 
• 7710V (Volunteer Firefighters): $1.84 
• 9410 (General Employees): $5.54 
• 9410B (Board Members): $5.16 
• 9410V (Volunteer General): $5.07 

• Modification Factor: 1.53 
• 7710: 

• 7710 (Firefighters): $14.18 
• 7711 (Volunteers): $1.88 
• 9410 (General Employees): $4.08 
• 8810 (Clerical): $0.40 

• Modification Factor: 1.86  
 
Potential Liability Considerations: 

• PACT: 
• PACT and the captive layers provide reinsurance for the structure 

of the program and are therefore not subject to the Insurance 
Guarantee Fund. 

• Members of PACT are jointly and severally liable to pay benefits to 
injured workers as required by law. 

• 7710: 
• 7710 is an admitted carrier providing guaranteed cost coverage in 

the State of Nevada. 
• Per NRS687A, in the event of their insolvency, the Insurance 

Guarantee Fund would meet any unfunded claims.  
 
Renewal Period/Payments: 

• PACT: 
• Renewal Period: July 2023 through June 2024 with a rate and 

modification update on January 1, 2024. 
• Payment Frequency:  Quarterly, with last quarter being a “true up” 

based on actual payroll. 
• 7710: 

• Renewal Period: July 2023 through June 2024. 
• Payment Frequency: Monthly, with a “true up” payment in 

July/August based on actual payroll. 
 
Strengths: 

• PACT: 
• PACT was organized under Nevada’s Interlocal Cooperation Act. 

Interlocal Agreements were designed to permit local government 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

14 | P a g e  
 

entities to band together and share in the provision of essential 
services. 

• Members are only local governments in Nevada. 
• Provides services beyond Worker’s Compensation, such as Target 

Solutions, HR services, and grant programs. 
• Currently ensures 5 independent Fire Districts in Nevada. 

• 7710: 
• Solely focused on emergency and public service workers and 

deeply understand the daily risks involved in these professions. 
• Offers conscientious and timely claims investigation and 

management, typically opening claims within 48 hours of 
notification by the employer, so we can be quick, efficient and fair 
to all involved parties. 

• Offer long-term strategies, focused on emergency workers’ 
continued wellness through thoughtful treatment management and 
return-to-work strategies. 

• 7710 Insurance strongly believes that Emergency Response 
Workers need partners that can help them actively and 
competently manage their operational costs. 

• Their goal is to reduce the frequency and severity of workers’ comp 
claims, while providing comprehensive coverage at the most 
competitive rates. 

• Currently services 310 Fire Agencies throughout the United States, 
with one being in Nevada thus far. 

 
Costs: 

• PACT: 
• Based on Estimated Payroll: $1,433,120 
• Calendar Year 2022 Payroll 

• 7710: 
• Based on Estimated Payroll: $872,931  
• Calendar Year 2021 Payroll 

 
Director of Finance Lewis explained what is budgeted for next year is not based 
on the quote given, it is based on the individual rates per classification and 
modification factor.  Workers’ compensation is capped at the first $36,000 in 
wages.  Both quotes were based on the payrolls provided but does not reflect 
how the District would budget next year.  The budget will be based on the 
expected personnel at the $36,000. 
 
Director Sommers asked if the District calculated what the exposure would be 
for the next budget year utilizing 7710 rates. 
 
Director of Finance Lewis stated she did not.  She calculated the total cost 
savings. 
 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

15 | P a g e  
 

Director Sommers confirmed the costs for next year with 7710 has not been 
budgeted. 
 
Director of Finance Lewis stated she has not, but does think it will be higher 
than the calculation for 2021 at $872,931. 
 
Director Sommers asked how much higher. 
 
Director of Finance Lewis stated between using the rates and modification 
factor, the savings would be approximately $470,000. 
 
Staff Recommendation and Questions: 

• Staff’s recommendation: To approve the District’s annual worker’s 
compensation insurance package as provided by 7710 Insurance for FY 
23/24 at an annual cost of $872,931.00. 

 
Secretary John Bellona stated he understands there is an issue with the wait 
time for diagnostic testing.  No matter what carrier the District decides to go 
with, the issue regarding the wait time for diagnostic testing needs to be 
addressed.  What has 7710 done to show that issue will not continue. And do 
they go to Nevada State Hearing Officers for any contested claims? 
 
District Fire Chief Carlini referred the questions to 7710 representatives. 
 
Mr. Bill Wahl, Vice President of Marketing and Business Development for 7710 
stated Sandra Jones, Director of Claims and Bill Adamson, CEO are both 
online to answer or address any questions. 
 
Sandra Jones, Director of Claims thanked the Board for their time.  The 
difference with 7710 is they have a care claims team (Ready Rebound).  If there 
are issues with employees or the HR Director not being able to get a question 
answered regarding a claim, they can contact the cares team.  She has almost 
30 years’ experience and the team has many years of experience and willing to 
do whatever is needed to help things move along. 
 
Bill Adamson, CEO thanked the Board for their time.  They are focused on 
getting injured first responders back to work as soon as possible. 
 
Director Sommers asked who the TPA is for 7710. 
 
Bill Adamson stated the TPA for 7710 is Benchmark Administrations.  They are 
the Trean claims department. 
 
Director Sommers asked if there is a 24-hour nurse that evaluates the claims 
as they come in. 
 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

16 | P a g e  
 

Sandra Jones stated there is not a 24-hour nurse to evaluate a claim. 
 
Director Sommers asked how often would the District receive communication 
and reports on all open claims, and establishments and/or changing of 
reserves. 
 
Sandra Jones explained if a reserve change is made over $20,000 an update 
would be sent via email.  Regarding claim reviews, it can be customized to the 
client’s preference.  The team reviews all claims regularly to make sure all steps 
are being addressed in addition to the adjuster handling the claim.  This is 
done until the claim closes or to ensure the claim is moving in the right 
direction. 
 
Jared Rossi, LP Insurance stated the carrier, TPA or both will take part in the 
hearing and appeals process if a claim goes to that level. 
 
Secretary Bellona confirmed the appeal process takes place in Nevada. 
 
Jared Rossi stated yes. 
 
Jared Rossi explained at this time, open claims are reviewed monthly. 
 
Director Sommers asked who reviews the reports. 
 
Director of Administrative Services Owen stated she and District Fire Chief 
Carlini review the reports. 
 
Director Sommers asked 7710 how they determine the rate. 
 
Bill Adamson explained that 7710 are members of NCCI, which is a rating 
bureau for the insurance industry for workers comp.  They promulgate rates 
for each state and the insurance department approves those rates. 
 
Director Sommers confirmed POOL/PACT does not utilize NCCI rates. 
 
District Fire Chief Carlini stated that is his understanding. 
 
Director Sommers stated in the Mod factor calculations and utilizing exposure, 
is 7710 utilizing the wages paid or the exposed wage to determine the Mod 
factor. 
 
Bill Adamson confirmed with Director Sommers that he is referring to the 
experienced mod. 
 
Director Sommers stated that is correct. 
 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

17 | P a g e  
 

Bill Adamson explained experienced mod are claims taken from the past four 
years, dropping the most current year and that determines by formula the 
experience mod.  If the experience is 10% worse than the average, then it would 
be 110, 10% better than average 90 and average is 1.0.  That gets adjusted 
annually based on the losses from the prior three-year period. 
 
Director Sommers asked if it is loss rate, compared to losses, compared to 
wages paid or is it losses compared to exposure, which in the State of Nevada is 
$36,000 per employee. 
 
Bill Adamson stated the Mod is part of the calculation and explained the 
process. 
 
Sandra Jones stated the wages are based on audited payrolls, which would be 
the $36,000. 
 
Director Sommers asked if the scheduled modification is the adjustment 
determined necessary in order to keep the fixed premium policy at a whole. 
 
Bill Adamson stated it’s based on the risk control assessment and other 
factors. 
 
Director Sommers asked if 7710 utilizes stop loss gap. 
 
Bill Adamson stated there is no stop loss involved.  That is a health care issue.  
He stated 7710 does not purchase stop loss reinsurance. 
 
Director Sommers confirmed there is no cost for stop loss built into the rate. 
 
Bill Adamson stated schedule modification are based on exposures not because 
of reinsurance purchase. 
 
Director Sommers asked if 8810 is part of the current year rate versus the 
7710 rates. 
 
Jared Rossi stated that is correct.  8810 has been added on an infinite basis 
and there is no payroll associated with it.  If during the audit it is determined, 
they will shift any payroll to that class code and if it creates a credit it will be 
returned. 
 
President Jacques Etchegoyhen opened public comment. 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
Public comment closed. 
 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

18 | P a g e  
 

MOTION to approve the District’s annual worker’s compensation insurance 
package as provided by 7710 Insurance for FY 23/24 at an annual cost of 
$872,931 based on the amount of the rate differential between POOL/PACT 
and 7710 to include plan management, and to authorize the District Chief to 
sign all related documents. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOTION BY: Mike Sommers 
SECOND BY: John Bellona 
AYES: Bellona, Griffin, Curtis, Etchegoyhen, Sommers 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 

 
6. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to adopt revisions 
to Policy #607.7 Retirement Health Reimbursement Arrangement (rHRA) 
which funds individual rHRA accounts for non-represented, full-time 
employees, and defines criteria to provide annual tax-free contributions. 
(Lisa Owen, Director of Administrative Services) 10 minutes. 
 
Director of Administrative Services Lisa Owen stated policy 607.7 funds 
individual rHRA accounts for non-represented, full-time employees, and defines 
criteria to provide annual tax-free contributions. 
 
She stated last year there was a change in the contribution rate the Board 
approved.  The goal the District continues to maintain is when the represented 
employees are able to negotiate a contract and change the contribution rate for 
the rHRA, the District applies the same benefit to the non-represented 
employees.  During the last negotiations, that ended a few months, it was 
approved for an increase of the contribution rates.  A redline of the policy was 
provided showing the changes being made to the policy. 
 
Director of Administrative Services Owen stated she noticed a correction that 
needs to be made. 
 
Below is the recommended correction: 

• The contribution effective date reads January 2023 and it should read 
January 2024. 

 
Director Mike Sommers asked why can’t this coverage be unified so it wouldn’t 
have to come before the Board each year if it parallels the CBA contract. 
 
Director of Administrative Services Owen stated she would like to refer the 
question to Legal Counsel Mark Forsberg but explained something can be 
added to the policy stating it doesn’t need to come before the Board unless it 
exceeds a certain amount. 
 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

19 | P a g e  
 

Director Sommers stated he feels the Board would understand if it is being 
negotiated under the CBA, that this benefit for non-represented would follow so 
it doesn’t need to come before the Board. 
 
Legal Counsel Forsberg stated if that is agreed upon then there would be an 
obligation to follow this policy for the benefit of the people subject to the policy 
and there may come a time when the Board doesn’t want to do it. 
 
District Fire Chief Carlini stated he appreciates what Director Sommers is 
saying but this may be a challenge.  There may be a time in the negotiation 
process where a benefit is taken away or reduced to gain another benefit.  They 
have the ability to negotiate where others do not. 
 
Legal Counsel Forsberg stated there are many times in negotiations where the 
bargaining unit emphasizes one benefit over another.  The non-represented 
employees don’t have that opportunity. 
 
Director of Administrative Services Owen stated the policy gets reviewed every 
three years so if there are changes the Board would like to make to the policy, 
it can be done at that time. 
 
President Etchegoyhen opened public comment. 
 
There was no further public comment. 
 
Public comment closed. 
 
MOTION to adopt revisions to Policy #607.7 Retirement Health Reimbursement 
Arrangement (rHRA) which funds individual rHRA accounts for non-
represented, full-time employees, and defines criteria to provide annual tax-free 
contributions. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOTION BY: Barbara Griffin 
SECOND BY: Bernard Curtis 
AYES: Bellona, Griffin, Curtis, Etchegoyhen, Sommers 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 

 
7. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve the 
District’s transfer of a $30,000 donation from United Way to Douglas 
County with the expressed purpose of purchasing a vehicle for the 
Citizens Emergency Response Team (CERT) program. (Tod Carlini, District 
Fire Chief) 15 minutes. 
 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

20 | P a g e  
 

District Fire Chief Tod Carlini stated several years ago United Way donated 
$30,000 to the District for the purpose of purchasing a vehicle for Citizens 
Emergency Response Team (CERT) program.  At the time of the donation the 
District was the Chief Administers for the CERT program through the 
Emergency Management contract.  The Emergency Management contract will 
soon be in the control of Douglas County so the District will not be able to 
purchase the vehicle and still has the $30,000.  It’s important the money be 
used for its intended purpose, which is to purchase a vehicle for CERT and the 
recommendation is there be a condition of transfer before it goes to the County. 
 
Director Mike Sommers asked if the District can hold the funds until Douglas 
County purchases the vehicle. 
 
District Fire Chief Carlini stated yes.  He explained the donation was accepted 
waiting for the purchase of a vehicle.  United Way was notified the donation 
would be used for CERT. 
 
Director Sommers stated he wants to make sure the funds are used for the 
purchase of a vehicle for CERT.  He stated it is similar to grants and Douglas 
County holding funds until equipment is purchased and then funds are 
distributed. 
 
President Jacques Etchegoyhen opened public comment. 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
Public comment closed. 
 
President Etchegoyhen stated he agrees and feels holding the funds until the 
purchase is made, makes for a clean process. 
 
MOTION to notify the Douglas County Emergency Manger that the $30,000 
donation from United Way to Douglas County with the expressed purpose of 
purchasing a vehicle for the Citizens Emergency Response Team (CERT) 
program will be transferred to the County after the purchase. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOTION BY: Mike Sommers 
SECOND BY: Barbara Griffin 
AYES: Bellona, Griffin, Curtis, Etchegoyhen, Sommers 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 

 
Item #8 was moved to follow agenda item #3. 
 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

21 | P a g e  
 

9. For Possible Action.  Discussion and direction to staff regarding 
legislation or legislative issues proposed by legislators or by other entities 
permitted by the Nevada State Legislature to submit bill draft requests, or 
such legislative issues that may impact the East Fork Fire Protection 
District as may be deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors. (Tod F. 
Carlini, District Fire Chief) 10 minutes. 
 
District Fire Chief Tod Carlini stated an update summary of bills was provided 
as backup.  Adam Wennhold will review the information he provided that he 
feels the District should be aware of. 
 
Engineer Adam Wennhold stated the biggest change since Friday, June 16th is 
the Governor vetoed AB 172 which applies to School Districts.  The other 
vetoes of importance to the District are bills related to EMS, sponsored by 
Assemblymen Gray, which unfortunately didn’t move forward and failed 
passage in the alternate house. 
 
District Fire Chief Carlini requested Legal Counsel Mark Forsberg review AB 
219 to SB 261 to see if there is any impact to the District. 
 
He thanked Engineer Wennhold for his monitoring of the various legislation 
and hard work.  The District has had services of professional lobbyist in the 
past and Engineer Wennhold is exceeding their work. 
 
The Board thanked Engineer Wennhold for his time and the information he 
provided. 
 
Director Mike Sommers asked District Fire Chief Carlini to forward information 
to Legal Counsel Forsberg that he would like him to look into.  
 
15. For Presentation Only.  Reports/updates from East Fork Professional 
Firefighters Association concerning the various assignments and 
committees they may be a member of, a liaison to, and 
meetings/functions they have attended.  No action will be taken on these 
reports/updates. (Jacques Etchegoyhen, President) 5 minutes. 
 
Association President Kevin May noted: 

• Great efforts put in by both the Association and District on the memorial 
of Battalion Chief Scott Fraser (ret). 

 
Director Barbara Griffin thanked Association President May for the wonderful 
academy graduation he put on.  She believes it was one of the nicest 
graduations she has attended. 
 
Association President May stated the recruit from Central Lyon that got injured 
during the academy set-up the entire graduation.  He did a really good job. 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

22 | P a g e  
 

 
Director Mike Sommers stated he was hoping a few of the recent graduates 
would attend the Board meeting to see how the Board operates. 
 
Association President May stated they recently got off their first shift but plan 
on attending a few meetings. 
 
16. For Presentation Only.  Reports/updates from East Fork Volunteer 
Firefighters Association concerning the various assignments and 
committees they may be a member of, a liaison to, and 
meetings/functions they have attended.  No action will be taken on these 
reports/updates. (Jacques Etchegoyhen, President) 5 minutes. 
 
Volunteer Liaison, Elaine Pace noted: 

• All tubes have been replaced by LED bulbs in the apparatus bays 
• AED’s have been placed in six of the volunteer stations purchased 

through a grant from Douglas County 
• Applied for an ARPA grant to purchase an off-road vehicle to help in the 

back country 
 
17. For Presentation Only.  Reports/updates from District Board Members 
and Administration concerning the various assignments and committees 
they may be a member of, a liaison to, and meetings/functions they have 
attended.  No action will be taken on these reports/updates.  (Jacques 
Etchegoyhen, President) 10 Minutes. 
 
Legal Counsel Mark Forsberg noted: 

• He has reviewed AB 219 regarding the open meeting law and will verify 
there are no changes that would impact the District 

• He continues to review SB 261 and will be in contact with Deputy Chief 
Ray with any updates 

 
CPA, CFO/Director of Finance Kathy Lewis noted: 

• Next week is the end of the Fiscal Year 
• There is an opening for the Payroll Specialist position.  Amy 

Modispacher, the current Payroll Specialist has given her notice and will 
be moving to Florida.  The District wishes her the best of luck. 

• Will be doing payroll until the position is filled 
 
Director of Finance Lewis stated Ms. Modispacher has been with the District a 
little over 10 years and has done a great job. 
 
Deputy Chief Scott Gorgon noted: 

• No report 
 
Director of Administrative Services Lisa Owen noted: 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

23 | P a g e  
 

• There are a couple open job recruitments she has been working on 
 
Deputy Chief/Fire Marshal Amy Ray noted: 

• Moving forward with the WUI code 
• Attending meetings for commercial development 
• Fuels Crew is doing work near Sun Rise Pass.  The crews stay at the 

jobsite for 4 days per shift called a spike camp 
• Attended the Valage ground breaking ceremony 
• Inspected with crews, the Back-Country concert coming to Douglas 

County.  They plan on holding this event annually  
 
Director Barbara Griffin asked if Station 15 is complete. 
 
District Fire Chief Tod Carlini hopes it will be ready by the end of July. 
 
Deputy Chief Training and Safety Larry Goss noted: 

• Conway is in the process of putting the infrastructure in place 
• Switching from Frontier to Spectrum 
• Testing communications for Spillman 
• Waiting on the County to give access to the third-party vendor to make 

the Microsoft migration 
• Received the first cost estimate associated with the Cal Fire RFP 

 
Director Mike Sommers asked where the Cal Fire dispatch center is. 
 
Deputy Chief Goss stated it is in Camino. 
 
Director Mike Sommers noted: 

• Attended the Volunteer meeting.  6 additional people interested in 
becoming volunteers 

• Attended the pancake breakfast at Station 6 
 
Director Bernard Curtis noted: 

• No report 
 
President Jacques Etchegoyhen noted: 

• No report 
 
Director Barbara Griffin noted: 

• Cake available after the meeting to celebrate Director Curtis’s birthday 
and the end of the fiscal year 

 
Director Barbara Griffin asked Legal Counsel Forsberg if there has been any 
legal activity. 
 
Legal Counsel Forsberg stated no. 



EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD 
MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2023 
 

24 | P a g e  
 

 
Secretary John Bellona noted: 

• No report 
 
District Fire Chief Tod Carlini noted: 

• No report 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
18. For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to adjourn the 
East Fork Fire Protection District Board Meeting. (Jacques Etchegoyhen, 
President) 5 Minutes. 
 
MOTION to adjourn; carried. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOTION BY: Mike Sommers 
SECOND BY: Barbara Griffin 
AYES: Bellona, Griffin, Curtis, Etchegoyhen, Sommers  
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 

 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting 
adjourned at 2:53 pm. 
 

Respectfully submitted: 
         
  ______________________________________ 

      Jacques Etchegoyhen, President 
      East Fork Fire Protection District 
 
ATTEST: 
 

_______________________________ 
Holly Megee, Board Clerk 
East Fork Fire Protection District 



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

1. Title:  For Possible Action. Approval of Consent Calendar Items A-F. (Jacques 
Etchegoyhen, President) 5 minutes. 

 
2. Recommended Motion:  Motion to approve the Consent Calendar Items A-F. 
  
3.          Funds Available:  NA Amount:  NA 

 Fund Name:  NA Account Number:  NA 
 
4.          Prepared by:  Tod F. Carlini, District Fire Chief 
 
5.          Meeting Date:  July 18, 2023 Time Required: 5 minutes 
 
6.          Agenda:  Consent Calendar 
 
7. Background Information:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are items that can 

be adopted with one motion unless an item is pulled by a District Director, the 
administration, or a member of the public. Members of the public who wish to have a 
consent item placed on the Administrative agenda shall make that request during public 
comment section at the beginning of the meeting and specifically state why they are 
making the request. When items are pulled for discussion, they will automatically be 
placed at the beginning of the Administrative Agenda or may be continued until another 
meeting. The Consent Calendar includes six items A-F, which is attached. 

 
8. Reviewed by: 

       District Fire Chief      Board President  
      Legal Counsel      Other 

 
9. Board Action: 

    Approved       Approved with Modifications 
    Denied       Deferred 
    Other 

 
Agenda Item # 3 



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 
 

1. Title: For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to accept the report on 
general ledger cash balances as of June 30, 2023. (Kathy Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director of 
Finance) 

 
2. Recommended Motion:  Motion to accept the report on general ledger cash balances as 

of June 30, 2023. 
  
3.          Funds Available:  NA Amount:  $4,061,369.79 

 Fund Name:  General, Emergency Account Number:  Various 
 
4.          Prepared by:  Kathy Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director of Finance 
 
5.          Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 Time Required: NA 
 
6.          Agenda:  Consent 
 
7. Background Information:  The attached “Cash Cross Fund” report reflects the cash 

balances currently recorded in the District's general ledger or official accounting record. 
General ledger cash balances may differ from cash balances reported in the treasury. 

 
8. Reviewed by: 

       District Fire Chief      Board President  
      Legal Counsel      Other 

 
9. Board Action: 

    Approved       Approved with Modifications 
    Denied       Deferred 
    Other 
 

 
Agenda Item # 3A 



Fund # Fund Name Account # Account Description
Beginning of 

Month Balance Changes
Ending of Month 

Balance

650 General Fund 101.650 Cash in Bank - EFFPD               767,199.86         (184,676.70)            582,523.16 
650 General Fund 101.701 LGIP - Local Govt Investment Pool           3,427,215.96         (286,287.43)         3,140,928.53 
650 General Fund 101.703 Reserve Account - Pitney Bowes                   2,594.00                (250.00)                 2,344.00 
650 General Fund 102.000 Petty Cash                      100.00                         -                      100.00 

Fund Total           4,197,109.82         (471,214.13)         3,725,895.69 

651 Emergency Fund 101.650  Cash in Bank - EFFPD                              -                           -                              -   
651 Emergency Fund 101.701  LGIP               334,137.19              1,336.91            335,474.10 

Fund Total               334,137.19              1,336.91            335,474.10 

          4,531,247.01         (469,877.22)         4,061,369.79 Grand Total: 2 Funds

East Fork Fire Protection District
Cash Cross Fund Report

As of:
June-23



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 
 

1. Title: For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve the receipt and 
filing of the list of accounts payable checks issued and cash disbursements/automatic 
withdrawals in June 2023 per NRS 474.210. (Kathy Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director of 
Finance) 

 
2. Recommended Motion:  Motion to approve the receipt and filing of the list of accounts 

payable checks issued and cash disbursements/automatic withdrawals in June 2023 per 
NRS 474.210. 

  
3.          Funds Available:  Yes Amount:  $1,931,778.23 

 Fund Name:  General Account Number:  Various 
 
4.          Prepared by:  Kathy Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director of Finance 
 
5.          Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 Time Required: NA 
 
6.          Agenda:  Consent 
 
7. Background Information:  Attached is a list of checks issued for accounts payable, cash 

disbursements/automatic withdrawals and transfers for the dates noted above.   
 
8. Reviewed by: 

       District Fire Chief      Board President  
      Legal Counsel      Other 

    
9. Board Action: 

    Approved       Approved with Modifications 
    Denied       Deferred 
    Other 
 

 
Agenda Item # 3B 



Company name: East Fork Fire Protection District
Report name:
Created on: 7/5/2023
Fund: All Funds--All Funds

Type Date Check No. Payee Name Transaction Amount
Check 6/2/2023 11193 A Sign Shop 438.00
Check 6/2/2023 11194 Ace Hardware 9.04
Check 6/2/2023 11195 Carson Dodge Chrysler 4,666.44
Check 6/2/2023 11196 Cintas 129.21
Check 6/2/2023 11197 Flyers Energy LLC 2,574.53
Check 6/2/2023 11198 Garett Alvey 635.40
Check 6/2/2023 11199 Guided Truck & Equipment 62.11
Check 6/2/2023 11200 Howell's Lock and Safe 435.00
Check 6/2/2023 11201 Kronos Incorporated 12.96
Check 6/2/2023 11202 Les Schwab Tire Centers of Nevada 1,757.76
Check 6/2/2023 11203 Life-Assist, Inc 584.56
Check 6/2/2023 11204 LN Curtis 3,205.00
Check 6/2/2023 11205 Med-Tech Resources Inc 635.63
Check 6/2/2023 11206 NV Consulting LLC 1,550.00
Check 6/2/2023 11207 O'Reilly Auto Parts 92.64
Check 6/2/2023 11208 Pacific Shredding 57.78
Check 6/2/2023 11209 PACT 320.18
Check 6/2/2023 11210 Silver State Industries 2,933.26
Check 6/2/2023 11211 Uniformity of Nevada LLC 2,628.73
Check 6/2/2023 11212 United Rentals 1,849.49
Record Transfer 6/2/2023 VOYA Benefit Strategies 11,005.75
Record Transfer 6/2/2023 AuthorizeNet 30.00
Record Transfer 6/2/2023 State of NV - DCP 44,306.46
Record Transfer 6/2/2023 VOYA Benefit Strategies 2,750.00
Record Transfer 6/2/2023 Cybersource 5.40
Record Transfer 6/2/2023 Waystar 1,266.12
Record Transfer 6/2/2023 Aetna Life Insurance 157,156.27
Record Transfer 6/5/2023 State of NV - DCP 815.45
Record Transfer 6/5/2023 Aflac 1,071.36
Record Transfer 6/8/2023 VOYA Benefit Strategies 49.40
Check 6/9/2023 11213 Accolades Trophies, Engraving & Gifts 123.50
Check 6/9/2023 11214 Airtec Gases 305.44
Check 6/9/2023 11215 Amazon Business 5,328.23
Check 6/9/2023 11216 Black Point LLC 2,084.00
Check 6/9/2023 11217 Bound Tree Medical, LLC 3,549.38
Check 6/9/2023 11218 Charter Communications 168.98
Check 6/9/2023 11219 Cole Jackson 623.56
Check 6/9/2023 11220 Flyers Energy LLC 4,578.62
Check 6/9/2023 11221 Hunt & Sons, Inc 98.90
Check 6/9/2023 11222 Jacob Ferreira 200.50
Check 6/9/2023 11223 Jesse Fry 48.38
Check 6/9/2023 11224 Life-Assist, Inc 276.67
Check 6/9/2023 11225 Nevada News Group 410.75
Check 6/9/2023 11226 NV St Dept of Public Safety 201.25
Check 6/9/2023 11227 Roy Minor 200.50
Check 6/9/2023 11228 Shannon Russell 6.55
Check 6/9/2023 11229 Southwest Gas Corporation 3,582.81
Check 6/9/2023 11230 Suzanne Luck 18.08
Check 6/9/2023 11231 TASC Client Services 186.00
Check 6/9/2023 11232 ubeo Business Services 17.68
Check 6/9/2023 11233 Warren Reed Insurance 542.00
Check 6/9/2023 11234 Zoll Data Systems, Inc 4,668.72

Payables for Prior Month



Company name: East Fork Fire Protection District
Report name:
Created on: 7/5/2023
Fund: All Funds--All Funds

Type Date Check No. Payee Name Transaction Amount

Payables for Prior Month

Check 6/9/2023 11235 BLD Consulting 1,000.00
Check 6/9/2023 11236 Capital Ford 15.27
Check 6/9/2023 11237 Parts House 1,023.93
Check 6/9/2023 11238 Pro Leisure 319.06
Check 6/9/2023 11239 West Coast Code Consultants 750.00
Check 6/9/2023 11243 Ace Hardware 137.28
Check 6/9/2023 11247 Building Services of CA & NV, LLC 525.00
Check 6/9/2023 11250 Cintas 90.40
Check 6/9/2023 11257 Gear Wash 568.96
Check 6/9/2023 11264 LN Curtis 1,740.00
Check 6/9/2023 11268 Overhead Door 230.00
Check 6/9/2023 11269 Pestmaster Services 457.00
Check 6/9/2023 11275 Town of Minden 541.05
Record Transfer 6/14/2023 Optum Financial 99.21
Check 6/15/2023 11240 A Sign Shop 300.00
Check 6/15/2023 11241 ABE Printing 87.98
Check 6/15/2023 11242 Ace Hardware 442.61
Check 6/15/2023 11244 Avenza Systems Inc. 1,138.80
Check 6/15/2023 11245 Bound Tree Medical, LLC 230.23
Check 6/15/2023 11246 Brady Industries, LLC 238.96
Check 6/15/2023 11248 Carson Valley Medical Center 8,988.00
Check 6/15/2023 11249 Cintas 365.74
Check 6/15/2023 11251 Conway Shield 282.50
Check 6/15/2023 11252 Douglas County Utilities 1,825.28
Check 6/15/2023 11253 Douglas Disposal 863.76
Check 6/15/2023 11254 Flyers Energy LLC 972.08
Check 6/15/2023 11255 Frontier Communications 64.99
Check 6/15/2023 11256 Gardnerville Ranchos GID 290.00
Check 6/15/2023 11258 Guided Truck & Equipment 2,123.26
Check 6/15/2023 11259 Henry Schein, Inc 1,049.26
Check 6/15/2023 11260 Holly Megee 207.50
Check 6/15/2023 11261 Hunt & Sons, Inc 38.70
Check 6/15/2023 11262 ITLS of Nevada 20.00
Check 6/15/2023 11263 Kronos Incorporated 111.81
Check 6/15/2023 11265 National Business Factors 210.33
Check 6/15/2023 11266 O'Reilly Auto Parts 755.57
Check 6/15/2023 11267 Oshinski & Forsberg, Ltd. 2,587.50
Check 6/15/2023 11270 Public Employee's Benefits Program 399.14
Check 6/15/2023 11271 SHI International Corp 1,281.42
Check 6/15/2023 11272 SMG Fire Consulting Group LLC 13,906.50
Check 6/15/2023 11273 Terry Taylor 247.14
Check 6/15/2023 11274 Topaz Ranch Estates GID & Water Co. 91.00
Check 6/15/2023 11276 Waystar 881.20
Record Transfer 6/15/2023 Bank of America- Checking 239.91

Record Transfer 6/15/2023 Public Employees' Retirement System of Nevada 279,682.05
Record Transfer 6/16/2023 State of NV - DCP 31,010.44
Record Transfer 6/16/2023 VOYA Benefit Strategies 70.50
Record Transfer 6/16/2023 VOYA Benefit Strategies 10,793.15
Record Transfer 6/16/2023 State of NV - DCP 754.55
Record Transfer 6/16/2023 VSP 1,155.04
Record Transfer 6/20/2023 TriZetto 250.00



Company name: East Fork Fire Protection District
Report name:
Created on: 7/5/2023
Fund: All Funds--All Funds

Type Date Check No. Payee Name Transaction Amount

Payables for Prior Month

Record Transfer 6/23/2023 Standard Insurance Company 728.80
Record Transfer 6/23/2023 Standard Insurance Company 728.80
Record Transfer 6/23/2023 Standard Insurance Company 3,589.20
Check 6/26/2023 11277 A&D Electrical Contractors LLC 9,421.90
Check 6/26/2023 11278 Ace Hardware 229.83
Check 6/26/2023 11279 Airtec Gases 100.55
Check 6/26/2023 11280 AT&T Mobility 1,999.21
Check 6/26/2023 11281 Betty Larrouy 765.35
Check 6/26/2023 11282 Bound Tree Medical, LLC 3,190.24
Check 6/26/2023 11283 Carson Dodge Chrysler 222.50
Check 6/26/2023 11284 Central Lyon County Fire Protection District 4,651.28
Check 6/26/2023 11285 Central Sierra Construction, Inc. 28,502.38
Check 6/26/2023 11286 Cintas 356.47
Check 6/26/2023 11287 Conway Communications 25,518.25
Check 6/26/2023 11288 Flyers Energy LLC 3,958.86
Check 6/26/2023 11289 Frontier Communications 2,949.26
Check 6/26/2023 11290 Henry Schein, Inc 33.20
Check 6/26/2023 11291 IMS Alliance 230.45
Check 6/26/2023 11292 Kronos Incorporated 55.00
Check 6/26/2023 11293 Life-Assist, Inc 471.04
Check 6/26/2023 11294 LN Curtis 139.00
Check 6/26/2023 11295 NV Consulting LLC 1,550.00
Check 6/26/2023 11296 O'Reilly Auto Parts 3.99
Check 6/26/2023 11297 Pacific Shredding 28.89
Check 6/26/2023 11298 Ron's Refrigeration, Inc. 4,558.51
Check 6/26/2023 11299 SHI International Corp 11,797.50
Check 6/26/2023 11300 Siddons-Martin Emergency Group 212.16
Check 6/26/2023 11301 United Site Services 1,386.77
Check 6/26/2023 11302 Western Nevada Supply 997.48
Check 6/26/2023 11303 Xerox Corporation 694.36
Record Transfer 6/26/2023 Bank of America CC - EF 26,453.66
Record Transfer 6/26/2023 Bank of America CC - Visa 1,856.84
Record Transfer 6/28/2023 NV Energy 4,773.43
Record Transfer 6/28/2023 Pay Plus 812.40
Record Transfer 6/29/2023 State of NV - DCP 31,158.27
Record Transfer 6/29/2023 State of NV - DCP 1,296.41
Check 6/30/2023 11304 7710 Insurance 72,736.00
Check 6/30/2023 11305 ABE Printing 451.96
Check 6/30/2023 11306 Ace Hardware 8.59
Check 6/30/2023 11307 Bently Ranch 30.00
Check 6/30/2023 11308 BLD Consulting 1,000.00
Check 6/30/2023 11309 Bound Tree Medical, LLC 313.98
Check 6/30/2023 11310 Braun NW, Inc 1,351.00
Check 6/30/2023 11311 Carson Dodge Chrysler 1,546.43
Check 6/30/2023 11312 Charter Communications 1,001.15
Check 6/30/2023 11313 Cintas 129.21
Check 6/30/2023 11314 Dave Taylor Appliance Service 100.00
Check 6/30/2023 11315 Flyers Energy LLC 3,411.22
Check 6/30/2023 11316 Jesse Fry 804.36
Check 6/30/2023 11317 Life-Assist, Inc 105.00
Check 6/30/2023 11318 LN Curtis 23,196.00
Check 6/30/2023 11319 O'Reilly Auto Parts 123.62



Company name: East Fork Fire Protection District
Report name:
Created on: 7/5/2023
Fund: All Funds--All Funds

Type Date Check No. Payee Name Transaction Amount

Payables for Prior Month

Check 6/30/2023 11320 Pacific Shredding 57.78
Check 6/30/2023 11321 Siddons-Martin Emergency Group 766.13
Check 6/30/2023 11322 Southwest Gas Corporation 1,406.00
Check 6/30/2023 11323 Topaz Ranch Estates GID & Water Co. 111.10
Check 6/30/2023 11324 ubeo Business Services 2,576.59
Check 6/30/2023 11325 Uniformity of Nevada LLC 921.38
Record Transfer 6/30/2023 VOYA Benefit Strategies 2,500.00
Record Transfer 6/30/2023 LGIP (Local Govt Investment Pool) 1,000,000.00

Total 163 records 1,931,778.23



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 
 

1. Title: For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve payroll expenses 
paid in June 2023 per NRS 474.210. (Kathy Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director of Finance) 

 
2. Recommended Motion:  Motion to approve payroll expenses paid in June 2023 per NRS 

474.210. 
  
3.          Funds Available:  Yes Amount:  $2,082,307.60 

 Fund Name:  General Account Number:  Various 
 
4.          Prepared by:  Kathy Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director of Finance 
 
5.          Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 Time Required: NA 
 
6.          Agenda:  Consent 
 
7. Background Information:  Attached is the summarized payroll registers for the month.  

Please note, total costs reported are gross earnings, East Fork Fire Protection District paid 
deduction and taxes (employer). 

 
8. Reviewed by: 

       District Fire Chief      Board President  
      Legal Counsel      Other 

 
9. Board Action: 

    Approved       Approved with Modifications 
    Denied       Deferred 
    Other 
 

 
Agenda Item # 3C 



Report Total

# of EE's - 107 / # of Statements - 311

Pay Type Hrs Amt Deduction EE Amt ER Amt Taxes Amt Net Pay Amt

NVE-Reg 3607.50 83,955.12 NVPERS Fire - 383,264.07 FIT 199,672.51 Direct Deposit 1,091,948.95

Regular 25889.33 847,756.77 NVPERS Reg - 36,069.73 MEDI 21,280.92 Check 21,538.71

WC 141.00 4,879.45 Dist Paid Dent - 7,784.96 SIT:CA 1,037.61 Totals: 1,113,487.66

Act-REG 07.00 - Dist Paid Life - 549.60 Totals: 221,991.04

NVE Act-REG 20.00 - Dist Paid Vis - 1,053.27 MEDI 21,280.92

NVE-ActREG 10.00 276.24 Dist Pd Med - 135,910.71 SUTA:NV -

Prec-REG 24.00 - Donate 300.00 - ER Totals: 21,280.92

FLSA 583.50 17,734.06 HSA Acct Fee - 202.50 All Totals: 243,271.96

HIW - 2,250.00 HSA Fam 55 670.80 -

OT 3849.42 180,900.36 HSA Ind 55 691.64 -

NVEOT 814.50 28,085.52 HSA Pre Fam 19,829.00 1,250.00

Act-OT 562.50 26,095.42 HSA Pre Ind 2,537.46 1,500.00

NVE-ActOT 32.50 1,346.68 HSA Special 570.00 -

C1 113.00 8,095.21 457 Roth post t 26,246.79 -

Act-C1 24.00 1,446.91 457-% 58,819.24 -

RTW 59.00 3,202.88 457-CU 19,035.93 -

ActInc-CB 24.00 144.69 457Roth-CU 2,373.21 -

ActInc-OT 583.00 3,085.31 EFC 2,644.59 -

ActInc-RTW - - EFC2 1,384.62 -

ActInc-Reg 07.00 21.10 FICA Alt 2,866.41 -

NVActInc-REG 30.00 82.87 SP SPRT 1,912.00 -

PrecInc-Reg 24.00 72.35 WANV 8.00 -

PRInc-Reg 240.00 475.02 ERSF 13.50 -

PrmInc-Reg 8512.00 13,691.30 ERSF2 9.00 -

PrmInc-FLSA 228.00 366.98 Union Dues 13,304.25 -

PrmInc-OT 1740.17 4,304.47 NPT - -

PrmInc-CB 113.00 366.61 Vol EE Life 1,109.06 -

PrmInc-RTW - - Vol EE AD&D 243.25 -

HazInc-Reg 3936.00 4,096.02 Vol Life Spouse 104.49 -

HazInc-FLSA 99.00 101.70 Vol Spouse AD& 32.41 -

HazInc-OT 855.17 1,287.64 Vol Child Life 15.00 -

HazInc-CB 52.00 105.13 Vol Child AD&D 2.67 -

HazInc-RTW 35.00 60.14 Vol Acc 636.94 -

TSInc-Reg 1008.00 4,185.90 Vol LTD 1,256.32 -

TSInc-FLSA 27.00 112.14 Vol-A-ACC 102.58 -

TSInc-OT 272.50 1,697.43 Vol-A-CanPro 274.56 -

--More--

EAST FORK FIRE (6142201)
1694 COUNTY ROAD
Minden, NV 89423-4405
United States

Payroll Register (By Account)
Board Report - Payroll Summary

Pay Dates: 06/01/2023-06/30/2023

Filtered By: Pay Dates: 06/01/2023-06/30/2023; Employee Filter: All Employees Kronos SaaShr, Inc. Generated: 07/05/2023 12:01p
Generated By: Kathryn Lewis

Page 52 of 54

kmlewis
Highlight



Report Total

# of EE's - 107 / # of Statements - 311

Pay Type Hrs Amt Deduction EE Amt ER Amt Taxes Amt Net Pay Amt

TSInc-CB 45.50 377.90 Vol-A-Crit 41.22 -

AsInc-Reg 3088.00 4,568.31 Vol-A-HOSP 106.74 -

AsInc-FLSA 72.00 93.12 Vol-A-STD 435.51 -

AsInc-OT 831.17 2,145.63 Vol-A-TL 385.95 -

AsInc-CB 52.00 92.96 Totals: 157,963.14 567,584.84

WldInc-Reg 672.00 625.20

WldInc-FLSA 18.00 16.80

WldInc-OT 113.50 158.39

WldInc-CB 05.00 9.30

AV 240.88 8,946.58

ALU 77.00 3,729.09

AS 256.29 8,716.13

CU 40.00 1,025.16

PDU 194.50 -

PDU 40 - -

CLE 45.75 -

CLE-BC 29.50 -

CLE-CPT 254.00 -

CLE-ENG 209.83 -

CLE-FF 335.50 -

CLE-Force 136.50 -

MSC COMP 54.00 -

NVE-CLE 102.00 -

H-Work 100.00 6,607.38

HSP 4464.00 140,506.97

Holiday 322.00 14,409.24

AsInc-HSP 576.00 744.83

HazInc-HSP 720.00 747.51

PrmInc-HSP 1728.00 2,789.14

TSInc-HSP 216.00 897.00

WldInc-HSP 144.00 133.98

LWOP - -

Sick Used 1040.68 -

VU 1389.32 -

CLU-56 107.50 -

CLU-56+30 465.50 -

--More--

EAST FORK FIRE (6142201)
1694 COUNTY ROAD
Minden, NV 89423-4405
United States

Payroll Register (By Account)
Board Report - Payroll Summary

Pay Dates: 06/01/2023-06/30/2023

Filtered By: Pay Dates: 06/01/2023-06/30/2023; Employee Filter: All Employees Kronos SaaShr, Inc. Generated: 07/05/2023 12:01p
Generated By: Kathryn Lewis

Page 53 of 54

kmlewis
Highlight



Report Total

# of EE's - 107 / # of Statements - 311

Pay Type Hrs Amt Deduction EE Amt ER Amt Taxes Amt Net Pay Amt

CLU-56-30 528.50 -

CLU-56-SI 15.00 -

UBFO 24.00 -

UN 147.00 -

Comp Pay - -

VacBB - -

CPS - 420.00

UP - 53,200.00

Board PERS - 600.00

Board Non - 900.00

Admin Used - -

MIS INC - -

RET-NON-PERS - 399.40

RET-PERS - 300.40

PERS Wages - 1,021,756.63

PERS Cont - 419,333.80

Totals: 67253.43 1,493,441.84

EAST FORK FIRE (6142201)
1694 COUNTY ROAD
Minden, NV 89423-4405
United States

Payroll Register (By Account)
Board Report - Payroll Summary

Pay Dates: 06/01/2023-06/30/2023

Filtered By: Pay Dates: 06/01/2023-06/30/2023; Employee Filter: All Employees Kronos SaaShr, Inc. Generated: 07/05/2023 12:01p
Generated By: Kathryn Lewis

Page 54 of 54

kmlewis
Text Box
Total District Liability for Payroll:Earnings                      $ 1,493,441.84Employer Deductions: $   567,584.84Employer Taxes:         $     21,280.92Total                            $2,082,307.60*Note: June had three payperiods

kmlewis
Highlight



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

1. Title: For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve the Procurement 
Card Transactions paid in June 2023 per NRS 474.210. (Kathy Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director 
of Finance) 

 
2. Recommended Motion:  Motion to approve the Procurement Card Transactions paid in 

June 2023 per NRS 474.210. 

  
3. Funds Available:  Yes Amount:  $22,633.42 

 Fund Name:  General Account Number:  Various 
 
4. Prepared by:  Kathy Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director of Finance 
 
5. Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 Time Required: NA 
 
6. Agenda:  Consent 
 
7. Background Information:  Attached is the Report of Procurement Card Transactions for 

the period noted above.  
 
8. Reviewed by: 

       District Fire Chief      Board President  
      Legal Counsel      Other 

 
9. Board Action: 

    Approved       Approved with Modifications 
    Denied       Deferred 
    Other 

 
Agenda Item # 3D 



East Fork Fire Protection District
Procurement Card Transactions charged in June 2023

BofA CC - EF 5/31/2023 CHAD SHELDREW FLAG STORE OF NEVADA 180.00$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/1/2023 ERICA AMATORE AMZN MKTP US*Y17QI54W3 152.26$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/1/2023 AMY RAY WEST COAST CODE CONSUL 172.90$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/1/2023 AMY RAY WEST COAST CODE CONSUL 204.00$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/1/2023 KEVIN MAY CARSON VALLEY OIL-CARD 73.01$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/1/2023 PATRICK MOONEYHAN EVOLUTION CAR WASH 12.00$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/2/2023 JESSE FRY MAVERIK #460 38.43$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/3/2023 VINCE WEAVER AMZN MKTP US*SP6EQ5NT3 24.95$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/3/2023 VINCE WEAVER AMZN MKTP US*PJ4WE8R13 38.97$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/4/2023 ANDREW CHRZANOWSKI TRACTOR SUPPLY CO #182 9.99$                      
BofA CC - EF 6/4/2023 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE WWW.1AND1.COM 14.00$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/5/2023 VINCE WEAVER LOWES #01024* 254.45$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/5/2023 VINCE WEAVER UNIFORMITY OF NEVADA L 89.97$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/5/2023 TROY VALENZUELA TWILIO INC 40.60$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/5/2023 JESSE TSCHETTER MAVERIK #460 56.24$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/5/2023 HOLLY MEGEE SOCIETYFORHUMANRESOURC 244.00$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/6/2023 JESSE TSCHETTER ROCKY MOUNTAIN ATV, IN 144.02$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/7/2023 VINCE WEAVER AMZN Mktp US*TX4JT8H03 117.98$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/7/2023 KEVIN MAY MAVERIK #560 82.64$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/8/2023 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Spectrum 803.08$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/8/2023 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE DTV*DIRECTV SERVICE 162.98$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/8/2023 JESSE TSCHETTER SPORTSMANS WAREHOUSE 2 86.04$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/8/2023 JESSE TSCHETTER SPORTSMANS WAREHOUSE 2 479.52$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/10/2023 CHAD SHELDREW THE HOME DEPOT #3309 68.94$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/10/2023 HOLLY MEGEE MYPROJECTORLAMPS.COM 99.99$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/11/2023 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE FEDEX69637476 10.99$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/11/2023 HOLLY MEGEE CURB LV TAXI A CAB 32.09$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/11/2023 JESSE TSCHETTER SMITHS FOOD #4389 192.63$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/11/2023 JESSE TSCHETTER WM SUPERCENTER #5864 365.83$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/11/2023 JESSE TSCHETTER WALGREENS #9864 43.33$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/12/2023 JAMES T CONNELLY MICROSOFT*MICROSOFT 36 99.99$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/12/2023 HOLLY MEGEE CURB LV TAXI DELUXE 10.66$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/12/2023 JESSE TSCHETTER MAVERIK #460 38.03$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/12/2023 JESSE TSCHETTER TRACTOR SUPPLY CO #182 15.31$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/13/2023 LARRY GOSS MICHAEL HOHL MOTOR CO 108.81$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/13/2023 TROY VALENZUELA TWILIO INC 40.01$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/13/2023 JESSE TSCHETTER SMITHS FOOD #4389 35.98$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/13/2023 JEREMY CHANDLER ASJ SMALL ENGINES, ETC 148.04$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/14/2023 HOLLY MEGEE CURB LV TAXI A CAB 32.09$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/14/2023 HOLLY MEGEE RENO-TAHOE AIRPORT AUT 38.00$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/14/2023 JESSE FRY CHEVRON 0206669 31.05$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/14/2023 JESSE FRY WALMART.COM 8009666546 373.24$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/14/2023 JESSE FRY SPORTSMANS WAREHOUSE 2 122.98$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/14/2023 JESSE FRY SPORTSMANS WAREHOUSE 2 331.59$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/14/2023 JESSE FRY MAVERIK #460 48.22$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/14/2023 JESSE FRY RALEY S #109 17.96$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/14/2023 JESSE FRY JOHNSON LANE GENERAL S 11.33$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/15/2023 LISA OWEN SQ *DAILY DISPATCH 688.50$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/15/2023 JEFF JAMES WAL-MART #5864 80.88$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/15/2023 JESSE TSCHETTER SPORTSMANS WAREHOUSE 2 347.53$                  



East Fork Fire Protection District
Procurement Card Transactions charged in June 2023

BofA CC - EF 6/15/2023 JESSE TSCHETTER SPORTSMANS WAREHOUSE 2 273.75$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/16/2023 ROY MINOR SHERATON DENVER 691.02$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/16/2023 ROY MINOR SHERATON DENVER 691.02$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/16/2023 HOLLY MEGEE WESTGATE LV RESORTCASI 125.82$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/16/2023 HOLLY MEGEE DOUGLAS COUNTY RECORDE 80.00$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/16/2023 HOLLY MEGEE GOVOLUTION * SERVICE F 2.00$                      
BofA CC - EF 6/17/2023 JESSE FRY MAVERIK #460 26.31$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/18/2023 JESSE TSCHETTER SMITHS FOOD #4389 560.64$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/18/2023 JESSE TSCHETTER RALEY S #109 20.97$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/19/2023 TROY VALENZUELA TWILIO INC 40.23$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/19/2023 JESSE TSCHETTER WM SUPERCENTER #5864 10.58$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/20/2023 DUSTIN WEISZ AUTOAUTH SERVICE 50.00$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/21/2023 AMY RAY INT'L CODE COUNCIL INC 203.00$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/21/2023 JESSE FRY SPORTSMANS WAREHOUSE 2 319.49$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/21/2023 JESSE FRY WM SUPERCENTER #1648 66.27$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/21/2023 JESSE FRY MAVERIK #460 38.74$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/21/2023 JESSE FRY RALEY S #109 67.51$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/21/2023 JEFF JAMES IN N OUT BURGER 313 16.13$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/22/2023 KEVIN REPAN TEXACO 0306011 100.00$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/22/2023 JEFF JAMES PNT*RED CUP YOGURT 22.02$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/23/2023 KEVIN REPAN PY *INLAND EMPIRE FLEE 1,375.47$              
BofA CC - EF 6/23/2023 KEVIN REPAN FOOD & FUEL #24 100.00$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/23/2023 KEVIN REPAN FOOD & FUEL #24 100.00$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/23/2023 KEVIN REPAN DOUBLETREE HOTELS 120.00$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/23/2023 KEVIN REPAN DOUBLETREE HOTELS 120.00$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/23/2023 VINCE WEAVER THE HOME DEPOT #3312 214.58$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/23/2023 JESSE FRY THE HOME DEPOT #3312 284.82$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/24/2023 KEVIN REPAN CHEVRON 0307165 100.00$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/24/2023 KEVIN REPAN CHEVRON 0307165 100.00$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/24/2023 HOLLY MEGEE MICHAELS #9490 28.86$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/24/2023 HOLLY MEGEE MICHAELS #9490 28.87$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/24/2023 JESSE FRY MAVERIK #460 45.42$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/25/2023 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE FEDEX69747142 10.99$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/25/2023 TROY VALENZUELA TWILIO INC 40.05$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/25/2023 JESSE TSCHETTER SMITHS FOOD #4389 1,180.00$              
BofA CC - EF 6/25/2023 JESSE TSCHETTER WAL-MART #5864 106.07$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/25/2023 DENNIS COTE THE HOME DEPOT #3312 56.88$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/26/2023 SKY DWINELL WAL-MART #1648 47.58$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/26/2023 KEVIN REPAN NAPA AUTO PARTS ALPINE 47.41$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/26/2023 KEVIN REPAN ALPINE SINCLAIR 158.51$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/26/2023 ERICA AMATORE FSP*REMSA 293.00$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/26/2023 ERICA AMATORE FSP*REMSA 302.00$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/26/2023 JESSE TSCHETTER SMITHS FOOD #4389 29.31$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/27/2023 SKY DWINELL BEST BUY MHT 00008508 14.99$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/27/2023 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE DTV*DIRECTV SERVICE 118.12$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/27/2023 CHAD SHELDREW THE HOME DEPOT #3309 696.00$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/27/2023 CHAD SHELDREW THE HOME DEPOT #3312 357.00$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/28/2023 KEVIN REPAN ALPINE SINCLAIR 141.00$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/28/2023 JESSE FRY WAL-MART #1648 60.52$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/28/2023 JESSE FRY WAL-MART #1648 49.74$                    



East Fork Fire Protection District
Procurement Card Transactions charged in June 2023

BofA CC - EF 6/28/2023 JESSE FRY WAL-MART #1648 8.44$                      
BofA CC - EF 6/28/2023 JESSE FRY SPORTSMANS WAREHOUSE 2 310.82$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/28/2023 JESSE FRY SPORTSMANS WAREHOUSE 2 100.38$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/28/2023 JESSE FRY MAVERIK #460 27.39$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/28/2023 JESSE FRY MAVERIK #460 17.42$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/28/2023 HOLLY MEGEE DOUGLAS COUNTY RECORDE 40.00$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/28/2023 HOLLY MEGEE GOVOLUTION * SERVICE F 2.00$                      
BofA CC - EF 6/28/2023 JESSE FRY TRACTOR SUPPLY CO #182 16.59$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/29/2023 JESSE FRY SMITHS FOOD #4389 34.41$                    
BofA CC - EF 6/29/2023 JESSE TSCHETTER SPORTSMANS WAREHOUSE 2 425.12$                  
BofA CC - EF 6/29/2023 JESSE TSCHETTER SPORTSMANS WAREHOUSE 2 39.83$                    

17,671.12$            

BofA CC - VISA 5/31/2023 VINCE WEAVER COSTCO WHSE #0127 226.27$                  
BofA CC - VISA 5/31/2023 VINCE WEAVER COSTCO WHSE #0127 383.04$                  
BofA CC - VISA 6/2/2023 EFFPD 5 COSTCO WHSE #0127 1,506.32$              
BofA CC - VISA 6/7/2023 VINCE WEAVER COSTCO WHSE #0127 371.43$                  
BofA CC - VISA 6/14/2023 EFFPD 5 COSTCO WHSE #0127 314.93$                  
BofA CC - VISA 6/20/2023 TONI BRAGA COSTCO BY INSTACART 142.14$                  
BofA CC - VISA 6/21/2023 EFFPD 5 COSTCO WHSE #0127 83.75$                    
BofA CC - VISA 6/21/2023 EFFPD 5 COSTCO WHSE #0127 750.06$                  
BofA CC - VISA 6/26/2023 VINCE WEAVER COSTCO WHSE #0127 209.68$                  
BofA CC - VISA 6/28/2023 EFFPD 5 COSTCO WHSE #0127 974.68$                     

4,962.30$              

GRAND TOTAL 22,633.42$            



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

1. Title: For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve the East Fork Fire 
Protection District’s ambulance billing bad debt write-offs for the period of May 2023 in 
the amount of $77,115.52. (Kathy Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director of Finance) 

 
2. Recommended Motion:  Motion to approve the East Fork Fire Protection District’s 

ambulance billing bad debt write-offs for the period of May 2023 in the amount of 
$77,115.52.  

  
3. Financial Impact:  NA Amount:  $77,115.52 

 Fund Name:  NA Account Number:  NA 
 
4. Prepared by:  Kathy Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director of Finance 
 
5. Meeting Date:  July 18, 2023 Time Required: NA 
 
6. Agenda:  Consent 
 
7. Background Information:  The East Fork Fire Protection District is requesting approval 

from the Board on ambulance billing bad debt write-offs for the period of May 2023.  
These write-offs total $77,115.52 and include accounts forwarded to a collection agency 
after all attempts to collect the debt were exhausted, Sierra Saver Membership write-offs, 
Reduction/Discounts, deceased write-offs, hardship and bankruptcy.   

 
8. Reviewed by: 

       District Fire Chief      Board President  
      Legal Counsel      Other 

 
9. Board Action: 

    Approved       Approved with Modifications 
    Denied       Deferred 
    Other 
 

 
Agenda Item # 3E 



Credit As Type Summary Report (Deposit Date)
Deposit Date IS BETWEEN 05/01/2023 AND 05/31/2023; AND Credits IS W/OFF BAD DEBT OR W/OFF BAD DEBT - 

DECEASED OR W/OFF BANKRUPTCY OR W/OFF CARSON CITY CC+ MBR OR W/OFF COLLECTION COMM EXP OR 

W/OFF COLLECTION PAYMENT OR W/OFF COLLECTIONS REVERSED OR W/OFF HARDSHIP OR W/OFF LYON 

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

DollarsCountCredit Type/Credit Code

Writeoffs

 18.04 1W/OFF BAD DEBT

 184.48 2W/OFF BAD DEBT - DECEASED

 200.00 1W/OFF CARSON CITY CC+ MBR

 1,353.19 7W/OFF REDUCTION/DISCOUNT

 2,790.33 8W/OFF SIERRA SAVER MBRSHIP

 70,535.52 102W/OFF SENT TO COLLECTIONS

 1,586.53 1W/OFF SIERRA SAVER EMPLOYEE

 447.43 1W/OFF SIERRA SAVER VOLUNTEER

Totals For Type  123 $ 77,115.52

 123Company Totals $  77,115.52

RescueNet™

\\ZOLLHOSTED.COM\US\EASTFORKFIRE\CENTRALSHARE\REPORTS32\BILLING\CREDITS\CREDIT TYPE SUMMARY BY DEPOSIT DATE.RPT

Printed On:  7/5/2023 at  1:04:13PM Page 1



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May YTD

Total Billed 886,422.91  798,637.72  785,151.75  757,399.34  794,665.18  961,650.91  942,451.69  633,839.08  760,762.83  690,529.22  817,750.62  8,829,261.25   

Credit Type/Credit Code
W/OFF Bad Debt 0.01               0.08               300.00          7.00               1.44               6.56               (0.02)             5,200.54       18.04            5,533.65           
W/OFF Bad Debt Deceased 20,455.90     10,607.31     7,960.84       1,912.30       594.43          2,931.65       4,258.09       (1,676.84)     529.33          4,846.49       184.48          52,603.98        
W/OFF Bankruptcy 135.00          233.00          368.00              
W/OFF Reduction Discount 394.97          530.47          582.12          252.22          1,048.29       595.19          1,006.69       1,675.60       3,930.37       (216.40)         1,353.19       11,152.71        
W/OFF Carson City SS Membership 418.28          578.88          470.81          456.20          200.00          2,124.17           
W/OFF Lyon County SS Membership 905.81          1,167.90       2,073.71           
W/OFF Sierra Saver Membership 1,022.67       2,430.77       1,212.83       7,429.91       3,458.28       6,442.13       5,653.58       4,566.80       1,553.80       5,120.40       2,790.33       41,681.50        
W/OFF SS Volunteer Membership 325.00          532.86          447.43          1,305.29           
W/OFF SS Employee Membership 326.13          4,200.29       1,505.19       4,398.57       (1,468.49)     1,586.53       10,548.22        
W/OFF Hardship 3,643.45       477.23          451.33          446.14          5,018.15           
W/OFF Sent to Collections 18,100.66     40,073.22     17,020.79     26,476.97     42,612.07     32,424.02     41,947.22     61,648.69     (4,598.64)     29,245.08     70,535.52     375,485.60      

Total 40,392.49     59,096.12     31,276.87     36,548.63     49,685.26     42,394.43     59,360.75     64,745.76     3,083.04       44,196.11     77,115.52     507,894.98      

Percentage of W/OFF to Billings 4.56% 7.40% 3.98% 4.83% 6.25% 4.41% 6.30% 10.21% 0.41% 6.40% 9.43% 5.75%

Total Billed Calls 410 372 364 369 387 464 439 311 363 320 373 4172

East Fork Fire Protection District
Ambulance Billings and Write Summary

Billing Analysis
FY22/23



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 
1. Title: For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to accept the report on state 

consolidated taxes collection and distribution as of April 2023. (Kathy Lewis, CPA, 
CFO/Director of Finance) 

 
2. Recommended Motion:  Motion to accept the report on state consolidated taxes 

collection and distribution as of April 2023. 
  
3. Funds Available:  NA Amount:  $160,041.42 

 Fund Name:  General Account Number:  335.001 
 
4. Prepared by:  Kathy Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director of Finance 
 
5. Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 Time Required: NA 

 
6. Agenda:  Consent 
 
7. Background Information:  The attached report reflects the state consolidated taxes 

collected for Douglas County and the distributed share to the District.  Monthly, the state 
collects, consolidates and distributes 6 different taxes to each county and each appropriate 
district within that county.  In FY 22/23, Douglas became a non-guaranteed county.  This 
means the Supplemental City-County Relief Tax (SCCRT) distributed to Douglas County 
entities will be based on actual collections and not a guaranteed amount.  A chart has been 
included showing the historical fluctuations of the SCCRT for non-guaranteed counties. 
 
The six consolidated taxes are as follows: 
• BCCRT – Basic City County Relief Tax, 1/2% of statewide sales/use tax.  Distributed to 

the county where the sale was made.  For out-of-state companies, BCCRT is distributed 
based on population. 

• SCCRT – Supplemental City-County Relief Tax, 1.75% of statewide sales/use tax.  
Total distribution is proportionate to the amount of in-state collections as a whole, after 
guaranteed counties have received their allocation. 

• Cigarette – Collected statewide and distributed to counties based on population. 
• Liquor – Collected statewide and distributed to counties based on population. 
• RPTT – Real Property Transfer Tax, tax based on value of real property transfers and 

distributed to county of origin. 
• GST – Government Services Tax, tax based on value of motor vehicle and distributed to 

county of origin. 
 
8. Reviewed by: 

       District Fire Chief      Board President  
      Legal Counsel      Other 

 
9. Board Action: 

    Approved       Approved with Modifications 
    Denied       Deferred 
    Other 

Agenda Item # 3F 



% of year: 83.33%

 2022-23 Budget July August September October November December January February March April May June Total
 % 

Collected 
BCCRT 5,082,982          489,103.56      481,020.18      479,179.88      451,626.44      419,590.90      495,128.36      391,665.17      366,366.26      437,217.19      391,738.43      4,402,636.37     86.62%
SCCRT 18,362,200        1,691,902.76   1,652,387.40   1,641,816.84   1,502,992.15   1,384,770.50   1,638,624.26   1,294,874.45   1,198,880.21   1,431,117.74   1,279,184.22   -                -                14,716,550.53   80.15%
CIGARETTE 133,568              10,118.49        13,467.30        9,224.42          9,365.71          11,726.44        10,118.49        7,921.24          7,671.87          11,632.34        10,118.49        -                -                101,364.79        75.89%
LIQUOR 65,373                6,016.31          6,593.63          6,021.48          5,926.52          4,771.21          6,429.35          4,996.49          4,790.27          6,312.35          4,709.38          -                -                56,566.99          86.53%
RPTT ** 1,895,800          -                    -                    302,128.76      -                    -                    261,936.95      -                    -                    175,926.85      -                    -                -                739,992.56        39.03%
GST 3,867,793          295,674.80      319,583.96      301,881.69      313,377.70      313,184.64      280,393.61      296,640.54      244,825.21      315,112.45      274,405.59      -                -                2,955,080.19     76.40%
TOTAL 29,407,716        2,492,815.92   2,473,052.47   2,740,253.07   2,283,288.52   2,134,043.69   2,692,631.02   1,996,097.89   1,822,533.82   2,377,318.92   1,960,156.11   -                -                22,972,191.43   78.12%

EFFPD Share 2,417,640          
Avg Monthly Payment 201,470              

Actual Payment 205,046.59      203,371.55      226,017.99      187,288.21      174,685.65      221,935.20      163,068.32      148,451.34      195,173.47      160,041.42      1,885,079.74     77.97%
EFFPD Share of Total Collections 8.23% 8.22% 8.25% 8.20% 8.19% 8.24% 8.17% 8.15% 8.21% 8.16% 8.21%
Over/(Under) Average 3,576.60          1,901.56          24,548.00        (14,181.78)       (26,784.34)       20,465.21        (38,401.67)       (53,018.65)       (6,296.52)         (41,428.57)       (129,620.16)       

** RPTT collected and remitted quarterly

Average Monthly 8.52% 8.40% 8.62% 8.14% 7.82% 9.47% 7.29% 7.13% 8.88% 8.08% 8.50% 9.14%
Average Cumulative 8.52% 16.92% 25.54% 33.68% 41.51% 50.98% 58.27% 65.40% 74.28% 82.36% 90.86% 100.00%

Actual

East Fork Fire Protection District
Report of Consolidated Taxes Collected

FY22-23

0

0.02

0.04

0.06

0.08

0.1

0.12

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June

SCCRT Tax Collection
Non-Guaranteed Counties
FY06/07 through FY21/22

06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 Average



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

1. Title: For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve the District’s 
annual property and liability insurance package as provided by Warren Reed Insurance 
representing Volunteer Fireman’s Insurance Services at an annual cost of $213,785. (Tod 
F. Carlini, District Fire Chief) 15 minutes. 

 
2. Recommended Motion:  Motion to approve the District’s annual property and liability 

insurance package as provided by Warren Reed Insurance representing Volunteer 
Fireman’s Insurance Services at an annual cost of $213,785. 

  
3. Funds Available:  Yes Amount:  $213,785 

 Fund Name:  Operations Account Number:  650-251-520-079 
 
4. Prepared by:  Tod F. Carlini, District Fire Chief 
 
5. Meeting Date:  July 18, 2023 Time Required:  15 minutes 
 
6. Agenda:  Administrative Agenda 
 
7. Background Information:  The administration is recommending approval of the FY 

23/24 Property and Liability Insurance Package as provided by Warren Reed Insurance, 
Inc.  Mr. Alan Reed serves as the District’s Agent and Broker for the insurance policies.  
The insurance provider is Volunteer Fireman’s Insurance of York, Pennsylvania.  Two 
policies are included in this package, General Liability Policy and Property Loss Policy at 
a cost of $120,288, covers 16 properties and provides loss and liability protection to the 
Board, the Administration, Employees, and Volunteers. The Business Auto Policy covers 
vehicles at a cost of $93,497. The total cost for FY 23/24 is $213,785. The District has 
added 5 additional employees and several new vehicles, which are partly responsible for 
the increase.  The administration, with the Board’s approval will be removing certain 
pieces of apparatus from coverage in the future that are no longer in service and set for 
disposal.  The District will also be adding some new units in the fall of this year.  Over the 
past several years, the District has reduced the number of vehicles by 17%.  Mr. Reed has 
worked hard to achieve this result.  All local government insurance rates have seen 
increases.  Additionally, and over time, the District has increased the number of new 
vehicles in its fleet, thus increasing the value of insurable costs.  The entire insurance 
package is available for inspection and on file at the East Fork Fire Protection District 
Office, 1694 County Road, Minden, Nevada. A copy of the policy will also be available 
for the meeting and public inspection.  The administration is recommending approval.  
Mr. Alan Reed will attend the meeting and review the policy with the Board.  The District 
has enjoyed a very productive and professional relationship with Warren Reed Insurance 
over the years.  The District has solicited proposals in prior years from other carriers, 
including POOL and FAIRA. Neither could match the cost provided nor the level of 
service and the suite of insurance benefits, including extending coverages to our volunteer 
groups and personnel. 

 



8. Reviewed by: 
       District Fire Chief     Board President  
      Legal Counsel      Other 

 
9. Board Action: 

    Approved      Approved with Modifications 
    Denied      Deferred 
    Other 

Agenda Item # 4 
 



 

VPJ100 (01-20)

Commercial Auto Policy

Especially Designed For:

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
1694 COUNTY ROAD
MINDEN, NV 89423-0000

Underwritten by
National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, Pa.



 

VPJ100 (01-20)

National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, Pa.

RISK CONTROL POLICYHOLDER NOTICE
Dear VFIS Client,

Safety and health is a major concern in emergency service organizations today. These issues are 
important because of the major impact that accidents can have on an organization. Morale can often be 
affected as well as an organization’s finances. Insurance rarely covers all the expenses associated with 
accidents. There are often hidden costs that the organization must bear such as time spent reporting, 
documenting and investigating the accident, time spent training the replacement staff and time to 
replace the vehicles and equipment. 

Risk Control Guidelines Provided by VFIS

As a valuable service to you, VFIS provides risk control guidelines and programs to your organization in 
an effort to help you prevent and/or reduce the impact of accidents. Implementing VFIS risk control 
measures could benefit your organization by reducing or eliminating the hidden costs of accidents while 
helping your organization to continue to serve your community.

VFIS provides a number of programs and services to help you in your risk control effort. While most of 
these services are available to our clients at no additional cost, some may require a fee based on the 
scope of the service requested. Some of the services and programs that we provide to our clients 
include:

 On-site risk control consultations
 Recommendations to control identifiable hazards
 Loss experience analysis
 Consultation on specific risk control-related problems
 Sample standard operating guidelines for vehicle operations
 Accident investigation procedures and forms
 Health and Safety Audit of NFPA 1500

Risk Control Publications

VFIS has many resources that you can access at no charge on our Web site. These include 
Communiqués, which are a one-page fact sheet, that presents a specific hazard and provides 
procedures for controlling the hazard. VFIS also provides numerous training programs that you can 
access through the Client Education and Training Resource Catalog. Please visit www.vfis.com to view 
and order these resources.

Inquire About Our Risk Control Services

If you would like information about some of the above services and publications, please call VFIS Risk 
Control at (800) 233-1957.



 

AU1000 (01-20)  07-05-2023

AUTO POLICY DECLARATIONS  

Named Insured and Mailing Address:
EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
1694 COUNTY ROAD
MINDEN, NV 89423-0000

Policy Number:

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000

Policy Period: From 07-01-2023

To 07-01-2024

12:01 AM Standard Time at your mailing address shown above.

Type of Entity: EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATION

Business Description: EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATION

Estimated Coverage Part Premium: $93,497.00
  Taxes, Fees and Surcharges:  

 Total Premium: $93,497.00

The policy premium is payable on the dates and in the amounts shown below:
See Installment Schedule.



 

AU1000 (01-20)  07-05-2023

Named Insured:
EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

Policy Number:
 VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000

Policy Period: From 07-01-2023
To 07-01-2024

COMMON FORMS

See Schedule of Forms and Endorsements.

In return for payment of the premium, and subject to all the terms of this policy, we agree with you to 
provide the insurance as stated in the policy.  These declarations, the schedule of forms and 
endorsements, and any forms and endorsements we may later attach to reflect changes, make up and 
complete the above numbered policy.

07-05-2023
Authorized representative  (countersignature, where required) Date

The Company has caused this policy to be signed by its President and Secretary:

President Secretary
       



Policy Number 

SCHEDULE OF FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS 

 

Named Insured Effective Date: 

 12:01 A.M., Standard Time 

Agency Name   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000

07-01-23

VFIS                                  

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

COMMON POLICY FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS                                  

89644                 06-13    ECONOMIC SANCTIONS ENDORSEMENT         
IL 00 17              11-98    COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS               
IL 00 21              09-08    NUCLEAR ENERGY LIABILITY EXCLUSION ENDT
IL 01 10              09-07    NEVADA CHGS-CONCEALMENT, MISREP OR FRAUD
IL 01 15              01-10    NEVADA CHANGES - DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIP  
IL 02 51              09-07    NEVADA CHANGES-CANC & NONRENL          

AUTOMOBILE FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS                                     

AU1001                01-20    AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE EXTENSION ENDORSEME
AU1002                01-20    AGREED VALUE ENDORSEMENT               
AU1005                01-20    WAIVER OF GOVERNMENTAL OR CHARITABLE IMM
AU1006                01-20    CARE, CUSTODY OR CONTROL EXCLUSION ENDOR
AU1007                01-20    COMMANDEERED AUTO DEFINITION ENDORSEMENT
AU1009                01-20    INCIDENTAL GARAGE OPERATIONS           
AU1017                01-20    AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE EXTENSION ENDORSEME
AU1023                01-20    AUTO LIABILITY EXTENSION ENDORSEMENT EME
CA 00 01              10-13    BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM            
CA 20 01              10-13    ADDL INSD-LESSOR                       
CA 01 36              10-13    NEVADA CHANGES                         
CA 21 27              10-13    NEVADA UNINSURED MOTORISTS COVERAGE    
CA 20 02              10-13    SOUND RECEIVING EQUIP COVG -FIRE, POLICE
CA 20 18              10-13    PROFESSIONAL SERVICES NOT COVERED      
CA 99 03              10-13    AUTO MEDICAL PAYMENTS COVERAGE         
CA 99 44              10-13    LOSS PAYABLE CLAUSE                    
CA 99 48              10-13    POLLUTION LIAB BROAD COV FOR COV AUTO  

POLICYHOLDER NOTICES                                                  

118477                03-15    POLICYHOLDER NOTICE - TAXES, ASSESSMENTS
91222                 09-16    POLICYHOLDER NOTICE                    
AGLC105774            01-22    AIG PRIVACY NOTICE                     

                                   

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      



 

Policy Number 

INSTALLMENT SCHEDULE 

 

Named Insured Effective Date: 

 12:01 A.M., Standard Time 

Agency Name   

DUE PREMIUM SURCHARGE 
REVISED 

INSTALLMENT TOTAL 

Failure to pay the Installment Premium by the Date Due shown shall constitute non-payment of premium for which we 
may cancel this policy. 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000

07-01-23

VFIS                                  

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

07/01/2023 $ 23,374.00DEPOSIT $ 23,374.00

     IT IS HEREBY AGREED AND UNDERSTOOD THAT THIS POLICY IS           
     PAYABLE ON INSTALLMENTS AS FOLLOWS:                              

10/01/2023 $ 23,374.00INSTALLMENT $ 23,374.00
01/01/2024 $ 23,374.00INSTALLMENT $ 23,374.00
04/01/2024 $ 23,375.00INSTALLMENT $ 23,375.00

                                   

           

                                                                      

           
           
           

                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                



Policy Number 

SCHEDULE OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST(S) 

 

Named Insured Effective Date: 

 12:01 A.M., Standard Time 

Agency Name   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000

07-01-23

VFIS                                  

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

Addl Insured Lessor                                                   
DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES AND THE DIVISION     
OF FORESTRY                                                           
2478 FAIRVIEW DRIVE                                                   
CARSON CITY, NV 89701                                                 
DESCRIPTION APPLIES TO VEH #60                                        

Addl Insured Lessor                                                   
FLEX FLEET RENTAL, LLC, FLEX FLEET RENTAL HOLDINGS, LLC               
2855 E. COTTONWOOD PARKWAY, SUITE 100                                 
SALT LAKE CITY, UT 84121                                              
DESCRIPTION APPLIES TO VEH #78, 79                                    

Loss Payee                                                            
FLEX FLEET RENTAL, LLC, FLEX FLEET RENTAL HOLDINGS, LLC               
2855 E. COTTONWOOD PARKWAY, SUITE 100                                 
SALT LAKE CITY, UT 84121                                              
DESCRIPTION APPLIES TO VEH #78, 79                                    

                                   

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      



Policy Number 

SCHEDULE OF NAMED INSURED(S) 

 

Named Insured Effective Date: 

 12:01 A.M., Standard Time 

Agency Name   

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000

07-01-23

VFIS                                  

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

FISH SPRINGS VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                                

GENOA VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                                       

JOHNSON LANE VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                                

SHERIDAN VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                                    

TOPAZ LAKE VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                                  

RUHENSTROTH VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                                 

GARDNERVILLE RANCHO’S VOLUTNEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                       

GARDNERVILLE VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                                

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS                 

                                   

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      



 

89644 (6/13)

ENDORSEMENT

This  endorsement,   effective  12:01  A.M. forms a part of 

policy No. VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000

issued to EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

By AMERICAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP, INC

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ECONOMIC SANCTIONS ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:
ALL COVERAGE PARTS

The Insurer shall not be deemed to provide cover and the Insurer shall not be liable to pay 
any claim or provide any benefit hereunder to the extent that the provision of such cover, 
payment of such claim or provision of such benefit would expose the Insurer, its parent 
company or its ultimate controlling entity  to any sanction, prohibition or restriction under 
United Nations resolutions or the trade or economic sanctions, laws or regulations of the 
European Union or the United States  of America.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE



 IL 00 17 11 98 
  
 

IL 00 17 11 98 Copyright, Insurance Services Office, Inc.,  1998  Page 1 of 1  
 

COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS 
All Coverage Parts included in this policy are subject to the following conditions.  
 

A. Cancellation  

 1. The first Named Insured shown in the Declara-
tions may cancel this policy by mailing or deliv-
ering to us advance written notice of cancella-
tion.  

 2. We may cancel this policy by mailing or deliver-
ing to the first Named Insured written notice of 
cancellation at least:  

 a. 10 days before the effective date of cancella-
tion if we cancel for nonpayment of pre-
mium; or  

 b. 30 days before the effective date of cancella-
tion if we cancel for any other reason.  

 3. We will mail or deliver our notice to the first 
Named Insured’s last mailing address known to 
us.  

 4. Notice of cancellation will state the effective 
date of cancellation. The policy period will end 
on that date.  

 5. If this policy is cancelled, we will send the first 
Named Insured any premium refund due. If we 
cancel, the refund will be pro rata. If the first 
Named Insured cancels, the refund may be less 
than pro rata. The cancellation will be effective 
even if we have not made or offered a refund.  

 6. If notice is mailed, proof of mailing will be suffi-
cient proof of notice.  

B. Changes  

This policy contains all the agreements between 
you and us concerning the insurance afforded.  
The first Named Insured shown in the Declarations 
is authorized to make changes in the terms of this 
policy with our consent. This policy’s terms can be 
amended or waived only by endorsement issued 
by us and made a part of this policy.  

C. Examination Of Your Books And Records  

We may examine and audit your books and re-
cords as they relate to this policy at any time dur-
ing the policy period and up to three years after-
ward.  

D. Inspections And Surveys  

 1. We have the right to:  

 a. Make inspections and surveys at any time;   

 b. Give you reports on the conditions we find; 
and  

 c. Recommend changes.  

 2. We are not obligated to make any inspections, 
surveys, reports or recommendations and any 
such actions we do undertake relate only to in-
surability and the premiums to be charged. We 
do not make safety inspections. We do not un-
dertake to perform the duty of any person or 
organization to provide for the health or safety 
of workers or the public. And we do not war-
rant that conditions:  

 a. Are safe or healthful; or  

 b. Comply with laws, regulations, codes or 
standards.  

 3. Paragraphs 1. and 2. of this condition apply 
not only to us, but also to any rating, advisory, 
rate service or similar organization which 
makes insurance inspections, surveys, reports 
or recommendations.  

 4. Paragraph 2. of this condition does not apply 
to any inspections, surveys, reports or recom-
mendations we may make relative to certifica-
tion, under state or municipal statutes, ordi-
nances or regulations, of boilers, pressure ves-
sels or elevators.  

E. Premiums  

The first Named Insured shown in the Declara-
tions:  

 1. Is responsible for the payment of all premiums; 
and  

 2. Will be the payee for any return premiums we 
pay.  

 F. Transfer Of Your Rights And Duties Under This 
Policy  

Your rights and duties under this policy may not 
be transferred without our written consent except 
in the case of death of an individual named in-
sured.  

If you die, your rights and duties will be trans-
ferred to your legal representative but only while 
acting within the scope of duties as your legal rep-
resentative. Until your legal representative is ap-
pointed, anyone having proper temporary custody 
of your property will have your rights and duties 
but only with respect to that property.  



  

 IL 00 21 09 08 
 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
 

IL 00 21 09 08  ISO Properties, Inc., 2007  Page 1 of 2  
 

NUCLEAR ENERGY LIABILITY EXCLUSION  
ENDORSEMENT 

(Broad Form) 

 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:  

 
COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE PART 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
FARM COVERAGE PART 
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
MEDICAL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
RAILROAD PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK POLICY 

 

 1. The insurance does not apply:  

 A. Under any Liability Coverage, to "bodily injury" 
or "property damage":  

 (1) With respect to which an "insured" under 
the policy is also an insured under a nu-
clear energy liability policy issued by Nu-
clear Energy Liability Insurance Association, 
Mutual Atomic Energy Liability Underwrit-
ers, Nuclear Insurance Association of Can-
ada or any of their successors, or would be 
an insured under any such policy but for its 
termination upon exhaustion of its limit of li-
ability; or  

 (2) Resulting from the "hazardous properties" 
of "nuclear material" and with respect to 
which (a) any person or organization is re-
quired to maintain financial protection pur-
suant to the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, or 
any law amendatory thereof, or (b) the "in-
sured" is, or had this policy not been issued 
would be, entitled to indemnity from the 
United States of America, or any agency 
thereof, under any agreement entered into 
by the United States of America, or any 
agency thereof, with any person or organi-
zation.  

 B. Under any Medical Payments coverage, to 
expenses incurred with respect to "bodily in-
jury" resulting from the "hazardous properties" 
of "nuclear material" and arising out of the op-
eration of a "nuclear facility" by any person or 
organization.  

 C. Under any Liability Coverage, to "bodily injury" 
or "property damage" resulting from "hazardous 
properties" of "nuclear material", if:  

 (1) The "nuclear material" (a) is at any "nuclear 
facility" owned by, or operated by or on be-
half of, an "insured" or (b) has been dis-
charged or dispersed therefrom;  

 (2) The "nuclear material" is contained in "spent 
fuel" or "waste" at any time possessed, han-
dled, used, processed, stored, transported 
or disposed of, by or on behalf of an "in-
sured"; or  

 (3) The "bodily injury" or "property damage" 
arises out of the furnishing by an "insured" 
of services, materials, parts or equipment in 
connection with the planning, construction, 
maintenance, operation or use of any "nu-
clear facility", but if such facility is located 
within the United States of America, its terri-
tories or possessions or Canada, this ex-
clusion (3) applies only to "property dam-
age" to such "nuclear facility" and any 
property thereat.  

 2. As used in this endorsement:  

"Hazardous properties" includes radioactive, toxic 
or explosive properties.  

"Nuclear material" means "source material", "special 
nuclear material" or "by-product material".  



Page 2 of 2  ISO Properties, Inc., 2007  IL 00 21 09 08  
 

"Source material", "special nuclear material", and 
"by-product material" have the meanings given 
them in the Atomic Energy Act of 1954 or in any 
law amendatory thereof.  

"Spent fuel" means any fuel element or fuel com-
ponent, solid or liquid, which has been used or 
exposed to radiation in a "nuclear reactor".  

"Waste" means any waste material (a) containing 
"by-product material" other than the tailings or 
wastes produced by the extraction or concentra-
tion of uranium or thorium from any ore processed 
primarily for its "source material" content, and (b) 
resulting from the operation by any person or or-
ganization of any "nuclear facility" included under 
the first two paragraphs of the definition of "nu-
clear facility".  

"Nuclear facility" means:  

 (a) Any "nuclear reactor";  

 (b) Any equipment or device designed or used 
for (1) separating the isotopes of uranium 
or plutonium, (2) processing or utilizing 
"spent fuel", or (3) handling, processing or 
packaging "waste";  

 (c) Any equipment or device used for the proc-
essing, fabricating or alloying of "special 
nuclear material" if at any time the total 
amount of such material in the custody of 
the "insured" at the premises where such 
equipment or device is located consists of 
or contains more than 25 grams of pluto-
nium or uranium 233 or any combination 
thereof, or more than 250 grams of uranium 
235;  

 (d) Any structure, basin, excavation, premises 
or place prepared or used for the storage or 
disposal of "waste";  

and includes the site on which any of the forego-
ing is located, all operations conducted on such 
site and all premises used for such operations.  

"Nuclear reactor" means any apparatus designed 
or used to sustain nuclear fission in a self-
supporting chain reaction or to contain a critical 
mass of fissionable material.  

"Property damage" includes all forms of radioactive 
contamination of property.  



 IL 01 10 09 07 

  
 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
 

IL 01 10 09 07 ISO Properties, Inc., 2006  Page 1 of 1  
 

NEVADA CHANGES --- CONCEALMENT, 
MISREPRESENTATION OR FRAUD 

 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:  

 
CAPITAL ASSETS PROGRAM (OUTPUT POLICY) COVERAGE PART 
COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE PART  
COMMERCIAL INLAND MARINE COVERAGE PART 
COMMERCIAL PROPERTY COVERAGE PART 
CRIME AND FIDELITY COVERAGE PART 
EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN COVERAGE PART 
FARM COVERAGE PART ---- FARM PROPERTY ---- OTHER FARM PROVISIONS FORM ---- ADDITIONAL 
COVERAGES, CONDITIONS, DEFINITIONS 
FARM COVERAGE PART ---- LIVESTOCK COVERAGE FORM 
FARM COVERAGE PART ---- MOBILE AGRICULTURAL MACHINERY 
AND EQUIPMENT COVERAGE FORM 
STANDARD PROPERTY POLICY 

 

The CONCEALMENT, MISREPRESENTATION OR 
FRAUD Condition is replaced by the following:  

CONCEALMENT, MISREPRESENTATION OR 
FRAUD  

We will not pay for any loss ("loss") or damage in 
any case of:  

 1. Concealment or misrepresentation of a material 
fact; or 

 2. Fraud; 

committed by an insured ("insured") at any time 
and relating to a claim under this policy.  



  

 IL 01 15 01 10 
 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
 

IL 01 15 01 10  Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2009  Page 1 of 1  
 

NEVADA CHANGES --- DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIP 
 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 
COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE PART 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
COMMERCIAL LIABILITY UMBRELLA COVERAGE PART 
ELECTRONIC DATA LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
FARM COVERAGE PART 
FARM UMBRELLA LIABILITY POLICY 
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
MEDICAL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
PRODUCT WITHDRAWAL COVERAGE PART 
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK POLICY 

 

A. All references to spouse shall include an individual 
who is in a domestic partnership recognized under 
Nevada law.  

B. Under the Commercial Auto Coverage Part, the 
term "family member" is replaced by the following: 

"Family member" means a person related to the: 

 1. Individual Named Insured by blood, adoption, 
marriage or domestic partnership recognized 
under Nevada law, who is a resident of such 
Named Insured’s household, including a ward 
or foster child; or 

 2. Individual named in the Schedule by blood, 
adoption, marriage or domestic partnership 
recognized under Nevada law, who is a resi-
dent of the individual’s household, including a 
ward or foster child, if the Drive Other Car 
Coverage ---- Broadened Coverage For Named 
Individual Endorsement is attached. 

C. With respect to coverage for the ownership, main-
tenance, or use of "covered autos" provided under 
the Commercial Liability Umbrella Coverage Part, 
the term "family member" is replaced by the follow-
ing: 

"Family member" means a person related to you by 
blood, adoption, marriage or domestic partnership 
recognized under Nevada law, who is a resident of 
your household, including a ward or foster child. 



  

 IL 02 51 09 07 
 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
 

IL 02 51 09 07 ISO Properties, Inc., 2006 Page 1 of 2  
 

NEVADA CHANGES --- CANCELLATION  
AND NONRENEWAL 

 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:  

 
CAPITAL ASSETS PROGRAM (OUTPUT POLICY) COVERAGE PART 
COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE PART 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
COMMERCIAL INLAND MARINE COVERAGE PART 
COMMERCIAL LIABILITY UMBRELLA COVERAGE PART 
COMMERCIAL PROPERTY COVERAGE PART 
CRIME AND FIDELITY COVERAGE PART 
EMPLOYMENT-RELATED PRACTICES LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN COVERAGE PART 
FARM COVERAGE PART 
FARM UMBRELLA LIABILITY POLICY 
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

 

A. The following are added to the Cancellation Com-
mon Policy Condition:  

 7.a. Midterm Cancellation  

If this policy has been in effect for 70 days 
or more, or if this policy is a renewal of a 
policy we issued, we may cancel only for 
one or more of the following reasons:  

 (1) Nonpayment of premium;  

 (2) Conviction of the insured of a crime aris-
ing out of acts increasing the hazard in-
sured against;  

 (3) Discovery of fraud or material misrepre-
sentation in obtaining the policy or in 
presenting a claim thereunder;  

 (4) Discovery of an act or omission or a vio-
lation of any condition of the policy 
which occurred after the first effective 
date of the current policy, and substan-
tially and materially increases the hazard 
insured against;  

 (5) A material change in the nature or extent 
of the risk, occurring after the first effec-
tive date of the current policy, which 
causes the risk of loss to be substan-
tially and materially increased beyond 
that contemplated at the time the policy 
was issued or last renewed;  

 (6) A determination by the commissioner 
that continuation of our present volume 
of premiums would jeopardize our sol-
vency or be hazardous to the interests 
of our policyholders, creditors or the 
public;  

 (7) A determination by the commissioner 
that the continuation of the policy would 
violate, or place us in violation of, any 
provision of the code.  

 b. Anniversary Cancellation  

If this policy is written for a term longer than 
one year, we may cancel for any reason at 
an anniversary, by mailing or delivering writ-
ten notice of cancellation to the first Named 
Insured at the last mailing address known 
to us at least 60 days before the anniversary 
date.  

B. The following is added as an additional Condition 
and supersedes any other provision to the con-
trary:  

NONRENEWAL  

 1. If we elect not to renew this policy, we will mail 
or deliver to the first Named Insured shown in 
the Declarations a notice of intention not to re-
new at least 60 days before the agreed expira-
tion date.  

If notice is mailed, proof of mailing will be suffi-
cient proof of notice.  



Page 2 of 2 ISO Properties, Inc., 2006 IL 02 51 09 07  
 

 2. We need not provide this notice if:  

 a. You have accepted replacement coverage;  

 b. You have requested or agreed to nonre-
newal; or  

 c. This policy is expressly designated as non-
renewable.  

C. Notices  

 1. Notice of cancellation or nonrenewal in accor-
dance with A. and B. above, will be mailed, first 
class or certified, or delivered to the first 
Named Insured at the last mailing address 
known to us and will state the reason for can-
cellation or nonrenewal.  

 2. We will also provide a copy of the notice of 
cancellation, for both policies in effect less than 
70 days and policies in effect 70 days or more, 
to the agent who wrote the policy.  



Named Insured:  
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

AUTO  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 

 

ITEM ONE: Named Insured - Refer to the Common or Auto Policy Declarations 

 

ITEM TWO: Coverage and Covered Autos 

 

This coverage part provides only those coverages activated by a Covered Auto Symbol or a Premium shown below: 

Coverage Covered 
Auto 

Symbols 

Limit of Insurance 
(this is the most we will pay for  

any one accident or loss) 

Premium 

Covered Autos Liability 
 (combined single limit) each accident 

Personal Injury Protection (PIP)  
 (or equivalent no-fault coverage) 

Refer to ITEM THREE and each PIP or 
added PIP endorsement 

Added Personal Injury Protection 
 (or equivalent added no-fault coverage) 

Separately stated in each added PIP 
endorsement 

Property Protection Insurance 
 (Michigan Only) 

Separately stated in the P.P.I. 
endorsement minus  
Ded. for each accident 

Auto Medical Payments  Each Insured 

Medical Expense and Income Loss 
Benefits 
 (Virginia only) 

Separately stated in each Medical 
Expense and Income Loss Benefits 
endorsement 

Uninsured Motorists (UM) Refer to ITEM THREE and the 
Uninsured Motorists endorsement 

Underinsured Motorists (UIM) 
 (when not included in UM coverage) 

Refer to ITEM THREE and the 
Underinsured Motorists endorsement 

Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 

Physical Damage ---- Specified 
Causes of Loss 

Refer to ITEM THREE and 

ITEM FOUR (if applicable) 

Physical Damage ---- Collision  

Physical Damage ---- Towing and  
Labor 

Refer to ITEM THREE 
 

Other Auto Coverages   

 Estimated Coverage Part Premium: 

 Taxes, Fees and Surcharges: 

 Total Premium: 

 

  1  $1,000,000

$     14,968

 N/A 

 N/A 

 N/A 

  2  
$     31,076

  2  
        INCL

 7,8 $      9,894

 N/A 

 7,8 $     37,468

 N/A 

$  93,497.00

$  93,497.00

 N/A 

  7  $      5,000 $         91

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

1  

            

            

            
            

            

            

            

            

                                                                 

                                   



 

Named Insured: 

 

Policy Number:  

Policy Period: From  
 To  

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

ITEM THREE:   Schedule of Your Auto Coverage 

Auto Schedule Summary 

Veh. 
Num. 

Year Make Model PE 
Code 

V.I.N. Value 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

2  

1991 PUMPER                                       1HTSENHR8MH238335         MARION        PR   1  

1991 TANKER                                       1HTSENHRXMH328336         MARION        T    2  

1991 PUMPER                                       1HTSEPBR9MH391335        NAVISTAR       PR   3  

1993 BRUSH VEH                                    1HTSEPPN9PH468196         INT’L         BV   4  

1994 TANKER                                       1HTSEAAR5SH624476         INT’L         T    5  

1990 TANKER                                       1FUYDCYB6LH372200      FREIGHTLINER     T    6  

1990 TANKER                                       1FUYDCYB0LH371107      FREIGHTLINER     T    7  

1995 PUMPER LDH                                   1P1F112BXSA095006         PEMFAB       PLDH  8  

1996 $    225,000PUMPER LDH                                   44KFT4281VWZ18432       WESTSTATE      PLDH  9  

1997 ACV         SERVICE                                      1FTHX26F7VEC36208          FORD        OTH  10  

1998 $    225,000PUMPER                                       1F9EB28T9WCST2021       SEAGRAVES       PR  11  

1998 $    150,000BRUSH VEH                                    1HTSEAAN9WH571509         INT’L         BV  12  

1998 $    150,000BRUSH VEH                                    1HTSEAAN7WH571511         INT’L         BV  13  

1998 $    150,000BRUSH VEH                                    1HTSEAAN5WH571510         INT’L         BV  14  

1993 ACV         SERVICE                                      1FTHF26H9PLA94964          FORD        OTH  15  

1999 FIRST RESPONDER                              1GDHK33J2XF014374          GMC          FR  16  

1999 ACV         SERVICE                                      1GCGK29U9XE251445         CHEVY        OTH  17  

2000 $    150,000BRUSH VEH                                    1HTSDADR3YH227999         INT’L         BV  18  

2000 $    150,000BRUSH VEH                                    1HTSDADR1YH227998         INT’L         BV  19  

1999 ACV         SERVICE                                      1GCGK24J5XR722870         CHEVY        OTH  20  

2000 FIRST RESPONDER                              1GNEK13T1YJ137960         CHEVY         FR  21  

2001 $    150,000TANKER                                       1FVHALBD01PH75576      FREIGHTLINER     T   22  

1999 ACV         SIERRA                                       1GTGK29U5XE532741          GMC         OTH  23  

2000 ACV         3500 P/U                                     1GTHK33R3YF516726          GMC         OTH  24  

2001 ACV         SERVICE                                      1GCEK19T61Z198891         CHEVY        OTH  25  

2003 $    150,000RESCUE HVY                                   1HTWEADR23J051995         INT’L        RTH  26  

2003 $    150,000RESCUE HVY                                   1HTWEADR43J051996         INT’L        RTH  27  

2003 $    150,000TANKER                                       1HTXHAET63J067821         INT’L         T   28  

2003 $    150,000TANKER                                       1HTXHAET63J067820         INT’L         T   29  

2003 $    850,000AERIAL                                       4Z3HAACK14RM90408        AMERICAN       AD  30  

2004 $    150,000BRUSH VEH                                    1HTWEADR54J027319         INT’L         BV  31  

2004 $    150,000BRUSH VEH                                    1HTWEADR34J027318         INT’L         BV  32  

2004 $    150,000TANKER                                       1HTXHAPT84J016933         INT’L         T   33  

1974 AERIAL                                       CF685FAP1601               MACK         AD  34  

2004 $    175,000HAZMAT                                       4S7HT1B964C048147        SPARTAN        HM  35  

2005 ACV         SERVICE                                      1GTEK14X85Z100749         CHEVY        OTH  36  

2005 ACV         SERVICE                                      3GNGK26UX5G157205         CHEVY        OTH  37  

2005 $    150,000BRUSH VEH                                    1HTWEAZR35J191064         INT’L         BV  38  

2005 FIRST RESPONDER                              1GCHK29U85E256184         CHEVY         FR  39  

2005 $    225,000PUMPER                                       4Z3AAKCY46RW17814      AME LAFRANCE     PR  40  

2007 $    225,000PUMPER                                       1AFAAKDY97RY13780      AME LAFRANCE     PR  41  

1994 TRAILER                                      1WC200E29R4018163          PACE        OTH  42  

2000 FIRST RESPONDER                              3GNGK26U1YG170686         CHEVY         FR  43  

2008 FIRST RESPONDER                              1FTSW21Y48ED51998          FORD         FR  44  

2008 ACV         TAHOE/PPT                                    1GNFK13038J213107         CHEVY        OTH  45  

2000 FIRST RESPONDER                              1GTGK29U2YE200404          GMC          FR  46  

1999 FIRST RESPONDER                              1GTGK24R6XR724973          GMC          FR  47  

1995 FIRST RESPONDER                              1GBGK24K1SE119430         CHEVY         FR  48  

2009 ACV         SIL 1500 P/U                                 1GCEK19C88E183102       CHEVROLET      OTH  49  

2010 $    132,000AMB ALS                                      1FDWF3HR6AEA70342          FORD        ALS  50  

                                   

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            



 

Named Insured: 

 

Policy Number:  

Policy Period: From  
 To  

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

ITEM THREE:   Schedule of Your Auto Coverage 

Auto Schedule Summary 

Veh. 
Num. 

Year Make Model PE 
Code 

V.I.N. Value 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

3  

2010 $    200,000PUMPER LDH                                   4S7CTZD95ACO71802        SPARTAN       PLDH 51  

2013 ACV         SERVICE                                      1GNWKLEG3DR319087         CHEVY        OTH  52  

2014 $    145,000AMB ALS                                      1FDRF3HT0EEA55446          FORD        ALS  53  

2015 $     13,000TRAILER                                      575GB2425FU277311        HAULMARK      OTH  54  

2017 $    175,000AMB ALS                                      1FDRF3HT6HDA03992          FORD        ALS  55  

2019 $    365,000BRUSH VEH                                    3HAWETAR0KL367914     INTERNATIONAL     BV  56  

2019 ACV         SERVICE                                      1GNSKFEC3KR178693         CHEVY        OTH  57  

2019 ACV         SERVICE                                      1GNSKFEC8KR178995         CHEVY        OTH  58  

2018 $     39,589RESCUE LT                                    3C6UR5CL1JG381646         DODGE        RTL  59  

2019 $    365,000BRUSH VEH                                    1HTWETAR2KH077941     INTERNATIONAL     BV  60  

2007 ACV         SERVICE                                      1GTHK24627E526120          GMC         OTH  61  

2019 $    495,000PUMPER LDH                                   4P1BAAFF7KA020709         DODGE        PLDH 62  

2019 $    495,000PUMPER LDH                                   4P1BAAFF4KA020716         DODGE        PLDH 63  

2019 $    216,000AMB ALS                                      3C7WRTBL4KG583733         DODGE        ALS  64  

2019 $    116,000AMB ALS                                      3C7WRTBL6KG583734         DODGE        ALS  65  

2020 $    216,000AMB ALS                                      3C7WRLBL6LG269633         DODGE        ALS  66  

2021 ACV         2500 P/U                                     3C6UR5CJ5MG526013       DODGE RAM      OTH  67  

2020 $    507,000PUMPER                                       4PIBAAFFXLA022116       PIERCE FT       PR  68  

2020 $     83,000CHIPPER TRUCK                                3C7WRNFL4LG220484       DODGE RAM       BV  69  

2021 $     57,000TRAILER                                      4FMUS1819MR516249     BANDIT CHIPPER   OTH  70  

2021 ACV         RAM                                          3C6UR5J1MG629977          DODGE        OTH  71  

2018 $    225,000PUMPER                                       1HTGRSNT2JH557059     INTERNATIONAL     PR  72  

2021 ACV         RAM                                          3C7WR5HJ2MG583685         DODGE        OTH  73  

2020 $    190,000BRUSH VEH                                    3C7WRNEL3LG255826       DODGE RAM       BV  74  

2021 $     35,000BRUSH VEH                                    3C7WRNEL1MG503816       DODGE RAM       BV  75  

2021 $     41,300BRUSH VEH                                    1GNSKLED0MR466956         CHEVY         BV  76  

2021 $     41,300PRIVATE PASSENGER                            1GNSKLED0MR466908      CHEVY TAHOE     OTH  77  

2022 $     62,500PRIVATE PASSENGER                            2GC1YNEY9N1203246     CHEVY PICK UP    OTH  78  

2022 $     62,500PRIVATE PASSENGER                            2GC1YNEY5N1202935     CHEVY PICK UP    OTH  79  

2022 $    234,683AMB ALS                                      1FDUF4HT4NDA19300          FORD        ALS  80  

2022 $    135,200AMB ALS                                      1FDUF4HT3NDA23015          FORD        ALS  81  

2023 $     65,760SILVERADO                                    2GC1YNEYXP1721174       CHEVROLET      OTH  82  

2023 $     65,760SILVERADO                                    2GC1YNEY5P1721082       CHEVROLET      OTH  83  

                                   

                                                                                                             

                                                                                                             

                                                                                                             

                                                                                                             

                                                                                                             

                                                                                                             

                                                                                                             

                                                                                                             

                                                                                                             

                                                                                                             

                                                                                                             

                                                                                                             

                                                                                                             

                                                                                                             

                                                                                                             

                                                                                                             

                                                                                                             



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

4  

1991

106
NV

$         95

$        361
        INCL

PUMPER                                       
1HTSENHR8MH238335  

$  1,000,000

$        457

$  1,000,000

MARION                              

E-9   

N/A           

790900

  1  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

1991

106
NV

$         95

$        361
        INCL

TANKER                                       
1HTSENHRXMH328336  

$  1,000,000

$        457

$  1,000,000

MARION                              

T-6   

N/A           

790900

  2  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

       

       

            
            
            

            
            
            
            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            
            
            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

       

       

            
            
            

            
            
            
            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            
            
            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

5  

1991

106
NV

$         95

$        361
        INCL

PUMPER                                       
1HTSEPBR9MH391335  

$  1,000,000

$        457

$  1,000,000

NAVISTAR                            

E-3   

N/A           

790900

  3  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

1993

106
NV

$         95

$        361
        INCL

BRUSH VEH                                    
1HTSEPPN9PH468196  

$  1,000,000

$        457

$  1,000,000

INT’L                               

B-5   

N/A           

790900

  4  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

       

       

            
            
            

            
            
            
            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            
            
            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

       

       

            
            
            

            
            
            
            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            
            
            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

6  

1994

106
NV

$         95

$        361
        INCL

TANKER                                       
1HTSEAAR5SH624476  

$  1,000,000

$        457

$  1,000,000

INT’L                               

T-9   

N/A           

790900

  5  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

1990

106
NV

$         95

$        361
        INCL

TANKER                                       
1FUYDCYB6LH372200  

$  1,000,000

$        457

$  1,000,000

FREIGHTLINER                        

T-5   

N/A           

790900

  6  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

       

       

            
            
            

            
            
            
            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            
            
            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

       

       

            
            
            

            
            
            
            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            
            
            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

7  

1990

106
NV

$         95

$        361
        INCL

TANKER                                       
1FUYDCYB0LH371107  

$  1,000,000

$        457

$  1,000,000

FREIGHTLINER                        

T-2   

N/A           

790900

  7  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

1995

106
NV

$         95

$        361
        INCL

PUMPER LDH                                   
1P1F112BXSA095006  

$  1,000,000

$        457

$  1,000,000

PEMFAB                              

E-8   

N/A           

790900

  8  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

       

       

            
            
            

            
            
            
            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            
            
            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

       

       

            
            
            

            
            
            
            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            
            
            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

8  

1996

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        124

$        279

PUMPER LDH                                   
44KFT4281VWZ18432  

$  1,000,000

$        860

$  1,000,000

WESTSTATE                           

E-10  

Agreed Value  

790900

$    225,000

$    225,000

  9  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

1997

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$        102

$        361
        INCL
$         37

$        123

SERVICE                                      
1FTHX26F7VEC36208  

$  1,000,000

$        624

$  1,000,000

FORD                                

U-10  

Actual Cash Value

Service     
014990

ACV         

ACV         

 10  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

9  

1998

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        151

$        336

PUMPER                                       
1F9EB28T9WCST2021  

$  1,000,000

$        944

$  1,000,000

SEAGRAVES                           

E-6   

Agreed Value  

790900

$    225,000

$    225,000

 11  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

1998

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        129

$        275

BRUSH VEH                                    
1HTSEAAN9WH571509  

$  1,000,000

$        861

$  1,000,000

INT’L                               

B-14  

Agreed Value  

790900

$    150,000

$    150,000

 12  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

10 

1998

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        129

$        275

BRUSH VEH                                    
1HTSEAAN7WH571511  

$  1,000,000

$        861

$  1,000,000

INT’L                               

B-7   

Agreed Value  

790900

$    150,000

$    150,000

 13  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

1998

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        129

$        275

BRUSH VEH                                    
1HTSEAAN5WH571510  

$  1,000,000

$        861

$  1,000,000

INT’L                               

B-4   

Agreed Value  

790900

$    150,000

$    150,000

 14  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

11 

1993

106
NV

 5,000 

$        101

$        361
        INCL
$         37

SERVICE                                      
1FTHF26H9PLA94964  

$  1,000,000

$        500

$  1,000,000

FORD                                

U-6   

Actual Cash Value

Service     
014990

ACV         

 15  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

1999

106
NV

$         95

$        361
        INCL

FIRST RESPONDER                              
1GDHK33J2XF014374  

$  1,000,000

$        457

$  1,000,000

GMC                                 

U-9   

N/A           

790900

 16  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

       

            
            
            

            
            
            

       

    
            

            
            
            

            
            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

       

       

            
            
            

            
            
            
            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            
            
            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

12 

1999

106
NV

 5,000 

$        105

$        361
        INCL
$         37

SERVICE                                      
1GCGK29U9XE251445  

$  1,000,000

$        504

$  1,000,000

CHEVY                               

U-4   

Actual Cash Value

Service     
014990

ACV         

 17  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2000

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        129

$        275

BRUSH VEH                                    
1HTSDADR3YH227999  

$  1,000,000

$        861

$  1,000,000

INT’L                               

B-12  

Agreed Value  

790900

$    150,000

$    150,000

 18  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

       

            
            
            

            
            
            

       

    
            

            
            
            

            
            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

13 

2000

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        129

$        275

BRUSH VEH                                    
1HTSDADR1YH227998  

$  1,000,000

$        861

$  1,000,000

INT’L                               

B-10  

Agreed Value  

790900

$    150,000

$    150,000

 19  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

1999

106
NV

 5,000 

$        107

$        361
        INCL
$         37

SERVICE                                      
1GCGK24J5XR722870  

$  1,000,000

$        506

$  1,000,000

CHEVY                               

U-3   

Actual Cash Value

Service     
014990

ACV         

 20  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

       

            
            
            

            
            
            

       

    
            

            
            
            

            
            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

14 

2000

106
NV

$         95

$        361
        INCL

FIRST RESPONDER                              
1GNEK13T1YJ137960  

$  1,000,000

$        457

$  1,000,000

CHEVY                               

U-1   

N/A           

790900

 21  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2001

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        129

$        275

TANKER                                       
1FVHALBD01PH75576  

$  1,000,000

$        861

$  1,000,000

FREIGHTLINER                        

T-3   

Agreed Value  

790900

$    150,000

$    150,000

 22  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

       

       

            
            
            

            
            
            
            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            
            
            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

15 

1999

106
NV

 5,000 

$         86

$        544
        INCL
$         42

SIERRA                                       
1GTGK29U5XE532741  

$  1,000,000

$        673

$  1,000,000

GMC                                 

U-2   

Actual Cash Value

790800

ACV         

 23  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2000

106
NV

 5,000 

$         86

$        544
        INCL
$         42

3500 P/U                                     
1GTHK33R3YF516726  

$  1,000,000

$        673

$  1,000,000

GMC                                 

U-7   

Actual Cash Value

790800

ACV         

 24  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

       

            
            
            

            
            
            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            
            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

       

            
            
            

            
            
            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            
            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

16 

2001

106
NV

 5,000 

$        109

$        361
        INCL
$         37

SERVICE                                      
1GCEK19T61Z198891  

$  1,000,000

$        508

$  1,000,000

CHEVY                               

SUPSE 

Actual Cash Value

Service     
014990

ACV         

 25  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2003

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        153

$        364

RESCUE HVY                                   
1HTWEADR23J051995  

$  1,000,000

$        974

$  1,000,000

INT’L                               

SQ-5  

Agreed Value  

790900

$    150,000

$    150,000

 26  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

       

            
            
            

            
            
            

       

    
            

            
            
            

            
            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

17 

2003

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        153

$        364

RESCUE HVY                                   
1HTWEADR43J051996  

$  1,000,000

$        974

$  1,000,000

INT’L                               

SQ-7  

Agreed Value  

790900

$    150,000

$    150,000

 27  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2003

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        153

$        364

TANKER                                       
1HTXHAET63J067821  

$  1,000,000

$        974

$  1,000,000

INT’L                               

T-10  

Agreed Value  

790900

$    150,000

$    150,000

 28  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

18 

2003

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        153

$        364

TANKER                                       
1HTXHAET63J067820  

$  1,000,000

$        974

$  1,000,000

INT’L                               

T-12  

Agreed Value  

790900

$    150,000

$    150,000

 29  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2003

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        401

$      1,076

AERIAL                                       
4Z3HAACK14RM90408  

$  1,000,000

$      1,934

$  1,000,000

AMERICAN                            

TR-12 

Agreed Value  

790900

$    850,000

$    850,000

 30  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

19 

2004

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        153

$        364

BRUSH VEH                                    
1HTWEADR54J027319  

$  1,000,000

$        974

$  1,000,000

INT’L                               

B-8   

Agreed Value  

790900

$    150,000

$    150,000

 31  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2004

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        153

$        364

BRUSH VEH                                    
1HTWEADR34J027318  

$  1,000,000

$        974

$  1,000,000

INT’L                               

B-6   

Agreed Value  

790900

$    150,000

$    150,000

 32  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

20 

2004

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        153

$        364

TANKER                                       
1HTXHAPT84J016933  

$  1,000,000

$        974

$  1,000,000

INT’L                               

T-4   

Agreed Value  

790900

$    150,000

$    150,000

 33  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

1974

106
NV

$         95

$        361
        INCL

AERIAL                                       
CF685FAP1601       

$  1,000,000

$        457

$  1,000,000

MACK                                

RESER 

N/A           

790900

 34  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

       

       

            
            
            

            
            
            
            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            
            
            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

21 

2004

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        162

$        394

HAZMAT                                       
4S7HT1B964C048147  

$  1,000,000

$      1,013

$  1,000,000

SPARTAN                             

HAZ-9 

Agreed Value  

790900

$    175,000

$    175,000

 35  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2005

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$        113

$        361
        INCL
$         37

$        123

SERVICE                                      
1GTEK14X85Z100749  

$  1,000,000

$        635

$  1,000,000

CHEVY                               

SUPSE 

Actual Cash Value

Service     
014990

ACV         

ACV         

 36  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

22 

2005

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$        124

$        361
        INCL
$         37

$        123

SERVICE                                      
3GNGK26UX5G157205  

$  1,000,000

$        646

$  1,000,000

CHEVY                               

B.C.  

Actual Cash Value

Service     
014990

ACV         

ACV         

 37  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2005

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        153

$        364

BRUSH VEH                                    
1HTWEAZR35J191064  

$  1,000,000

$        974

$  1,000,000

INT’L                               

B-2   

Agreed Value  

790900

$    150,000

$    150,000

 38  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

23 

2005

106
NV

$         95

$        361
        INCL

FIRST RESPONDER                              
1GCHK29U85E256184  

$  1,000,000

$        457

$  1,000,000

CHEVY                               

PREV1 

N/A           

790900

 39  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2005

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        179

$        449

PUMPER                                       
4Z3AAKCY46RW17814  

$  1,000,000

$      1,085

$  1,000,000

AME LAFRANCE                        

E-7   

Agreed Value  

790900

$    225,000

$    225,000

 40  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

       

       

            
            
            

            
            
            
            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            
            
            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

24 

2007

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        179

$        449

PUMPER                                       
1AFAAKDY97RY13780  

$  1,000,000

$      1,085

$  1,000,000

AME LAFRANCE                        

E-12  

Agreed Value  

790900

$    225,000

$    225,000

 41  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

1994

106
NV

$         11

        INCL
        INCL

TRAILER                                      
1WC200E29R4018163  

$  1,000,000

$         12

$  1,000,000

PACE                                

PACET 

N/A           

684990

 42  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

       

       

            
            
            

            
            
            
            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            
            
            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

25 

2000

106
NV

$         95

$        361
        INCL

FIRST RESPONDER                              
3GNGK26U1YG170686  

$  1,000,000

$        457

$  1,000,000

CHEVY                               

CHIF4 

N/A           

790900

 43  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2008

106
NV

$         95

$        361
        INCL

FIRST RESPONDER                              
1FTSW21Y48ED51998  

$  1,000,000

$        457

$  1,000,000

FORD                                

TRAIN 

N/A           

790900

 44  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

       

       

            
            
            

            
            
            
            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            
            
            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

       

       

            
            
            

            
            
            
            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            
            
            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

26 

2008

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$         86

$        544
        INCL
$         42

$        115

TAHOE/PPT                                    
1GNFK13038J213107  

$  1,000,000

$        788

$  1,000,000

CHEVY                               

CHIF1 

Actual Cash Value

790800

ACV         

ACV         

 45  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2000

106
NV

$         95

$        361
        INCL

FIRST RESPONDER                              
1GTGK29U2YE200404  

$  1,000,000

$        457

$  1,000,000

GMC                                 

U-5   

N/A           

790900

 46  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

       

       

            
            
            

            
            
            
            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            
            
            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

27 

1999

106
NV

$         95

$        361
        INCL

FIRST RESPONDER                              
1GTGK24R6XR724973  

$  1,000,000

$        457

$  1,000,000

GMC                                 

U-8   

N/A           

790900

 47  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

1995

106
NV

$         95

$        361
        INCL

FIRST RESPONDER                              
1GBGK24K1SE119430  

$  1,000,000

$        457

$  1,000,000

CHEVY                               

U-12  

N/A           

790900

 48  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

       

       

            
            
            

            
            
            
            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            
            
            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

       

       

            
            
            

            
            
            
            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            
            
            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

28 

2009

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$         86

$        544
        INCL
$         26

$         91

SIL 1500 P/U                                 
1GCEK19C88E183102  

$  1,000,000

$        748

$  1,000,000

CHEVROLET                           

PREV2 

Actual Cash Value

790800

ACV         

ACV         

 49  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2010

106
NV

 1,000 

 3,000 

$        574

$        361
        INCL
$        171

$      1,028

AMB ALS                                      
1FDWF3HR6AEA70342  

$  1,000,000

$      2,136

$  1,000,000

FORD                                

ALS14 

Agreed Value  

791900

$    132,000

$    132,000

 50  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          2

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

29 

2010

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        210

$        580

PUMPER LDH                                   
4S7CTZD95ACO71802  

$  1,000,000

$      1,247

$  1,000,000

SPARTAN                             

E-4   

Agreed Value  

790900

$    200,000

$    200,000

 51  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2013

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$        137

$        361
        INCL
$         37

$        123

SERVICE                                      
1GNWKLEG3DR319087  

$  1,000,000

$        659

$  1,000,000

CHEVY                               

Actual Cash Value

Service     
014990

ACV         

ACV         

 52  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

30 

2014

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$        574

$        361
        INCL
$        153

$      1,094

AMB ALS                                      
1FDRF3HT0EEA55446  

$  1,000,000

$      2,184

$  1,000,000

FORD                                

R-114 

Agreed Value  

791900

$    145,000

$    145,000

 53  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          2

2015

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$         16

        INCL
        INCL
$         26

$         94

TRAILER                                      
575GB2425FU277311  

$  1,000,000

$        137

$  1,000,000

HAULMARK                            

Agreed Value  

684990

$     13,000

$     13,000

 54  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

31 

2017

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$        574

$        361
        INCL
$        172

$      1,335

AMB ALS                                      
1FDRF3HT6HDA03992  

$  1,000,000

$      2,444

$  1,000,000

FORD                                

R-107 

Agreed Value  

791900

$    175,000

$    175,000

 55  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          2

2019

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        352

$      1,492

BRUSH VEH                                    
3HAWETAR0KL367914  

$  1,000,000

$      2,301

$  1,000,000

INTERNATIONAL                       

Agreed Value  

790900

$    365,000

$    365,000

 56  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

32 

2019

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$        171

$        361
        INCL
$        129

$        330

SERVICE                                      
1GNSKFEC3KR178693  

$  1,000,000

$        992

$  1,000,000

CHEVY                               

Actual Cash Value

Service     
014990

ACV         

ACV         

 57  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2019

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$        171

$        361
        INCL
$        129

$        330

SERVICE                                      
1GNSKFEC8KR178995  

$  1,000,000

$        992

$  1,000,000

CHEVY                               

Actual Cash Value

Service     
014990

ACV         

ACV         

 58  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

33 

2018

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        131

$        387

RESCUE LT                                    
3C6UR5CL1JG381646  

$  1,000,000

$        975

$  1,000,000

DODGE                               

Agreed Value  

790900

$     39,589

$     39,589

 59  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2019

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         99

$        361
        INCL
$        352

$      1,492

BRUSH VEH                                    
1HTWETAR2KH077941  

$  1,000,000

$      2,305

$  1,000,000

INTERNATIONAL                       

Agreed Value  

790900

$    365,000

$    365,000

 60  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

34 

2007

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$        117

$        361
        INCL
$         37

$        123

SERVICE                                      
1GTHK24627E526120  

$  1,000,000

$        639

$  1,000,000

GMC                                 

Actual Cash Value

Service     
014990

ACV         

ACV         

 61  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2019

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        421

$      1,810

PUMPER LDH                                   
4P1BAAFF7KA020709  

$  1,000,000

$      2,688

$  1,000,000

DODGE                               

Agreed Value  

790900

$    495,000

$    495,000

 62  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

35 

2019

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        421

$      1,810

PUMPER LDH                                   
4P1BAAFF4KA020716  

$  1,000,000

$      2,688

$  1,000,000

DODGE                               

Agreed Value  

790900

$    495,000

$    495,000

 63  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2019

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$        574

$        361
        INCL
$        198

$      1,664

AMB ALS                                      
3C7WRTBL4KG583733  

$  1,000,000

$      2,799

$  1,000,000

DODGE                               

Agreed Value  

791900

$    216,000

$    216,000

 64  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          2

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

36 

2019

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$        574

$        361
        INCL
$        135

$        861

AMB ALS                                      
3C7WRTBL6KG583734  

$  1,000,000

$      1,933

$  1,000,000

DODGE                               

Agreed Value  

791900

$    116,000

$    116,000

 65  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          2

2020

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$        574

$        361
        INCL
$        198

$      1,664

AMB ALS                                      
3C7WRLBL6LG269633  

$  1,000,000

$      2,799

$  1,000,000

DODGE                               

Agreed Value  

791900

$    216,000

$    216,000

 66  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          2

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

37 

2021

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$         86

$        544
        INCL
$         58

$        246

2500 P/U                                     
3C6UR5CJ5MG526013  

$  1,000,000

$        935

$  1,000,000

DODGE RAM                           

U-7   

Actual Cash Value

790800

ACV         

ACV         

 67  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2020

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        425

$      1,837

PUMPER                                       
4PIBAAFFXLA022116  

$  1,000,000

$      2,719

$  1,000,000

PIERCE FT                           

Agreed Value  

790900

$    507,000

$    507,000

 68  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

38 

2020

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        249

$        917

CHIPPER TRUCK                                
3C7WRNFL4LG220484  

$  1,000,000

$      1,623

$  1,000,000

DODGE RAM                           

Agreed Value  

790900

$     83,000

$     83,000

 69  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2021

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$         25

        INCL
        INCL
$         60

$        394

TRAILER                                      
4FMUS1819MR516249  

$  1,000,000

$        480

$  1,000,000

BANDIT CHIPPER                      

Agreed Value  

684990

$     57,000

$     57,000

 70  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

39 

2021

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$         89

$        544
        INCL
$        150

$        518

RAM                                          
3C6UR5J1MG629977   

$  1,000,000

$      1,302

$  1,000,000

DODGE                               

Actual Cash Value

790800

ACV         

ACV         

 71  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2018

106
NV

10,000 

10,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        275

$      1,124

PUMPER                                       
1HTGRSNT2JH557059  

$  1,000,000

$      1,856

$  1,000,000

INTERNATIONAL                       

Agreed Value  

790900

$    225,000

$    225,000

 72  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

40 

2021

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$         89

$        544
        INCL
$         58

$        246

RAM                                          
3C7WR5HJ2MG583685  

$  1,000,000

$        938

$  1,000,000

DODGE                               

Actual Cash Value

790800

ACV         

ACV         

 73  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2020

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        316

$      1,314

BRUSH VEH                                    
3C7WRNEL3LG255826  

$  1,000,000

$      2,087

$  1,000,000

DODGE RAM                           

Agreed Value  

790900

$    190,000

$    190,000

 74  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

41 

2021

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        174

$        528

BRUSH VEH                                    
3C7WRNEL1MG503816  

$  1,000,000

$      1,159

$  1,000,000

DODGE RAM                           

Agreed Value  

790900

$     35,000

$     35,000

 75  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2021

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$         95

$        361
        INCL
$        200

$        638

BRUSH VEH                                    
1GNSKLED0MR466956  

$  1,000,000

$      1,295

$  1,000,000

CHEVY                               

Agreed Value  

790900

$     41,300

$     41,300

 76  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

42 

2021

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$         86

$        544
        INCL
$         92

$        331

PRIVATE PASSENGER                            
1GNSKLED0MR466908  

$  1,000,000

$      1,054

$  1,000,000

CHEVY TAHOE                         

Agreed Value  

790800

$     41,300

$     41,300

 77  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2022

106
NV

 1,000 

 1,000 

$         89

$        544
        INCL
$        139

$        546

PRIVATE PASSENGER                            
2GC1YNEY9N1203246  

$  1,000,000

$      1,319

$  1,000,000

CHEVY PICK UP                       

Agreed Value  

790800

$     62,500

$     62,500

 78  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

43 

2022

106
NV

 1,000 

 1,000 

$         89

$        544
        INCL
$        139

$        546

PRIVATE PASSENGER                            
2GC1YNEY5N1202935  

$  1,000,000

$      1,319

$  1,000,000

CHEVY PICK UP                       

Agreed Value  

790800

$     62,500

$     62,500

 79  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

2022

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$        574

$        361
        INCL
$        210

$      1,814

AMB ALS                                      
1FDUF4HT4NDA19300  

$  1,000,000

$      2,961

$  1,000,000

FORD                                

Agreed Value  

791900

$    234,683

$    234,683

 80  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          2

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

44 

2022

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$        574

$        361
        INCL
$        147

$      1,015

AMB ALS                                      
1FDUF4HT3NDA23015  

$  1,000,000

$      2,099

$  1,000,000

FORD                                

Agreed Value  

791900

$    135,200

$    135,200

 81  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          2

2023

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$         89

$        544
        INCL
$        150

$        546

SILVERADO                                    
2GC1YNEYXP1721174  

$  1,000,000

$      1,330

$  1,000,000

CHEVROLET                           

Agreed Value  

790800

$     65,760

$     65,760

 82  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          



Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  
Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 
 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

Vehicle #  Insured’s #:  

Insured Entity:  

Year:  Use:  
Make:  Class Code:  
Model:  State:  
V.I.N.:  Territory:  

Valuation:   
    
Coverages: Limit of Insurance Deductible Premium 

 Covered Autos Liability (combined single limit) 
 Personal Injury Protection (PIP) 
 Added Personal Injury Protection  

 Property Protection Insurance (MI only) 

 Auto Medical Payments  
 Medical Exp. And Income Loss 
  Benefits (VA only) 

 

 Uninsured Motorists (UM)  

 Underinsured Motorists (UIM)  

 Physical Damage ---- Comprehensive 
 Physical Damage ---- Specified Causes of Loss 
 Physical Damage ---- Collision 
 Physical Damage ---- Towing and Labor  

 Other Auto Coverages   

  Total:   
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

45 

2023

106
NV

 5,000 

 5,000 

$         89

$        544
        INCL
$        150

$        546

SILVERADO                                    
2GC1YNEY5P1721082  

$  1,000,000

$      1,330

$  1,000,000

CHEVROLET                           

Agreed Value  

790800

$     65,760

$     65,760

 83  

$  1,000,000

$      5,000 $          1

                                   

                                   

          

          

            
            
            

            

            

       

    
            

      

            

            
            
            

            

        

                          

    

   

                                   

          

          

  

       

       

            
            
            
            

            
            
            
            
            
            

                                             
                   

       

            

            

            

    
            

                                    

      

              

            
     

            
            
            

            
            
            

     

        

            

            

                        

              



 

Named Insured: 
 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From   

                      To       

 

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                       

ITEM FOUR: Hired, Borrowed, and Commandeered Coverage  (if applicable) 

 

Covered Autos Liability Coverage 
Rating Basis, Cost of Hire 

State Estimated Cost of 
Hire for Each State 

Rate Per Each 
$100 Cost of Hire 

Factor (If Liability 
Coverage is Primary) 

Premium 

TOTAL HIRED AUTO PREMIUM: 

Covered Autos Liability Coverage 
Rating Basis, Number of Days- 

(For Mobile or Farm Equipment ---- Rental Period Basis) 

State Estimated Number of 
Days Equipment Will 

Be Rented 

Base Premium Factor Premium 

     

     

TOTAL HIRED AUTO PREMIUM:  

 

State:   

Physical Damage 

Coverage Valuation and Deductible Estimated Cost of Hire Premium 

Comprehensive  Actual cash value or the cost of 
repair, whichever is less, minus a 

 deductible for each 
covered auto 

Collision  Actual cash value or the cost of 
repair, whichever is less, minus a 

 deductible for each 
covered auto 

Such insurance as is afforded by hired auto physical damage coverage also applies to autos you Commandeer. 

 

 
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

46 

NV          IF ANY $  5.973 $           153

$           153

$    50

IF ANY $       25

$   100

IF ANY $       25

NV 

                                   

                                               

       



Named Insured: 

 

Policy Number:  

Policy Period: From   
                      To       

AU1000 (01-20)  Page:  
                                                                                                      

 

ITEM FIVE: Non-Ownership Liability 

 

Named Insured’s Business Rating Basis Number Premium 

 Number of 
volunteers /employees 

Extended coverage   

 
 

Auto Forms 

See Schedule of Forms and Endorsements 

 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATION          

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

47 

    159 $        3,105

 INCL  

                                   



 

AU1001 (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE EXTENSION 
ENDORSEMENT

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

The following revisions are made to Section III - Physical Damage Coverage:
TOWING
Coverage A.2., Towing, is replaced by the following:

For any “auto” listed in Item Three of the Auto Coverage Part Declarations for which a premium 
charge has been made for Comprehensive Coverage:
a. We will pay reasonable labor costs incurred to make necessary repairs to the "auto" so it can 

be driven from the scene of disablement.  This labor must be performed at a scene of 
disablement other than your normal garaging location for such "auto"; or 

b. We will pay for all reasonable towing costs incurred for towing the disabled "auto" from the 
scene of disablement to an appropriate repair facility.  This includes the costs to tow the 
disabled "auto" to multiple facilities as necessary, prior to delivery to the final repair facility.  

The most we will pay for each "auto" under this extension is $2,500.

GLASS BREAKAGE
Coverage A.3., Glass Breakage – Hitting a Bird or Animal – Falling Objects or Missiles, replaced by 
the following:

If you carry Comprehensive Coverage for the damaged covered “auto”, we will pay for the 
following under Comprehensive Coverage:

a. Full window glass breakage, without deductible;
b. “Loss” caused by hitting a bird or animal; and
c. “Loss” caused by falling objects or missiles.

DEDUCTIBLE WAIVER
The following is added to paragraph D. Deductible:

If a "loss" covered under this policy also involves a "loss" under an Emergency Service 
Organization Portable Equipment, Inland Marine or Property coverage part issued by us, only one 
deductible, the largest, will be applied.  The deductible under the other coverage parts will be 
waived. 



 

AU1002  (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 2

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

AGREED VALUE ENDORSEMENT
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

For covered "autos" designated in the schedule as being insured on an agreed value basis, the following 
provisions of SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE, are changed:

A. COVERAGE

The first sentence is deleted and replaced with the following:

1. We will pay for "loss" to a covered "auto" or its "permanently attached equipment" under:

C. LIMIT OF INSURANCE

The most we will pay for "loss" to any one covered "auto" in any one accident is the least of:

1. the cost of repairing the damaged property; or

2. the cost to replace a part or parts of the damaged property as of the time of the "loss" 
with a part or parts of like kind and quality, without deduction for depreciation; or

3. the cost to replace the entire covered "auto" and its "permanently attached equipment" as 
of the time of the "loss" with a comparable new "auto" and "permanently attached 
equipment" manufactured to current specifications or standards set by nationally 
recognized organizations such as NFPA or the U.S. Department of Transportation; or

4. the limit stated in the Declarations as applicable to the damaged or stolen property.

In addition to the costs of repairs or replacements as referenced in paragraphs C.1., or C.2., 
above, we will pay up to an additional 25% of the “loss” for the actual costs you incur to render 
the lost or damaged parts of the covered “auto” in compliance with the latest safety or equipment 
standards mandated by governmental agencies or other nationally recognized standards setting 
organizations. If, as a result of a covered cause of  “loss”, an agency or organization requires 
recertification of the replaced, lost or damaged parts, we shall also pay those costs.

In the event the estimated costs to repair a damaged covered "auto" exceed 75% of the limit 
shown in the schedule of vehicles as the agreed value, and you choose not to accept payment 
under paragraphs C.1. or C.2. above, we will pay the lesser of the amounts due you under 
paragraphs C.3. or C.4. above.  Should we make settlement under C.3. or C.4., we shall have the 
rights to all recovery and salvage.

All other provisions of SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE - are unchanged.

Additional definitions applicable to this endorsement:

 "Auto" shall include its equipment other than portable firefighting and rescue related equipment.

 "Permanently attached equipment" means equipment that is welded, bolted or permanently screwed 
to the dashboard, firewall or body of the "auto."  Equipment inserted on permanently installed slide 
brackets with or without the use of setscrews or tension, or portable firefighting and rescue related 
equipment, shall not be construed as "permanently attached equipment."



 

AU1002  (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 2 of 2

The following is added to item B. OWNED AUTOS YOU ACQUIRE AFTER THE POLICY BEGINS of 
Section I – COVERED AUTOS:

3. If symbols 2, 7 or 8 are entered next to a coverage in Item Two of the Declarations, for owned “autos” 
or “autos” you lease for a period of six months or more, acquired after the policy begins and not 
described in the Declarations, we will pay under the Comprehensive or Collision coverages the least 
of the following:

a.  the cost of repairing the damaged property; or

b.  the cost to replace a part or parts of the damaged property as of the time of the "loss" with a 
part or parts of like kind and quality, without deduction for depreciation; or

c. the actual cash value of the newly acquired “auto” or your actual cost of purchase of the newly 
acquired “auto,” whichever is more; 

provided that the newly acquired “auto” is an emergency vehicle and you agree to notify us as soon 
as possible.  This coverage will cease at the end of the policy period during which the “auto” was 
acquired.



 

AU1005 (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

WAIVER OF GOVERNMENTAL OR CHARITABLE IMMUNITY 
ENDORSEMENT – PROPERTY DAMAGE

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

We will waive, both in the adjustment of claims and in the defense of any "property damage" suit against 
the "insured", any charitable or governmental immunity of the "insured", unless the "insured" requests in 
writing that we not do so.

Waiver of immunity as a defense will not subject us to liability for any portion of a claim or judgment in 
excess of the applicable limit of insurance.



 

AU1006 (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

CARE, CUSTODY OR CONTROL EXCLUSION ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

LIABILITY COVERAGE is changed as follows:

B. Exclusion 6., CARE CUSTODY OR CONTROL, is deleted and replaced by:

6. CARE, CUSTODY OR CONTROL

This insurance does not apply to "property damage" to or "covered pollution cost or expense" 
involving property owned, transported by, or in the care, custody or control of the Named Insured.

The exclusion does not apply to "property damage" to a building and its contents or garage and 
its contents rented to, used by, or in the care, custody or control of the Named Insured.  This 
exclusion also does not apply to property owned by an "insured" other than the Named Insured or 
to property transported by or in the care, custody or control of an "insured."

The amount payable for "property damage" to a building and its contents or garage and its 
contents, rented to, used by, or in the care, custody or control of the Named Insured will be 
subject to a $250 deductible.

This exclusion does not apply to liability assumed under a sidetrack agreement.

The provisions of this endorsement are subject to item B.5., OTHER INSURANCE, included as a 
part of BUSINESS AUTO CONDITIONS.

_________________________________
Authorized Agent



 

AU1007 (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

COMMANDEERED AUTO DEFINITION ENDORSEMENT
Named Insured   EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DIST Endorsement Number

Policy Number   VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000 Endorsement Effective   07/01/23

Countersigned by

(Authorized Representative)
The above is required to be completed only when this endorsement is issued subsequent to the preparation of the policy.

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

SECTION V - DEFINITIONS
The following definition is added:

“Commandeered auto” means an “auto” belonging to someone else that you seize, confiscate or take 
arbitrarily by force, into your temporary care, custody or control while using it as part of an “emergency 
situation.” “Commandeered auto” does not include an “auto” owned by or available to an employee or 
volunteer of your organization from whom you have tacit approval to use the “auto”.

“Emergency Situation” means an unexpected situation demanding immediate official action.



 

AU1009 (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

INCIDENTAL GARAGE OPERATIONS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

GARAGE LIABILITY
The following paragraph is hereby inserted following the first paragraph of item A. COVERAGE of 
SECTION II – LIABILITY COVERAGE:

Any “auto” you do not own, lease, hire, rent or borrow that is used in connection with your “garage 
operations” is considered a covered “auto”.  This includes “autos” used by your volunteers or employees, 
or members of their households, while used in your “garage operations”.

With respect only to the coverage provided by the above paragraph:
 item 10. COMPLETED OPERATIONS of B. EXCLUSIONS is deleted; and
 item b.(3) of 1. WHO IS AN INSURED of A. COVERAGE is deleted.

GARAGEKEEPERS INSURANCE
The following Coverage Extension is hereby added under item A. COVERAGE of SECTION III – 
PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE:

We will pay for “loss” to any “autos” while left with your “garage operations”.  Coverage under this 
extension is provided only to the extent indicated below.

COVERAGE DEDUCTIBLE LIMIT PER “LOSS”
Comprehensive (primary basis) $250 $50,000
Collision (primary basis) $500 $50,000

For the purpose of this endorsement, “garage operations” means your use of one or more locations for 
the service, repair, parking or storage of “autos” other than your own, including all operations necessary 
or incidental thereto.  Parking or storage of “autos” is a “garage operation” only when the “autos” are 
parked by you and are in your care, custody or control.



 

AU1017 (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 4

   
THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE EXTENSION 
ENDORSEMENT -

 PUBLIC ENTITY AND
EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATIONS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

1. The following coverages are added to Section III - Physical Damage Coverage, Paragraph A. 
Coverage:

PHYSICAL DAMAGE TO VOLUNTEERS' OR EMPLOYEES' PERSONAL AUTOS
5. Physical Damage to Personal Autos

a. At your request, we will pay up to the actual cash value for an “auto” not covered for physical 
damage, or the amount of the deductible under any policy covering an “auto” owned or used 
by a volunteer or “employee” of your insured law enforcement, firefighting, ambulance and/or 
rescue organization for "loss" that occurs:

(1) While enroute to, during and returning directly from an emergency; or

(2) While enroute to, during and returning from activities that are performed at the direction 
and knowledge of an officer of the insured law enforcement, firefighting, ambulance 
and/or rescue organization. 

b. At your request, we will pay the lesser of $1,000, or the amount of the deductible under any 
policy covering an “auto” owned or used by your elected or appointed official, officer, 
volunteer or “employee” of your organization, other than your insured law enforcement, 
firefighting, ambulance and/or rescue organization, for "loss" that occurs while enroute to, 
during and returning from activities that are performed at the direction and knowledge of your 
elected or appointed official or officer.

c. At your request, we will pay the rental reimbursement expenses incurred by your volunteer or 
"employee" for the rental of an "auto" because of "loss" sustained under Paragraph a.(1) to 
their owned "auto".  The most we will pay is $30 per day for a maximum of 30 days.  

d. Proof of statutory limits of financial responsibility as of the date of "loss" for an "auto" that is 
covered under this extension must be provided before payment is made for "loss" under this 
extension.  

e. In no event will we pay for any “loss” under this coverage to any “auto” owned, hired or 
borrowed by your organization.



 

AU1017 (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 2 of 4

RENTAL REIMBURSEMENT COVERAGE FOR FIREFIGHTING/RESCUE VEHICLES
6. Rental Reimbursement Coverage for Firefighting/Rescue Vehicles

(1) This extension only applies to covered "autos" listed in Item Three of the Auto Coverage Part 
Declarations that are used for firefighting/rescue purposes, which are designated with a 7909 
class code in the Declarations.  The coverage provided under this extension does not apply 
to any other covered "autos" on the schedule.  

(2) We will pay for rental reimbursement expenses incurred by you for the rental of an "auto" 
because of "loss" to a covered "auto". Payment applies in addition to the otherwise applicable 
amount of each coverage you have on a covered "auto". No deductible applies to this 
coverage. 

(3) We will pay only for those expenses incurred during the policy period beginning 24 hours 
after the "loss" and ending, regardless of the policy's expiration, with the lesser of the 
following number of days: 
(a) The number of days reasonably required to repair or replace the covered "auto". If "loss" 

is caused by theft, this number of days is added to the number of days it takes to locate 
the covered "auto" and return it to you. 

(b) 40 days. 
(4) Our payment is limited to the lesser of the following amounts: 

(a) Necessary and actual expenses incurred. 
(b) $250 for any one day.

(5) This coverage does not apply while there are spare or reserve "autos" available to you for 
your operations. 

TEMPORARY SUBSTITUTE FIREFIGHTING OR RESCUE AUTO
7. Temporary Substitute Firefighting or Rescue Autos

a. We will provide coverage for temporary substitute firefighting and rescue "autos" you do not 
own.  The temporary substitute "auto" must replace a covered “auto” for which a premium 
charge has been made for Comprehensive and/or Collision coverage.  The replaced "auto" 
must be out of service for a period of less than six months because of its:
(1) Breakdown;
(2) Repair;
(3) Servicing;
(4) "Loss"; or
(5) Destruction.

b. For temporary substitute firefighting and rescue "autos" you do not own described in 
paragraph a. above, Paragraph C. Limit Of Insurance is replaced by the following:
C. Limit Of Insurance

1. If the owner has physical damage coverage on the temporary substitute "auto", the 
most we will pay for “loss” in any one “accident” is the lesser of:
a. The amount that would have been paid by the owner’s insurance policy insuring 

the temporary substitute firefighting or rescue "autos"; or
b. $1,000,000.

2. If the owner does not have physical damage coverage on the temporary substitute 
"auto", the most we will pay for “loss” in any one “accident” is the least of:
a. The actual cash value of the damaged or stolen property as of the time of the 

"loss"; or 
b. The cost of repairing or replacing the damaged or stolen property with other 

property of like kind and quality; or
c. $1,000,000.

c. The deductible assigned to the temporary substitute "auto" will be the same as the firefighting 
or rescue covered "auto" that is being replaced.  



 

AU1017 (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 3 of 4

d. For the purpose of this coverage, Paragraph d. of B.5., Other Insurance, is deleted.  The 
temporary substitute "auto" is deemed to be a covered "auto" you own and with no 
consideration of or contribution from other valid and collectible insurance for the "auto".

FORESTRY VEHICLES AND FORESTRY EQUIPMENT
8. Any “auto” that is a “forestry vehicle” and is not scheduled for physical damage is a covered 

“auto”.  Any equipment that is “forestry equipment” and is installed on a covered “auto” is covered 
equipment.  For the purpose of this extension, “forestry vehicle” means an “auto” you don’t own, 
used for firefighting purposes, that is on loan to you from a state agency under the Federal 
Excess Personal Property program or any similar program.  “Forestry equipment” means any 
firefighting equipment you don’t own that is on loan to you from a state agency under the Federal 
Excess Personal Property program or any similar program and is installed on an “auto” you own 
or on a “forestry vehicle”.

The following replaces paragraph C. Limit of Insurance:

The most we will pay for "loss" to a “forestry vehicle” or “forestry equipment” in any one "accident" 
is the lesser of:
a. The actual cash value of the damaged or stolen property as of the time of the "loss"; or 
b.  The cost of repairing or replacing the damaged or stolen property with other property of like 

kind and quality. 
An adjustment for depreciation and physical condition will be made in determining actual cash 
value in the event of a total "loss".  No payment will be made under this extension unless the 
damaged or stolen property is actually repaired or replaced.  Repairs to or replacement of the 
damaged or stolen property with the same kind of property must be done within a year of the date 
of “loss”.  If a repair or replacement results in better than like kind or quality, we will not pay for 
the amount of the betterment.

For any Comprehensive “losses” covered by this extension, we will use the smallest 
Comprehensive deductible applying to any of your scheduled “autos”.  For any Collision “losses” 
covered by this extension, we will use the smallest Collision deductible applying to any of your 
scheduled “autos”.

We shall have no salvage rights to any “forestry vehicle” or “forestry equipment”.

2. The following revisions are made to Section III - Physical Damage Coverage:
AIRBAG COVERAGE
a. The exclusion for “loss” caused by mechanical breakdown in sub-paragraph 3.a. of B. 

Exclusions does not apply to the accidental discharge of an airbag.

FREEZING COVERAGE ON EMERGENCY VEHICLES
b. The exclusion for "loss" caused by freezing in sub-paragraph 3.a. of B. Exclusions does not 

apply to permanently attached special equipment common to a firefighting or rescue vehicle 
caused by freezing, unless the "loss" is caused by your failure to properly maintain such 
equipment.  Such equipment shall include but is not limited to pumps, gauges and tanks.  In no 
event will the "loss" to a vehicle's engine caused by freezing be covered by this policy.

CUSTOMIZED VEHICLE EXTENSION 
c. For scheduled customized covered "autos" not covered on an agreed value basis that are owned 

by your law enforcement, firefighting, ambulance and/or rescue organization, the following is 
added to paragraph C. Limit Of Insurance:
5. We will pay the additional repair or replacement costs necessary to customize the damaged 

"auto" with permanently installed equipment of like kind and quality, without deduction for 
depreciation. We will also include the cost of installation onto a replacement "auto" if the 
covered "auto" is not repairable. Permanently installed means equipment that is permanently 
installed in the covered "auto" at the time of the "loss" or equipment that is removable from a 



 

AU1017 (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 4 of 4

housing unit which is permanently installed in the covered "auto" at the time of the "loss", and 
such equipment is designed to be solely operated by use of the power from the "auto's" 
electrical system, in or upon the covered "auto". This customization will include, but is not 
limited to, the following:
a. custom painting and gold leaf lettering,
b. light bars and sirens, 
c. permanently installed communications equipment, Global Positioning Systems (GPS), 

traffic signal control systems, electronic license plate readers, and radar equipment, and
d. computer or electronic equipment that receives or transmits audio, visual or data signals.
In addition, we will pay for property owned by you that is permanently installed in an "auto" 
not owned by you.

DEDUCTIBLE WAIVER
d. The following is added to paragraph D. Deductible:

Regardless of the number of covered “autos” suffering a physical damage “loss” while engaged in 
a single law enforcement, firefighting, ambulance and/or rescue emergency, only one deductible, 
the largest, shall apply to the entire event.



 

AU1023 (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 3

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

AUTO LIABILITY EXTENSION ENDORSEMENT
EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATIONS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

1. The following revisions are made to Section II - Covered Autos Liability Coverage and Section IV 
- Business Auto Conditions:
VOLUNTEERS, EMPLOYEES, AND ELECTED OR APPOINTED OFFICIALS AS INSUREDS - 
NON-OWNED AUTO LIABILITY COVERAGE - PRIMARY BASIS
a. Coverage A.1., Who Is An Insured, under Section II - Covered Autos Liability Coverage is 

modified by the addition of paragraphs d., e. and f., as follows:
d. Any volunteer or “employee” of yours while using a covered “auto” you don't own, hire or 

borrow, while performing duties related to the conduct of your business.  Anyone else who 
furnished that “auto” is also an “insured”.   

e. Your elected or appointed officials while using a covered “auto” you don't own, hire or borrow, 
while performing duties related to the conduct of your business.  Anyone else who furnished 
that “auto” is also an “insured”.

f. Your commissions, authorities, boards or agencies, their commissioners, officers and 
members while using a covered “auto” you don't own, hire or borrow, but only while acting 
within the authority granted by you and only while performing duties related to the conduct of 
your business.  Anyone else who furnished that “auto” is also an “insured”.  

b. The following paragraph is added to B.5., Other Insurance of Section IV - Business Auto 
Conditions:
e. Notwithstanding condition 5.a. and 5.d. above, for any covered “auto” you or any other 

emergency service organization or public entity don’t own, hire or borrow, which is being 
used by a person, commission, authority, board or agency as described under paragraph d., 
e. or f. of Section II - Covered Autos Liability Coverage, Coverage A.1., Who Is An 
Insured, this Coverage Form provides primary insurance with no consideration of or 
contribution from any other insurance for such “auto”.  

OWNER OF TEMPORARY SUBSTITUTE AUTO AS AN INSURED - PRIMARY BASIS
c. Coverage A.1., Who Is An Insured, under Section II - Covered Autos Liability Coverage is 

modified by the addition of paragraph g., as follows:
g. The owner or anyone else from whom you rent, lease or borrow a substitute “auto” is an 

“insured”, but only for that covered “auto”.  The substitute must be for a similar scheduled 
“auto” which is out of normal use because of its breakdown, repair, servicing, loss or 
destruction.  

d. The following paragraph is added to B.5., Other Insurance of Section IV - Business Auto 
Conditions:
f. Notwithstanding condition 5.a. and 5.d. above, a substitute “auto” as described under 

paragraph g. of Section II - Covered Autos Liability Coverage, Coverage A.1., Who Is An 
Insured, is deemed a covered “auto” you own.  This Coverage Form provides primary 
insurance with no consideration of or contribution from other insurance for such “auto”.  



 

AU1023 (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 2 of 3

OWNER OF COMMANDEERED AUTO AS AN INSURED - PRIMARY BASIS
e. Coverage A.1., Who Is An Insured, under Section II - Covered Autos Liability Coverage is 

modified by the addition of paragraph h., as follows:
h. The owner of a “commandeered auto” is an “insured” while the “auto” is in your temporary 

care, custody or control and is being used as part of an “emergency situation”.
f. The following paragraph is added to B.5., Other Insurance of Section IV - Business Auto 

Conditions:
g. Notwithstanding condition 5.a. and 5.d. above, a “commandeered auto” is deemed a covered 

“auto” you own.  This Coverage Form provides primary insurance with no consideration of or 
contribution from other insurance for such “auto”.  

2. The following revisions are made to Section II - Covered Autos Liability Coverage:
ADDITIONAL INSURED - AUTOMATIC STATUS
a. Coverage A.1., Who Is An Insured, is modified by the addition of paragraph i., as follows:

i. Any person or organization for whom you and such person or organization have agreed in 
writing in a contract or agreement that such person or organization be added as an additional 
“insured” on your policy, but only to the extent that person or organization qualifies as an 
“insured” under Coverage A.1., Who Is An Insured. 
Any coverage provided hereunder shall be excess over any other valid and collectible 
insurance available to the additional “insured” whether primary, excess, contingent or on any 
other basis unless a written contract or agreement specifically requires that this insurance be 
primary in which case any other insurance available to the additional “insured” shall be 
considered excess and non-contributing.

ADDITIONAL EXPENSES YOU INCUR AT OUR REQUEST
b. Coverage A.2.a.(4), Coverage Extensions, Supplementary Payments, is replaced by the 

following:
(4) All reasonable expenses incurred by the “insured” at our request, including actual loss of 

earnings up to $300 a day because of time off from work.
EXPECTED OR INTENDED INJURY
c. Exclusion B.1., Expected Or Intended Injury, is replaced by the following:

“Bodily injury” or “property damage” expected or intended from the standpoint of the “insured”. 
This exclusion does not apply to expected or intended “bodily injury” or “property damage” 
resulting from actions taken to protect persons or property and arising out of the use of a covered 
“auto”.

BODILY INJURY TO VOLUNTEER EMERGENCY SERVICE PROVIDERS
d. Exclusion. B.4., Employee Indemnification And Employer's Liability, is amended by the 

addition of paragraphs c. and d., as follows:
c. Any volunteer, if you provide or are required to provide any benefits for such volunteer under 

any Workers' Compensation or disability benefits law or under any similar law.
d. The spouse, child, parent, brother or sister of that volunteer as a consequence of paragraph 

c. above.
BODILY INJURY TO FELLOW VOLUNTEERS OR EMPLOYEES
e. Exclusion B.5., Fellow Employee, is deleted.



 

AU1023 (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 3 of 3

3. The following revision is made to Section IV - Business Auto Conditions:
KNOWLEDGE OF ACCIDENT
The following paragraph is added to Paragraph A.2. Duties In The Event Of Accident, Claim, Suit 
Or Loss:

d. The failure of any agent, volunteer or “employee” of the “insured”, other than an “employee” 
authorized by you to give or receive notice of an “accident”, claim, “suit” or “loss”, to notify us 
of any “accident” of which he or she has knowledge, shall not invalidate insurance afforded 
by this policy.



 

COMMERCIAL AUTO
CA 00 01 10 13

CA 00 01 10 13 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 Page 1 of 12

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM
Various provisions in this policy restrict coverage. 
Read the entire policy carefully to determine rights, 
duties and what is and is not covered. 
Throughout this policy the words "you" and "your" 
refer to the Named Insured shown in the Declarations. 
The words "we", "us" and "our" refer to the company 
providing this insurance. 
Other words and phrases that appear in quotation 
marks have special meaning. Refer to Section V – 
Definitions.

SECTION I – COVERED AUTOS
Item Two of the Declarations shows the "autos" that 
are covered "autos" for each of your coverages. The 
following numerical symbols describe the "autos" that 
may be covered "autos". The symbols entered next to 
a coverage on the Declarations designate the only 
"autos" that are covered "autos".
A. Description Of Covered Auto Designation 

Symbols

Symbol Description Of Covered Auto Designation Symbols
1 Any "Auto"
2 Owned "Autos" 

Only
Only those "autos" you own (and for Covered Autos Liability Coverage any 
"trailers" you don't own while attached to power units you own). This includes 
those "autos" you acquire ownership of after the policy begins.

3 Owned Private 
Passenger 
"Autos" Only

Only the private passenger "autos" you own. This includes those private 
passenger "autos" you acquire ownership of after the policy begins.

4 Owned 
"Autos" Other 
Than Private 
Passenger 
"Autos" Only

Only those "autos" you own that are not of the private passenger type (and for 
Covered Autos Liability Coverage any "trailers" you don't own while attached to 
power units you own). This includes those "autos" not of the private passenger 
type you acquire ownership of after the policy begins.

5 Owned "Autos" 
Subject To 
No-fault

Only those "autos" you own that are required to have no-fault benefits in the state 
where they are licensed or principally garaged. This includes those "autos" you 
acquire ownership of after the policy begins provided they are required to have no-
fault benefits in the state where they are licensed or principally garaged.

6 Owned "Autos" 
Subject To A 
Compulsory 
Uninsured 
Motorists Law

Only those "autos" you own that because of the law in the state where they are 
licensed or principally garaged are required to have and cannot reject Uninsured 
Motorists Coverage. This includes those "autos" you acquire ownership of after the 
policy begins provided they are subject to the same state uninsured motorists 
requirement.

7 Specifically 
Described 
"Autos"

Only those "autos" described in Item Three of the Declarations for which a 
premium charge is shown (and for Covered Autos Liability Coverage any "trailers" 
you don't own while attached to any power unit described in Item Three).

8 Hired "Autos" 
Only

Only those "autos" you lease, hire, rent or borrow. This does not include any "auto" 
you lease, hire, rent or borrow from any of your "employees", partners (if you are a 
partnership), members (if you are a limited liability company) or members of their 
households.

9 Non-owned 
"Autos" Only

Only those "autos" you do not own, lease, hire, rent or borrow that are used in 
connection with your business. This includes "autos" owned by your "employees", 
partners (if you are a partnership), members (if you are a limited liability company) 
or members of their households but only while used in your business or your 
personal affairs.



 

Page 2 of 12 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 CA 00 01 10 13

19 Mobile 
Equipment 
Subject To 
Compulsory Or 
Financial 
Responsibility 
Or Other Motor 
Vehicle 
Insurance Law 
Only

Only those "autos" that are land vehicles and that would qualify under the definition 
of "mobile equipment" under this policy if they were not subject to a compulsory or 
financial responsibility law or other motor vehicle insurance law where they are 
licensed or principally garaged.

B. Owned Autos You Acquire After The Policy 
Begins
1. If Symbols 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 or 19 are entered 

next to a coverage in Item Two of the 
Declarations, then you have coverage for 
"autos" that you acquire of the type described 
for the remainder of the policy period.

2. But, if Symbol 7 is entered next to a coverage 
in Item Two of the Declarations, an "auto" you 
acquire will be a covered "auto" for that 
coverage only if:
a. We already cover all "autos" that you own 

for that coverage or it replaces an "auto" 
you previously owned that had that 
coverage; and

b. You tell us within 30 days after you acquire 
it that you want us to cover it for that 
coverage.

C. Certain Trailers, Mobile Equipment And 
Temporary Substitute Autos 
If Covered Autos Liability Coverage is provided by 
this Coverage Form, the following types of 
vehicles are also covered "autos" for Covered 
Autos Liability Coverage:
1. "Trailers" with a load capacity of 2,000 pounds 

or less designed primarily for travel on public 
roads. 

2. "Mobile equipment" while being carried or 
towed by a covered "auto".

3. Any "auto" you do not own while used with the 
permission of its owner as a temporary 
substitute for a covered "auto" you own that is 
out of service because of its:
a. Breakdown;
b. Repair;
c. Servicing;
d. "Loss"; or
e. Destruction.

SECTION II – COVERED AUTOS LIABILITY 
COVERAGE
A. Coverage

We will pay all sums an "insured" legally must pay 
as damages because of "bodily injury" or "property 
damage" to which this insurance applies, caused 
by an "accident" and resulting from the ownership, 
maintenance or use of a covered "auto".
We will also pay all sums an "insured" legally must 
pay as a "covered pollution cost or expense" to 
which this insurance applies, caused by an 
"accident" and resulting from the ownership, 
maintenance or use of covered "autos". However, 
we will only pay for the "covered pollution cost or 
expense" if there is either "bodily injury" or 
"property damage" to which this insurance applies 
that is caused by the same "accident".
We have the right and duty to defend any 
"insured" against a "suit" asking for such damages 
or a "covered pollution cost or expense". However, 
we have no duty to defend any "insured" against a 
"suit" seeking damages for "bodily injury" or 
"property damage" or a "covered pollution cost or 
expense" to which this insurance does not apply. 
We may investigate and settle any claim or "suit" 
as we consider appropriate. Our duty to defend or 
settle ends when the Covered Autos Liability 
Coverage Limit of Insurance has been exhausted 
by payment of judgments or settlements.
1. Who Is An Insured

The following are "insureds":
a. You for any covered "auto".
b. Anyone else while using with your 

permission a covered "auto" you own, hire 
or borrow except:

(1) The owner or anyone else from whom 
you hire or borrow a covered "auto".
This exception does not apply if the 
covered "auto" is a "trailer" connected to 
a covered "auto" you own.



 

CA 00 01 10 13 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 Page 3 of 12

(2) Your "employee" if the covered "auto" is 
owned by that "employee" or a member 
of his or her household. 

(3) Someone using a covered "auto" while 
he or she is working in a business of 
selling, servicing, repairing, parking or 
storing "autos" unless that business is 
yours. 

(4) Anyone other than your "employees", 
partners (if you are a partnership), 
members (if you are a limited liability 
company) or a lessee or borrower or 
any of their "employees", while moving 
property to or from a covered "auto".

(5) A partner (if you are a partnership) or a 
member (if you are a limited liability 
company) for a covered "auto" owned by 
him or her or a member of his or her 
household.

c. Anyone liable for the conduct of an 
"insured" described above but only to the 
extent of that liability.

2. Coverage Extensions
a. Supplementary Payments

We will pay for the "insured":
(1) All expenses we incur.
(2) Up to $2,000 for cost of bail bonds 

(including bonds for related traffic law 
violations) required because of an 
"accident" we cover. We do not have to 
furnish these bonds. 

(3) The cost of bonds to release 
attachments in any "suit" against the 
"insured" we defend, but only for bond 
amounts within our Limit of Insurance. 

(4) All reasonable expenses incurred by the 
"insured" at our request, including actual 
loss of earnings up to $250 a day 
because of time off from work. 

(5) All court costs taxed against the 
"insured" in any "suit" against the 
"insured" we defend. However, these 
payments do not include attorneys' fees 
or attorneys' expenses taxed against the 
"insured".

(6) All interest on the full amount of any 
judgment that accrues after entry of the 
judgment in any "suit" against the 
"insured" we defend, but our duty to pay 
interest ends when we have paid, 
offered to pay or deposited in court the 
part of the judgment that is within our 
Limit of Insurance. 

These payments will not reduce the Limit of 
Insurance.

b. Out-of-state Coverage Extensions
While a covered "auto" is away from the 
state where it is licensed, we will:

(1) Increase the Limit of Insurance for 
Covered Autos Liability Coverage to 
meet the limits specified by a 
compulsory or financial responsibility 
law of the jurisdiction where the covered 
"auto" is being used. This extension 
does not apply to the limit or limits 
specified by any law governing motor 
carriers of passengers or property.

(2) Provide the minimum amounts and 
types of other coverages, such as no-
fault, required of out-of-state vehicles by 
the jurisdiction where the covered "auto" 
is being used.

We will not pay anyone more than once for 
the same elements of loss because of 
these extensions.

B. Exclusions
This insurance does not apply to any of the 
following: 
1. Expected Or Intended Injury

"Bodily injury" or "property damage" expected 
or intended from the standpoint of the 
"insured".

2. Contractual
Liability assumed under any contract or 
agreement.
But this exclusion does not apply to liability for 
damages:
a. Assumed in a contract or agreement that is 

an "insured contract", provided the "bodily 
injury" or "property damage" occurs 
subsequent to the execution of the contract 
or agreement; or 

b. That the "insured" would have in the 
absence of the contract or agreement. 

3. Workers' Compensation
Any obligation for which the "insured" or the 
"insured's" insurer may be held liable under 
any workers' compensation, disability benefits 
or unemployment compensation law or any 
similar law.



 

Page 4 of 12 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 CA 00 01 10 13

4. Employee Indemnification And Employer's 
Liability 
"Bodily injury" to: 
a. An "employee" of the "insured" arising out 

of and in the course of: 
(1) Employment by the "insured"; or
(2) Performing the duties related to the 

conduct of the "insured's" business; or
b. The spouse, child, parent, brother or sister 

of that "employee" as a consequence of 
Paragraph a. above.

This exclusion applies:
(1) Whether the "insured" may be liable as 

an employer or in any other capacity; 
and 

(2) To any obligation to share damages with 
or repay someone else who must pay 
damages because of the injury. 

But this exclusion does not apply to "bodily 
injury" to domestic "employees" not entitled to 
workers' compensation benefits or to liability 
assumed by the "insured" under an "insured 
contract". For the purposes of the Coverage 
Form, a domestic "employee" is a person 
engaged in household or domestic work 
performed principally in connection with a 
residence premises.

5. Fellow Employee
"Bodily injury" to:
a. Any fellow "employee" of the "insured" 

arising out of and in the course of the fellow 
"employee's" employment or while 
performing duties related to the conduct of 
your business; or

b. The spouse, child, parent, brother or sister 
of that fellow "employee" as a consequence 
of Paragraph a. above.

6. Care, Custody Or Control
"Property damage" to or "covered pollution cost 
or expense" involving property owned or 
transported by the "insured" or in the 
"insured's" care, custody or control. But this 
exclusion does not apply to liability assumed 
under a sidetrack agreement. 

7. Handling Of Property
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" resulting 
from the handling of property: 
a. Before it is moved from the place where it is 

accepted by the "insured" for movement 
into or onto the covered "auto"; or 

b. After it is moved from the covered "auto" to 
the place where it is finally delivered by the 
"insured". 

8. Movement Of Property By Mechanical 
Device
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" resulting 
from the movement of property by a 
mechanical device (other than a hand truck) 
unless the device is attached to the covered 
"auto". 

9. Operations
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out 
of the operation of:
a. Any equipment listed in Paragraphs 6.b. 

and 6.c. of the definition of "mobile 
equipment"; or 

b. Machinery or equipment that is on, attached 
to or part of a land vehicle that would 
qualify under the definition of "mobile 
equipment" if it were not subject to a 
compulsory or financial responsibility law or 
other motor vehicle insurance law where it 
is licensed or principally garaged.

10. Completed Operations
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out 
of your work after that work has been 
completed or abandoned. 
In this exclusion, your work means: 
a. Work or operations performed by you or on 

your behalf; and 
b. Materials, parts or equipment furnished in 

connection with such work or operations. 
Your work includes warranties or 
representations made at any time with respect 
to the fitness, quality, durability or performance 
of any of the items included in Paragraph a. or 
b. above. 
Your work will be deemed completed at the 
earliest of the following times: 

(1) When all of the work called for in your 
contract has been completed; 

(2) When all of the work to be done at the 
site has been completed if your contract 
calls for work at more than one site; or 

(3) When that part of the work done at a job 
site has been put to its intended use by 
any person or organization other than 
another contractor or subcontractor 
working on the same project.



 

CA 00 01 10 13 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 Page 5 of 12

Work that may need service, maintenance, 
correction, repair or replacement, but which is 
otherwise complete, will be treated as 
completed. 

11. Pollution
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out 
of the actual, alleged or threatened discharge, 
dispersal, seepage, migration, release or 
escape of "pollutants": 
a. That are, or that are contained in any 

property that is: 
(1) Being transported or towed by, handled 

or handled for movement into, onto or 
from the covered "auto"; 

(2) Otherwise in the course of transit by or 
on behalf of the "insured"; or

(3) Being stored, disposed of, treated or 
processed in or upon the covered 
"auto"; 

b. Before the "pollutants" or any property in 
which the "pollutants" are contained are 
moved from the place where they are 
accepted by the "insured" for movement 
into or onto the covered "auto"; or 

c. After the "pollutants" or any property in 
which the "pollutants" are contained are 
moved from the covered "auto" to the place 
where they are finally delivered, disposed of 
or abandoned by the "insured". 

Paragraph a. above does not apply to fuels, 
lubricants, fluids, exhaust gases or other 
similar "pollutants" that are needed for or result 
from the normal electrical, hydraulic or 
mechanical functioning of the covered "auto" or 
its parts if: 

(1) The "pollutants" escape, seep, migrate 
or are discharged, dispersed or released 
directly from an "auto" part designed by 
its manufacturer to hold, store, receive 
or dispose of such "pollutants"; and 

(2) The "bodily injury", "property damage" or 
"covered pollution cost or expense" 
does not arise out of the operation of 
any equipment listed in Paragraphs 6.b. 
and 6.c. of the definition of "mobile 
equipment". 

Paragraphs b. and c. above of this exclusion 
do not apply to "accidents" that occur away 
from premises owned by or rented to an 
"insured" with respect to "pollutants" not in or 
upon a covered "auto" if: 

(a) The "pollutants" or any property in 
which the "pollutants" are contained 
are upset, overturned or damaged as 
a result of the maintenance or use of 
a covered "auto"; and 

(b) The discharge, dispersal, seepage, 
migration, release or escape of the 
"pollutants" is caused directly by 
such upset, overturn or damage. 

12. War
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising 
directly or indirectly out of:
a. War, including undeclared or civil war;
b. Warlike action by a military force, including 

action in hindering or defending against an 
actual or expected attack, by any 
government, sovereign or other authority 
using military personnel or other agents; or

c. Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped 
power or action taken by governmental 
authority in hindering or defending against 
any of these.

13. Racing
Covered "autos" while used in any professional 
or organized racing or demolition contest or 
stunting activity, or while practicing for such 
contest or activity. This insurance also does 
not apply while that covered "auto" is being 
prepared for such a contest or activity. 

C. Limit Of Insurance
Regardless of the number of covered "autos", 
"insureds", premiums paid, claims made or 
vehicles involved in the "accident", the most we 
will pay for the total of all damages and "covered 
pollution cost or expense" combined resulting from 
any one "accident" is the Limit Of Insurance for 
Covered Autos Liability Coverage shown in the 
Declarations. 



 

Page 6 of 12 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 CA 00 01 10 13

All "bodily injury", "property damage" and "covered 
pollution cost or expense" resulting from 
continuous or repeated exposure to substantially 
the same conditions will be considered as 
resulting from one "accident". 
No one will be entitled to receive duplicate 
payments for the same elements of "loss" under 
this Coverage Form and any Medical Payments 
Coverage endorsement, Uninsured Motorists 
Coverage endorsement or Underinsured Motorists 
Coverage endorsement attached to this Coverage 
Part. 

SECTION III – PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE
A. Coverage

1. We will pay for "loss" to a covered "auto" or its 
equipment under: 
a. Comprehensive Coverage

From any cause except: 
(1) The covered "auto's" collision with 

another object; or 
(2) The covered "auto's" overturn. 

b. Specified Causes Of Loss Coverage
Caused by:

(1) Fire, lightning or explosion;
(2) Theft;
(3) Windstorm, hail or earthquake;
(4) Flood;
(5) Mischief or vandalism; or
(6) The sinking, burning, collision or 

derailment of any conveyance 
transporting the covered "auto".

c. Collision Coverage
Caused by:

(1) The covered "auto's" collision with 
another object; or 

(2) The covered "auto's" overturn. 
2. Towing

We will pay up to the limit shown in the 
Declarations for towing and labor costs 
incurred each time a covered "auto" of the 
private passenger type is disabled. However, 
the labor must be performed at the place of 
disablement. 

3. Glass Breakage – Hitting A Bird Or Animal – 
Falling Objects Or Missiles
If you carry Comprehensive Coverage for the 
damaged covered "auto", we will pay for the 
following under Comprehensive Coverage: 
a. Glass breakage; 
b. "Loss" caused by hitting a bird or animal; 

and 
c. "Loss" caused by falling objects or missiles. 
However, you have the option of having glass 
breakage caused by a covered "auto's" 
collision or overturn considered a "loss" under 
Collision Coverage. 

4. Coverage Extensions
a. Transportation Expenses

We will pay up to $20 per day, to a 
maximum of $600, for temporary 
transportation expense incurred by you 
because of the total theft of a covered 
"auto" of the private passenger type. We 
will pay only for those covered "autos" for 
which you carry either Comprehensive or 
Specified Causes Of Loss Coverage. We 
will pay for temporary transportation 
expenses incurred during the period 
beginning 48 hours after the theft and 
ending, regardless of the policy's expiration, 
when the covered "auto" is returned to use 
or we pay for its "loss". 

b. Loss Of Use Expenses
For Hired Auto Physical Damage, we will 
pay expenses for which an "insured" 
becomes legally responsible to pay for loss 
of use of a vehicle rented or hired without a 
driver under a written rental contract or 
agreement. We will pay for loss of use 
expenses if caused by:

(1) Other than collision only if the 
Declarations indicates that 
Comprehensive Coverage is provided 
for any covered "auto";

(2) Specified Causes Of Loss only if the 
Declarations indicates that Specified 
Causes Of Loss Coverage is provided 
for any covered "auto"; or



 

CA 00 01 10 13 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 Page 7 of 12

(3) Collision only if the Declarations 
indicates that Collision Coverage is 
provided for any covered "auto".

However, the most we will pay for any 
expenses for loss of use is $20 per day, to 
a maximum of $600.

B. Exclusions
1. We will not pay for "loss" caused by or resulting 

from any of the following. Such "loss" is 
excluded regardless of any other cause or 
event that contributes concurrently or in any 
sequence to the "loss".
a. Nuclear Hazard

(1) The explosion of any weapon employing 
atomic fission or fusion; or 

(2) Nuclear reaction or radiation, or 
radioactive contamination, however 
caused.

b. War Or Military Action
(1) War, including undeclared or civil war; 
(2) Warlike action by a military force, 

including action in hindering or 
defending against an actual or expected 
attack, by any government, sovereign or 
other authority using military personnel 
or other agents; or 

(3) Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, 
usurped power or action taken by 
governmental authority in hindering or 
defending against any of these. 

2. We will not pay for "loss" to any covered "auto" 
while used in any professional or organized 
racing or demolition contest or stunting activity, 
or while practicing for such contest or activity. 
We will also not pay for "loss" to any covered 
"auto" while that covered "auto" is being 
prepared for such a contest or activity. 

3. We will not pay for "loss" due and confined to: 
a. Wear and tear, freezing, mechanical or 

electrical breakdown. 
b. Blowouts, punctures or other road damage 

to tires. 
This exclusion does not apply to such "loss" 
resulting from the total theft of a covered 
"auto".

4. We will not pay for "loss" to any of the 
following: 
a. Tapes, records, discs or other similar audio, 

visual or data electronic devices designed 
for use with audio, visual or data electronic 
equipment. 

b. Any device designed or used to detect 
speed-measuring equipment, such as radar 
or laser detectors, and any jamming 
apparatus intended to elude or disrupt 
speed-measuring equipment.

c. Any electronic equipment, without regard to 
whether this equipment is permanently 
installed, that reproduces, receives or 
transmits audio, visual or data signals. 

d. Any accessories used with the electronic 
equipment described in Paragraph c. 
above.

5. Exclusions 4.c. and 4.d. do not apply to 
equipment designed to be operated solely by 
use of the power from the "auto's" electrical 
system that, at the time of "loss", is: 
a. Permanently installed in or upon the 

covered "auto";
b. Removable from a housing unit which is 

permanently installed in or upon the 
covered "auto"; 

c. An integral part of the same unit housing 
any electronic equipment described in 
Paragraphs a. and b. above; or

d. Necessary for the normal operation of the 
covered "auto" or the monitoring of the 
covered "auto's" operating system.

6. We will not pay for "loss" to a covered "auto" 
due to "diminution in value".

C. Limits Of Insurance
1. The most we will pay for:

a. "Loss" to any one covered "auto" is the 
lesser of: 

(1) The actual cash value of the damaged 
or stolen property as of the time of the 
"loss"; or 

(2) The cost of repairing or replacing the 
damaged or stolen property with other 
property of like kind and quality. 

b. All electronic equipment that reproduces, 
receives or transmits audio, visual or data 
signals in any one "loss" is $1,000, if, at the 
time of "loss", such electronic equipment is:

(1) Permanently installed in or upon the 
covered "auto" in a housing, opening or 
other location that is not normally used 
by the "auto" manufacturer for the 
installation of such equipment;



 

Page 8 of 12 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 CA 00 01 10 13

(2) Removable from a permanently installed 
housing unit as described in Paragraph 
b.(1) above; or

(3) An integral part of such equipment as 
described in Paragraphs b.(1) and b.(2) 
above.

2. An adjustment for depreciation and physical 
condition will be made in determining actual 
cash value in the event of a total "loss".

3. If a repair or replacement results in better than 
like kind or quality, we will not pay for the 
amount of the betterment.

D. Deductible
For each covered "auto", our obligation to pay for, 
repair, return or replace damaged or stolen 
property will be reduced by the applicable 
deductible shown in the Declarations. Any 
Comprehensive Coverage deductible shown in the 
Declarations does not apply to "loss" caused by 
fire or lightning.

SECTION IV – BUSINESS AUTO CONDITIONS
The following conditions apply in addition to the 
Common Policy Conditions: 
A. Loss Conditions 

1. Appraisal For Physical Damage Loss 
If you and we disagree on the amount of "loss", 
either may demand an appraisal of the "loss". 
In this event, each party will select a competent 
appraiser. The two appraisers will select a 
competent and impartial umpire. The 
appraisers will state separately the actual cash 
value and amount of "loss". If they fail to agree, 
they will submit their differences to the umpire. 
A decision agreed to by any two will be 
binding. Each party will: 
a. Pay its chosen appraiser; and 
b. Bear the other expenses of the appraisal 

and umpire equally. 
If we submit to an appraisal, we will still retain 
our right to deny the claim. 

2. Duties In The Event Of Accident, Claim, Suit 
Or Loss 
We have no duty to provide coverage under 
this policy unless there has been full 
compliance with the following duties:
a. In the event of "accident", claim, "suit" or 

"loss", you must give us or our authorized 
representative prompt notice of the 
"accident" or "loss". Include: 

(1) How, when and where the "accident" or 
"loss" occurred; 

(2) The "insured's" name and address; and 
(3) To the extent possible, the names and 

addresses of any injured persons and 
witnesses. 

b. Additionally, you and any other involved 
"insured" must: 

(1) Assume no obligation, make no 
payment or incur no expense without 
our consent, except at the "insured's" 
own cost. 

(2) Immediately send us copies of any 
request, demand, order, notice, 
summons or legal paper received 
concerning the claim or "suit". 

(3) Cooperate with us in the investigation or 
settlement of the claim or defense 
against the "suit".

(4) Authorize us to obtain medical records 
or other pertinent information.

(5) Submit to examination, at our expense, 
by physicians of our choice, as often as 
we reasonably require. 

c. If there is "loss" to a covered "auto" or its 
equipment, you must also do the following: 

(1) Promptly notify the police if the covered 
"auto" or any of its equipment is stolen. 

(2) Take all reasonable steps to protect the 
covered "auto" from further damage. 
Also keep a record of your expenses for 
consideration in the settlement of the 
claim. 

(3) Permit us to inspect the covered "auto" 
and records proving the "loss" before its 
repair or disposition. 

(4) Agree to examinations under oath at our 
request and give us a signed statement 
of your answers. 

3. Legal Action Against Us
No one may bring a legal action against us 
under this Coverage Form until: 
a. There has been full compliance with all the 

terms of this Coverage Form; and 
b. Under Covered Autos Liability Coverage, 

we agree in writing that the "insured" has an 
obligation to pay or until the amount of that 
obligation has finally been determined by 
judgment after trial. No one has the right 
under this policy to bring us into an action 
to determine the "insured's" liability. 



 

CA 00 01 10 13 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 Page 9 of 12

4. Loss Payment – Physical Damage 
Coverages
At our option, we may: 
a. Pay for, repair or replace damaged or 

stolen property; 
b. Return the stolen property, at our expense. 

We will pay for any damage that results to 
the "auto" from the theft; or 

c. Take all or any part of the damaged or 
stolen property at an agreed or appraised 
value. 

If we pay for the "loss", our payment will 
include the applicable sales tax for the 
damaged or stolen property.

5. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against 
Others To Us 
If any person or organization to or for whom we 
make payment under this Coverage Form has 
rights to recover damages from another, those 
rights are transferred to us. That person or 
organization must do everything necessary to 
secure our rights and must do nothing after 
"accident" or "loss" to impair them.

B. General Conditions
1. Bankruptcy

Bankruptcy or insolvency of the "insured" or the 
"insured's" estate will not relieve us of any 
obligations under this Coverage Form. 

2. Concealment, Misrepresentation Or Fraud
This Coverage Form is void in any case of 
fraud by you at any time as it relates to this 
Coverage Form. It is also void if you or any 
other "insured", at any time, intentionally 
conceals or misrepresents a material fact 
concerning: 
a. This Coverage Form; 
b. The covered "auto"; 
c. Your interest in the covered "auto"; or 
d. A claim under this Coverage Form. 

3. Liberalization
If we revise this Coverage Form to provide 
more coverage without additional premium 
charge, your policy will automatically provide 
the additional coverage as of the day the 
revision is effective in your state. 

4. No Benefit To Bailee – Physical Damage 
Coverages
We will not recognize any assignment or grant 
any coverage for the benefit of any person or 
organization holding, storing or transporting 
property for a fee regardless of any other 
provision of this Coverage Form. 

5. Other Insurance
a. For any covered "auto" you own, this 

Coverage Form provides primary 
insurance. For any covered "auto" you don't 
own, the insurance provided by this 
Coverage Form is excess over any other 
collectible insurance. However, while a 
covered "auto" which is a "trailer" is 
connected to another vehicle, the Covered 
Autos Liability Coverage this Coverage 
Form provides for the "trailer" is: 

(1) Excess while it is connected to a motor 
vehicle you do not own; or 

(2) Primary while it is connected to a 
covered "auto" you own. 

b. For Hired Auto Physical Damage Coverage, 
any covered "auto" you lease, hire, rent or 
borrow is deemed to be a covered "auto" 
you own. However, any "auto" that is 
leased, hired, rented or borrowed with a 
driver is not a covered "auto".

c. Regardless of the provisions of Paragraph 
a. above, this Coverage Form's Covered 
Autos Liability Coverage is primary for any 
liability assumed under an "insured 
contract".

d. When this Coverage Form and any other 
Coverage Form or policy covers on the 
same basis, either excess or primary, we 
will pay only our share. Our share is the 
proportion that the Limit of Insurance of our 
Coverage Form bears to the total of the 
limits of all the Coverage Forms and 
policies covering on the same basis. 

6. Premium Audit
a. The estimated premium for this Coverage 

Form is based on the exposures you told us 
you would have when this policy began. We 
will compute the final premium due when 
we determine your actual exposures. The 
estimated total premium will be credited 
against the final premium due and the first 
Named Insured will be billed for the 
balance, if any. The due date for the final 
premium or retrospective premium is the 
date shown as the due date on the bill. If 
the estimated total premium exceeds the 
final premium due, the first Named Insured 
will get a refund. 

b. If this policy is issued for more than one 
year, the premium for this Coverage Form 
will be computed annually based on our 
rates or premiums in effect at the beginning 
of each year of the policy. 



 

Page 10 of 12 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 CA 00 01 10 13

7. Policy Period, Coverage Territory
Under this Coverage Form, we cover 
"accidents" and "losses" occurring: 
a. During the policy period shown in the 

Declarations; and 
b. Within the coverage territory. 
The coverage territory is: 

(1) The United States of America; 
(2) The territories and possessions of the 

United States of America; 
(3) Puerto Rico; 
(4) Canada; and
(5) Anywhere in the world if a covered 

"auto" of the private passenger type is 
leased, hired, rented or borrowed 
without a driver for a period of 30 days 
or less, 

provided that the "insured's" responsibility to 
pay damages is determined in a "suit" on the 
merits, in the United States of America, the 
territories and possessions of the United States 
of America, Puerto Rico or Canada, or in a 
settlement we agree to.
We also cover "loss" to, or "accidents" 
involving, a covered "auto" while being 
transported between any of these places.

8. Two Or More Coverage Forms Or Policies 
Issued By Us
If this Coverage Form and any other Coverage 
Form or policy issued to you by us or any 
company affiliated with us applies to the same 
"accident", the aggregate maximum Limit of 
Insurance under all the Coverage Forms or 
policies shall not exceed the highest applicable 
Limit of Insurance under any one Coverage 
Form or policy. This condition does not apply to 
any Coverage Form or policy issued by us or 
an affiliated company specifically to apply as 
excess insurance over this Coverage Form.

SECTION V – DEFINITIONS
A. "Accident" includes continuous or repeated 

exposure to the same conditions resulting in 
"bodily injury" or "property damage". 

B. "Auto" means:
1. A land motor vehicle, "trailer" or semitrailer 

designed for travel on public roads; or 

2. Any other land vehicle that is subject to a 
compulsory or financial responsibility law or 
other motor vehicle insurance law where it is 
licensed or principally garaged.

However, "auto" does not include "mobile 
equipment".

C. "Bodily injury" means bodily injury, sickness or 
disease sustained by a person, including death 
resulting from any of these. 

D. "Covered pollution cost or expense" means any 
cost or expense arising out of: 
1. Any request, demand, order or statutory or 

regulatory requirement that any "insured" or 
others test for, monitor, clean up, remove, 
contain, treat, detoxify or neutralize, or in any 
way respond to, or assess the effects of, 
"pollutants"; or 

2. Any claim or "suit" by or on behalf of a 
governmental authority for damages because 
of testing for, monitoring, cleaning up, 
removing, containing, treating, detoxifying or 
neutralizing, or in any way responding to, or 
assessing the effects of, "pollutants".

"Covered pollution cost or expense" does not 
include any cost or expense arising out of the 
actual, alleged or threatened discharge, dispersal, 
seepage, migration, release or escape of 
"pollutants": 

a. That are, or that are contained in any 
property that is: 

(1) Being transported or towed by, handled 
or handled for movement into, onto or 
from the covered "auto"; 

(2) Otherwise in the course of transit by or 
on behalf of the "insured"; or

(3) Being stored, disposed of, treated or 
processed in or upon the covered 
"auto";

b. Before the "pollutants" or any property in 
which the "pollutants" are contained are 
moved from the place where they are 
accepted by the "insured" for movement 
into or onto the covered "auto"; or 

c. After the "pollutants" or any property in 
which the "pollutants" are contained are 
moved from the covered "auto" to the place 
where they are finally delivered, disposed of 
or abandoned by the "insured". 



 

CA 00 01 10 13 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 Page 11 of 12

Paragraph a. above does not apply to fuels, 
lubricants, fluids, exhaust gases or other 
similar "pollutants" that are needed for or result 
from the normal electrical, hydraulic or 
mechanical functioning of the covered "auto" or 
its parts, if:

(1) The "pollutants" escape, seep, migrate 
or are discharged, dispersed or released 
directly from an "auto" part designed by 
its manufacturer to hold, store, receive 
or dispose of such "pollutants"; and

(2) The "bodily injury", "property damage" or 
"covered pollution cost or expense" 
does not arise out of the operation of 
any equipment listed in Paragraph 6.b. 
or 6.c. of the definition of "mobile 
equipment".

Paragraphs b. and c. above do not apply to 
"accidents" that occur away from premises 
owned by or rented to an "insured" with respect 
to "pollutants" not in or upon a covered "auto" 
if: 

(a) The "pollutants" or any property in 
which the "pollutants" are contained 
are upset, overturned or damaged as 
a result of the maintenance or use of 
a covered "auto"; and 

(b) The discharge, dispersal, seepage, 
migration, release or escape of the 
"pollutants" is caused directly by 
such upset, overturn or damage. 

E. "Diminution in value" means the actual or 
perceived loss in market value or resale value 
which results from a direct and accidental "loss".

F. "Employee" includes a "leased worker". 
"Employee" does not include a "temporary 
worker".

G. "Insured" means any person or organization 
qualifying as an insured in the Who Is An Insured 
provision of the applicable coverage. Except with 
respect to the Limit of Insurance, the coverage 
afforded applies separately to each insured who is 
seeking coverage or against whom a claim or 
"suit" is brought. 

H. "Insured contract" means: 
1. A lease of premises; 
2. A sidetrack agreement; 
3. Any easement or license agreement, except in 

connection with construction or demolition 
operations on or within 50 feet of a railroad; 

4. An obligation, as required by ordinance, to 
indemnify a municipality, except in connection 
with work for a municipality; 

5. That part of any other contract or agreement 
pertaining to your business (including an 
indemnification of a municipality in connection 
with work performed for a municipality) under 
which you assume the tort liability of another to 
pay for "bodily injury" or "property damage" to a 
third party or organization. Tort liability means 
a liability that would be imposed by law in the 
absence of any contract or agreement; or

6. That part of any contract or agreement entered 
into, as part of your business, pertaining to the 
rental or lease, by you or any of your 
"employees", of any "auto". However, such 
contract or agreement shall not be considered 
an "insured contract" to the extent that it 
obligates you or any of your "employees" to 
pay for "property damage" to any "auto" rented 
or leased by you or any of your "employees".

An "insured contract" does not include that part of 
any contract or agreement: 

a. That indemnifies a railroad for "bodily injury" 
or "property damage" arising out of 
construction or demolition operations, within 
50 feet of any railroad property and 
affecting any railroad bridge or trestle, 
tracks, roadbeds, tunnel, underpass or 
crossing; 

b. That pertains to the loan, lease or rental of 
an "auto" to you or any of your 
"employees", if the "auto" is loaned, leased 
or rented with a driver; or 

c. That holds a person or organization 
engaged in the business of transporting 
property by "auto" for hire harmless for your 
use of a covered "auto" over a route or 
territory that person or organization is 
authorized to serve by public authority. 

I. "Leased worker" means a person leased to you by 
a labor leasing firm under an agreement between 
you and the labor leasing firm to perform duties 
related to the conduct of your business. "Leased 
worker" does not include a "temporary worker".

J. "Loss" means direct and accidental loss or 
damage. 

K. "Mobile equipment" means any of the following 
types of land vehicles, including any attached 
machinery or equipment: 
1. Bulldozers, farm machinery, forklifts and other 

vehicles designed for use principally off public 
roads; 

2. Vehicles maintained for use solely on or next to 
premises you own or rent; 

3. Vehicles that travel on crawler treads; 



 

Page 12 of 12 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 CA 00 01 10 13

4. Vehicles, whether self-propelled or not, 
maintained primarily to provide mobility to 
permanently mounted: 
a. Power cranes, shovels, loaders, diggers or 

drills; or 
b. Road construction or resurfacing equipment 

such as graders, scrapers or rollers; 
5. Vehicles not described in Paragraph 1., 2., 3. 

or 4. above that are not self-propelled and are 
maintained primarily to provide mobility to 
permanently attached equipment of the 
following types: 
a. Air compressors, pumps and generators, 

including spraying, welding, building 
cleaning, geophysical exploration, lighting 
and well-servicing equipment; or 

b. Cherry pickers and similar devices used to 
raise or lower workers; or

6. Vehicles not described in Paragraph 1., 2., 3. 
or 4. above maintained primarily for purposes 
other than the transportation of persons or 
cargo. However, self-propelled vehicles with 
the following types of permanently attached 
equipment are not "mobile equipment" but will 
be considered "autos": 
a. Equipment designed primarily for: 

(1) Snow removal; 
(2) Road maintenance, but not construction 

or resurfacing; or 
(3) Street cleaning; 

b. Cherry pickers and similar devices mounted 
on automobile or truck chassis and used to 
raise or lower workers; and 

c. Air compressors, pumps and generators, 
including spraying, welding, building 
cleaning, geophysical exploration, lighting 
or well-servicing equipment. 

However, "mobile equipment" does not include 
land vehicles that are subject to a compulsory or 
financial responsibility law or other motor vehicle 
insurance law where it is licensed or principally 
garaged. Land vehicles subject to a compulsory or 
financial responsibility law or other motor vehicle 
insurance law are considered "autos".

L. "Pollutants" means any solid, liquid, gaseous or 
thermal irritant or contaminant, including smoke, 
vapor, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis, chemicals and 
waste. Waste includes materials to be recycled, 
reconditioned or reclaimed. 

M. "Property damage" means damage to or loss of 
use of tangible property. 

N. "Suit" means a civil proceeding in which: 
1. Damages because of "bodily injury" or 

"property damage"; or 
2. A "covered pollution cost or expense"; 
to which this insurance applies, are alleged. 
"Suit" includes: 

a. An arbitration proceeding in which such 
damages or "covered pollution costs or 
expenses" are claimed and to which the 
"insured" must submit or does submit with 
our consent; or 

b. Any other alternative dispute resolution 
proceeding in which such damages or 
"covered pollution costs or expenses" are 
claimed and to which the insured submits 
with our consent. 

O. "Temporary worker" means a person who is 
furnished to you to substitute for a permanent 
"employee" on leave or to meet seasonal or short-
term workload conditions.

P. "Trailer" includes semitrailer.



POLICY NUMBER:   COMMERCIAL AUTO 
 CA 20 01 10 13 

 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
 

CA 20 01 10 13  Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011  Page 1 of 2  
 

LESSOR --- ADDITIONAL INSURED AND LOSS PAYEE 
 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 
AUTO DEALERS COVERAGE FORM 
BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM 
MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM 
 

 
With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless 
modified by the endorsement.  

This endorsement changes the policy effective on the inception date of the policy unless another date is indicated 
below. 

 

Named Insured:  

Endorsement Effective Date:  

 
SCHEDULE 

 

Insurance Company: 

Policy Number: Effective Date:   

Expiration Date: 

Named Insured: 

Address:  
   

Additional Insured (Lessor): 

Address: 

 
 
 
 
 

Designation Or Description 
Of ‘‘Leased Autos’’: 

 
  
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000

07-01-2023

07-01-2024

National Union Fire Ins. Co. of Pittsburgh, Pa.   

1694 COUNTY ROAD              
MINDEN                      NV 89423-0000

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION                         

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000

DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND NATURAL        

NV 60 2019 INTERNATIONAL BRUSH VEH                

RESOURCES AND THE DIVISION                    

1HTWETAR2KH077941                                 

OF FORESTRY                                   
2478 FAIRVIEW DRIVE                           
CARSON CITY, NV 89701                         

 

                                                  



Page 2 of 2  Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011  CA 20 01 10 13  

 

Coverages Limit Of Insurance 

Covered Autos Liability Each ‘‘Accident’’ 

Comprehensive 

Actual Cash Value Or Cost Of Repair Whichever Is Less, Minus 

Deductible For Each Covered ‘‘Leased Auto’’ 

 

Collision 

Actual Cash Value Or Cost Of Repair Whichever Is Less, Minus 

Deductible For Each Covered ‘‘Leased Auto’’ 

 

Specified 
Causes Of Loss 

Actual Cash Value Or Cost Of Repair Whichever Is Less, Minus 

Deductible For Each Covered ‘‘Leased Auto’’ 

 

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations. 

 

 

A. Coverage 

 1. Any ‘‘leased auto’’ designated or described in 
the Schedule will be considered a covered 
‘‘auto’’ you own and not a covered ‘‘auto’’ you 
hire or borrow. 

 2. For a ‘‘leased auto’’ designated or described in 
the Schedule, the Who Is An Insured provision 
under Covered Autos Liability Coverage is 
changed to include as an ‘‘insured’’ the lessor 
named in the Schedule. However, the lessor is 
an ‘‘insured’’ only for ‘‘bodily injury’’ or 
‘‘property damage’’ resulting from the acts or 
omissions by: 

 a. You; 

 b. Any of your ‘‘employees’’ or agents; or 

 c. Any person, except the lessor or any 
‘‘employee’’ or agent of the lessor, operating 
a ‘‘leased auto’’ with the permission of any 
of the above. 

 3. The coverages provided under this 
endorsement apply to any ‘‘leased auto’’ 
described in the Schedule until the expiration 
date shown in the Schedule, or when the 
lessor or his or her agent takes possession of 
the ‘‘leased auto’’, whichever occurs first.  

B. Loss Payable Clause  

 1. We will pay, as interest may appear, you and 
the lessor named in this endorsement for ‘‘loss’’ 
to a ‘‘leased auto’’.  

 2. The insurance covers the interest of the lessor 
unless the ‘‘loss’’ results from fraudulent acts or 
omissions on your part.  

 3. If we make any payment to the lessor, we will 
obtain his or her rights against any other party.  

C. Cancellation  

 1. If we cancel the policy, we will mail notice to the 
lessor in accordance with the Cancellation 
Common Policy Condition.  

 2. If you cancel the policy, we will mail notice to 
the lessor.  

 3. Cancellation ends this agreement.  

D. The lessor is not liable for payment of your 
premiums.  

E. Additional Definition  

As used in this endorsement:  

‘‘Leased auto’’ means an ‘‘auto’’ leased or rented to 
you, including any substitute, replacement or extra 
‘‘auto’’ needed to meet seasonal or other needs, 
under a leasing or rental agreement that requires 
you to provide direct primary insurance for the 
lessor. 

            

            

            

            



POLICY NUMBER:   COMMERCIAL AUTO 
 CA 20 01 10 13 

 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
 

CA 20 01 10 13  Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011  Page 1 of 2  
 

LESSOR --- ADDITIONAL INSURED AND LOSS PAYEE 
 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 
AUTO DEALERS COVERAGE FORM 
BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM 
MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM 
 

 
With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless 
modified by the endorsement.  

This endorsement changes the policy effective on the inception date of the policy unless another date is indicated 
below. 

 

Named Insured:  

Endorsement Effective Date:  

 
SCHEDULE 

 

Insurance Company: 

Policy Number: Effective Date:   

Expiration Date: 

Named Insured: 

Address:  
   

Additional Insured (Lessor): 

Address: 

 
 
 
 
 

Designation Or Description 
Of ‘‘Leased Autos’’: 

 
  
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000

07-01-2023

07-01-2024

National Union Fire Ins. Co. of Pittsburgh, Pa.   

1694 COUNTY ROAD              
MINDEN                      NV 89423-0000

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION                         

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000

FLEX FLEET RENTAL, LLC, FLEX FLEET RENTAL     

NV 78 2022 CHEVY PICK UP PRIVATE PASSENGER        

HOLDINGS, LLC                                 

2GC1YNEY9N1203246                                 

2855 E. COTTONWOOD PARKWAY, SUITE 100         
SALT LAKE CITY, UT 84121                      

 

                                                  

                                              



Page 2 of 2  Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011  CA 20 01 10 13  

 

Coverages Limit Of Insurance 

Covered Autos Liability Each ‘‘Accident’’ 

Comprehensive 

Actual Cash Value Or Cost Of Repair Whichever Is Less, Minus 

Deductible For Each Covered ‘‘Leased Auto’’ 

 

Collision 

Actual Cash Value Or Cost Of Repair Whichever Is Less, Minus 

Deductible For Each Covered ‘‘Leased Auto’’ 

 

Specified 
Causes Of Loss 

Actual Cash Value Or Cost Of Repair Whichever Is Less, Minus 

Deductible For Each Covered ‘‘Leased Auto’’ 

 

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations. 

 

 

A. Coverage 

 1. Any ‘‘leased auto’’ designated or described in 
the Schedule will be considered a covered 
‘‘auto’’ you own and not a covered ‘‘auto’’ you 
hire or borrow. 

 2. For a ‘‘leased auto’’ designated or described in 
the Schedule, the Who Is An Insured provision 
under Covered Autos Liability Coverage is 
changed to include as an ‘‘insured’’ the lessor 
named in the Schedule. However, the lessor is 
an ‘‘insured’’ only for ‘‘bodily injury’’ or 
‘‘property damage’’ resulting from the acts or 
omissions by: 

 a. You; 

 b. Any of your ‘‘employees’’ or agents; or 

 c. Any person, except the lessor or any 
‘‘employee’’ or agent of the lessor, operating 
a ‘‘leased auto’’ with the permission of any 
of the above. 

 3. The coverages provided under this 
endorsement apply to any ‘‘leased auto’’ 
described in the Schedule until the expiration 
date shown in the Schedule, or when the 
lessor or his or her agent takes possession of 
the ‘‘leased auto’’, whichever occurs first.  

B. Loss Payable Clause  

 1. We will pay, as interest may appear, you and 
the lessor named in this endorsement for ‘‘loss’’ 
to a ‘‘leased auto’’.  

 2. The insurance covers the interest of the lessor 
unless the ‘‘loss’’ results from fraudulent acts or 
omissions on your part.  

 3. If we make any payment to the lessor, we will 
obtain his or her rights against any other party.  

C. Cancellation  

 1. If we cancel the policy, we will mail notice to the 
lessor in accordance with the Cancellation 
Common Policy Condition.  

 2. If you cancel the policy, we will mail notice to 
the lessor.  

 3. Cancellation ends this agreement.  

D. The lessor is not liable for payment of your 
premiums.  

E. Additional Definition  

As used in this endorsement:  

‘‘Leased auto’’ means an ‘‘auto’’ leased or rented to 
you, including any substitute, replacement or extra 
‘‘auto’’ needed to meet seasonal or other needs, 
under a leasing or rental agreement that requires 
you to provide direct primary insurance for the 
lessor. 

            

            

            

            



POLICY NUMBER:   COMMERCIAL AUTO 
 CA 20 01 10 13 

 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
 

CA 20 01 10 13  Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011  Page 1 of 2  
 

LESSOR --- ADDITIONAL INSURED AND LOSS PAYEE 
 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 
AUTO DEALERS COVERAGE FORM 
BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM 
MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM 
 

 
With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless 
modified by the endorsement.  

This endorsement changes the policy effective on the inception date of the policy unless another date is indicated 
below. 

 

Named Insured:  

Endorsement Effective Date:  

 
SCHEDULE 

 

Insurance Company: 

Policy Number: Effective Date:   

Expiration Date: 

Named Insured: 

Address:  
   

Additional Insured (Lessor): 

Address: 

 
 
 
 
 

Designation Or Description 
Of ‘‘Leased Autos’’: 

 
  
 

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000

07-01-2023

07-01-2024

National Union Fire Ins. Co. of Pittsburgh, Pa.   

1694 COUNTY ROAD              
MINDEN                      NV 89423-0000

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION                         

VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000

FLEX FLEET RENTAL, LLC, FLEX FLEET RENTAL     

NV 79 2022 CHEVY PICK UP PRIVATE PASSENGER        

HOLDINGS, LLC                                 

2GC1YNEY5N1202935                                 

2855 E. COTTONWOOD PARKWAY, SUITE 100         
SALT LAKE CITY, UT 84121                      

 

                                                  

                                              



Page 2 of 2  Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011  CA 20 01 10 13  

 

Coverages Limit Of Insurance 

Covered Autos Liability Each ‘‘Accident’’ 

Comprehensive 

Actual Cash Value Or Cost Of Repair Whichever Is Less, Minus 

Deductible For Each Covered ‘‘Leased Auto’’ 

 

Collision 

Actual Cash Value Or Cost Of Repair Whichever Is Less, Minus 

Deductible For Each Covered ‘‘Leased Auto’’ 

 

Specified 
Causes Of Loss 

Actual Cash Value Or Cost Of Repair Whichever Is Less, Minus 

Deductible For Each Covered ‘‘Leased Auto’’ 

 

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations. 

 

 

A. Coverage 

 1. Any ‘‘leased auto’’ designated or described in 
the Schedule will be considered a covered 
‘‘auto’’ you own and not a covered ‘‘auto’’ you 
hire or borrow. 

 2. For a ‘‘leased auto’’ designated or described in 
the Schedule, the Who Is An Insured provision 
under Covered Autos Liability Coverage is 
changed to include as an ‘‘insured’’ the lessor 
named in the Schedule. However, the lessor is 
an ‘‘insured’’ only for ‘‘bodily injury’’ or 
‘‘property damage’’ resulting from the acts or 
omissions by: 

 a. You; 

 b. Any of your ‘‘employees’’ or agents; or 

 c. Any person, except the lessor or any 
‘‘employee’’ or agent of the lessor, operating 
a ‘‘leased auto’’ with the permission of any 
of the above. 

 3. The coverages provided under this 
endorsement apply to any ‘‘leased auto’’ 
described in the Schedule until the expiration 
date shown in the Schedule, or when the 
lessor or his or her agent takes possession of 
the ‘‘leased auto’’, whichever occurs first.  

B. Loss Payable Clause  

 1. We will pay, as interest may appear, you and 
the lessor named in this endorsement for ‘‘loss’’ 
to a ‘‘leased auto’’.  

 2. The insurance covers the interest of the lessor 
unless the ‘‘loss’’ results from fraudulent acts or 
omissions on your part.  

 3. If we make any payment to the lessor, we will 
obtain his or her rights against any other party.  

C. Cancellation  

 1. If we cancel the policy, we will mail notice to the 
lessor in accordance with the Cancellation 
Common Policy Condition.  

 2. If you cancel the policy, we will mail notice to 
the lessor.  

 3. Cancellation ends this agreement.  

D. The lessor is not liable for payment of your 
premiums.  

E. Additional Definition  

As used in this endorsement:  

‘‘Leased auto’’ means an ‘‘auto’’ leased or rented to 
you, including any substitute, replacement or extra 
‘‘auto’’ needed to meet seasonal or other needs, 
under a leasing or rental agreement that requires 
you to provide direct primary insurance for the 
lessor. 

            

            

            

            



 

COMMERCIAL AUTO
CA 01 36 10 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CA 01 36 10 13 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 3

NEVADA CHANGES
For a covered "auto" licensed in Nevada, this endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM
MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless 
modified by the endorsement.

I. Changes In Conditions 
A. If the Auto Medical Payments Coverage 

endorsement is attached, the Transfer Of 
Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us 
Condition does not apply to Auto Medical 
Payments Coverage. 

B. The Other Insurance Condition in the 
Business Auto Coverage Form and the Other 
Insurance – Primary And Excess Insurance 
Provisions Condition in the Motor Carrier 
Coverage Form are changed by adding the 
following: 
1. When two Coverage Forms providing 

liability coverage apply to an "auto" and: 
a. One provides coverage to a Named 

Insured engaged in the business of 
selling, repairing, servicing, delivering, 
testing, road testing, parking or storing 
"autos"; and 

b. The other provides coverage to a 
person not engaged in that business; 
and 

c. At the time of an "accident", a person 
described in 1.b. is operating the "auto"; 
then 

that person's liability insurance is primary 
and the Coverage Form issued to a 
business described in 1.a. is excess over 
any insurance available to that person. 

2. When two Coverage Forms providing 
liability coverage apply to an "auto" and: 
a. One provides coverage to a Named 

Insured engaged in the business of 
repairing or servicing "autos"; and 

b. The other provides coverage to a 
person not engaged in that business; 
and 

c. At the time of an "accident", a person 
described in 2.b. is operating an "auto" 
owned by the business described in 2.a. 
as a temporary substitute auto while that 
person's "auto" is being repaired or 
serviced by the business described in 
2.a.; then 

that person's liability coverage is primary 
and the Coverage Form issued to the 
business described in 2.a. is excess over 
any insurance available to that person. 

II. Anti-stacking Provisions
The contrasting type contained in this 
endorsement is in compliance with Nevada 
statutory requirements that anti-stacking 
provisions be prominently displayed in the policy, 
binder or endorsement.
A. Changes In Covered Autos Liability 

Coverage
The first paragraph of the Limit Of Insurance 
provision is replaced by the following: 
REGARDLESS OF THE NUMBER OF 
COVERED "AUTOS", "INSUREDS", 
PREMIUMS PAID, CLAIMS MADE OR 
VEHICLES INVOLVED IN THE "ACCIDENT", 
THE MOST WE WILL PAY FOR THE TOTAL 
OF ALL DAMAGES AND "COVERED 
POLLUTION COST OR EXPENSE" 
COMBINED, RESULTING FROM ANY ONE 
"ACCIDENT" IS THE LIMIT OF INSURANCE 
FOR COVERED "AUTOS" LIABILITY 
COVERAGE SHOWN IN THE 
DECLARATIONS. 



 

Page 2 of 3 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 CA 01 36 10 13

B. Changes In Auto Medical Payments 
Coverage
If the Auto Medical Payments Coverage 
endorsement is attached:
1. Exclusions 2. and 3. are replaced by the 

following: 
2. "BODILY INJURY" SUSTAINED BY 

YOU OR ANY "FAMILY MEMBER" 
WHILE "OCCUPYING" OR STRUCK 
BY ANY VEHICLE (OTHER THAN A 
COVERED "AUTO") OWNED BY YOU 
OR FURNISHED OR AVAILABLE FOR 
YOUR REGULAR USE. 

3. "BODILY INJURY" SUSTAINED BY 
ANY "FAMILY MEMBER" WHILE 
"OCCUPYING" OR STRUCK BY ANY 
VEHICLE (OTHER THAN A COVERED 
"AUTO") OWNED BY OR FURNISHED 
OR AVAILABLE FOR THE REGULAR 
USE OF ANY "FAMILY MEMBER". 

2. The first paragraph of the Limit Of 
Insurance provision is replaced by the 
following: 
REGARDLESS OF THE NUMBER OF 
COVERED "AUTOS", "INSUREDS", 
PREMIUMS PAID, CLAIMS MADE OR 
VEHICLES INVOLVED IN THE 
"ACCIDENT", THE MOST WE WILL PAY 
FOR "BODILY INJURY" FOR EACH 
"INSURED" INJURED IN ANY ONE 
"ACCIDENT" IS THE LIMIT OF AUTO 
MEDICAL PAYMENTS SHOWN IN THE 
DECLARATIONS. 

C. Changes In Garagekeepers Coverage
If the Garagekeepers Coverage endorsement 
is attached, Paragraph 1. of the Limits Of 
Insurance And Deductibles provision is 
replaced by the following: 
1. REGARDLESS OF THE NUMBER OF 

"CUSTOMER'S AUTOS", "INSUREDS", 
PREMIUMS PAID, CLAIMS MADE OR 
"SUITS" BROUGHT, THE MOST WE 
WILL PAY FOR EACH "LOSS" AT EACH 
LOCATION IS THE GARAGEKEEPERS 
COVERAGE LIMIT OF INSURANCE 
SHOWN IN THE SCHEDULE FOR THAT 
LOCATION. PRIOR TO THE 
APPLICATION OF THIS LIMIT, THE 
DAMAGES FOR "LOSS" THAT WOULD 
OTHERWISE BE PAYABLE WILL BE 
REDUCED BY THE APPLICABLE 
DEDUCTIBLES FOR "LOSS" CAUSED 
BY: 
a. COLLISION; OR

b. WITH RESPECT TO 
GARAGEKEEPERS COVERAGE 
COMPREHENSIVE OR SPECIFIED 
CAUSES OF LOSS COVERAGE:

(1) THEFT OR MISCHIEF OR 
VANDALISM; OR

(2) ALL PERILS. 
D. Changes In Garagekeepers Coverage – 

Customers' Sound-receiving Equipment
If the Garagekeepers Coverage – Customers' 
Sound-receiving Equipment endorsement is 
attached, Paragraph 1. of the Limits Of 
Insurance And Deductibles provision is 
replaced by the following: 
1. REGARDLESS OF THE NUMBER OF 

"SOUND-RECEIVING EQUIPMENT" 
ITEMS IN A "CUSTOMER'S AUTO", 
"INSUREDS", PREMIUMS PAID, CLAIMS 
MADE OR "SUITS" BROUGHT, THE 
MOST WE WILL PAY FOR EACH "LOSS" 
AT EACH LOCATION IS THE 
GARAGEKEEPERS COVERAGE – 
SOUND-RECEIVING EQUIPMENT LIMIT 
OF INSURANCE SHOWN IN THE 
SCHEDULE FOR THAT LOCATION. 
PRIOR TO THE APPLICATION OF THIS 
LIMIT, THE DAMAGES FOR "LOSS" 
THAT WOULD OTHERWISE BE 
PAYABLE WILL BE REDUCED BY THE 
APPLICABLE DEDUCTIBLE FOR "LOSS" 
CAUSED BY COLLISION OR MISCHIEF 
OR VANDALISM. 

E. Changes In Transportation Of Seasonal Or 
Migrant Agricultural Workers Endorsement
If the Transportation Of Seasonal Or Migrant 
Agricultural Workers endorsement is attached, 
Paragraph 1. of the Limit Of Insurance 
provision is replaced by the following: 
1. REGARDLESS OF THE NUMBER OF 

COVERED "AUTOS", "INSUREDS", 
PREMIUMS PAID, CLAIMS MADE OR 
VEHICLES INVOLVED IN THE 
"ACCIDENT", THE MOST WE WILL PAY 
FOR ALL DAMAGES RESULTING FROM 
ANY ONE "ACCIDENT" IS THE LIMIT OF 
INSURANCE SHOWN IN THE SCHEDULE 
FOR EACH "ACCIDENT". 



 

CA 01 36 10 13 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 3 of 3

F. Changes In Conditions
The Two Or More Coverage Forms Or 
Policies Issued By Us Condition is replaced 
by the following: 
TWO OR MORE COVERAGE FORMS OR 
POLICIES ISSUED BY US 
IF THIS COVERAGE FORM AND ANY 
OTHER COVERAGE FORM OR POLICY 
ISSUED TO YOU BY US OR ANY COMPANY 
AFFILIATED WITH US APPLY TO THE 
SAME "ACCIDENT", THE AGGREGATE 
MAXIMUM LIMIT OF INSURANCE UNDER 
ALL THE COVERAGE FORMS OR POLICIES 
SHALL NOT EXCEED THE HIGHEST 
APPLICABLE SINGLE VEHICLE LIMIT OF 
INSURANCE UNDER ANY ONE COVERAGE 
FORM OR POLICY REGARDLESS OF THE 
NUMBER OF COVERED "AUTOS", 
"INSUREDS", PREMIUMS PAID, CLAIMS 
MADE OR VEHICLES INVOLVED IN THE 
"ACCIDENT". THIS CONDITION DOES NOT 
APPLY TO ANY COVERAGE FORM OR 
POLICY ISSUED BY US OR AN AFFILIATED 
COMPANY SPECIFICALLY TO APPLY AS 
EXCESS INSURANCE OVER THIS 
COVERAGE FORM. 



 

POLICY NUMBER: VFNU-CM-0008429-03/000 COMMERCIAL AUTO
CA 21 27 10 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CA 21 27 10 13 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 4

NEVADA UNINSURED MOTORISTS COVERAGE
For a covered "auto" licensed or principally garaged in, or "auto dealer operations" conducted in, Nevada, this 
endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

AUTO DEALERS COVERAGE FORM
BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM
MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless 
modified by the endorsement. 
This endorsement changes the policy effective on the inception date of the policy unless another date is indicated 
below. 

Named Insured:

Endorsement Effective Date:

SCHEDULE

Limit Of Insurance: $1,000,000 Each "Accident"

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

ANTI-STACKING PROVISIONS
Any contrasting type contained in this endorsement is 
in compliance with the Nevada statutory requirements 
that anti-stacking provisions be prominently displayed 
in the policy, binder or endorsement.
A. Coverage

1. We will pay all sums the "insured" is legally 
entitled to recover as compensatory damages 
from the owner or driver of an "uninsured motor 
vehicle". The damages must result from "bodily 
injury" sustained by the "insured" caused by an 
"accident". The owner's or driver's liability for 
these damages must result from the 
ownership, maintenance or use of the 
"uninsured motor vehicle". 

2. With respect to a vehicle as defined in 
Paragraph a. or b. of the definition of 
"uninsured motor vehicle", we will pay 
damages only in excess of the amount 
available to an "insured" under any bodily 
injury liability bonds or policies applicable to 
the "uninsured motor vehicle". 

3. Any judgment for damages arising out of a 
"suit" brought without our written consent is not 
binding on us. 

B. Who Is An Insured 
If the Named Insured is designated in the 
Declarations as:
1. An individual, then the following are "insureds":

a. The Named Insured and any "family 
members".

b. Anyone else "occupying" a covered "auto" 
or a temporary substitute for a covered 
"auto". The covered "auto" must be out of 
service because of its breakdown, repair, 
servicing, "loss" or destruction. 

c. Anyone for damages he or she is entitled to 
recover because of "bodily injury" sustained 
by another "insured". 



 

Page 2 of 4 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 CA 21 27 10 13

2. A partnership, limited liability company, 
corporation or any other form of organization, 
then the following are "insureds":
a. Anyone "occupying" a covered "auto" or a 

temporary substitute for a covered "auto". 
The covered "auto" must be out of service 
because of its breakdown, repair, servicing, 
"loss" or destruction. 

b. Anyone for damages he or she is entitled to 
recover because of "bodily injury" sustained 
by another "insured". 

C. Exclusions 
This insurance does not apply to any of the 
following: 
1. Any claim settled without our consent. 

However, this exclusion does not apply to a 
settlement made with the insurer of a vehicle 
described in Paragraph b. of the definition of 
"uninsured motor vehicle". 

2. The direct or indirect benefit of any insurer or 
self-insurer under any workers' compensation, 
disability benefits or similar law. 

3. "BODILY INJURY" SUSTAINED BY:
a. AN INDIVIDUAL NAMED INSURED 

WHILE "OCCUPYING" OR WHEN 
STRUCK BY ANY VEHICLE OWNED BY 
THAT NAMED INSURED THAT IS NOT A 
COVERED "AUTO" FOR UNINSURED 
MOTORISTS COVERAGE UNDER THIS 
COVERAGE FORM;

b. ANY "FAMILY MEMBER" WHILE 
"OCCUPYING" OR WHEN STRUCK BY 
ANY VEHICLE OWNED BY THAT 
"FAMILY MEMBER" THAT IS NOT A 
COVERED "AUTO" FOR UNINSURED 
MOTORISTS COVERAGE UNDER THIS 
COVERAGE FORM; OR

c. ANY "FAMILY MEMBER" WHILE 
"OCCUPYING" OR WHEN STRUCK BY 
ANY VEHICLE OWNED BY THAT NAMED 
INSURED THAT IS INSURED FOR 
UNINSURED MOTORISTS COVERAGE 
ON A PRIMARY BASIS UNDER ANY 
OTHER COVERAGE FORM OR POLICY.

THIS EXCLUSION APPLIES ONLY TO THE 
EXTENT THAT THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY 
FOR THIS COVERAGE EXCEED THE LIMITS 
OF LIABILITY REQUIRED BY THE NEVADA 
MOTOR VEHICLE SAFETY 
RESPONSIBILITY ACT. 

4. Anyone using a vehicle without a reasonable 
belief that the person is entitled to do so. 

5. Any damages to the extent that they are or 
were available to be paid to an "insured" under 
any bodily injury liability bonds or policies 
applicable to the "uninsured motor vehicle" as 
defined in Paragraph a. or b. of the definition of 
"uninsured motor vehicle".

6. Punitive or exemplary damages.
7. "Bodily injury" arising directly or indirectly out 

of:
a. War, including undeclared or civil war;
b. Warlike action by a military force, including 

action in hindering or defending against an 
actual or expected attack, by any 
government, sovereign or other authority 
using military personnel or other agents; or

c. Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped 
power, or action taken by governmental 
authority in hindering or defending against 
any of these.

D. Limit Of Insurance
1. REGARDLESS OF THE NUMBER OF 

COVERED "AUTOS", "INSUREDS", 
PREMIUMS PAID, CLAIMS MADE OR 
VEHICLES INVOLVED IN THE "ACCIDENT", 
THE MOST WE WILL PAY FOR ALL 
DAMAGES RESULTING FROM ANY ONE 
"ACCIDENT" IS THE LIMIT OF INSURANCE 
FOR UNINSURED MOTORISTS COVERAGE 
SHOWN IN THE SCHEDULE OR 
DECLARATIONS.

2. No one will be entitled to receive duplicate 
payments for the same elements of "loss" 
under this Coverage Form and any Liability 
Coverage form or Medical Payments Coverage 
endorsement attached to this Coverage Part. 
We will not make a duplicate payment under 
this coverage for any element of "loss" for 
which payment has been made by or for 
anyone who is legally responsible. 



 

CA 21 27 10 13 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 3 of 4

E. Changes In Conditions 
The Conditions are changed for Uninsured 
Motorists Coverage as follows: 
1. Other Insurance in the Auto Dealers and 

Business Auto Coverage Forms and Other 
Insurance – Primary And Excess Insurance 
Provisions in the Motor Carrier Coverage 
Form are replaced by the following: 
If there is other applicable insurance available 
under one or more policies or provisions of 
coverage: 
a. THE MAXIMUM RECOVERY UNDER ALL 

COVERAGE FORMS OR POLICIES 
COMBINED MAY EQUAL BUT NOT 
EXCEED THE HIGHEST APPLICABLE 
LIMIT FOR ANY ONE VEHICLE UNDER 
ANY COVERAGE FORMS OR POLICY 
PROVIDING COVERAGE ON EITHER A 
PRIMARY OR EXCESS BASIS.

b. Any insurance we provide with respect to a 
vehicle the Named Insured does not own 
shall be excess over any other collectible 
uninsured motorists insurance providing 
coverage on a primary basis. 

c. If the coverage under this Coverage Form 
is provided: 

(1) On a primary basis, we will pay only our 
share of the loss that must be paid 
under insurance providing coverage on 
a primary basis. Our share is the 
proportion that our limit of liability bears 
to the total of all applicable limits of 
liability for coverage on a primary basis. 

(2) On an excess basis, we will pay only our 
share of the loss that must be paid 
under insurance providing coverage on 
an excess basis. Our share is the 
proportion that our limit of liability bears 
to the total of all applicable limits of 
liability for coverage on an excess basis. 

2. Duties In The Event Of Accident, Claim, Suit 
Or Loss in the Business Auto and Motor 
Carrier Coverage Forms and Duties In The 
Event Of Accident, Claim, Offense, Suit, 
Loss Or Acts, Errors Or Omissions in the 
Auto Dealers Coverage Form are changed by 
adding the following: 
a. Promptly notify the police if a hit-and-run 

driver is involved; and 
b. Promptly send us copies of the legal papers 

if a "suit" is brought. 

3. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against 
Others To Us is replaced by the following: 
Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against 
Others To Us
a. If any person or organization to or for whom 

we make payment under this Coverage 
Form has rights to recover damages from 
another, those rights are transferred to us. 
That person or organization must do 
everything necessary to secure our rights 
and must do nothing after "accident" or 
"loss" to impair them. However, with respect 
to an underinsured motor vehicle as defined 
in Paragraph b. of the definition of 
"uninsured motor vehicle", this condition 
does not apply.

b. If we make any payment and the "insured" 
recovers from another party, the "insured" 
shall hold the proceeds in trust for us and 
pay us back the amount we have paid. 

4. The following condition is added:
Arbitration
a. If we and an "insured" disagree whether the 

"insured" is legally entitled to recover 
damages from the owner or driver of an 
"uninsured motor vehicle" or do not agree 
as to the amount of damages, the "insured" 
may make a written demand for arbitration. 
However, disputes concerning coverage 
under this endorsement may not be 
arbitrated. In this event, each party will 
select an arbitrator. The two arbitrators will 
select a third. If they cannot agree within 30 
days, either may request that selection be 
made by a judge of a court having 
jurisdiction. Each party will pay the 
expenses it incurs and bear the expenses 
of the third arbitrator equally. 

b. Unless both parties agree otherwise, 
arbitration will take place in the county in 
which the "insured" lives. Local rules of law 
as to arbitration procedure and evidence 
will apply. A decision of the arbitrators will 
not be binding on the "insured". 

F. Additional Definitions
As used in this endorsement: 
1. "Family member" means a person related to an 

individual Named Insured by blood, marriage 
or adoption, who is a resident of such Named 
Insured's household, including a ward or foster 
child. 



 

Page 4 of 4 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 CA 21 27 10 13

2. "Occupying" means in, upon, getting in, on, out 
or off. 

3. "Uninsured motor vehicle" means a land motor 
vehicle or "trailer":
a. For which no liability bond or policy at the 

time of an "accident" provides at least the 
amounts required by the applicable law 
where a covered "auto" is principally 
garaged; 

b. That is an underinsured motor vehicle. An 
underinsured motor vehicle is a land motor 
vehicle or "trailer" to which a liability bond or 
policy applies at the time of the "accident", 
but the amount paid under that bond or 
policy to an "insured" is not enough to pay 
the full amount the "insured" is legally 
entitled to recover as damages; 

c. For which an insuring or bonding company 
denies coverage or is or becomes 
insolvent; or 

d. That is a hit-and-run vehicle and neither the 
driver nor owner can be identified. The 
vehicle must hit an "insured", a covered 
"auto" or a vehicle an "insured" is 
"occupying". 

However, "uninsured motor vehicle" does not 
include any vehicle: 
a. Owned or operated by a self-insurer under 

any applicable motor vehicle law, except: 
(1) A self-insurer who is or becomes 

insolvent and cannot provide the 
amounts required by that motor vehicle 
law; or

(2) A vehicle(s) owned by a governmental 
unit or agency. 

b. Designed for use mainly off public roads 
while not on public roads.



 

COMMERCIAL AUTO
CA 20 02 10 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CA 20 02 10 13 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 Page 1 of 1

AUDIO, VISUAL AND DATA ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT 
COVERAGE – FIRE, POLICE AND EMERGENCY VEHICLES
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM 
 

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless 
modified by the endorsement. 

Physical Damage Coverage is changed as follows: 
A. The exclusion relating to audio, visual and data 

electronic equipment in Paragraphs B.4.c. and 
B.4.d. does not apply to any equipment that is 
installed in or upon a covered "auto" which is: 
1. Owned by a police or fire department; 
2. Equipped as an emergency vehicle and owned 

by a political body or any of its agencies; or 

3. Equipped as an emergency vehicle and owned 
by a volunteer fire department, volunteer 
rescue squad or volunteer ambulance corps. 

B. For covered "autos" described above, the Limits 
Of Insurance provision in Paragraph C.1.b. does 
not apply.



 

COMMERCIAL AUTO
CA 20 18 10 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CA 20 18 10 13 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 Page 1 of 1

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES NOT COVERED
 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM 

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless 
modified by the endorsement. 

Covered Autos Liability Coverage is changed by 
adding the following exclusions: 
This insurance does not apply to: 

1. "Bodily injury" resulting from the providing or 
the failure to provide any medical or other 
professional services. 

2. "Bodily injury" resulting from food or drink 
furnished with these services. 

3. "Bodily injury" or "property damage" resulting 
from the handling of corpses. 



 

COMMERCIAL AUTO
CA 99 03 10 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CA 99 03 10 13 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 Page 1 of 2

AUTO MEDICAL PAYMENTS COVERAGE
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

AUTO DEALERS COVERAGE FORM
BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM
MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless 
modified by the endorsement. 

A. Coverage 
We will pay reasonable expenses incurred for 
necessary medical and funeral services to or for 
an "insured" who sustains "bodily injury" caused 
by "accident". We will pay only those expenses 
incurred, for services rendered within three years 
from the date of the "accident". 

B. Who Is An Insured 
1. You while "occupying" or, while a pedestrian, 

when struck by any "auto". 
2. If you are an individual, any "family member" 

while "occupying" or, while a pedestrian, when 
struck by any "auto". 

3. Anyone else "occupying" a covered "auto" or a 
temporary substitute for a covered "auto". The 
covered "auto" must be out of service because 
of its breakdown, repair, servicing, loss or 
destruction. 

C. Exclusions 
This insurance does not apply to any of the 
following: 
1. "Bodily injury" sustained by an "insured" while 

"occupying" a vehicle located for use as a 
premises. 

2. "Bodily injury" sustained by you or any "family 
member" while "occupying" or struck by any 
vehicle (other than a covered "auto") owned by 
you or furnished or available for your regular 
use. 

3. "Bodily injury" sustained by any "family 
member" while "occupying" or struck by any 
vehicle (other than a covered "auto") owned by 
or furnished or available for the regular use of 
any "family member". 

4. "Bodily injury" to your "employee" arising out of 
and in the course of employment by you. 
However, we will cover "bodily injury" to your 
domestic "employees" if not entitled to workers' 
compensation benefits. For the purposes of 
this endorsement, a domestic "employee" is a 
person engaged in household or domestic 
work performed principally in connection with a 
residence premises.

5. "Bodily injury" to an "insured" while working in 
a business of selling, servicing, repairing or 
parking "autos" unless that business is yours. 

6. "Bodily injury" arising directly or indirectly out 
of:
a. War, including undeclared or civil war;
b. Warlike action by a military force, including 

action in hindering or defending against an 
actual or expected attack, by any 
government, sovereign or other authority 
using military personnel or other agents; or

c. Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped 
power, or action taken by governmental 
authority in hindering or defending against 
any of these.



 

Page 2 of 2 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 CA 99 03 10 13

7. "Bodily injury" to anyone using a vehicle 
without a reasonable belief that the person is 
entitled to do so. 

8. "Bodily Injury" sustained by an "insured" while 
"occupying" any covered "auto" while used in 
any professional racing or demolition contest or 
stunting activity, or while practicing for such 
contest or activity. This insurance also does 
not apply to any "bodily injury" sustained by an 
"insured" while the "auto" is being prepared for 
such a contest or activity. 

D. Limit Of Insurance 
Regardless of the number of covered "autos", 
"insureds", premiums paid, claims made or 
vehicles involved in the "accident", the most we 
will pay for "bodily injury" for each "insured" injured 
in any one "accident" is the Limit Of Insurance for 
Auto Medical Payments Coverage shown in the 
Declarations. 
No one will be entitled to receive duplicate 
payments for the same elements of "loss" under 
this coverage and any Liability Coverage Form, 
Uninsured Motorists Coverage Endorsement or 
Underinsured Motorists Coverage Endorsement 
attached to this Coverage Part. 

E. Changes In Conditions 
The Conditions are changed for Auto Medical 
Payments Coverage as follows: 
1. The Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against 

Others To Us Condition does not apply. 
2. The reference in Other Insurance in the Auto 

Dealers and Business Auto Coverage Forms 
and Other Insurance – Primary And Excess 
Insurance Provisions in the Motor Carrier 
Coverage Form to "other collectible insurance" 
applies only to other collectible auto medical 
payments insurance. 

F. Additional Definitions 
As used in this endorsement: 
1. "Family member" means a person related to 

you by blood, marriage or adoption who is a 
resident of your household, including a ward or 
foster child. 

2. "Occupying" means in, upon, getting in, on, out 
or off. 



 

COMMERCIAL AUTO
CA 99 44 10 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CA 99 44 10 13 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 Page 1 of 1

LOSS PAYABLE CLAUSE
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

AUTO DEALERS COVERAGE FORM
BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM 
MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM 

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless 
modified by the endorsement. 

A. We will pay, as interest may appear, you and the 
loss payee named in the policy for "loss" to a 
covered "auto". 

B. The insurance covers the interest of the loss 
payee unless the "loss" results from conversion, 
secretion or embezzlement on your part. 

C. We may cancel the policy as allowed by the 
Cancellation Common Policy Condition. 

Cancellation ends this agreement as to the loss 
payee's interest. If we cancel the policy, we will 
mail you and the loss payee the same advance 
notice. 

D. If we make any payments to the loss payee, we 
will obtain his or her rights against any other party. 



 

COMMERCIAL AUTO
CA 99 48 10 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CA 99 48 10 13 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 Page 1 of 1

POLLUTION LIABILITY – BROADENED COVERAGE
 FOR COVERED AUTOS – BUSINESS AUTO AND

MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORMS
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM
MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless 
modified by the endorsement. 

A. Covered Autos Liability Coverage is changed as 
follows: 
1. Paragraph a. of the Pollution Exclusion 

applies only to liability assumed under a 
contract or agreement. 

2. With respect to the coverage afforded by 
Paragraph A.1. above, Exclusion B.6. Care, 
Custody Or Control does not apply.

B. Changes In Definitions 
For the purposes of this endorsement, Paragraph 
D. of the Definitions Section is replaced by the 
following: 
D. "Covered pollution cost or expense" means any 

cost or expense arising out of: 
1. Any request, demand, order or statutory or 

regulatory requirement that any "insured" or 
others test for, monitor, clean up, remove, 
contain, treat, detoxify or neutralize, or in 
any way respond to, or assess the effects 
of "pollutants"; or 

2. Any claim or "suit" by or on behalf of a 
governmental authority for damages 
because of testing for, monitoring, cleaning 
up, removing, containing, treating, 
detoxifying or neutralizing, or in any way 
responding to or assessing the effects of 
"pollutants".

"Covered pollution cost or expense" does not 
include any cost or expense arising out of the 
actual, alleged or threatened discharge, 
dispersal, seepage, migration, release or 
escape of "pollutants": 

a. Before the "pollutants" or any property in 
which the "pollutants" are contained are 
moved from the place where they are 
accepted by the "insured" for movement 
into or onto the covered "auto"; or 

b. After the "pollutants" or any property in 
which the "pollutants" are contained are 
moved from the covered "auto" to the 
place where they are finally delivered, 
disposed of or abandoned by the 
"insured". 

Paragraphs a. and b. above do not apply to 
"accidents" that occur away from premises 
owned by or rented to an "insured" with 
respect to "pollutants" not in or upon a 
covered "auto" if: 

(1) The "pollutants" or any property in 
which the "pollutants" are contained 
are upset, overturned or damaged as 
a result of the maintenance or use of 
a covered "auto"; and 

(2) The discharge, dispersal, seepage, 
migration, release or escape of the 
"pollutants" is caused directly by 
such upset, overturn or damage. 



 

VPJ100 (01-20)

CLAIM REPORTING

Successful claim handling begins with prompt notification.  Incidents that will or might give rise to a claim 
should be immediately reported to your agent.  The agent will relay pertinent information to Glatfelter 
Claims Management, Inc. (GCM). Minimum information needed is:

 Name and telephone number of insured contact person.
 Date, time and location of the accident or incident.
 Description of how the incident occurred.
 Description of the vehicle or property involved.
 Description of the damage and/or injuries.
 Description of any other automobiles, property, persons and witnesses involved, including 

addresses and telephone numbers, if available.
 If known, the name and incident report number of the responding police department or other 

authority.

Do not delay reporting an incident to your agent waiting on information such as a police report, repair 
estimate, or other claim details.  When additional information is obtained, it should be promptly reported 
to your agent or the claim handler assigned by GCM.

Should a claim arise, some important points to remember are:

 Provide assistance to injured persons.
 Protect property from further damage.
 Do not divulge information to anyone other than the assigned claim handler or GCM’s authorized 

representative.
 If a lawsuit is filed, contact your agent immediately who will transmit copies to GCM.

If an after-hours emergency should arise, please contact our office for assistance.

Glatfelter Claims Management, Inc.
P.O. Box 5126
York, PA 17405
Telephone: (800) 233-1957
Claims Fax: (717) 747-7051
E-Mail: claims@glatfelters.com

License Number: 2D89880  (California only)

Glatfelter Claims Management, Inc., a division of Glatfelter Insurance Group, is a wholly owned, third-party claims 
administrator charged with the handling of claims for VFIS, on behalf of National Union Fire Insurance Company 
of Pittsburgh, Pa.



 

VPJ100 (01-20)

(800) 233-1957

www.vfis.com

Volunteer Firemen’s Insurance Services, Inc.®
VFIS®, VFIS® with design and Volunteer Firemen’s Insurance Services, Inc.®
 are all registered service marks of the same PA Corporation.  



 

118477 (3/15)

POLICYHOLDER NOTICE

Taxes, Assessments and/or Surcharges 

The taxes, assessments and/or surcharges shown on the declarations page or any premium 
schedule are collected on behalf of the applicable State(s) and in accordance with such State’s 
laws and regulations.  The payment of these taxes, assessments and/or surcharges is the 
responsibility of the Named Insured.  In the event the applicable State implements a new tax, 
assessment and/or surcharge or increases such tax, assessment and/or surcharge during the 
term of this policy, the Named Insured shall remain responsible for the payment of all amounts 
due under the policy, including those newly implemented or increased taxes, assessments 
and/or surcharges. 

Any newly implemented or increased taxes, assessments and/or surcharges shall apply on the 
effective date dictated by the applicable State regardless: 

1. Of when the Insurance Company implements the new or increased tax, assessment or 
surcharge into its systems; or

2. If the Insurance Company recalculates the Named Insured’s premium in accordance 
with the policy’s terms and conditions as part of a premium audit after the end of the 
policy period.



 

91222 (9/16)

POLICYHOLDER NOTICE

Thank you for purchasing insurance from a member company of American International 
Group, Inc. (AIG).  The AIG member companies generally pay compensation to brokers 
and independent agents, and may have paid compensation in connection with your policy.  
You can review and obtain information about the nature and range of compensation paid 
by AIG member companies to brokers and independent agents in the United States by 
visiting our website at www.aig.com/producer-compensation or by calling 1-800-706-
3102.



 

AGLC105774NUFIC (01-2022)

Reasons we can share your personal information Does AIG share? Can you limit
this sharing?

For our everyday business purposes — such as to process your 
transactions, maintain your account(s), respond to court orders 
and legal investigations, conduct research including data analytics, 
or report to credit bureaus

Yes No

For our marketing purposes — to offer our products 
and services to you 

Yes No

For joint marketing with other financial companies Yes No

For our affiliates’ everyday business purposes — 
information about your transactions and experiences Yes No

For our affiliates’ everyday business purposes — 
information about your creditworthiness No We don’t share

For nonaffiliates to market to you No We don’t share

Questions?
For AIG Insurance Companies: Call 866-244-4786; Fax: 212-458-7081 or E-Mail: 
CIPrivacy@aig.com
For Pet insurance sold by AIG Insurance Companies: Call 866-937-7387 or E-Mail:
CIPrivacy@aig.com

For LiveTravel, Inc., Travel Guard Group, Inc. or AIG Travel Assist, Inc.: Call 866-244-4786 or 
E-Mail: CIPrivacy@aig.com

Rev 8/2021

FACTS 

Why?

What?

How?

WHAT DOES AMERICAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP, INC. (AIG) DO WITH YOUR 
PERSONAL INFORMATION?

Financial companies choose how they share your personal information. Federal law 
gives consumers the right to limit some but not all sharing. Federal law also requires 
us to tell you how we collect, share, and protect your personal information. Please 
read this notice carefully to understand what we do.

The types of personal information we collect and share depend on the product or 
service you have with us. This information can include:
• Social Security number and Medical Information
• Income and Credit History
• Payment History and Employment Information
When you are no longer our customer, we continue to share your information as 
described in this notice.

All financial companies need to share customers' personal information to run 
their everyday business. In the section below, we list the reasons financial 
companies can share their customers' personal information; the reasons AIG 
chooses to share; and whether you can limit this sharing.



 

AGLC105774NUFIC (01-2022)

Rev 8/2021

Who we are 
Who is providing this notice? The insurance company subsidiaries of American International Group, Inc. (AIG) 

underwriting property-casualty, accident & health, life insurance and related 
services and certain marketing subsidiaries of AIG listed below.

What we do 
How does AIG protect my 
personal information?

To protect your personal information from unauthorized access and use, we use 
security measures that comply with federal law.  These measures include 
computer safeguards and secured files and buildings.  We restrict access to 
employees, representatives, agents, or selected third parties who have been 
trained to handle nonpublic personal information. 

How does AIG collect my 
personal information?

We collect your personal information, for example, when you 
•apply for insurance or pay insurance premiums
•file an insurance claim or give us your income information
•provide employment information

We also collect your personal information from others, such as credit bureaus, 
affiliates, or other companies. 

Why can’t I limit all sharing? Federal law gives you the right to limit only
•sharing for affiliates’ everyday business purposes— information about your 
creditworthiness

•affiliates from using your information to market to you
•sharing for nonaffiliates to market to you

State laws and individual companies may give you additional rights to limit sharing. 
See below for more on your rights under state law.

Definitions 
Affiliates Companies related by common ownership or control. They can be financial and 

nonfinancial companies.
•Our affiliates include the member companies of American International Group, Inc., 
such as National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, Pa.

Nonaffiliates Companies not related by common ownership or control.  They can be financial 
and nonfinancial companies. 

•AIG does not share with nonaffiliates so they can market to you.
Joint marketing A formal agreement between nonaffiliated financial companies that together 

market financial products or services to you.
•Our joint marketing partners include companies with which we jointly offer 
insurance products, such as a bank.

Other important information 
This notice is provided by  American Home Assurance Company; AIG Assurance Company; AIG Property Casualty Company; AIG Specialty 
Insurance Company; Commerce and Industry Insurance Company; Granite State Insurance Company; Illinois National Insurance Co.; Lexington 
Insurance Company; AIU Insurance Company; National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, Pa.; National Union Fire Insurance Company of 
Vermont; New Hampshire Insurance Company; The Insurance Company of the State of Pennsylvania; (collectively  the “AIG Insurance Companies”). 
This notice is also provided by certain marketing subsidiaries of AIG, including Morefar Marketing, Inc., LLC, Travel Guard Group, Inc., AIG Travel 
Assist, Inc. and LiveTravel, Inc. who market insurance or non-insurance products and services to consumers.  

For Vermont Residents only. We will not disclose information about your creditworthiness to our affiliates and will not disclose your personal 
information, financial information, credit report, or health information to nonaffiliated third parties to market to you, other than as permitted by 
Vermont law, unless you authorize us to make those disclosures.  Additional information concerning our privacy policies can be found using the 
contact information above for Questions.

For California Residents only. We will not share information we collect about you with nonaffiliated third parties, except as permitted by California law, 
such as to process your transactions or to maintain your account.

For Nevada Residents Only. We are providing this notice pursuant to Nevada state law.  You may elect to be placed on our internal Do Not Call list by 
contacting us as listed above.   Nevada law requires that we also provide you with the following contact information: Bureau of Consumer Protection, 
Office of the Nevada Attorney General, 555 E. Washington Street, Suite 3900, Las Vegas, NV 89101; Phone number: 702-486-3132; email: 
aginfo@ag.nv.gov.   You may contact the applicable customer service department using the contact information above or by writing to us at Privacy 
Officer, 1271 Ave of the Americas, FL 37, New York, NY 10020-1304. 



 

AGLC105774NUFIC (01-2022)

You have the right to see and, if necessary, correct personal data. This requires a written request, both to see your personal data and to request 
correction. We do not have to change our records if we do not agree with your correction, but we will place your statement in our file. If you would like a 
more detailed description of our information practices and your rights, please write to us at: Privacy Officer, CIPrivacy@aig.com.  



 

VPJ100 (01-20)

Portfolio of Coverage

Especially Designed For:

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
1694 COUNTY ROAD
MINDEN, NV 89423-0000

Underwritten by
National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, PA.



 

VPJ100 (01-20)

National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, PA. 

RISK CONTROL POLICYHOLDER NOTICE
Dear VFIS Client,

Safety and health is a major concern in emergency service organizations today. These issues are 
important because of the major impact that accidents can have on an organization. Morale can often be 
affected as well as an organization’s finances. Insurance rarely covers all the expenses associated with 
accidents. There are often hidden costs that the organization must bear such as time spent reporting, 
documenting and investigating the accident, time spent training the replacement staff and time to replace 
the vehicles and equipment. 

Risk Control Guidelines Provided by VFIS

As a valuable service to you, VFIS provides risk control guidelines and programs to your organization in 
an effort to help you prevent and/or reduce the impact of accidents. Implementing VFIS risk control 
measures could benefit your organization by reducing or eliminating the hidden costs of accidents while 
helping your organization to continue to serve your community.

VFIS provides a number of programs and services to help you in your risk control effort. While most of 
these services are available to our clients at no additional cost, some may require a fee based on the 
scope of the service requested. Some of the services and programs that we provide to our clients include:

 On-site risk control consultations
 Recommendations to control identifiable hazards
 Loss experience analysis
 Consultation on specific risk control-related problems
 Sample standard operating guidelines for vehicle operations
 Accident investigation procedures and forms
 Health and Safety Audit of NFPA 1500

Risk Control Publications

VFIS has many resources that you can access at no charge on our Web site. These include 
Communiqués, which are a one-page fact sheet, that presents a specific hazard and provides procedures 
for controlling the hazard. VFIS also provides numerous training programs that you can access through 
the Client Education and Training Resource Catalog. Please visit www.vfis.com to view and order these 
resources.

Inquire About Our Risk Control Services

If you would like information about some of the above services and publications, please call VFIS Risk 
Control at (800) 233-1957.



 

TR1000 (01-20)    07-05-2023

COMMON POLICY DECLARATIONS

Named Insured and Mailing Address:
EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
1694 COUNTY ROAD
MINDEN, NV 89423-0000

Policy Number:

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000

Policy Period: From 07-01-2023

To 07-01-2024

12:01 AM Standard Time at your mailing address shown above.

Type of Entity: EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATION

Business Description: EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATION

This policy consists of the following coverage parts: Premium

Property $44,847.00
Crime $2,487.00
Portable Equipment $7,311.00
Auto Not Covered
General Liability $14,570.00
Management Liability $23,876.00
Excess Liability $27,197.00

  Taxes / Fees / Surcharges:  
 

 Estimated Total Premium: $120,288.00

The policy premium is payable on the dates and in the amounts shown below:
See Installment Schedule.



 

TR1000 (01-20)    07-05-2023

Named Insured:
EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

Policy Number:
 VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000

Policy Period: From 07-01-2023
To 07-01-2024

COMMON FORMS

See Schedule of Forms and Endorsements.

In return for payment of the premium, and subject to all the terms of this policy, we agree with you to 
provide the insurance as stated in the policy.  The policy consists of the coverage parts where a 
premium is shown on page 1 of these Common Policy Declarations.  In addition to any common forms, 
each coverage part consists of a Coverage Part Declarations and any coverage forms and 
endorsements listed on the Coverage Part Declarations or elsewhere in the policy.

07-05-2023
Authorized representative  (countersignature, where required) Date

The Company has caused this policy to be signed by its President and Secretary

President Secretary
       



Policy Number 

SCHEDULE OF FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS 

 

Named Insured Effective Date: 

 12:01 A.M., Standard Time 

Agency Name   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000

07-01-23

VFIS                                  

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

COMMON POLICY FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS                                  

89644                 06-13    ECONOMIC SANCTIONS ENDORSEMENT         
VCO300                01-20    COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS               
CG 21 70              01-15    CAP ON LOSSES FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TER
IL 09 52              01-15    CAP ON LOSSES FROM CERT ACTS/TERRORISM 
VCONV1                01-20    NEVADA CHANGES - CANCELLATION AND NONREN
VCONV2                01-20    NEVADA CHANGES - CONCEALMENT, MISREPRESE
VCONV3                01-20    NEVADA CHANGES - DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIP  

PROPERTY FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS                                       

VPR101                01-20    ESO PROPERTY COVERAGE FORM             
VPR319                01-20    CRISIS INCIDENT RESPONSE COVERAGE      
VPR322                01-20    AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT                 
VPR301                01-20    LOSS PAYABLE PROVISIONS                

CRIME FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS                                          

VCR105                01-20    EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY COVERAGE FORM (COVER
VCR106                01-20    PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY COVERAGE FORM
VCR107                01-20    PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY COVERAGE FORM
VCR300                01-20    CRIME GENERAL PROVISIONS               
VCR109                01-20    ADDITIONAL COVERAGES COMPUTER AND FUNDS
VCR110                01-20    IDENTITY FRAUD EXPENSE COVERAGE FORM   
VCR301                01-20    FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE OF DUTY           
VCR308                01-20    EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY - PER LOSS EXCESS OV

PORTABLE EQUIPMENT FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS                             

CP 00 90              07-88    COMMERCIAL PROPERTY CONDITIONS         
PE1001                01-20    EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATION PORTABLE
PE1003                01-20    WATERCRAFT EXTENSION                   
PE1009                01-20    AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT PORTABLE EQUIPMEN
PE1012                01-20    UNMANNED AIRCRAFT EXTENSION            

GENERAL LIABILITY FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS                              

VGL101                01-20    EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATION GENERAL L
VGL212                01-20    EXCLUSION ELECTRONIC INFORMATION SECURIT
VGL213                03-21    AMENDMENT TO POLLUTION EXCLUSION       
VGL317                01-20    LINE OF DUTY ACCIDENTAL DEATH BENEFITS 
VGL320                01-20    UNMANNED AIRCRAFT COVERAGE             
GGL330                01-20    MOBILE EQUIPMENT SUBJECT TO MOTOR VEHICL

MANAGEMENT LIABILITY FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS                           

VML101                01-20    EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATION MANAGEMEN
VML306                01-20    CYBER LIABILITY AND PRIVACY CRISIS MANAG
VML310                01-20    AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT MANAGEMENT LIAB 

EXCESS POLICY FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS                                  

CX0001                04-13    COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY COVRG FORM 
CX0229                09-08    NV CHANGES - CANCELLATION AND NONRENEWAL

                                   

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      



Policy Number 

SCHEDULE OF FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS 

 

Named Insured Effective Date: 

 12:01 A.M., Standard Time 

Agency Name   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000

07-01-23

VFIS                                  

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

CX2101                09-08    NUCLEAR ENERGY LIABILITY EXCLUSION ENDO
CX2113                04-13    EXCLUSION - FUNGI OR BACTERIA          
CX2130                01-15    CAP ON LOSSES FROM CERTFD ACTS OF TERROR
CX2700                12-19    UNDERLYING CLAIMS-MADE COVERAGE        
CXE0112               01-20    PER LOCATION AGGREGATE LIMIT OF INSURANC
CXE0172               01-20    FIREWORKS OR PYROTECHNICS EXCLUSION    
CXE0279               01-20    SUBLIMITED COVERAGES ENDORSEMENT       
CXE0286               01-20    ERISA EXCLUSION                        
CXE0328               01-20    PRODUCTS-COMPLETED OPERATIONS AGGREGATE
CXEG0287              01-20    EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATION AMENDATOR
CXEG0297              01-20    OTHER VALID AND COLLECTIBLE INSURANCE AM
CXEG0329              01-20    UNMANNED AIRCRAFT LIABILITY COVERAGE SUB

POLICYHOLDER NOTICES                                                  

118477                03-15    POLICYHOLDER NOTICE - TAXES, ASSESSMENTS
91222                 09-16    POLICYHOLDER NOTICE                    
AGLC105774            01-22    AIG PRIVACY NOTICE                     

                                   

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      



 

Policy Number 

INSTALLMENT SCHEDULE 

 

Named Insured Effective Date: 

 12:01 A.M., Standard Time 

Agency Name   

DUE PREMIUM SURCHARGE 
REVISED 

INSTALLMENT TOTAL 

Failure to pay the Installment Premium by the Date Due shown shall constitute non-payment of premium for which we 
may cancel this policy. 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000

07-01-23

VFIS                                  

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

07/01/2023 $ 30,072.00DEPOSIT $ 30,072.00

     IT IS HEREBY AGREED AND UNDERSTOOD THAT THIS POLICY IS           
     PAYABLE ON INSTALLMENTS AS FOLLOWS:                              

10/01/2023 $ 30,072.00INSTALLMENT $ 30,072.00
01/01/2024 $ 30,072.00INSTALLMENT $ 30,072.00
04/01/2024 $ 30,072.00INSTALLMENT $ 30,072.00

                                   

           

                                                                      

           
           
           

                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                
                                                



Policy Number 

SCHEDULE OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST(S) 

 

Named Insured Effective Date: 

 12:01 A.M., Standard Time 

Agency Name   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000

07-01-23

VFIS                                  

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

Loss Payee                                                            
EAST FORK FIRE DIST                                                   
1694 COUNTY RD                                                        
MINDEN, NV 89423                                                      
DESCRIPTION APPLIES TO PREMISES #15 ITEM #1 - CONTENTS                

                                   

                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      



Policy Number 

SCHEDULE OF NAMED INSURED(S) 

 

Named Insured Effective Date: 

 12:01 A.M., Standard Time 

Agency Name   

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000

07-01-23

VFIS                                  

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

FISH SPRINGS VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                                

GENOA VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                                       

JOHNSON LANE VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                                

SHERIDAN VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                                    

TOPAZ LAKE VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                                  

RUHENSTROTH VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                                 

GARDNERVILLE RANCHO’S VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                       

GARDNERVILLE VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                                

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS                 

                                   

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      

                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      
                                                                      



 

89644 (6/13)

ENDORSEMENT

This  endorsement,   effective  12:01  A.M. forms a part of 

policy No. VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000

issued to EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

By AMERICAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP, INC

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ECONOMIC SANCTIONS ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:
ALL COVERAGE PARTS

The Insurer shall not be deemed to provide cover and the Insurer shall not be liable to pay 
any claim or provide any benefit hereunder to the extent that the provision of such cover, 
payment of such claim or provision of such benefit would expose the Insurer, its parent 
company or its ultimate controlling entity  to any sanction, prohibition or restriction under 
United Nations resolutions or the trade or economic sanctions, laws or regulations of the 
European Union or the United States  of America.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE



 

VCO300  (01-20) 
COMMON

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 2

COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS

All coverage parts included in this policy are subject to the following conditions. 

A. Cancellation 

1. The first Named Insured shown in the Declarations may cancel this policy by mailing or delivering 
to us advance written notice of cancellation. 

2. We may cancel this policy by mailing or delivering to the first Named Insured written notice of 
cancellation at least: 
a. 10 days before the effective date of cancellation if we cancel for nonpayment of premium; or 
b. 30 days before the effective date of cancellation if we cancel for any other reason. 

3. We will mail or deliver our notice to the first Named Insured's last mailing address known to us. 

4. Notice of cancellation will state the effective date of cancellation. The policy period will end on that 
date. 

5. If this policy is cancelled, we will send the first Named Insured any premium refund due. If we 
cancel, the refund will be pro rata. If the first Named Insured cancels, the refund may be less than 
pro rata. The cancellation will be effective even if we have not made or offered a refund. 

6. If notice is mailed, proof of mailing will be sufficient proof of notice.

7. If this Condition conflicts with your state’s requirements regarding cancellation or non-renewal, the 
provisions of any state-specific form attached to this policy will supersede this Condition to the 
extent of such conflict.

B. Changes 

This policy contains all the agreements between you and us concerning the insurance afforded.  The 
first Named Insured shown in the Declarations is authorized to make changes in the terms of this 
policy with our consent. This policy's terms can be amended or waived only by endorsement issued 
by us and made a part of this policy. 

C. Examination of Your Books and Records 

We may examine and audit your books and records as they relate to this policy at any time during the 
policy period and up to three years afterward. 

D. Inspections and Surveys 

1. We have the right to: 
a. Make inspections and surveys at any time; 
b. Give you reports on the conditions we find; and 
c. Recommend changes. 



 

VCO300  (01-20) 
COMMON

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 2 of 2

2. We are not obligated to make any inspections, surveys, reports or recommendations and any 
such actions we do undertake relate only to insurability and the premiums to be charged. We do 
not make safety inspections. We do not undertake to perform the duty of any person or 
organization to provide for the health or safety of workers or the public. And we do not warrant 
that conditions: 
a. Are safe or healthful; or 
b. Comply with laws, regulations, codes or standards. 

3. Paragraphs 1. and 2. of this condition apply not only to us, but also to any rating, advisory, rate 
service or similar organization which makes insurance inspections, surveys, reports or 
recommendations on our behalf. 

4. Paragraph 2. of this condition does not apply to any inspections, surveys, reports or 
recommendations we may make relative to certification, under state or municipal statutes, 
ordinances or regulations, of boilers, pressure vessels or elevators. 

E. Liberalization

If we revise any coverage included in this policy, and if such revision does not require a premium 
charge, your policy will automatically provide the additional coverage as of the date the revision is 
effective in your state.

F. Premiums 

The first Named Insured shown in the Declarations: 

1. Is responsible for the payment of all premiums; and 

2. Will be the payee for any return premiums we pay. 

G. Titles

Throughout this policy, titles are intended for ease of reference only.  They do not extend or restrict 
any coverage beyond what is specifically stated in the policy had no titles been used. 

H. Transfer of Your Rights and Duties Under This Policy 

Your rights and duties under this policy may not be transferred without our written consent. 



 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 21 70 01 15

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CAP ON LOSSES FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
RAILROAD PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK POLICY
OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
HOSPICE AND HOME HEALTH CARE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
HOSPICE AND HOME HEALTH CARE NOT FOR PROFIT ORGANIZATION DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS 

LIABILITY POLICY
LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PUBLIC OFFICIALS AND MANAGEMENT LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
EDUCATORS LEGAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
HEALTHCARE PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY AND HEALTHCARE GENERAL LIABILITY
RELIGIOUS ORGANIZATION MANAGEMENT LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
RELIGIOUS ORGANIZATION MANAGEMENT LIABILITY COVERAGE PART (CLAIMS MADE)
 

A. If aggregate insured losses attributable to terrorist 
acts certified under the federal Terrorism Risk 
Insurance Act exceed $100 billion in a calendar 
year and we have met our insurer deductible 
under the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, we shall 
not be liable for the payment of any portion of the 
amount of such losses that exceeds $100 billion, 
and in such case insured losses up to that amount 
are subject to pro rata allocation in accordance 
with procedures established by the Secretary of 
the Treasury.
"Certified act of terrorism" means an act that is 
certified by the Secretary of the Treasury, in 
accordance with the provisions of the federal 
Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, to be an act of 
terrorism pursuant to such Act. The criteria 
contained in the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act for 
a "certified act of terrorism" include the following:
1. The act resulted in insured losses in excess of

$5 million in the aggregate, attributable to all 
types of insurance subject to the Terrorism 
Risk Insurance Act; and

2. The act is a violent act or an act that is 
dangerous to human life, property or 
infrastructure and is committed by an individual 
or individuals as part of an effort to coerce the 
civilian population of the United States or to 
influence the policy or affect the conduct of the 
United States Government by coercion.

B. The terms and limitations of any terrorism 
exclusion, or the inapplicability or omission of a 
terrorism exclusion, do not serve to create 
coverage for injury or damage that is otherwise 
excluded under this Coverage Part.

CG 21 70 01 15 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2015 Page 1 of 1



 

IL 09 52 01 15

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

IL 09 52 01 15 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2015 Page 1 of 1

CAP ON LOSSES FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF
TERRORISM

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 
BOILER AND MACHINERY COVERAGE PART
COMMERCIAL INLAND MARINE COVERAGE PART
COMMERCIAL PROPERTY COVERAGE PART
EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN COVERAGE PART
FARM COVERAGE PART
STANDARD PROPERTY POLICY
INLAND MARINE COVERAGE PART
PROPERTY COVERAGE PART 
PORTABLE EQUIPMENT COVERAGE PART

A. Cap On Certified Terrorism Losses
"Certified act of terrorism" means an act that is 
certified by the Secretary of the Treasury, in 
accordance with the provisions of the federal 
Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, to be an act of 
terrorism pursuant to such Act. The criteria 
contained in the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act for 
a "certified act of terrorism" include the following: 
1. The act resulted in insured losses in excess of 

$5 million in the aggregate, attributable to all 
types of insurance subject to the Terrorism 
Risk Insurance Act; and 

2. The act is a violent act or an act that is 
dangerous to human life, property or 
infrastructure and is committed by an individual 
or individuals as part of an effort to coerce the 
civilian population of the United States or to 
influence the policy or affect the conduct of the 
United States Government by coercion.

If aggregate insured losses attributable to terrorist 
acts certified under the Terrorism Risk Insurance 
Act exceed $100 billion in a calendar year and we 
have met our insurer deductible under the 
Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, we shall not be 
liable for the payment of any portion of the amount 
of such losses that exceeds $100 billion, and in 
such case insured losses up to that amount are 
subject to pro rata allocation in accordance with 
procedures established by the Secretary of the 
Treasury. 

B. Application Of Exclusions
The terms and limitations of any terrorism 
exclusion, or the inapplicability or omission of a 
terrorism exclusion, do not serve to create 
coverage for any loss which would otherwise be 
excluded under this Coverage Part or Policy, such 
as losses excluded by the Nuclear Hazard 
Exclusion or the War And Military Action 
Exclusion.



 

VCONV1 (01-20)
COMMON

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 2

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

NEVADA CHANGES –
CANCELLATION AND NONRENEWAL

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE PART
CRIME COVERAGE PART
GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
INLAND MARINE COVERAGE PART
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PORTABLE EQUIPMENT COVERAGE PART
PROPERTY COVERAGE PART

The following are added to the Cancellation Common Policy Condition: 
8.a. Midterm Cancellation 

If this policy has been in effect for 70 days or more, or if this policy is a renewal of a policy we 
issued, we may cancel only for one or more of the following reasons: 

(1) Nonpayment of premium; 
(2) Conviction of the insured of a crime arising out of acts increasing the hazard insured 

against; 
(3) Discovery of fraud or material misrepresentation in obtaining the policy or in presenting a 

claim thereunder; 
(4) Discovery of an act or omission or a violation of any condition of the policy which occurred 

after the first effective date of the current policy, and substantially and materially increases 
the hazard insured against; 

(5) A material change in the nature or extent of the risk, occurring after the first effective date of 
the current policy, which causes the risk of loss to be substantially and materially increased 
beyond that contemplated at the time the policy was issued or last renewed; 

(6) A determination by the Commissioner that continuation of our present volume of premiums 
would jeopardize our solvency or be hazardous to the interests of our policyholders, 
creditors or the public; 

(7) A determination by the Commissioner that the continuation of the policy would violate, or 
place us in violation of, any provision of the code. 

b. Anniversary Cancellation 
If this policy is written for a term longer than one year, we may cancel for any reason at an 
anniversary, by mailing or delivering written notice of cancellation to the first Named Insured at 
the last mailing address known to us at least 60 days before the anniversary date. 

B. The following is added as an additional Condition and supersedes any other provision to the contrary: 
NONRENEWAL 
1. If we elect not to renew this policy, we will mail or deliver to the first Named Insured shown in the 

Declarations a notice of intention not to renew at least 60 days before the agreed expiration date.  
If notice is mailed, proof of mailing will be sufficient proof of notice. 



 

VCONV1 (01-20)
COMMON

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 2 of 2

2.  We need not provide this notice if: 
a. You have accepted replacement coverage; 
b. You have requested or agreed to nonrenewal; or 
c. This policy is expressly designated as nonrenewable. 

C. Notices 
1. Notice of cancellation or nonrenewal in accordance with A. and B. above will be mailed, first class 

or certified, or delivered to the first Named Insured at the last mailing address known to us and will 
state the reason for cancellation or nonrenewal. 

2. We will also provide a copy of the notice of cancellation, both for policies in effect less than 70 
days and for policies in effect 70 days or more, to the agent who wrote the policy. 



 

VCONV2 (01-20)
COMMON

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

NEVADA CHANGES –
CONCEALMENT, MISREPRESENTATION OR FRAUD

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE PART
CRIME COVERAGE PART
INLAND MARINE COVERAGE PART
PORTABLE EQUIPMENT COVERAGE PART
PROPERTY COVERAGE PART

The CONCEALMENT, MISREPRESENTATION OR FRAUD Condition is replaced by the following: 
We will not pay for any loss ("loss") or damage in any case of: 

1.   Concealment or misrepresentation of a material fact; or
2.   Fraud;

committed by an insured ("insured") at any time and relating to a claim under this policy. 



 

VCONV3 (01-20)
COMMON

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

NEVADA CHANGES – DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIP

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE PART
LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

A. All references to spouse shall include an individual who is in a domestic partnership recognized under 
Nevada law. 

B. Under the Commercial Auto Coverage Part, the term "family member" is replaced by the following:
"Family member" means a person related to the:
1. Individual Named Insured by blood, adoption, marriage or domestic partnership recognized under 

Nevada law, who is a resident of such Named Insured's household, including a ward or foster 
child; or

2. Individual named in the Schedule by blood, adoption, marriage or domestic partnership recognized 
under Nevada law, who is a resident of the individual's household, including a ward or foster child, 
if the Drive Other Car Coverage – Broadened Coverage For Named Individual Endorsement is 
attached.



 

 

From   

   To      

  
 

VPR100 (01/ 20)     

 

PROPERTY  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
  

Property Schedule Summary 

Premises 

Number 
Item 

Number Address Occupancy Real Property Limit Personal Property Limit 

 

 

 Estimated Coverage Part Premium:  

                                    Taxes, Fees and Surcharges:   

 Total Premium:      

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

$   44,847.00

$   44,847.00

1  1  1606 HWY 395, MINDEN, NV FIRE STATION        $  843,744 Not Covered        

89423                    

2  1  1476 ALBITE, WELLINGTON, FIRE STATION        $1,947,900 Not Covered        

NV 89444                 

3  1  980 SHERIDAN LA,         FIRE STATION        $1,256,623 Not Covered        

GARDNERVILLE, NV 89410   

4  1  2249 FISH SPRINGS,       FIRE STATION        $1,519,362 Not Covered        

MINDEN, NV 89423         

5  1  1990 AUSTIN,             FIRE STATION        $1,231,563 Not Covered        

GARDNERVILLE, NV 89410   

6  1  941 MITCH DR,            WAREHOUSE           $  779,161 Not Covered        

GARDNERVILLE, NV 89410   

7  1  1255 DOUGLAS AVE,        FIRE STATION        $1,926,949 Not Covered        

GARDNERVILLE, NV 89410   

8  1  1450 STEPHANIE WAY,      FIRE STATION        $1,663,031 Not Covered        

MINDEN, NV 89423         

9  1  2008 PINTO CIRCLE,       FIRE STATION        $  696,470 Not Covered        

GARDNERVILLE, NV 89410   

10 1  2298 MAIN ST, GENOA, NV  FIRE STATION        $1,972,066 Not Covered        

89411                    

11 1  940 MITCH DR,            FIRE STATION        $3,098,129 Not Covered        

GARDNERVILLE, NV 89410   

12 1  3450 JACKS VALLEY RD,    FIRE STATION        $  625,897 Not Covered        

CARSON CITY, NV 89701    

13 1  1699 COUNTY RD, MINDEN,  FIRE/EMS            $1,799,226 Not Covered        

NV 89423                 

14 1  3620 N SUNRIDGE DR,      FIRE STATION        $5,618,942 Not Covered        

CARSON CITY, NV 89705    

15 1  1694 COUNTY RD, MINDEN,  OFFICE              $2,251,181 Not Covered        

NV 89423                 

                                   

             

                                                       

                                                       

                                                       

                                                       

                                                       

                                                       

                                                       

                                                       

                                                       

                                                       

                                                       

                                                       

                                                       

                                                       

                                                       

                                                                                



 

 

From   

   To      

  
 

VPR100 (01/ 20)     

 

PROPERTY  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
  

Property Schedule Summary 

Premises 

Number 
Item 

Number Address Occupancy Real Property Limit Personal Property Limit 

 

 

 Estimated Coverage Part Premium:  

                                    Taxes, Fees and Surcharges:   

 Total Premium:      

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

$   44,847.00

$   44,847.00

16 1  1604 HWY 395, MINDEN, NV FIRE STATION        $1,615,869 Not Covered        

89423                    

                                   

             

                                                       

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                



 

 

From   

   To      

 
 

 

PROPERTY  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

VPR100 (01/ 20)    

Schedule of Property Coverage 

 
 

Premises #:  Item #:   

 

Address: Occupancy: 

Coverages  Limit of Insurance  Inflation Guard  

 A. Real Property 

 B. Personal Property 

 C. Loss of Income 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained   

 D. Extra Expense 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained  

 Mine Subsidence  

    

   

Coverage Details  Valuation Method  Coinsurance  

 Real Property 

 Personal Property 

 

   

Deductible Details   

 Policy Deductible Per Occurrence 

 Earthquake Deductible Per Item 

 Flood Deductible 

 Mine Subsidence Deductible Per Premises 

   
 
 
 

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

1  1  

FIRE STATION                            

$  843,744 4% 

Not Covered        

Not Covered

GRC Guaranteed Replacement Cost N/A 

    5,000

   42,187

    1,000 Per Premises 

1606 HWY 395                  
MINDEN, NV 89423              

                                   

   

                               

                                    

                              
                              



 

 

From   

   To      

 
 

 

PROPERTY  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

VPR100 (01/ 20)    

Schedule of Property Coverage 

 
 

Premises #:  Item #:   

 

Address: Occupancy: 

Coverages  Limit of Insurance  Inflation Guard  

 A. Real Property 

 B. Personal Property 

 C. Loss of Income 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained   

 D. Extra Expense 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained  

 Mine Subsidence  

    

   

Coverage Details  Valuation Method  Coinsurance  

 Real Property 

 Personal Property 

 

   

Deductible Details   

 Policy Deductible Per Occurrence 

 Earthquake Deductible Per Item 

 Flood Deductible 

 Mine Subsidence Deductible Per Premises 

   
 
 
 

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

2  1  

FIRE STATION                            

$1,947,900 4% 

Not Covered        

Not Covered

GRC Guaranteed Replacement Cost N/A 

    5,000

   97,395

    1,000 Per Premises 

1476 ALBITE                   
WELLINGTON, NV 89444          

                                   

   

                               

                                    

                              
                              



 

 

From   

   To      

 
 

 

PROPERTY  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

VPR100 (01/ 20)    

Schedule of Property Coverage 

 
 

Premises #:  Item #:   

 

Address: Occupancy: 

Coverages  Limit of Insurance  Inflation Guard  

 A. Real Property 

 B. Personal Property 

 C. Loss of Income 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained   

 D. Extra Expense 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained  

 Mine Subsidence  

    

   

Coverage Details  Valuation Method  Coinsurance  

 Real Property 

 Personal Property 

 

   

Deductible Details   

 Policy Deductible Per Occurrence 

 Earthquake Deductible Per Item 

 Flood Deductible 

 Mine Subsidence Deductible Per Premises 

   
 
 
 

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

3  1  

FIRE STATION                            

$1,256,623 4% 

Not Covered        

Not Covered

GRC Guaranteed Replacement Cost N/A 

    5,000

   62,831

    1,000 Per Premises 

980 SHERIDAN LA               
GARDNERVILLE, NV 89410        

                                   

   

                               

                                    

                              
                              



 

 

From   

   To      

 
 

 

PROPERTY  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

VPR100 (01/ 20)    

Schedule of Property Coverage 

 
 

Premises #:  Item #:   

 

Address: Occupancy: 

Coverages  Limit of Insurance  Inflation Guard  

 A. Real Property 

 B. Personal Property 

 C. Loss of Income 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained   

 D. Extra Expense 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained  

 Mine Subsidence  

    

   

Coverage Details  Valuation Method  Coinsurance  

 Real Property 

 Personal Property 

 

   

Deductible Details   

 Policy Deductible Per Occurrence 

 Earthquake Deductible Per Item 

 Flood Deductible 

 Mine Subsidence Deductible Per Premises 

   
 
 
 

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

4  1  

FIRE STATION                            

$1,519,362 4% 

Not Covered        

Not Covered

GRC Guaranteed Replacement Cost N/A 

    5,000

   75,968

    1,000 Per Premises 

2249 FISH SPRINGS             
MINDEN, NV 89423              

                                   

   

                               

                                    

                              
                              



 

 

From   

   To      

 
 

 

PROPERTY  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

VPR100 (01/ 20)    

Schedule of Property Coverage 

 
 

Premises #:  Item #:   

 

Address: Occupancy: 

Coverages  Limit of Insurance  Inflation Guard  

 A. Real Property 

 B. Personal Property 

 C. Loss of Income 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained   

 D. Extra Expense 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained  

 Mine Subsidence  

    

   

Coverage Details  Valuation Method  Coinsurance  

 Real Property 

 Personal Property 

 

   

Deductible Details   

 Policy Deductible Per Occurrence 

 Earthquake Deductible Per Item 

 Flood Deductible 

 Mine Subsidence Deductible Per Premises 

   
 
 
 

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

5  1  

FIRE STATION                            

$1,231,563 4% 

Not Covered        

Not Covered

GRC Guaranteed Replacement Cost N/A 

    5,000

   61,578

    1,000 Per Premises 

1990 AUSTIN                   
GARDNERVILLE, NV 89410        

                                   

   

                               

                                    

                              
                              



 

 

From   

   To      

 
 

 

PROPERTY  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

VPR100 (01/ 20)    

Schedule of Property Coverage 

 
 

Premises #:  Item #:   

 

Address: Occupancy: 

Coverages  Limit of Insurance  Inflation Guard  

 A. Real Property 

 B. Personal Property 

 C. Loss of Income 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained   

 D. Extra Expense 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained  

 Mine Subsidence  

    

   

Coverage Details  Valuation Method  Coinsurance  

 Real Property 

 Personal Property 

 

   

Deductible Details   

 Policy Deductible Per Occurrence 

 Earthquake Deductible Per Item 

 Flood Deductible 

 Mine Subsidence Deductible Per Premises 

   
 
 
 

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

6  1  

WAREHOUSE                               

$  779,161 4% 

Not Covered        

Not Covered

GRC Guaranteed Replacement Cost N/A 

    5,000

   38,958

    1,000 Per Premises 

941 MITCH DR                  
GARDNERVILLE, NV 89410        

                                   

   

                               

                                    

                              
                              



 

 

From   

   To      

 
 

 

PROPERTY  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

VPR100 (01/ 20)    

Schedule of Property Coverage 

 
 

Premises #:  Item #:   

 

Address: Occupancy: 

Coverages  Limit of Insurance  Inflation Guard  

 A. Real Property 

 B. Personal Property 

 C. Loss of Income 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained   

 D. Extra Expense 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained  

 Mine Subsidence  

    

   

Coverage Details  Valuation Method  Coinsurance  

 Real Property 

 Personal Property 

 

   

Deductible Details   

 Policy Deductible Per Occurrence 

 Earthquake Deductible Per Item 

 Flood Deductible 

 Mine Subsidence Deductible Per Premises 

   
 
 
 

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

7  1  

FIRE STATION                            

$1,926,949 4% 

Not Covered        

Not Covered

GRC Guaranteed Replacement Cost N/A 

    5,000

   96,347

    1,000 Per Premises 

1255 DOUGLAS AVE              
GARDNERVILLE, NV 89410        

                                   

   

                               

                                    

                              
                              



 

 

From   

   To      

 
 

 

PROPERTY  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

VPR100 (01/ 20)    

Schedule of Property Coverage 

 
 

Premises #:  Item #:   

 

Address: Occupancy: 

Coverages  Limit of Insurance  Inflation Guard  

 A. Real Property 

 B. Personal Property 

 C. Loss of Income 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained   

 D. Extra Expense 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained  

 Mine Subsidence  

    

   

Coverage Details  Valuation Method  Coinsurance  

 Real Property 

 Personal Property 

 

   

Deductible Details   

 Policy Deductible Per Occurrence 

 Earthquake Deductible Per Item 

 Flood Deductible 

 Mine Subsidence Deductible Per Premises 

   
 
 
 

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

8  1  

FIRE STATION                            

$1,663,031 4% 

Not Covered        

Not Covered

GRC Guaranteed Replacement Cost N/A 

    5,000

   83,152

    1,000 Per Premises 

1450 STEPHANIE WAY            
MINDEN, NV 89423              

                                   

   

                               

                                    

                              
                              



 

 

From   

   To      

 
 

 

PROPERTY  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

VPR100 (01/ 20)    

Schedule of Property Coverage 

 
 

Premises #:  Item #:   

 

Address: Occupancy: 

Coverages  Limit of Insurance  Inflation Guard  

 A. Real Property 

 B. Personal Property 

 C. Loss of Income 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained   

 D. Extra Expense 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained  

 Mine Subsidence  

    

   

Coverage Details  Valuation Method  Coinsurance  

 Real Property 

 Personal Property 

 

   

Deductible Details   

 Policy Deductible Per Occurrence 

 Earthquake Deductible Per Item 

 Flood Deductible 

 Mine Subsidence Deductible Per Premises 

   
 
 
 

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

9  1  

FIRE STATION                            

$  696,470 4% 

Not Covered        

Not Covered

GRC Guaranteed Replacement Cost N/A 

    5,000

   34,824

    1,000 Per Premises 

2008 PINTO CIRCLE             
GARDNERVILLE, NV 89410        

                                   

   

                               

                                    

                              
                              



 

 

From   

   To      

 
 

 

PROPERTY  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

VPR100 (01/ 20)    

Schedule of Property Coverage 

 
 

Premises #:  Item #:   

 

Address: Occupancy: 

Coverages  Limit of Insurance  Inflation Guard  

 A. Real Property 

 B. Personal Property 

 C. Loss of Income 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained   

 D. Extra Expense 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained  

 Mine Subsidence  

    

   

Coverage Details  Valuation Method  Coinsurance  

 Real Property 

 Personal Property 

 

   

Deductible Details   

 Policy Deductible Per Occurrence 

 Earthquake Deductible Per Item 

 Flood Deductible 

 Mine Subsidence Deductible Per Premises 

   
 
 
 

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

10 1  

FIRE STATION                            

$1,972,066 4% 

Not Covered        

Not Covered

GRC Guaranteed Replacement Cost N/A 

    5,000

   98,603

    1,000 Per Premises 

2298 MAIN ST                  
GENOA, NV 89411               

                                   

   

                               

                                    

                              
                              



 

 

From   

   To      

 
 

 

PROPERTY  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

VPR100 (01/ 20)    

Schedule of Property Coverage 

 
 

Premises #:  Item #:   

 

Address: Occupancy: 

Coverages  Limit of Insurance  Inflation Guard  

 A. Real Property 

 B. Personal Property 

 C. Loss of Income 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained   

 D. Extra Expense 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained  

 Mine Subsidence  

    

   

Coverage Details  Valuation Method  Coinsurance  

 Real Property 

 Personal Property 

 

   

Deductible Details   

 Policy Deductible Per Occurrence 

 Earthquake Deductible Per Item 

 Flood Deductible 

 Mine Subsidence Deductible Per Premises 

   
 
 
 

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

11 1  

FIRE STATION                            

$3,098,129 4% 

Not Covered        

Not Covered

GRC Guaranteed Replacement Cost N/A 

    5,000

  154,906

    1,000 Per Premises 

940 MITCH DR                  
GARDNERVILLE, NV 89410        

                                   

   

                               

                                    

                              
                              



 

 

From   

   To      

 
 

 

PROPERTY  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

VPR100 (01/ 20)    

Schedule of Property Coverage 

 
 

Premises #:  Item #:   

 

Address: Occupancy: 

Coverages  Limit of Insurance  Inflation Guard  

 A. Real Property 

 B. Personal Property 

 C. Loss of Income 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained   

 D. Extra Expense 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained  

 Mine Subsidence  

    

   

Coverage Details  Valuation Method  Coinsurance  

 Real Property 

 Personal Property 

 

   

Deductible Details   

 Policy Deductible Per Occurrence 

 Earthquake Deductible Per Item 

 Flood Deductible 

 Mine Subsidence Deductible Per Premises 

   
 
 
 

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

12 1  

FIRE STATION                            

$  625,897 4% 

Not Covered        

Not Covered

GRC Guaranteed Replacement Cost N/A 

    5,000

   31,295

    1,000 Per Premises 

3450 JACKS VALLEY RD          
CARSON CITY, NV 89701         

                                   

   

                               

                                    

                              
                              



 

 

From   

   To      

 
 

 

PROPERTY  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

VPR100 (01/ 20)    

Schedule of Property Coverage 

 
 

Premises #:  Item #:   

 

Address: Occupancy: 

Coverages  Limit of Insurance  Inflation Guard  

 A. Real Property 

 B. Personal Property 

 C. Loss of Income 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained   

 D. Extra Expense 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained  

 Mine Subsidence  

    

   

Coverage Details  Valuation Method  Coinsurance  

 Real Property 

 Personal Property 

 

   

Deductible Details   

 Policy Deductible Per Occurrence 

 Earthquake Deductible Per Item 

 Flood Deductible 

 Mine Subsidence Deductible Per Premises 

   
 
 
 

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

13 1  

FIRE/EMS                                

$1,799,226 4% 

Not Covered        

Not Covered

GRC Guaranteed Replacement Cost N/A 

    5,000

   89,961

    1,000 Per Premises 

1699 COUNTY RD                
MINDEN, NV 89423              

                                   

   

                               

                                    

                              
                              



 

 

From   

   To      

 
 

 

PROPERTY  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

VPR100 (01/ 20)    

Schedule of Property Coverage 

 
 

Premises #:  Item #:   

 

Address: Occupancy: 

Coverages  Limit of Insurance  Inflation Guard  

 A. Real Property 

 B. Personal Property 

 C. Loss of Income 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained   

 D. Extra Expense 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained  

 Mine Subsidence  

    

   

Coverage Details  Valuation Method  Coinsurance  

 Real Property 

 Personal Property 

 

   

Deductible Details   

 Policy Deductible Per Occurrence 

 Earthquake Deductible Per Item 

 Flood Deductible 

 Mine Subsidence Deductible Per Premises 

   
 
 
 

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

14 1  

FIRE STATION                            

$5,618,942 4% 

Not Covered        

Not Covered

GRC Guaranteed Replacement Cost N/A 

    5,000

  280,947

    1,000 Per Premises 

3620 N SUNRIDGE DR            
CARSON CITY, NV 89705         

                                   

   

                               

                                    

                              
                              



 

 

From   

   To      

 
 

 

PROPERTY  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

VPR100 (01/ 20)    

Schedule of Property Coverage 

 
 

Premises #:  Item #:   

 

Address: Occupancy: 

Coverages  Limit of Insurance  Inflation Guard  

 A. Real Property 

 B. Personal Property 

 C. Loss of Income 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained   

 D. Extra Expense 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained  

 Mine Subsidence  

    

   

Coverage Details  Valuation Method  Coinsurance  

 Real Property 

 Personal Property 

 

   

Deductible Details   

 Policy Deductible Per Occurrence 

 Earthquake Deductible Per Item 

 Flood Deductible 

 Mine Subsidence Deductible Per Premises 

   
 
 
 

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

15 1  

OFFICE                                  

$2,251,181 4% 

Not Covered        

Not Covered

GRC Guaranteed Replacement Cost N/A 

    5,000

  112,559

    1,000 Per Premises 

1694 COUNTY RD                
MINDEN, NV 89423              

                                   

   

                               

                                    

                              
                              



 

 

From   

   To      

 
 

 

PROPERTY  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

VPR100 (01/ 20)    

Schedule of Property Coverage 

 
 

Premises #:  Item #:   

 

Address: Occupancy: 

Coverages  Limit of Insurance  Inflation Guard  

 A. Real Property 

 B. Personal Property 

 C. Loss of Income 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained   

 D. Extra Expense 24 Months Actual Loss Sustained  

 Mine Subsidence  

    

   

Coverage Details  Valuation Method  Coinsurance  

 Real Property 

 Personal Property 

 

   

Deductible Details   

 Policy Deductible Per Occurrence 

 Earthquake Deductible Per Item 

 Flood Deductible 

 Mine Subsidence Deductible Per Premises 

   
 
 
 

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

16 1  

FIRE STATION                            

$1,615,869 4% 

Not Covered        

Not Covered

GRC Guaranteed Replacement Cost N/A 

    5,000

   80,793

    1,000 Per Premises 

1604 HWY 395                  
MINDEN, NV 89423              

                                   

   

                               

                                    

                              
                              



 

 

From   

  To      

 

VPR100 (01/ 20)     

 
 

PROPERTY  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

 

Blanket Summary 

 

The following limit applies to all coverages denoted above as "See Blanket Summary". 

Coverage Limit of Insurance   

Personal Property    
 
 

 
 

Money and Securities  

 

Coverage Limit of Insurance   

Money and Securities    
 
 
 

 

Software 

 

Coverage Limit of Insurance   

Software    
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Property Forms 

See Schedule of Forms and Endorsements. 

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

None      

$    250,000

$     30,000

                                   



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 34

EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATION
PROPERTY COVERAGE FORM

Various provisions in this coverage part restrict coverage.  Read the entire coverage part carefully to 
determine rights, duties, and what is and is not covered.

Throughout this coverage part the words "you" and "your" refer to the Named Insured shown in the 
Declarations.  The words "we," "us" and "our" refer to the Company providing this insurance.  

Other words and phrases that appear in quotation marks have special meaning.  Refer to SECTION VI. 
DEFINITIONS.

SECTION I.  COVERAGES

Coverage A.  Real Property

We will pay for direct physical loss or damage to "real property" at a "premises" caused by or resulting 
from any "covered cause of loss".  The most we will pay is described under SECTION IV. WHAT WE 
WILL PAY.

Coverage B.  Personal Property

We will pay for direct physical loss or damage to "personal property" at a "premises" caused by or 
resulting from any "covered cause of loss".  The most we will pay is described under SECTION IV. WHAT 
WE WILL PAY.

Coverage C.  Loss of Income

We will pay for the actual "loss of income" you sustain during the "period of restoration", if your 
"operations" are interrupted as a result of direct physical loss or damage to "real property" or "personal 
property" at a "premises" caused by or resulting from any "covered cause of loss".  The most we will pay 
is described under SECTION IV. WHAT WE WILL PAY.

Coverage D.  Extra Expense

We will pay the necessary "extra expense" you incur during the "period of restoration", if your "operations" 
are interrupted as a result of direct physical loss or damage to "real property" or "personal property" at a 
"premises" caused by or resulting from any "covered cause of loss".  The most we will pay is described 
under SECTION IV. WHAT WE WILL PAY.



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 2 of 34

SECTION II.  COVERAGE EXTENSIONS 

This section adds to or extends the coverage under SECTION I. COVERAGES.  Each separately 
numbered provision is referred to as an extension.  Except to the extent specifically stated otherwise in an 
extension:
1. Each extension is limited to direct physical loss or damage caused by or resulting from any "covered 

cause of loss";
2. The limits in each extension are in addition to the limits applicable to SECTION I. COVERAGES; and
3. All other applicable terms and conditions of this coverage form apply to each extension.

1. Ordinance Coverage

When either "replacement cost" or guaranteed "replacement cost" is indicated in the Declarations as 
applicable to Coverage A, we will pay:
a. For loss to any undamaged portion of your "real property" caused by the enforcement of any law 

or ordinance that:
(1) Requires the demolition of parts of your "real property" not damaged by a "covered cause of 

loss";
(2) Regulates the construction or repair of buildings or establishes zoning or land use 

requirements at a "premises"; and
(3) Is in force at the time of loss.

b. The cost to demolish and clear the site of the undamaged part of the property caused by 
enforcement of a building, zoning or land use ordinance or law; and

c. The increased cost to repair, rebuild or construct the "real property" caused by the enforcement of 
a building, zoning or land use ordinance or law, in addition to the "replacement cost" of the "real 
property" suffering the loss or damage.

The total paid for any "item" under paragraph a. above shall be included within the Coverage A Limit 
of Insurance applicable to that "item" and shall not increase that limit.  The most we will pay under 
paragraphs b. and c. above shall not exceed 100% of the amount paid under this coverage part for 
the initial direct physical loss or damage to that "item". 
Under this extension, we will not pay any costs:

(a) Due to an ordinance or law that was in effect before the loss or damage occurred, and with 
which you failed to comply even though you were required to do so; 

(b) Associated with "remediation expenses"; or
(c) Due to "fungus", wet rot, dry rot or bacteria.

2. Debris Removal Expenses

We will pay your debris removal expenses if they are reported to us within 180 days after the date of 
direct physical loss or damage.  Debris removal expense means expense you incur in removing 
debris of covered "real property" or covered "personal property" from a "premises" after direct 
physical loss or damage caused by or resulting from any "covered cause of loss".  Debris removal 



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 3 of 34

expense does not include "remediation expenses" or any expense related to the removal of "fungus", 
wet rot, dry rot, bacteria or asbestos.

3. Supplementary Provisions for Coverage C. Loss of Income and Coverage D. Extra Expense 

a. Coverages C and D will apply if you have direct physical loss or damage covered under 
Coverage A or B to new buildings, additions or alterations to existing buildings, or associated 
equipment and supplies at a "premises".  If a direct physical loss or damage delays the start of 
your "operations" at the new building, addition, or alteration, Coverages C and D will be 
determined from the date your "operations" would have begun if the direct physical loss or 
damage had not occurred.

b. Coverages C and D will apply if your fund-raising activities are interrupted as a result of direct 
physical loss or damage to "real property" or "personal property" not owned by you from a 
"covered cause of loss" at any site used for your fund-raising activities. 

c. If property not at a "premises" is damaged by a "covered cause of loss", and as a result, a 
government agency prohibits you from using a "premises", Coverages C and D will apply for up to 
two weeks from the date that the loss occurred.

d. The following will be disregarded in determining the amount of "loss of income":
(1) Donations and contributions which are a direct result of the interruption of your "operations" 

and are received by you during the period of interruption; and
(2) Proceeds from fund-raising drives or solicitations which are for your sole benefit and occur as 

a result of the interruption of your "operations".
e. If a regularly scheduled fund-raising drive for your sole benefit occurs during the period of 

interruption, the revenue produced by such drive will not be considered as income unless the 
results of the drive fail, because of the interruption of your "operations", to produce an amount at 
least equal to the same drive in prior solicitations.  If the regularly scheduled fund-raising drive is 
canceled or postponed, such loss of revenue will not be considered as a "loss of income".

f. If Coverage C or D applies, we will extend Coverage C or D up to 30 consecutive days after the 
damaged property is repaired or replaced or to the date you could restore your "operations", with 
reasonable speed, to the condition that would have existed if no direct physical loss or damage 
occurred, whichever comes first.

4. Preservation of Property

If it is necessary to move "real property" or "personal property" from a "premises" to preserve it from 
direct physical loss or damage by a "covered cause of loss", we will pay for any direct physical loss or 
damage to that property:
a. While it is being moved or while temporarily stored at another location; and
b. Only if loss or damage occurs within 90 days after the property is first moved.



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 4 of 34

5. Personal Property Off Your Premises

a. If there is a direct physical loss or damage to your covered "personal property" while it is away 
from your "premises", we will pay that covered loss.  The most we will pay in any one occurrence 
is the greater of:
(1) The highest Limit of Insurance for Coverage B shown in the Declarations; or
(2) $25,000.

b. Any amount we pay is included in and is not in addition to the Coverage B limit shown in the 
Declarations, except to the extent the amount under a.(2) exceeds the Coverage B limit. 

c. This extension does not apply to any portable equipment.  Portable equipment means portable 
firefighting, ambulance, or rescue related equipment, including portable communications 
equipment, commonly used in fire and rescue operations away from your "premises".

6. Newly Acquired or Under Construction Real Property and Related Personal Property

a. "Real property" you buy, lease, rent, or construct, including temporary structures such as 
scaffolding, construction forms, falsework, or cribbing at the job site, will be covered under 
Coverage A as provided in this extension.  "Personal property" you acquire in connection with the 
"real property" described above will be covered under Coverage B as provided in this extension.  

b. Coverage A or B applies only if your newly acquired or under construction "real property" is 
intended for similar use as an "item" described in the Declarations and you acquired it or began 
construction of it after this policy period began.

c. The most we will pay under this extension is:
(1) $2,500,000 in any one occurrence under Coverage A; and
(2) $500,000 in any one occurrence under Coverage B.

d. In addition to the limit available for "real property" under construction, we will also pay up to 
$10,000 for loss or damage to construction materials and equipment that will become a 
permanent part of the project, while such property is held temporarily away from the construction 
site, or while in transit or awaiting delivery to the construction site. This property may be your 
property or, at your option, the property of others for which you are responsible.

e. You agree to notify us as soon as possible of the value of:
(1) Your newly acquired or under construction "real property" and to pay additional premium from 

the date you acquired or began construction of it; and
(2) "Personal property" at the site of newly acquired or under construction "real property" and to 

pay additional premium from the date you place such "personal property" at the site of newly 
acquired or under construction "real property".

Coverage provided under this extension will cease at the later of 90 days after you acquire the 
property or begin construction, or the end of the policy period.  However, coverage will cease when 
this coverage part is cancelled or nonrenewed. 



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 5 of 34

7. Trees, Shrubs, Plants and Lawns

We will pay for direct physical loss or damage to trees, shrubs, plants, and lawns at a "premises" on a 
replacement cost basis, only if they are damaged or destroyed by fire, lightning, explosion, riot or civil 
commotion, aircraft, "vehicles", or vandalism and malicious mischief.  Replacement of trees, shrubs 
or plants shall be with trees, shrubs or plants of comparable size and kind, but shall not exceed the 
cost of replacing them with the largest commonly available transplantable like species of tree, shrub 
or plant that is usually available or listed in catalogs by nurseries or suppliers for the region in which 
the covered loss occurred and which can be legally transported on public roads without special 
permits. The costs of removing the existing tree, shrub or plant and associated cleanup is also 
included. Diminution of "real property" or "personal property" values resulting from the loss of trees 
shall not be recoverable as part of the loss settlement.

8. Personal Effects

a. At your request, we will pay for direct physical loss or damage to "personal effects" caused by or 
resulting from any "covered cause of loss", provided the "personal effects" are at a "premises".

b. The most we will pay under this extension in any one occurrence is:
(1) The actual "replacement cost" for the "personal effects" of any of your volunteers, 

"employees", directors, officers, or trustees; or
(2) For all other persons, $1,500 for the "personal effects" of any one person. 

c. This coverage is primary and will apply regardless of any other insurance coverage which may be 
available to the owner of the "personal effects".

d. No deductible applies to this extension.

9.  Pollution Remediation Expenses

a. We will pay "remediation expenses" you incur as a result of the actual, alleged, or threatened 
presence of "pollution conditions" on or from a "premises" described in the policy declarations, 
but only if the "pollution conditions" result from a "covered cause of loss" occurring during the 
policy period.  However, we will not pay for any expense related to the removal of "fungus", wet 
rot, dry rot, bacteria or asbestos.
(1) You must notify us within 180 days after the date of the "covered cause of loss". 
(2) The most we will pay under paragraph a. of this extension in any policy period is $25,000.

b. We will pay "remediation expenses" you incur as a result of the actual, alleged, or threatened 
presence of "pollution conditions" on or from a "premises" described in the policy declarations, 
but only if the "pollution conditions" result from a "specified cause of loss" occurring during the 
policy period.  However, we will not pay for any expense related to the removal of "fungus", wet 
rot, dry rot, bacteria or asbestos.
(1) You must notify us within 180 days after the date of the "specified cause of loss". 
(2) Subject to paragraph a. (2) the most we will pay under paragraph a. and paragraph b. of this 

extension in any policy period is $100,000.



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 6 of 34

10.  Sirens and Antennas

Your "real property", "loss of income" and "extra expense" coverages are extended to include sirens, 
antennas, towers and similar structures and their associated equipment and structures located away 
from your "premises".  However, this extension applies only to sirens, antennas, towers and similar 
structures associated with a "premises".

11. Commandeered Property

a. At your request, we will pay for direct physical loss or damage to commandeered property caused 
by or resulting from any "covered cause of loss".  Commandeered property means the following 
property belonging to someone else:
(1) "Real property";
(2) "Personal property";
(3) "Watercraft";
(4) All-terrain vehicles;
(5) Snowmobiles;
(6) Golf carts;
(7) Aircraft or its parts, accessories and equipment; and
(8) Animals;
that you commandeer, seize, borrow or take over for official use to manage an "emergency 
situation".

b. Coverage for direct physical loss or damage to commandeered property applies only for the time 
you officially use the commandeered property to manage an "emergency situation" plus the 
reasonable time necessary to return the property.  This extension will not apply to direct physical 
loss or damage occurring after the policy period.

c. At your request, if there is direct physical loss or damage to commandeered property during the 
policy period that is payable under this extension, we will also pay any resulting loss of use of 
commandeered property arising during:
(1) The time subsequent to the direct physical loss or damage during which you officially use or 

retain the commandeered property to manage an "emergency situation" plus the reasonable 
time necessary to return the property; and

(2) The time after return of the commandeered property reasonably necessary to repair or 
replace the commandeered property, not to exceed 180 days.

These times may extend beyond the policy period stated in the Declarations so long as the direct 
physical loss or damage to the commandeered property occurred during the policy period stated 
in the Declarations.

d. The most we will pay under this extension in any one occurrence is the "replacement cost" of the 
commandeered property, plus loss of use covered by this extension.

e. No deductible will apply to commandeered property belonging to a volunteer, "employee", 
director, officer or trustee.  



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 7 of 34

12. Software

a. We will pay the following when caused by or resulting from any "covered cause of loss", or from a 
"computer virus", or from mechanical breakdown of "hardware":
(1) The cost of restoring, researching, replacing, or reproducing "software" or the media upon 

which "software" is magnetically or optically recorded;
(2) "Loss of income" if your "operations" are interrupted because of loss or damage to "software";
(3) "Extra expense" if your "operations" are interrupted because of loss or damage to "software";
(4) The following costs incurred because of loss or damage to "software":

(a) Expenses you actually incur in recharging an automatic fire suppression system due to 
an accidental discharge, whether or not the discharge was caused by a "covered cause 
of loss";

(b) Fees payable to professional accountants or auditors;
(c) Costs of conducting investigations by consulting engineers or programmers; and
(d) Modification of "hardware" or replacement of data in order to achieve compatibility with 

replacement "hardware" or "software".
b. To the extent that electronic data is not replaced or restored, we will pay the cost of replacement 

of the media on which the data was stored or recorded, with blank media of substantially identical 
type.

c. Coverage provided under this extension is not restricted to your "premises".
d. The most we will pay under this extension is $250,000 in any one occurrence. 

13. Valuable Papers and Records

a. We will pay the costs you incur in restoring, researching, replacing, or reproducing your "valuable 
papers and records" that suffer direct physical loss or damage caused by or resulting from any 
"covered cause of loss". 

b. We will not pay for:
(1) Irreplaceable "valuable papers and records" unless they are specifically described in the 

Declarations or in an endorsement made a part of this coverage part, and a limit for them is 
shown there;

(2) Any cost that results directly from processing or copying the records;
(3) Any cost that results directly from work performed on papers or records, such as filing or 

binding;
(4) Loss or damage to computer-based records arising from loss or damage to "software", or 

from a "computer virus", or from mechanical breakdown of "hardware"; or 
(5) Loss or damage to "software".

c. Coverage provided under this extension is not restricted to your "premises".



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 8 of 34

14. Accounts Receivable

a. We will pay for "accounts receivable costs" you incur as a result of direct physical loss or damage 
to your accounts receivable records caused by or resulting from any "covered cause of loss", 
including those arising from loss or damage to "software", or from a "computer virus", or from 
mechanical breakdown of "hardware".

b. We will not pay for:
(1) Any loss or cost that results from mistakes made in bookkeeping, accounting, or billing;
(2) Any loss or cost if its existence can be shown only by an inventory count or an audit.  

However, if the existence of a loss can be shown by other means, you may use an inventory 
count or audit to support your claim for that loss; 

(3) Any loss or cost resulting from any dishonest act or omission of either you or your volunteers 
or "employees", or anyone authorized to act for you.  But we will cover loss that results if 
someone falsifies, alters or destroys your accounts receivable records in order to conceal any 
such action;

(4) Any loss arising out of bad debts; or
(5) Any loss arising out of aged accounts receivables greater than 180 days.

c. If you recover any amounts after we have paid you for a loss, you have to turn the recoveries 
over to us until we have been repaid.  If you recover more than the amount we paid you, the 
excess over our payment is yours.  Also, you must help us collect amounts customers owe you, if 
we request your help.

d. Coverage provided under this extension is not restricted to your "premises".

15. Money and Securities

a. We will pay for loss of your "money" or your "securities" or of "money" or "securities" of others 
that you hold in any capacity, or for which you are responsible, resulting from theft, 
disappearance or destruction, provided the loss occurs:
(1) At your "premises";
(2) Away from your "premises" (whether inside or outside the "policy territory") while the "money" 

or "securities" are in the possession of your volunteers or "employees"; or
(3) Away from your "premises" while the "money" or "securities" are in the custody of a 

depository or an armored vehicle company.
b. We will not pay for any loss of "money" or "securities" arising from:

(1) "War";
(2) "Nuclear activity";
(3) "Government activity";
(4) Fraudulent, dishonest or criminal acts committed by a director, officer, trustee, volunteer or 

"employee" of your organization, whether acting alone or in collusion with others;
(5) A sale, exchange, or purchase transaction, including internet transactions; or
(6) Accounting, mathematical or record-keeping errors.



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 9 of 34

c. The amount we will pay for any loss of "securities" is the market value of the "securities" at the 
end of the last business day before the loss was discovered.  We will not pay for any "loss of 
income", including interest or dividends, that occurs as a result of a loss we do cover.

d. The most we will pay for any loss of "money" or "securities" in the custody of a depository or an 
armored vehicle company is the portion of the loss that exceeds any amount you recover from:
(1) The depository or armored vehicle company;
(2) Insurance carried by the depository or armored vehicle company; or
(3) Insurance carried by any other person or organization for the benefit of users of the 

depository's or armored vehicle company's services.
e. The most we will pay under this extension is $30,000 in any one occurrence.  

16. Equipment Breakdown 

a. We will pay for loss caused by or resulting from an accident to covered equipment.
Accident means direct physical loss as follows:
(1) Mechanical breakdown, including rupture or bursting caused by centrifugal force, but 

excluding the mechanical breakdown of "hardware"; and
(2) Explosion, rupture or bursting of steam boilers, steam pipes, steam turbines, steam engines 

or rotating parts of machinery that you own or lease, or that are operated under your control, 
but excluding loss or damage caused by a hydrostatic, pneumatic, or gas pressure test of any 
boiler or pressure vessel; and

(3) Loss or damage to steam boilers, steam pipes, steam engines, steam turbines, hot water 
boilers or other water heating equipment caused by or resulting from any condition or event 
inside such boilers or equipment.

If an initial accident causes other accidents, all will be considered one accident.  All accidents that 
are the result of the same event will be considered one accident.
Covered equipment means "real property" or "personal property" built to operate under vacuum 
or pressure, other than weight of contents, or used for the generation, transmission or utilization 
of energy.  However, none of the following are covered equipment:

(a) Insulating or refractory material;
(b) Sewer piping, underground vessels or piping, piping forming part of a "sprinkler system" 

or water piping other than boiler feedwater piping, boiler condensate return piping or 
water piping forming part of a refrigerating or air conditioning system;

(c) "Vehicles", excavation or construction equipment; or
(d) Any structure, foundation or cabinet supporting or housing covered equipment.

b. The following coverages also apply to loss caused by or resulting from an accident to covered 
equipment:
(1) Expediting Expenses

With respect to damaged "real property" or "personal property", we will pay the reasonable 
extra costs to:
(a) Make temporary repairs; and
(b) Expedite permanent repairs or replacement.



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 10 of 34

(2) Perishable Goods
We will pay the following:
(a) Loss of perishable goods due to spoilage.
(b) Loss of perishable goods due to contamination from the release of a refrigerant, including 

but not limited to ammonia.
(c) Any necessary expenses you incur to reduce the amount of loss under this extension.  

We will pay for such expenses to the extent that they do not exceed the amount of loss 
that otherwise would have been payable under this extension.

However, we will not pay for loss or damage caused by or resulting from your failure to use 
all reasonable means to protect the perishable goods from damage following an accident.
Perishable goods means "personal property", maintained under controlled conditions for its 
preservation, that is susceptible to loss, damage, or spoilage if the controlled conditions 
change.

(3) Hazardous Substances
We will pay for the additional costs to repair or replace "real property" or "personal property" 
because of contamination by a hazardous substance, including the additional costs to clean 
up or dispose of such property.  Additional costs means those beyond what would have been 
required had no hazardous substance been involved.
The most we will pay for loss or damage under the Hazardous Substances coverage, 
including the actual "loss of income" you sustain, the necessary "extra expense" you incur, 
and the loss of or damage to perishable goods due to contamination from a hazardous 
substance is $25,000 per accident.
Hazardous substance means any substance other than ammonia that has been declared to 
be hazardous to health by a governmental agency.

(4) Service Interruption
The insurance provided for "loss of income", "extra expense", and perishable goods is 
extended to apply to loss caused by or resulting from an accident to equipment that is owned 
by a utility, landlord or other supplier with whom you have a contract to provide you with any 
of the following services: electrical power, communications, waste disposal, air conditioning, 
refrigeration, heating, gas, air, water or steam.

(5) Off-"Premises" Accidents
Coverage is extended to apply to an accident to the following types of equipment anywhere in 
the "policy territory":
(a) Mobile cascade units;
(b) Mobile internal combustion engines used solely as part of an emergency generating unit;
(c) Electrical generators used solely as part of an emergency generating unit;
(d) Portable pumping units; and
(e) Portable extrication devices, such as jaws-of-life, whether hydraulic or air powered.

c. Conditions
(1) Suspension

When any covered equipment is found to be in, or exposed to, a dangerous condition, any of 
our representatives may immediately suspend the insurance against loss from an accident to 
that covered equipment.  We can do this by mailing or delivering a written notice of 



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 11 of 34

suspension to your address as shown in the Declarations, or at the address where the 
equipment is located.  Once suspended in this way, your insurance can be reinstated only by 
written notice from us.  If we suspend your insurance, you will get a pro-rata refund of 
premium.  But the suspension will be effective even if we have not yet made or offered a 
refund.  We will not consider firefighting or other emergency service activities, or training 
related to such activities, as a dangerous condition within the context of this provision.

(2) Jurisdictional Inspections
If any property that is covered equipment under this extension requires inspection to comply 
with state or municipal boiler and pressure vessel regulations, we agree to perform such 
inspections on your behalf.

d. Except for the Hazardous Substances limit specified above, the most we will pay for loss or 
damage under this extension is the applicable Limit of Insurance shown in the Declarations.

17. Fire Extinguishing Equipment Recharge Costs

a. We will pay the necessary and reasonable cost to recharge or refill your fire extinguishing 
equipment, including both hand-held extinguishers and fixed automatic extinguishing systems, as 
a result of:
(1) Their discharge as a result of a "covered cause of loss"; or
(2) Their accidental discharge in the absence of a "covered cause of loss".

b. This extension applies regardless of whether the fire extinguishing equipment itself is damaged.
c. The fire extinguishing equipment must be for the protection of and located at a "premises".
d. No deductible applies to this extension.

18. Limited Coverage for Fungus, Wet Rot, Dry Rot and Bacteria

a. The coverage described in 18.b and 18.e. of this extension applies only when the "fungus", wet 
rot, dry rot or bacteria is the result of one or more of the following causes that occurs during the 
policy period and only if all reasonable means were used to save and preserve the property from 
further damage at the time of and after that occurrence:
(1) A "specified cause of loss" other than fire or lightning; or
(2) "Flood", except if the Flood Exclusion endorsement is attached.

b. We will pay for loss or damage by "fungus", wet rot, dry rot or bacteria.  As used in this extension, 
the term loss or damage means:
(1) Direct physical loss or damage to covered "real property" or covered "personal property" 

caused by "fungus", wet rot, dry rot or bacteria, including the cost of removal of the "fungus", 
wet rot, dry rot or bacteria;

(2) The cost to tear out and replace any part of the building or other property as needed to gain 
access to the "fungus", wet rot, dry rot or bacteria; and

(3) The cost of testing performed after removal, repair, replacement or restoration of the 
damaged property is completed, provided there is reason to believe that "fungus", wet rot, dry 
rot or bacteria are present.



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 12 of 34

c. The coverage described under 18.b. of this extension is limited to $25,000.  Regardless of the 
number of claims, this limit is the most we will pay for total of all loss or damage arising out of all 
occurrences of "specified causes of loss" (other than fire or lightning) and "flood" which take place 
in a 12 month period (starting with the beginning of the present annual policy period).  With 
respect to a particular occurrence of loss which results in "fungus", wet rot, dry rot or bacteria, we 
will not pay more than a total of $25,000 even if the "fungus", wet rot, dry rot or bacteria continues 
to be present or active, or recurs, in a later policy period.

d. The coverage provided under this extension does not increase the applicable Limit of Insurance 
on any covered "real property" or covered "personal property".  If a particular occurrence results 
in loss or damage by "fungus", wet rot, dry rot or bacteria, and other loss or damage, we will not 
pay more, for the total of all loss or damage, than the applicable Limit of Insurance on the 
affected covered "real property" or covered "personal property".
If there is covered loss or damage to covered "real property" or covered "personal property" not 
caused by "fungus", wet rot, dry rot or bacteria, loss payment will not be limited by the terms of 
this extension, except to the extent that "fungus", wet rot, dry rot or bacteria causes an increase 
in the loss.  Any such increase in the loss will be subject to the terms of this extension.

e. Under Coverage C. "Loss of Income" or Coverage D. "Extra Expense":
(1) If the loss which resulted in "fungus", wet rot, dry rot or bacteria does not in itself necessitate 

an interruption of "operations", but such interruption is necessary due to loss or damage to 
property caused by "fungus", wet rot, dry rot or bacteria, then our payment under Coverage C 
and/or Coverage D is limited to the amount of "loss of income" and/or "extra expense" 
sustained in a period of not more than 30 days.  The days need not be consecutive.

(2) If a covered interruption of "operations" was caused by loss or damage other than "fungus", 
wet rot, dry rot or bacteria but remediation of "fungus", wet rot, dry rot or bacteria prolongs the 
"period of restoration", we will pay for "loss of income" and/or "extra expense" sustained 
during the delay (regardless of when such a delay occurs during the "period of restoration"), 
but such coverage is limited to 30 days.  The days need not be consecutive.

19. Arson Fire Information Reward

We will reimburse you for the payment of rewards that you actually incur which provide information 
related to arson fire.  For the purposes of this extension, covered property means property covered by 
this coverage part or any other coverage part issued to you by this company.  This reimbursement is 
subject to compliance with all of the following conditions:
a. Conditions

(1) Your covered property at a "premises" is damaged or destroyed by a fire that is declared to 
be an arson fire by the appropriate civil authority;

(2) You pay reward(s) for information about the causes of such arson fire to persons who would 
not normally make reports and who did not make such report before the potential of a reward 
was announced;

(3) Such information is presented to the investigative authorities within 90 days after the start of 
the arson fire;

(4) Such reported information for which you paid a reward contributes directly and significantly to 
the arrest and conviction of those causing the arson fire; and



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 13 of 34

(5) Your intention to pay such reward or your payment of such reward is reported to us within 15 
days of the date on which the appropriate arson fire investigative authority receives the 
information.

b. Regardless of the number of people who provide information about the arson fire, the most we 
will pay for all reward payments related to any one arson fire, or series of related arson fires 
committed by the same arsonist(s), is $25,000 per loss.

c. No deductible applies to this extension.
Our reimbursement to you for the arson fire information rewards that you pay does not limit in any 
way your ability to offer or not offer and pay or not pay rewards for arson fire information related to 
covered property.

20. Fine Arts

a. We will pay for direct physical loss or damage caused by or resulting from a "covered cause of 
loss" to "fine arts" owned by you and for which you have secured a certified appraisal prior to the 
loss.  
(1) The value of "fine arts" will be the least of the following amounts:

(a) The fair market value of the object at the time of loss;
(b) The cost of reasonably restoring the object to its condition immediately before loss; or
(c) The cost of replacing the object with a substantially identical object.

(2) The most we will pay for loss under paragraph a.(1) is $50,000 in any one occurrence.
b. We will also pay for direct physical loss or damage caused by or resulting from a "covered cause 

of loss" to "fine arts" for which you have not secured a certified appraisal prior to the loss. 
(1) The value of "fine arts" will be the least of the following amounts:

(a) The fair market value of the object at the time of loss;
(b) The cost of reasonably restoring the object to its condition immediately before loss;  
(c) The cost of replacing the object with a substantially identical object; or
(d) $1,500 per item.

(2) The most we will pay for loss under paragraph b.(1) is $25,000 in any one occurrence.  This 
limit of insurance is in addition to the amount provided under Paragraph a.(2) above.

As used in this extension, fair market value means the cash value that the object of "fine arts" would 
bring in an open and unrestricted market between a willing buyer and a willing seller who are both 
knowledgeable, informed and prudent, and who are acting independently of each other.

21. Lock and Key Replacement

a. We will pay the necessary expense you incur to replace locks, lock cylinders and keys, electronic 
or otherwise, necessitated by:
(1) A covered theft of your covered property; or
(2) Damage to the lock as a result of a "covered cause of loss".  
For the purposes of this extension, covered property means property covered by this coverage 
part or any other coverage part issued to you by this company.  Coverage applies if there is a 



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 14 of 34

loss of covered property by a covered theft even if the keys are not known to be missing or 
copied.

b. Additional Conditions
(1) You must notify us and the appropriate law enforcement authority of the theft as soon as 

practicable;
(2) Locks, lock cylinders and keys must be replaced within 72 hours of the discovery of the theft, 

or as soon as practicable; and
(3) Coverage under this extension applies to disappearance of keys only if other covered 

property is stolen or missing.
c. Coverage under this extension applies only to locks, lock cylinders and keys located at a 

"premises" described in the declarations.
d. We will pay to replace the locks, lock cylinders and keys with property of the same kind and 

quality without deduction for deterioration or depreciation.  
e. The most we will pay in any one occurrence for coverage under this extension is $25,000.
f. No deductible applies to this extension.

22. Member's Property

a. We will pay for direct physical loss or damage, resulting from a "covered cause of loss", to 
property while at your "premises" that is owned by your volunteer, "employee", director, officer or 
trustee.  

b. The most we will pay in any one occurrence for coverage under this extension is $5,000.
c. This coverage is primary and will apply regardless of any other insurance coverage which may be 

available to the owner of the property.
d. No deductible applies to this extension.
As used in this extension, member's property includes, but is not limited to computers, game consoles 
and associated software, all-terrain vehicles, snowmobiles, golf carts, "watercraft", personal 
watercraft, tools and firearms.  Member's property does not include:

1. "Personal effects";
2. "Money" and "securities";
3. "Fine arts";
4. Animals;
5. Aircraft or its parts, accessories and equipment; or
6. "Vehicles".

23. Member's Real Property Deductible Reimbursement

a. We will reimburse your volunteer, "employee", director, officer or trustee for the amount of the 
deductible applied under their personal insurance for direct physical loss or damage to owned 
"real property" at their residence premises due to a "covered cause of loss".  The loss must occur 
while the volunteer, "employee", director, officer or trustee is enroute to, engaged in, or returning 



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 15 of 34

from an "emergency situation" at the direction and knowledge of an officer of the insured 
organization.

b. The most we will pay per member in any one occurrence for coverage under this extension is 
$1,000.

c. No deductible applies to this extension.

24. Permanently Installed Outdoor Property 

a. We will pay up to the "replacement cost" for direct physical loss or damage to your outdoor 
property caused by or resulting from a "covered cause of loss".

b. The most we will pay in any one occurrence for coverage under this extension is $125,000. 
As used in this extension, outdoor property means property that is permanently installed away from 
your "premises" and includes, but is not limited to the following:  traffic control devices, signs, statues, 
monuments and fire hydrants.  Outdoor property does not include "real property" or "personal 
property".  

25. Unintentional Omission of Real Property

a. If you unintentionally omit "real property" from an application for insurance or unintentionally fail to 
report all "real property" prior to the beginning of the policy period, we will pay for direct physical 
loss or damage by a "covered cause of loss" to such "real property" that qualifies as "real 
property" but is not shown in the Declarations due to such unintentional omission or failure to 
report.

b. You agree to pay the additional premium for the "real property" as of the effective date of the 
policy.

c. The most we will pay in any one occurrence for coverage under this extension is $500,000.

26. Vehicle Stock

a. We will pay for direct physical loss or damage caused by or resulting from a "covered cause of 
loss" to "vehicle stock" owned by you and stored inside a building or at a "premises".  

b. The most we will pay for coverage under this extension in any one occurrence is $25,000.

27. Utility Service Interruption Coverage

a. Coverage
Your coverage for "loss of income" and "extra expense" is extended to apply to a suspension of 
"operations" at your "premises" caused by an interruption in utility service to that "premises" 
during the "period of restoration". The interruption in utility service must result from direct physical 
loss or damage by a "covered cause of loss" to the property described in Paragraph c. 



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 16 of 34

b. Exception
Coverage under this endorsement does not apply to "loss of income" or "extra expense" related 
to interruption in utility service which causes loss or damage to "software", including destruction 
or corruption of "software". 

c. Utility Service 
(1) Water Supply Service, meaning the following types of property supplying water to your 

"premises": 
(a) Pumping stations; and 
(b) Water mains. 

(2) Communication Supply Service, meaning property supplying communication services, 
including telephone, radio, microwave or television services, to your "premises", such as: 
(a) Communication transmission lines, including optic fiber transmission lines; 
(b) Coaxial cables; and 
(c) Microwave radio relays except satellites. 

(3) Wastewater Removal Property, meaning a utility system for removing wastewater and 
sewage from the described premises, other than a system designed primarily for draining 
storm water. The utility property includes sewer mains, pumping stations and similar 
equipment for moving the effluent to a holding, treatment or disposal facility, and includes 
such facilities. 
Coverage under this extension does not apply to interruption in service caused by or resulting 
from a discharge of water or sewage due to heavy rainfall or flooding.

(4) Power Supply Service, meaning the following types of property supplying electricity, steam or 
gas to your "premises": 
(a) Utility generating plants; 
(b) Switching stations; 
(c) Substations; 
(d) Transformers; and 
(e) Transmission lines. 

d. For the purposes of this extension only, the definition of "period of restoration" is replaced by the 
following:
"Period of restoration" means the period of time after direct physical loss or damage to the 
property described in Paragraph c. that: 
(1) Begins: 

(a) 72 hours after the initial interruption in Utility Services for "loss of income"; or
(b) Immediately after the initial interruption in Utility Services for "extra expense";

and 
(2) Ends when the Utility Service is restored.
"Period of restoration" does not include any increased period required due to the enforcement of 
any ordinance or law that:

(a) Requires any insured or others to incur "remediation expenses"; or
(b) Pertains to "fungus", wet rot, dry rot, bacteria, or asbestos.



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 17 of 34

The expiration date of this policy will not cut short the "period of restoration". 
f. No deductible applies to this extension.

SECTION III.  COVERED CAUSES OF LOSS

"Covered cause of loss" means any cause of direct physical loss or damage except as excluded below.

Exclusions

We will not pay for loss or damage caused by or resulting directly or indirectly from the following causes, 
or occurring in the following situations.  Such loss or damage is excluded regardless of any other cause 
or event that contributes concurrently with or before, during, or after the loss or damage.  But we will 
cover resulting fire or explosion, meaning a fire or explosion that results from any cause of loss other than 
"war", whether or not that cause of loss itself is covered under this coverage part.

1. "War"
2. "Nuclear Activity"
3. "Government Activity"
4. Nesting or Infestation

Nesting or infestation, or the discharge or release of waste products or secretions, caused by any 
insects, birds, rodents or other animals.

5. Neglect
Neglect meaning your failure to take all reasonable steps to protect your property when it is 
threatened with loss or damage and to take all reasonable steps to protect your property from further 
loss after loss or damage occurs.

6. Earth Movement
Earth movement meaning any sinking, rising, shifting, freezing, thawing, erosion, compaction or 
expansion of the earth, including mine subsidence.  But we will cover "earthquake", "volcanic action", 
landslide or "sinkhole collapse".

7. Building Settlement
Settling, shrinking, cracking, bulging or expansion of any pavement, building or structure.

8. Dishonesty
Dishonest acts or omissions of you or your volunteers or "employees", or anyone authorized to act for 
you, or anyone to whom you entrust property, whether an individual is acting alone or in collusion with 
others.

9. Vacancy
Freezing, leakage or overflow from plumbing, heating, air conditioning or any other equipment or 
appliance in a "vacant" or unoccupied building unless:
a. You have taken reasonable steps to maintain heat in the building; or
b. Water was drained from the system or appliance involved, and the water supply was shut off 

while the building was "vacant" or unoccupied.



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 18 of 34

Also, we will not cover damage to plumbing systems located outside the perimeter of building walls or 
off the "premises" that results from freezing.

10. Delay, Loss of Use
Delay and loss of use or because you can no longer sell or use property, except as specifically 
provided in Coverage C.

11. Mysterious Disappearance
Mysterious disappearance of property or an inventory shortage.

12. Wear and Tear
Wear and tear, deterioration, rust, corrosion, marring or scratching, erosion, decomposition, and 
decay.  However, we will cover resulting loss or damage not otherwise excluded caused by "vehicles" 
or aircraft, "sprinkler leakage", water damage, freezing, collapse of a building or falling objects.

13. Fungus, Wet Rot, Dry Rot and Bacteria
The presence, growth, proliferation, spread or any activity of "fungus", wet or dry rot or bacteria, 
including loss, damage or "remediation expenses" resulting from any of these.  But if "fungus", wet 
rot, dry rot or bacteria results in a "specified cause of loss", we will pay for the loss or damage caused 
by that "specified cause of loss".  This exclusion does not apply:
a. When "fungus", wet rot, dry rot or bacteria results from fire or lightning; or
b. To the extent coverage is provided in the Limited Coverage for Fungus, Wet Rot, Dry Rot or 

Bacteria coverage extension.
14. "Pollution Conditions", except to the extent coverage is provided in the Pollution Remediation 

Expenses coverage extension.
15. Remediation Expenses

"Remediation expenses" except to the extent coverage is provided in the Pollution Remediation 
Expenses coverage extension.

16. Asbestos
Asbestos, including loss, damage or "remediation expenses" resulting from asbestos or asbestos-
containing materials.

17. Mechanical Breakdown
Mechanical breakdown, but this exclusion does not apply to "hardware" or to any coverage provided 
in the Equipment Breakdown coverage extension.

18. Steam Vessels
Rupture, bursting or explosion of steam boilers, steam pipes, steam turbines or steam engines except 
to the extent coverage is provided in the Equipment Breakdown coverage extension.

19. Inherent Vice
Inherent vice meaning a natural condition of property that causes it to deteriorate or become 
damaged.  Examples of inherent vice are the yellowing and cracking of old paper, patina that forms 
on old bronze and the swelling of wood under moist conditions.

20. Latent Defects
Latent defects meaning faults or weaknesses in property itself.

21. Faulty Design and Workmanship



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 19 of 34

Faulty design, workmanship and material including the cost of correcting any faulty design, 
workmanship, material, manufacture or installation, alteration, repair or work on covered "real 
property" or "personal property".  But we will cover loss or damage that results from any of these, if 
the loss or damage occurs in connection with any cause of loss not otherwise excluded by this 
coverage part.  This exclusion does not apply to "hardware". 

22. Vandalism and Malicious Mischief
Vandalism and malicious mischief if the building involved has been "vacant" for more than 60 
consecutive days immediately before the loss.

23. Loss of Contract or Strike
"Loss of income" or "extra expense" resulting from:
a. Loss of contract, meaning a loss that results from the expiration, suspension or cancellation of 

any contract, lease or order, or 
b. Strike, meaning interference by strikers or other persons with your "operations", or with the repair, 

rebuilding or replacement of property at the location of the repair, rebuilding or replacement, or 
with the resumption of your "operations".

24. Seepage or Leakage of Water
Continuous or repeated seepage or leakage of water, or the presence or condensation of humidity, 
moisture or vapor, that occurs over a period of 14 days or more.

SECTION IV.  WHAT WE WILL PAY

A. Limits of Insurance
1. The most we will pay for loss or damage in any one occurrence is the applicable Limit of 

Insurance shown in the Declarations, except as provided in the guaranteed "replacement cost" 
provision.  

2. If we pay the limit for any one occurrence, that will not reduce the applicable limit for any future 
covered loss resulting from an unrelated occurrence.

3. All "earthquakes" or "volcanic actions" that occur within a continuous 168 hour period will 
constitute a single occurrence under this coverage part.

4. All "floods" that occur within a continuous 168 hour period will constitute a single occurrence 
under this coverage part.

B. Valuation – Coverage A.  Real Property

1. If "replacement cost" valuation for Coverage A is indicated in the Declarations or in an 
endorsement attached to this coverage part, we will not pay more than the Coverage A limit 
applicable to the lost or damaged "real property".  Subject to that limit, we will pay the 
"replacement cost" of any loss or damage to "real property", less any deductible that applies, so 
long as:
a. The loss or damage to "real property" is actually repaired or replaced;
b. The repairs to or replacement of the "real property" are made within one year of the loss or 

damage;
c. The repairs or replacements restore the "real property" to the same use; and



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 20 of 34

d. The repairs to or replacement of the "real property" are of the same kind and quality and at 
the same "premises" as the "real property" suffering the loss or damage, however:
(1) You may substitute property of a different kind or quality, but we won’t pay more than 

what it would cost to repair or replace the loss or damage to the "real property" with 
property of comparable kind and quality; and

(2) You may replace the "real property" suffering the loss or damage at a different location, 
but we won’t pay more than what it would cost to replace the loss or damage to the "real 
property" at the original "premises".

2. a. Subject to the provisions of subparagraphs a. - d. of paragraph 1. above, if guaranteed 
"replacement cost" valuation for Coverage A is indicated in the Declarations or in an 
endorsement attached to this coverage part, and the cost to replace loss or damage to "real 
property" is more than the Coverage A limit accepted by us, we will nevertheless pay the 
entire "replacement cost" less any deductible that applies.

b. This guaranteed "replacement cost" provision for Coverage A is contingent on:
(1) Your purchasing an amount of insurance accepted and kept on file by us;
(2) Your promptly advising us of any changes made to your "real property" which would 

change the cost to replace it, and adjusting the amount of insurance accordingly; and
(3) Your purchasing an amount of insurance on each policy anniversary equal to an adjusted 

cost figure.  This adjusted cost figure will be calculated from the original amount plus any 
changes made to your "real property" and will be modified by an automatic inflation 
adjustment factor applicable to your "real property".

C. Valuation – Coverage B.  Personal Property

1. If "replacement cost" valuation for Coverage B is indicated in the Declarations or in an 
endorsement attached to this coverage part, we will not pay more than the Coverage B limit 
applicable to the lost or damaged "personal property".  Subject to that limit, we will pay the 
"replacement cost" of any loss or damage to "personal property", less any deductible that applies, 
so long as:
a. The loss or damage to "personal property" is actually repaired or replaced;
b. The repairs to or replacement of the "personal property" are made within one year after the 

loss or damage;
c. The repairs or replacements restore the "personal property" to the same use; and
d. The repairs to or replacement of the "personal property" are of the same kind and quality as 

the "personal property" suffering the loss or damage.
2. a. Subject to the provisions of subparagraphs a. - d. of paragraph 1. above, if guaranteed 

"replacement cost" valuation for Coverage B is indicated in the Declarations or in an 
endorsement attached to this coverage part, and the cost to replace loss or damage to 
"personal property" is more than the Coverage B limit accepted by us, we will nevertheless 
pay the entire "replacement cost" less any deductible that applies.

b. This guaranteed "replacement cost" provision for Coverage B is contingent on:
(1) Your purchasing an amount of insurance accepted and kept on file by us;
(2) Your promptly advising us of any changes made to your "personal property" which would 

change the cost to replace it, and adjusting the amount of insurance accordingly; and



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 21 of 34

(3) Your purchasing an amount of insurance on each policy anniversary equal to an adjusted 
cost figure.  This adjusted cost figure will be calculated from the original amount plus any 
changes to the "personal property", and will be modified by an automatic inflation 
adjustment factor applicable to your "personal property".

3. When guaranteed "replacement cost" applies to Coverage B, "personal property" does not 
include portable equipment.  Portable equipment means portable firefighting, ambulance, or 
rescue related equipment, including portable communications equipment, commonly used in fire 
and rescue operations away from your "premises".

D. Valuation – Coverage C.  Loss of Income and Coverage D.  Extra Expense

1. The amount of the "loss of income" you sustain due to necessary suspension of your "operations" 
during the "period of restoration" will be based on:
a. Your net income before the direct physical loss or damage occurred;
b. Your likely net income if no loss or damage occurred;
c. The operating expenses, including payroll expenses, necessary to resume your "operations" 

with the same quality of service that existed just before the direct physical loss or damage; 
and

d. Other relevant sources of information, including:
(1) Your financial records and accounting procedures;
(2) Bills, invoices and other vouchers; and
(3) Deeds, liens or contracts.

e. We will reduce the amount of your "loss of income" to the extent you can resume your 
"operations" in whole or in part by using damaged or undamaged property (including 
merchandise or "stock") at the "premises" or elsewhere.

2. The amount of "extra expense" will be determined based on:
a. All expenses that exceed the normal operating expenses that would have been incurred by 

your "operations" during the "period of restoration" if no direct physical loss or damage had 
occurred.  We will deduct from the total of such expenses:
(1) The salvage value that remains of any property bought for temporary use during the 

"period of restoration", once your "operations" are resumed; and
(2) Any "extra expense" that is paid for by other insurance, except for insurance that is 

written subject to the same plan, terms, conditions and provisions as this insurance; and
b. All necessary expenses that reduce the "loss of income" that otherwise would have been 

incurred. 
c. We will reduce the amount of your "extra expense" loss to the extent you can return your 

"operations" to normal and discontinue such "extra expense".
3. If you do not resume your "operations", or do not resume your "operations" as quickly as 

possible, we will pay based on the length of time it would have taken to resume your "operations" 
as soon as possible.

4. If this policy expires before we have paid you all the "loss of income" or "extra expense" to which 
you are entitled for direct physical loss or damage that occurred during the policy period, we will 
continue to make payments after the expiration date.



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 22 of 34

E. Valuation – COVERAGE EXTENSIONS 

1. "Replacement cost" applies to all SECTION II. COVERAGE EXTENSIONS unless stated 
otherwise in the extension, so long as: 
a. The requirements in SECTION IV. B. 1. are met if  "real property" is lost or damaged; or
b. The requirements in SECTION IV. C. 1. are met if "personal property" is lost or damaged. 

F. Deductible

1. We will not pay for loss or damage in any one occurrence until the amount of loss or damage 
exceeds the applicable deductible.  We will then pay the amount of loss or damage in excess of 
the deductible, up to the applicable Limit of Insurance, after any applicable deduction required by 
a coinsurance provision.

2. The deductible shown in the Declarations applies to losses under the following coverages except 
as otherwise specifically indicated:
a. "Real property";
b. "Personal property";
c. "Loss of income";
d. "Extra expense"; and 
e. All coverages provided under SECTION II. COVERAGE EXTENSIONS.

3. If more than one coverage (other than coverage for "earthquake" or "flood") applies to any one 
occurrence, we will subtract the deductible amount only once.  If more than one deductible 
applies, we will subtract the largest applicable deductible unless indicated otherwise in this 
coverage part. 

4. Earthquake Deductible.  A special deductible applies to losses caused by or resulting from 
"earthquake".  Refer to the Declarations.  When a percentage deductible is shown as applicable 
to "earthquake", that percentage will be applied to the sum of the "real property" and "personal 
property" limits shown in the Declarations for each affected "item".  If blanket coverage applies, 
we will determine this sum based on the most recent amounts on file with us for each affected 
"item".  The deductibles determined in accordance with this paragraph shall apply separately to 
each affected "item".  

5. Flood Deductible.  A special deductible applies to each occurrence caused by or resulting from 
"flood".  Refer to the Declarations.  The deductible shown will apply separately to each affected 
"premises". 

6. Deductible Waiver.  If a loss covered under this coverage part also involves a loss under an 
Emergency Service Organization Auto, Portable Equipment or other Inland Marine coverage 
issued to you by us, only one deductible, the largest, will be applied.  The deductible under the 
other policies or coverage parts will be waived.

7. Glass Deductible Waiver.  If a loss covered under this coverage part is limited to damage to 
glass that is part of a building and no other property is included in the loss, the policy deductible 
will be waived.  



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 23 of 34

G. Automatic Inflation Adjustment

1. We will automatically increase your Coverage A and Coverage B limits to keep pace with 
inflation. We will increase the limits by the annual percentage shown in the Declarations for each 
"item".

2. The amount of increase will be:
a. The limit that applied on the most recent of the policy inception date, the policy anniversary 

date, or any change amending the Limit of Insurance, multiplied by
b. The percentage of annual increase shown in the Declarations, multiplied by
c. The number of days since the beginning of the current policy year or the effective date of the 

most recent policy change amending the Limit of Insurance, divided by 365.
3. Where there is a blanket limit for Coverages A and B, the most recent values we used to 

calculate your premium will be used to separate "real property" and "personal property" values, 
the separate values will be increased as if they were separate limits, and the results will be added 
to determine the increase in the blanket limit. 

H. Other Conditions Affecting Property Losses

This sub-section explains special rules that apply to valuing some of the property covered by this 
coverage part.  It also gives you important information about payment for losses.

1. Improvements by a Tenant.  If you are a tenant at a "premises" and property improvements for 
which you paid are lost or damaged by a "covered cause of loss" at the "premises", we will 
reimburse you for repairing or replacing them.  We will pay their "replacement cost" if you repair 
or replace them within a reasonable time after the loss at the "premises".   But we will not cover 
repairs or replacements which were made for your use at someone else's expense.
a. If you do not repair or replace the covered improvements within a reasonable time at the 

"premises", we will pay a portion of their original cost.  This will be the ratio between:
(1) The length of time remaining on your lease at the time of the loss; and
(2) The length of time between the making of the improvements and the expiration of the 

lease.
b. If your lease contains a renewal option, the expiration of the renewal option period will 

replace the expiration of the lease.
c. If you purchased the interest in the use of improvements made by a previous tenant, we will 

cover them as if you had paid for them.
2. Property in Sets.  The loss of an article which is part of a set will not be considered a loss of the 

entire set.  Therefore, if there is loss or damage to property which is part of a set, we will pay a 
fair portion of the total value of the set.

3. Parts.  If the loss or damage is to a part of property that consists of several parts, we will pay for 
only the lost or damaged part.

4. Exhibitions and Displays.  The most we will pay for exhibitions and displays is the amount that 
they cost you.



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 24 of 34

5. Stock. "Stock" you have sold but not delivered will be valued at no more than the selling price 
less discounts and expenses you otherwise would have had.

6. Glass.  Glass will be valued at the cost of replacement with safety glazing material if required by 
law.

SECTION V. CONDITIONS    

The following apply in addition to the Common Policy Conditions. 

1. Abandonment
There can be no abandonment of any property to us.

2. Appraisal
If we cannot agree with you on the amount of the loss, either of us can demand that the following 
procedure be used to settle the amount.
a. You or we will request in writing that the dispute be submitted to appraisal within 60 days from the 

time we receive your proof of loss.  Each will then select an appraiser and notify the other of that 
choice within 20 days of the initial request.

b. The appraisers will select an impartial umpire.  If they cannot agree on an umpire within 15 days, 
either you or we can ask that an umpire be appointed by a judge of the court of record in the 
county where the property is located.

c. The appraisers will appraise each item for its value at the time of loss and the amount of loss.  If 
they can’t agree, they will submit any differences to the umpire.  An agreement in writing by any 
two of these three will determine the amount of the loss.

d. You will pay your appraiser and we will pay ours.  Each will share equally any other costs of the 
appraisal and the umpire.

e. We will not surrender our rights by any act we take relating to an appraisal.

3. Concealment, Misrepresentation or Fraud
This coverage part is void in any case of fraud by you as it relates to this coverage part at any time.  It 
is also void if you or any other insured, at any time, intentionally conceal or misrepresent a material 
fact concerning:
a. This coverage part;
b. The covered property;
c. Your interest in the covered property; or
d. A claim under this coverage part.

4. Control of Property
Any act or neglect of any person other than you, beyond your direction or control, will not affect this 
insurance.
The breach of any condition of this coverage part at any one or more locations will not affect 
coverage at any location where, at the time of loss or damage, the breach of condition does not exist.



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 25 of 34

5. Duties in the Event of Loss or Damage
a. You must see that the following are done in the event of loss or damage to property insured 

under this coverage part:
(1) Notify the police if a law may have been broken.
(2) Give us prompt notice of the loss or damage.  Include a description of the property involved.
(3) As soon as possible, give us a description of how, when and where the loss or damage 

occurred.
(4) Take all reasonable steps to protect the property from further damage by a "covered cause of 

loss".  If feasible, set the damaged property aside and in the best possible order for 
examination.  Also keep a record of your expenses for emergency and temporary repairs, for 
consideration in the settlement of the claim.  This will not increase the Limit of Insurance.

(5) At our request, give us complete inventories of the damaged and undamaged property.  
Include quantities, costs, values, and amount of loss claimed.  However, if the total claim for 
any loss is less than $10,000, you are not required to provide an inventory of the undamaged 
property.

(6) As often as may be reasonably required, permit us to inspect the property proving the loss or 
damage and examine your books and records.  Also permit us to take samples of damaged 
and undamaged property for inspection, testing and analysis, and permit us to make copies 
from your books and records.

(7) Send us a signed, sworn proof of loss containing the information we request to investigate 
the claim.  You must do this within 60 days after our request.  We will supply you with the 
necessary forms.

(8) Cooperate with us in the investigation or settlement of the claim.
(9) If you intend to continue your "operations", you must resume all or part of them as quickly as 

possible.  If you do not resume your "operations", or do not resume your "operations" as 
quickly as possible, we will pay based on the length of time it would have taken to resume 
your "operations" as soon as possible.

b. We may examine any insured under oath, while not in the presence of any other insured and at 
such times as may be reasonably required, about any matter relating to this insurance or the 
claim, including an insured's books and records.  In the event of an examination, an insured's 
answers must be signed.

6. Insurance Under Two or More Coverages
If two or more coverages of this coverage part apply to the same loss or damage, we will not pay 
more than the actual amount of the loss or damage.

7. Legal Action Against Us
No one may bring a legal action against us under this coverage part unless:
a. There has been full compliance with all of the terms of this coverage part; and
b. The action is brought within 2 years after the date on which the direct physical loss or damage 

occurred.



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 26 of 34

8. Loss Payment
a. In the event of loss or damage covered by this coverage part, at our option, we will either:

(1) Pay the value of lost or damaged property;
(2) Pay the cost of repairing or replacing the lost or damaged property;
(3) Take all or any part of the property at an agreed or appraised value; or
(4) Repair, rebuild or replace the property with other property of like kind and quality.

b. We will give notice of our intentions within 30 days after we receive the sworn proof of loss.
c. We will not pay you more than your financial interest in the property.
d. We may adjust losses with the owners of lost or damaged property if other than you.  If we pay 

the owners, such payments will satisfy your claims against us for the owners’ property.  We will 
not pay the owners more than their financial interest in the property.

e. We may elect to defend you against suits arising from claims of owners of property.  We will do 
this at our expense.

f. We will pay for covered loss or damage within 30 days after we receive the sworn proof of loss if:
(1) You have complied with all of the terms of this coverage part; and
(2) We have reached agreement with you on the amount of loss, or an appraisal award has been 

made.

9. Mortgage Holders
a. The term mortgage holder includes trustee.
b. We will pay for covered loss of or damage to buildings or structures to each mortgage holder 

shown in the Declarations in their order of precedence, as interests may appear.
c. The mortgage holder has the right to receive loss payment even if the mortgage holder has 

started foreclosure or similar action on the building or structure.
d. If we deny your claim because of your acts or because you have failed to comply with the terms 

of this coverage part, the mortgage holder will still have the right to receive loss payment if the 
mortgage holder:
(1) Pays any premium due under this coverage part at our request if you have failed to do so;
(2) Submits a signed, sworn statement of loss within 60 days after receiving notice from us of 

your failure to do so; and
(3) Has notified us of any change in ownership, occupancy or substantial change in risk known to 

the mortgage holder.
All of the terms of this coverage part will then apply directly to the mortgage holder.

e. If we pay the mortgage holder for any loss or damage and deny payment to you because of your 
acts or because you have failed to comply with the terms of this coverage part:
(1) The mortgage holder's rights under the mortgage will be transferred to us to the extent of the 

amount we pay; and
(2) The mortgage holder's right to recover the full amount of the mortgage holder's claim will not 

be impaired.
At our option we may pay to the mortgage holder the whole principal on the mortgage plus any 
accrued interest.  In this event, your mortgage and note will be transferred to us and you will pay 
your remaining mortgage debt to us.



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 27 of 34

f. If we cancel this coverage part, we will give written notice to the mortgage holder at least:
(1) 10 days before the effective date of cancellation if we cancel for your nonpayment of 

premium; or
(2) 30 days before the effective date of cancellation if we cancel for any other reason.

g. If we elect not to renew this coverage part, we will give written notice to the mortgage holder at 
least 10 days before the expiration date of this policy.

10. No Benefit to Bailee
No person or organization, other than you, having custody of covered property will benefit from this 
insurance.

11. Other Insurance
a. You may have other insurance subject to the same plan, terms, conditions and provisions as the 

insurance under this coverage part.  If you do, we will pay our share of the covered loss or 
damage.  Our share is the proportion that the applicable Limit of Insurance under this coverage 
part bears to the Limits of Insurance of all insurance covering on the same basis.

b. If there is other insurance covering the same loss or damage, other than that described in a. 
above, we will pay only for the amount of covered loss or damage in excess of the amount due 
from that other insurance, whether you can collect it or not.  But we will not pay more than the 
applicable Limit of Insurance.

12. Policy Period, Policy Territory  
We will cover loss or damage commencing:
a. During the policy period shown in the Declarations; and
b. Within the "policy territory".

13. Recovered Property
If either you or we recover any property after loss settlement, that party must give the other prompt 
notice.  At your option, the property will be returned to you.  You must then return to us the amount 
we paid to you for the property.  We will pay recovery expenses and the expenses to repair the 
recovered property, subject to the Limit of Insurance.

14. Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against Others To Us
If any person or organization to or for whom we make payment under this coverage part has rights to 
recover damages from another, those rights are transferred to us to the extent of our payment.  That 
person or organization must do everything necessary to secure our rights and must do nothing after 
loss to impair them.  But you may waive your rights against another party in writing:
a. Prior to a loss to your covered property or covered income;
b. After a loss to your covered property or covered income only if, at time of loss, that party is one of 

the following:
(1) Someone insured by this insurance;
(2) An organization owned by or controlled by you;



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 28 of 34

(3) An organization that owns you or controls you; or
(4) Your tenant.

This will not restrict your insurance.

15. Coinsurance
If a coinsurance percentage is shown in the Declarations, or in an endorsement attached to this 
coverage part, for any of your "real property" or "personal property", the following condition applies.
a. We will not pay the full amount of any loss if the value of the property at the time of loss, 

multiplied by the coinsurance percentage shown for it, is greater than the Limit of Insurance for 
the property.
Instead, we will determine the most we will pay using the following steps:
1. Multiply the value of the property at the time of loss by the coinsurance percentage;
2. Divide the Limit of Insurance of the property by the figure determined in step 1.;
3. Multiply the total amount of loss, before the application of any deductible, by the figure 

determined in step 2.; and
4. Subtract the deductible from the figure determined in step 3.
We will pay the amount determined in step 4. or the Limit of Insurance, whichever is less.  For the 
remainder, you will either have to rely on other insurance or absorb the loss yourself.

b. Example (Underinsurance):  The value of the property is $250,000.  The coinsurance percentage 
for it is 90%.  The Limit of Insurance for it is $100,000.  The deductible is $500.  The amount of 
loss is $40,000.
1. Step (1):  $250,000  x  90%  = $225,000 (this is the minimum amount of insurance needed to 

meet your coinsurance requirement)
2. Step (2):  $100,000  ÷  $225,000  =  .44
3. Step (3):   $40,000   x  .44  =  $17,600
4. Step (4):   $17,600  -  $500  =  $17,100
We will pay no more than $17,100.  The remaining $22,900 is not covered.

c. You agree to keep the property insured for a portion of its value.  That portion is the coinsurance 
percentage shown in the Declarations or in an endorsement attached to this coverage part.  In 
computing this amount, we use the property's "replacement cost" or its "actual cash value", 
whichever is indicated.

d. We compute the minimum amount of insurance you are required to carry based on the property's 
value at the time a loss occurs.  In determining the property's value for this coinsurance 
agreement, we do not include the following:
1. The value of property covered under SECTION II. COVERAGE EXTENSIONS;
2. The value of excavations; or
3. The value of brick, stone or concrete foundations, including foundations of machinery or 

boilers, which are below the surface of the building's basement floor.  If the building has no 
basement, we don't include the value of brick, stone, or concrete below the surface of the 
ground and inside the foundation walls when we compute the value of the building.  Nor do 
we include the value of underground flues, pipes or drains.

e. If your property is insured for the minimum amount required, this coinsurance agreement won't 
have any effect on what we will pay for a covered loss.  We will pay up to the applicable coverage 



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 29 of 34

limit.  But if your property is insured for less than the minimum amount required, we will only pay 
part of your loss and you must pay the rest.

f. When coinsurance applies, it will apply separately to each coverage limit for "real property" or 
"personal property" covered under this policy, unless specifically amended.  However, 
coinsurance will not apply to losses which are less than $10,000.

g. When "actual cash value" is indicated as the valuation basis for "real property" or "personal 
property" in the Declarations or in an endorsement attached to this coverage part, the most we 
will pay for loss or damage is the smallest of the following:
1. the coverage limit which applies to that property;
2. the "actual cash value" of the lost or damaged property; or
3. the amount which you actually spend to repair or replace the lost or damaged property with 

property of comparable kind or quality.  You may substitute property of a different kind or 
quality, but we won't pay more than what it would cost to replace the lost or damaged 
property with property of comparable kind and quality.

h. When "real property" is insured on a "replacement cost" basis, coinsurance shall apply to 
paragraph a., but not to paragraphs b. or c., of Extension 1. Ordinance Coverage.

SECTION VI.  DEFINITIONS

1. "Accounts receivable costs" mean:
a. Accounts receivable due to you but which you can't collect;
b. Extra collection costs you incur to collect accounts receivable due to you;
c. Interest charges on loans you have been required to obtain to compensate for accounts 

receivable you can't collect when due; and
d. Reasonable costs of replacing your accounts receivable records.
"Accounts receivable costs" also include losses or costs you incur if you have to remove accounts 
receivable records from a "premises" to a place of safety in order to protect them from the threat of a 
"covered cause of loss".   Accounts receivable are amounts owed to you by those with whom you 
deal.

2. "Actual cash value" is calculated as the amount it would cost to repair or replace the damaged or 
destroyed property, at the time of loss or damage, with material of like kind and quality, subject to a 
deduction for deterioration, depreciation and obsolescence.  "Actual cash value" applies to the 
valuation of property regardless of whether that property has sustained partial or total loss or 
damage.  The "actual cash value" of such property may be significantly less than its "replacement 
cost".

3. "Computer virus" means a computer program or computer code which is entered into your computer 
system without your knowledge, and which causes a disruption of normal program or computer 
system operation, but it does not mean an error in design or a programming error.

4. "Covered cause of loss" is defined in SECTION III. COVERED CAUSES OF LOSS.
5. "Earthquake" means all earthquake shocks that commence after the inception of this insurance, but 

"earthquake" does not include the cost of restoring or remediating land. 
6. "Emergency situation" means an unexpected situation demanding an immediate official action during 

an emergency response.



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 30 of 34

7. "Employees" are people who work for you in the conduct of your ordinary activities, in return for a 
salary, wages or commissions. In order to be considered an "employee", a person must be subject to 
your exclusive direction in the performance of his or her activities.  Contractors and agents are not 
considered to be "employees".

8. "Extra expense" means expense you incur during the "period of restoration" over and above your 
ordinary expenses, which are necessary to avoid or minimize the suspension of your "operations" and 
return to your normal "operations" after direct physical loss or damage to "real property" or "personal 
property" at a "premises".  "Extra expenses" include expenses you incur to continue your normal 
"operations" at a temporary location or with substitute equipment.  The most we will pay is described 
under SECTION IV. WHAT WE WILL PAY.

9. "Fine arts" means property that is rare or that has historic or artistic value, including antiques, rare 
articles, etchings, pictures, statuary, marbles, bronzes, porcelains and similar property.

10. "Flood" means a general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of normally dry 
land areas due to:
a. The overflow of inland or tidal waters; or
b. The unusual or rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source.
Flooding must commence after the inception of this insurance.  If the "flood" is due to the overflow of 
inland or tidal waters, the "flood" is considered to begin when the water first overflows its banks.  With 
respect to "flood", we will not pay for loss or damage caused by or resulting from the destabilization of 
land arising from the accumulation of water in subsurface land areas.

11. "Fungus" means any type or form of fungus, including mold or mildew, and any mycotoxins, spores, 
scents or by-products produced or released by fungi.

12. "Government activity" means:
a. The seizure or destruction of property by any government body, including any customs or 

quarantine action; or
b. Confiscation or destruction of property by order of any government or public authority, except an 

order to destroy property to prevent the spread of fire or explosion.
13. "Hardware" means computers and their electronic data processing parts and equipment which 

accept, utilize and process raw information for conversion to machine readable form.
14. "Item" means a building or structure at a "premises".
15. "Loss of income" including rental value means the net income (net profit or loss before income taxes) 

that would have been earned in your "operations" during the "period of restoration".  "Loss of income" 
includes continuing normal operating expenses incurred, including payroll.  

16. "Money" means currency, coins, bank notes, bullion, travelers checks, registered checks and money 
orders held for sale.

17. "Nuclear activity" means loss from nuclear reaction, nuclear radiation or radioactive contamination, 
whether deliberate or accidental, controlled or uncontrolled, and whether or not the loss is direct or 
indirect, proximate or remote, or is contributed to or aggravated by a "covered cause of loss".  But it 
does not include explosion, fire or smoke.

18. "Operations" means:
a. Your official activities as an emergency service organization; and
b. The tenantability of a "premises", if coverage for "loss of income" applies to rental value.

19. "Period of restoration" means the period of time that:



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 31 of 34

a. Begins with the date of direct physical loss or damage caused by or resulting from any "covered 
cause of loss" at a "premises"; and

b. Ends at the earliest of:
(1) The date when the property is actually repaired or replaced using reasonable speed and 

similar quality, design, functionality and materials; or
(2) The date when the property could have been repaired and your "operations" could have been 

resumed, if the damaged property had been repaired using similar quality, design, 
functionality and materials; or

(3) Twenty-four consecutive months after the direct physical loss or damage.
"Period of restoration" does not include any increased period required due to the enforcement of any 
ordinance or law that:

(1) Requires any insured or others to incur "remediation expenses"; or
(2) Pertains to "fungus", wet rot, dry rot or bacteria.

The expiration of this policy will not cut short the period of restoration.
20. "Personal effects" means property that belongs to an individual and is devoted primarily to that 

individual's personal use; for example, clothing, eyeglasses, or individually owned portable 
firefighting, ambulance, or rescue related equipment.  "Personal effects" does not include:
a. "Money" and "securities";
b. "Fine arts";
c. Animals;
d. Aircraft or its parts, accessories and equipment;
e. "Watercraft"; or
f. "Vehicles".

21. "Personal property" means all property used in your "operations", other than "real property", including 
but not limited to furnishings and equipment, building contents, "hardware", communication systems, 
base stations and dispatching systems, provided the property is on your "premises" and also 
provided:
a. You own the property; or 
b. The property is in your custody or control, and you are responsible for it, even though it belongs 

to someone else.
"Personal property" also includes the value of your right to use improvements made as a tenant, if 
you have paid for alterations or additions to any building or structure you don't own.  However, these 
improvements must be at a "premises".
"Personal property" does not include:

(1)  "Personal effects" belonging to you or your volunteers or "employees";
(2)  Animals;
(3)  "Money" and "securities";
(4)  "Valuable papers and records";
(5)  "Accounts receivable costs";
(6)  "Software";
(7)  "Fine arts" or jewelry;



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 32 of 34

(8)  Aircraft or its parts, accessories and equipment;
(9)  "Watercraft"; or
(10) "Vehicles".

22. "Policy territory" means the United States, its territories and possessions, Puerto Rico and Canada.
23. "Pollution conditions" means the discharge, dispersal, release, seepage, migration, or escape of 

smoke, vapors, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis, toxic chemicals, liquids or gases, hazardous materials, 
waste materials (including medical, infectious and pathological wastes) or electromagnetic fields into 
or upon land or any structures thereon, the atmosphere, or any watercourse or body of water 
including groundwater. 

24. "Premises" means a location described in the Declarations that is owned or legally occupied by you 
and used to conduct your "operations".

25. "Real property" means buildings or structures described in the Declarations as "items", including: 
a. All appurtenant buildings or structures;
b. Completed additions;
c. Additions under construction;
d. Alterations and repairs to the buildings or structures;
e. Permanently installed fixtures, machinery, and equipment;
f. Outdoor fixtures;
g. "Personal property" used for the maintenance and service of buildings or structures, including 

tools, lawn care equipment, and free standing appliances for refrigerating, ventilating, cooking, 
dishwashing and laundering;

h. Materials, equipment, supplies and temporary structures you own or for which you are 
responsible, on the "premises" or in the open (including property inside "vehicles") within 1,000 
feet of the "premises", used for making additions, alterations or repairs to buildings or structures 
at the "premises";

i. Paved surfaces such as sidewalks, patios or parking lots; 
j. Air cascade units that are not designed to be used off "premises"; and
k. Exterior signs, meaning neon, automatic, mechanical, electric or other signs either attached to the 

outside of a building or structure, or standing free in the open.
"Real property" does not include:

(1) Land;
(2) Water;
(3) Excavations, grading, or filling; or
(4) Trees, shrubs, plants and lawns except as described in SECTION II. COVERAGE 

EXTENSIONS.
26. "Remediation expenses" are expenses incurred for or in connection with the investigation, monitoring, 

removal, disposal, treatment, or neutralization of "pollution conditions"  to the extent required by:
a. Federal, state or local laws, regulations or statutes, or any subsequent amendments thereof, 

enacted to address "pollution conditions"; or
b. A legally executed state voluntary program governing the cleanup of "pollution conditions".



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 33 of 34

27. "Replacement cost" is the amount it would take, following direct physical loss or damage, to replace 
property with property of the same kind and quality, determined at the time of loss, without deduction 
for deterioration, depreciation or obsolescence.  But:
a. "Replacement cost" does not include costs arising out of the enforcement of any ordinance or law 

regulating the construction, use or repair of any property, or requiring the tearing down of any 
property, or the cost of removing its debris; and

b. "Replacement cost" does not apply to "stock".  
28. "Securities" means negotiable and non-negotiable instruments or contracts that represent property or 

obligations to pay "money".  Stamps, including revenue stamps, are "securities"; so are tokens and 
tickets.  However, stamps are covered only for their face value.  "Money" is not considered to be 
"securities".

29. "Sinkhole collapse" means sudden sinking or collapse of land into underground empty space created 
by the action of water on limestone or similar rock formations.  "Sinkhole collapse" does not include 
the cost of filling sinkholes.

30. "Software" includes all forms of computer programs, computer code, and computer readable data 
employed in your "operations".  It also includes the media on which computer programs, computer 
code, or computer readable data are electronically or optically recorded such as magnetic tapes, hard 
disks, floppy disks, compact disks or digital video disks.

31. "Specified cause of loss" means fire, lightning, windstorm or hail, explosion, riot or civil commotion, 
"vehicles" or aircraft, smoke, sonic boom, vandalism and malicious mischief, "sprinkler leakage", 
"sinkhole collapse", "volcanic action", falling objects, weight of ice, snow or sleet, or water damage.  
Water damage means only accidental discharge or leakage of water or steam as the direct result of 
the breaking or cracking of any part of a system or appliance containing water or steam.  "Specified 
cause of loss" does not include "remediation expenses" resulting from the spilling or dripping of 
gasoline, diesel fuel or other pollutants while being delivered by "vehicles" into storage tanks or other 
repositories, and/or when "vehicles" are being fueled.

32. "Sprinkler leakage" means leakage or discharge of any substance from an automatic "sprinkler 
system". It includes the collapse or fall of a tank that is part of a plumbing or an automatic "sprinkler 
system". It also includes damage caused by breakage or freezing to parts of an automatic "sprinkler 
system" installed in a building, if "sprinkler leakage" results from such damage.

33. "Sprinkler system" means an automatic fire protection system.  Sprinkler heads, discharge nozzles 
and ducts, pipes, valves, fittings, tanks, tank parts and supports, pumps, and private fire protection 
systems which are connected to the "sprinkler system" are considered to be part of the system.  So 
are non-automatic fire protection systems, hydrants, standpipes, and hose outlets supplied from the 
automatic fire protection "sprinkler system".

34. "Stock" means merchandise held in storage or for sale, raw materials, and in-process or finished 
goods, including supplies used in their packing or shipping.

35. "Vacant" when referring to a building means that the building doesn't contain the "personal property" 
used in the operations ordinarily conducted there.

36. "Valuable papers and records" are documents that are written, printed, or otherwise inscribed.  These 
include:
a. Books, manuscripts, abstracts, maps and drawings;
b. Film and other photographically produced records, such as slides and microfilm; and
c. Legal and financial agreements such as deeds and mortgages.
But "valuable papers and records" do not include "money" or "securities".



 

VPR101 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 34 of 34

37. "Vehicle" means vehicles or their parts, accessories, and equipment if the vehicles are required by 
law to be licensed for highway use.

38. "Vehicle stock" means parts and accessories used for your "vehicles".  "Vehicle stock" includes but is 
not limited to tires, batteries, light bars, mobile radios, and auto parts used for "vehicle" maintenance.  
"Vehicle stock" does not include portable firefighting, ambulance, or rescue related equipment, 
including portable communications equipment, commonly used in fire and rescue operations away 
from your "premises".

39. "Volcanic action" means direct loss or damage resulting from the eruption of a volcano when the loss 
or damage is caused by:
a. Airborne volcanic blast or airborne shock waves;
b. Ash, dust or particulate matter; or
c. Lava flow.
But "volcanic action" does not include the cost to remove ash, dust or particulate matter that does not 
cause direct physical loss or damage to covered property.

40. "War" means any of the following:
a. War, including undeclared or civil war;
b. Warlike action by a military force, including action in hindering or defending against an actual or 

expected attack, by any government, sovereign or other authority using military personnel or 
other agents; or

c. Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped power, or action taken by governmental authority in 
hindering or defending against any of these.

41. "Watercraft" means any watercraft, including its motor, parts, accessories and equipment, except for 
rowboats and canoes that are out of the water and on your "premises".



 

VPR319 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 2

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CRISIS INCIDENT RESPONSE COVERAGE

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

PROPERTY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Crisis Incident Limit of Insurance: $  25,000 Any One Crisis Incident

A. Crisis Response Management Expense
We will pay "crisis response management expense" incurred by you as a result of a covered "crisis 
incident".  

B. Post-Crisis Counseling Services
We will pay expenses incurred by you for "post-crisis counseling services" provided to your 
"member(s)" following a covered "crisis incident".  

C. Loss Payment
The most we will pay in any one “crisis incident” is the lesser of:

1. The actual cost you incur for all "crisis response management expense" and "post-crisis 
counseling services"; or

2. The Crisis Incident Limit of Insurance shown in the Schedule above.  
The "crisis response management expense" and the cost for "post-crisis counseling services" must 
be incurred and submitted within 12 months of the first published news media report.  The expiration 
of this policy will not reduce the 12 month period.

D. Deductible
No deductible applies to this coverage.  

E. Definitions
1. "Crisis incident" means any of the following acts that result in significant "news media coverage" 

of the named insured:
a. An actual, attempted, or threatened violent act occurring at a “premises” committed with 

malicious intent to cause “serious bodily injury” or death to a person or person(s); the 
abduction or kidnapping of a person from a "premises"; or a sexual assault at a "premises".

b. A criminal act which is alleged to have been committed by a "member" of your organization, 
including but not limited to arson, theft, or sexual assault. 

c. The performance of your “operations” in response to an “emergency situation”.  
All related acts committed by one or more individual(s) shall be considered one “crisis incident.”



 

VPR319 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 2 of 2

2. "Crisis response management expense" means the reasonable and necessary expense charged 
by an independent public relations or other crisis communications firm to restore your public 
image that has been damaged by a covered "crisis incident". 

3. "Member" means a volunteer or "employee" of the Named Insured.  
4. "News media coverage" means an oral or written publication, in any manner, by a news 

organization.
5. "Post-crisis counseling services" means the reasonable and necessary expense you incur for 

independent professional counseling or pastoral services provided to your "member(s)" as a 
result of emotional strain due to a covered "crisis incident" involving one of the following:
a. the death or “serious bodily injury” of another "member" or "member's" family member;
b. three or more deaths; or
c. the death or “serious bodily injury” of a child.
“Post-crisis counseling services” will not be provided to any "member" who was responsible for, 
or participated in acts described in 1.a. or 1.b. above.  

6. “Serious bodily injury” means any injury to a person that creates substantial risk of death, serious 
permanent disfigurement, or protracted loss or impairment of the function of any bodily member 
or organ.  

F. Other Provisions
The coverage provided by this endorsement is separate from any other property coverage provided 
by the coverage part to which it is attached.  However, Section V. Conditions and Section VI. 
Definitions of the Property Coverage Form will apply.



 

VPR322 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

PROPERTY COVERAGE FORM

Section II. Coverage Extensions, 16.b.(5) Off-“Premises” Accidents, is deleted and replaced by the 
following:

(5) Off-"Premises" Accidents
Coverage is extended to apply to an accident to the following types of equipment, whether 
mobile/portable or permanently mounted on a "vehicle", anywhere in the "policy territory":
(a) Mobile cascade units;
(b) Mobile electrical generators;
(c) Portable pumping units; and
(d) Portable extrication devices, such as jaws-of-life, whether hydraulic or air powered.

This additional coverage is not subject to the definition of “covered equipment” (Section II. Coverage 
Extensions, 16.a.(c)) to the extent that the definition conflicts with the coverage provided for Off-
"Premises" Accidents.  However, in no event will we pay for an accident to a "vehicle's" drivetrain, 
driveline, or fire pump.  



 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

VPR301 (01-20)
PROPERTY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

LOSS PAYABLE PROVISIONS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

PROPERTY COVERAGE PART

"Premises" Number: See Property Schedule
"Item" Number: See Property Schedule
"Premises" Address: See Property Schedule
Description of Property: APPLIES TO PREMISES #15 ITEM #1 - CONTENTS
Loss Payee Name: EAST FORK FIRE DIST
Loss Payee Mailing Address: 11 1694 COUNTY RD MINDEN, NV 89423 

[If no entry appears above, the information required to complete this endorsement will be shown in the 
Declarations as applicable to this endorsement.]

The following is added to paragraph 8. Loss Payment of SECTION V. CONDITIONS:

g. For covered property in which both you and the loss payee shown above have an insurable 
interest, we will:
(1) Adjust losses with you; and
(2) Pay any claim for loss or damage jointly to you and the loss payee, as your respective 

interests may appear./



 

 

Named Insured: 

 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From  

 To  

  
 

VCR100 (01/ 20)    

     

 

CRIME  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 Estimated Coverage Part Premium: 

 Taxes, Fees and Surcharges: 

 Total Premium: 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Crime Forms 

See Schedule of Forms and Endorsements. 

 
 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION     
DISTRICT                      

07-05-2023

$    2,487.00

$    2,487.00

             



 

 

Named Insured: 

 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From  

 To  

  
 

VCR100 (01/ 20)    

     

CRIME  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

Covered Entities ----  

 
 

Covered Entities: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION     
DISTRICT                      

07-05-2023

SCHEDULE# 1 

FISH SPRINGS VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                      

GENOA VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                             

JOHNSON LANE VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                      

SHERIDAN VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                          

TOPAZ LAKE VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                        

RUHENSTROTH VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                       

GARDNERVILLE RANCHO’S VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT             

GARDNERVILLE VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT                      

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS       

                                                            

                                                            

                                                            

                                                            

                                                            

                                                            

                                                            

                                                            

                                                            

                                                            

                                                            

                                                            

                                                            

                                                            



 

 

Named Insured: Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From  

 To  

 

VCR100 (01/ 20)    

    

CRIME  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 

 

Employee Dishonesty ---- Blanket 

 
 

Covered Entity: 

 
 

Limit of Insurance Deductible Faithful Performance 

 

 

 SPECIFIC EXCESS LIMIT OF INSURANCE ---- NAME SCHEDULE  

  
 
Names of Covered ‘‘Employees’’ 

 Excess Limit of 
Insurance Each  
‘‘Employee’’ 

  
Faithful 
Performance 

 
 
 

  
  
  
  

 SPECIFIC EXCESS LIMIT OF INSURANCE ---- POSITION SCHEDULE  

   
Titles of Positions /  
    Name of Covered Entities 

 Number of 
‘‘Employees’’ in 
Each Position 

 Excess Limit of 
Insurance Each 
‘‘Employee’’ 

  
Faithful 
Performance 

 
 
 

 
   

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
   
  

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION     
DISTRICT                      

07-05-2023

SEE SCHEDULE#1                                                        

$      500,000 None   No 

                                                                      

                                               
                                               
                                               
                                               

                                                      
                                                                                                                        

                                                      
                                                                                                                        

                                                      
                                                                                                                        

                                                      
                                                                                                                        

                                                      
                                                                                                                        

                                                      
                                                                                                                        

                                                      
                                                                                                                        



 

 

Named Insured: 

 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From  

 To  

  
 

VCR100 (01/ 20)    

    

CRIME  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

Public Employee Dishonesty ---- Blanket Per Employee 

 
 

Covered Entity: 

 

 

Limit of Insurance Deductible Faithful Performance 

 
 

 SPECIFIC EXCESS LIMIT OF INSURANCE ---- NAME SCHEDULE  

  
 
Names of Covered ‘‘Employees’’ 

 Excess Limit of 
Insurance Each  
‘‘Employee’’ 

  
Faithful 
Performance 

 
 
 

  
  
  
  

 SPECIFIC EXCESS LIMIT OF INSURANCE ---- POSITION SCHEDULE  

   
Titles of Positions /  
    Name of Covered Entities 

 Number of 
‘‘Employees’’ in 
Each Position 

 Excess Limit of 
Insurance Each 
‘‘Employee’’ 

  
Faithful 
Performance 

 
 
 

 
     

  
     

  
     
   
     
   
     
   
     
   
     
   
     
   
     

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION     
DISTRICT                      

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT                                    

$      250,000 None   Yes

                                                                      

                                               
                                               
                                               
                                               

                                                      
                                                            

                                                      
                                                            

                                                      
                                                            

                                                      
                                                            

                                                      
                                                            

                                                      
                                                            

                                                      
                                                            

                                                      
                                                            

                                                      
                                                            



 

 

Named Insured: 

 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From  

 To  

  
 

VCR100 (01/ 20)    

    

CRIME  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

Public Employee Dishonesty ---- Blanket Per Loss 

 
 

Covered Entity: 

 

 

Limit of Insurance Deductible Faithful Performance 

 
 

 SPECIFIC EXCESS LIMIT OF INSURANCE ---- NAME SCHEDULE  

  
 
Names of Covered ‘‘Employees’’ 

 Excess Limit of 
Insurance Each  
‘‘Employee’’ 

  
Faithful 
Performance 

 
 
 

  
  
  
  

 SPECIFIC EXCESS LIMIT OF INSURANCE ---- POSITION SCHEDULE  

   
Titles of Positions /  
    Name of Covered Entities 

 Number of 
‘‘Employees’’ in 
Each Position 

 Excess Limit of 
Insurance Each 
‘‘Employee’’ 

  
Faithful 
Performance 

 
 
 

 
     

  
     

  
     
   
     
   
     
   
     
   
     
   
     
   
     

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION     
DISTRICT                      

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT                                    

$      250,000 See Form VCR308 Yes

                                                                      

                                               
                                               
                                               
                                               

                                                      
                                                            

                                                      
                                                            

                                                      
                                                            

                                                      
                                                            

                                                      
                                                            

                                                      
                                                            

                                                      
                                                            

                                                      
                                                            

                                                      
                                                            



 

 

Named Insured: 

 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From  

 To  

  

VCR100 (01/ 20)     

    

CRIME  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 

 

  Computer Fraud 

 
 

 

Covered Entity: 

 

 
 

Limit of Insurance Deductible 

    
  
    

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION     
DISTRICT                      

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT                          

$       10,000 None   

                                                            
                                                            



 

 

Named Insured: 

 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From  

 To  

  

VCR100 (01/ 20)     

    

CRIME  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 

 

  Computer Fraud 

 
 

 

Covered Entity: 

 

 
 

Limit of Insurance Deductible 

    
  
    

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION     
DISTRICT                      

07-05-2023

SEE SCHEDULE#1                                              

$       10,000 None   

                                                            
                                                            



 

Named Insured:
EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

Policy Number: VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
Policy Period: From 07-01-2023

To 07-01-2024

CRIME  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS

Fraudulent Impersonation Coverage

Covered Entity:
 
EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

Limit of Insurance Deductible

$10,000 None

VCR100 (01/20) 07-05-2023



 

Named Insured:
EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT                          

Policy Number: VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
Policy Period: From 07-01-2023

To 07-01-2024

CRIME  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS

Fraudulent Impersonation Coverage

Covered Entity:

SCHEDULE # 1

Limit of Insurance Deductible

$10,000 None

VCR100 (01/20) 07-05-2023



 

 

Named Insured: 

 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From  

 To  

  
 

VCR100 (01/ 20)    

     

CRIME  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

Identity Fraud Expense 

 
 

Covered Entity: 

 

 

 

 Limit of Insurance Deductible 

    

 
 

 Persons Not Covered   

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION     
DISTRICT                      

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT                          

$       10,000 None   

                                                            
                                                            

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              



 

 

Named Insured: 

 

Policy Number:  
Policy Period: From  

 To  

  
 

VCR100 (01/ 20)    

     

CRIME  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

Identity Fraud Expense 

 
 

Covered Entity: 

 

 

 

 Limit of Insurance Deductible 

    

 
 

 Persons Not Covered   

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION     
DISTRICT                      

07-05-2023

SEE SCHEDULE#1                                              

$       10,000 None   

                                                            
                                                            

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              

                              



 

VCR105 (01-20)
CRIME

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 2

EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY COVERAGE FORM
(Coverage Form A - Blanket)

A.  COVERAGE
We will pay for loss of, and loss from damage to, covered property resulting directly from the covered 
cause of loss.
1. Covered Property:  “Money”, “securities” and “property other than money and securities”.
2. Covered Cause of Loss:  “Employee dishonesty”.
3. Coverage Extension

Employees Temporarily Outside Coverage Territory:  We will pay for loss caused by any 
“employee” while temporarily outside the territory specified in General Condition B.16. for a period 
not more than 120 days.

B.  LIMIT OF INSURANCE
The most we will pay for loss in any one “occurrence” is the applicable Limit of Insurance shown in 
the Declarations.

C.  DEDUCTIBLE
1. We will not pay for loss in any one “occurrence” unless the amount of loss exceeds the deductible 

amount shown in the Declarations. We will then pay the amount of loss in excess of the 
deductible amount, up to the Limit of Insurance.

2. You must:
a. Give us notice as soon as possible of any loss of the type insured under this coverage form 

even though it falls entirely within the deductible amount; and
b. Upon our request, give us a statement describing the loss.

D.  ADDITIONAL EXCLUSIONS, CONDITION AND DEFINITIONS
In addition to the Crime General Provisions, this coverage form is subject to the following:
1. Additional Exclusions:  We will not pay for loss as specified below:

a. Employee Cancelled Under Prior Insurance:  Loss caused by any “employee” of yours, or 
predecessor in interest of yours, for whom similar prior insurance has been cancelled and not 
reinstated since the last such cancellation.

b. Inventory Shortages:  Loss, or that part of any loss, the proof of which as to its existence or 
amount is dependent upon:
(1) An inventory computation; or
(2) A profit and loss computation.
But if you can prove in the absence of such computations that you have sustained a covered 
loss, you may offer your inventory records and actual physical count of inventory in support of 
other evidence as to the amount of loss claimed.



 

VCR105 (01-20)
CRIME

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 2 of 2

2. Additional Condition
Cancellation As To Any Employee:  This insurance is cancelled as to any “employee”:
a. Immediately upon discovery by you of any dishonest act committed by that “employee” 

whether before or after becoming employed by you; or
b. On the date specified in a notice mailed to you. That date will be at least 30 days after the 

date of mailing.  The mailing of notice to you at the last mailing address known to us will be 
sufficient proof of notice.  Delivery of notice is the same as mailing.

3. Additional Definitions
a. “Employee dishonesty” in paragraph A.2. means only dishonest acts committed by an 

“employee,” whether identified or not, acting alone or in collusion with other persons, with the 
manifest intent to:
(1) Cause you, or the rightful owners of any covered property included in paragraph B.12. 

Ownership of Property; Interests Covered of the Crime General Provisions, to sustain 
loss; and also

(2) Obtain financial benefit (other than employee benefits known to you, approved by you, 
and earned in the normal course of employment, including salaries, commissions, fees, 
bonuses, promotions, awards, profit sharing or pensions) for:
(a) The “employee”; or
(b) Any person or organization intended by the “employee” to receive that benefit.

b. “Occurrence” means all loss caused by, or involving, one or more “employees”, whether the 
result of a single act or a series of acts.



 

VCR106 (01-20)
CRIME

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 2

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY COVERAGE FORM
(Coverage Form P - Blanket Per Employee)

A.  COVERAGE
We will pay for loss of, and loss from damage to, covered property resulting directly from the covered 
cause of loss.
1. Covered Property:  “Money”, “securities” and “property other than money and securities”.
2. Covered Cause of Loss:  “Employee dishonesty”.
3. Coverage Extension

Employees Temporarily Outside Coverage Territory:  We will pay for loss caused by any 
“employee” while temporarily outside the territory specified in General Condition B.16. for a period 
not more than 120 days.

B.  LIMIT OF INSURANCE
The most we will pay for loss in any one “occurrence” is the applicable Limit of Insurance shown in 
the Declarations.

C.  DEDUCTIBLE
1. We will not pay for loss in any one “occurrence” unless the amount of loss exceeds the deductible 

amount shown in the Declarations.  We will then pay the amount of loss in excess of the 
deductible amount, up to the Limit of Insurance.

2. You must:
a. Give us notice as soon as possible of any loss of the type insured under this coverage form 

even though it falls entirely within the deductible amount; and
b. Upon our request, give us a statement describing the loss.

D.  ADDITIONAL EXCLUSIONS, CONDITIONS AND DEFINITIONS: 
In addition to the Crime General Provisions, this coverage form is subject to the following:
1. Additional Exclusions:  We will not pay for loss or damages as specified below:

a. Employee Cancelled Under Prior Insurance:  Loss caused by any “employee” of yours, or 
predecessor in interest of yours, for whom similar prior insurance has been cancelled and not 
reinstated since the last such cancellation.

b. Inventory Shortages:  Loss, or that part of any loss, the proof of which as to its existence or 
amount is dependent upon:
(1) An inventory computation; or
(2) A profit and loss computation.
But if you can prove in the absence of such computations that you have sustained a covered 
loss, you may offer your inventory records and actual physical count of inventory in support of 
other evidence as to the amount of loss claimed.

c. Bonded Employee:  Loss caused by any “employee” required by law to be individually 
bonded.



 

VCR106 (01-20)
CRIME

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 2 of 2

d. Treasurer or Tax Collector:  Loss caused by a treasurer or tax collector by whatever name 
known.

e. Damages:  Damages for which you are legally liable as a result of:
(1) The deprivation or violation of the civil rights of any person by an “employee”; or
(2) The tortious conduct of an “employee”, except conversion of property of other parties 

held by you in any capacity.
2. Additional Conditions:

a. Cancellation As To Any Employee:
This insurance is cancelled as to any “employee”:
(1) Immediately upon discovery by you of any dishonest act committed by the “employee” 

whether before or after becoming employed by you; or
(2) On the date specified in a notice mailed to you.  That date will be at least 30 days after 

the date of mailing.  The mailing of notice to you at the last mailing address known to us 
will be sufficient proof of notice.  Delivery of notice is the same as mailing.

b. Sole Benefit:  This insurance is for your sole benefit.  No legal proceeding of any kind to 
recover on account of loss under this coverage may be brought by anyone other than you.

c. Indemnification:  We will indemnify any of your officials who are required by law to give 
bonds for the faithful performance of their service against loss through dishonest acts of 
persons who serve under them, subject to the Limit of Insurance.

3. Additional Definitions:
a. “Employee dishonesty” in paragraph A.2. means only dishonest acts committed by an 

“employee,” whether identified or not, acting alone or in collusion with other persons, with the 
manifest intent to:
(1) Cause you, or the rightful owners of any covered property included in paragraph B.12. 

Ownership of Property; Interests Covered of the Crime General Provisions, to sustain 
loss; and also

(2) Obtain financial benefit (other than employee benefits known to you, approved by you, 
and earned in the normal course of employment, including salaries, commissions, fees, 
bonuses, promotions, awards, profit sharing or pensions) for:
(a) The “employee”; or
(b) Any person or organization intended by the “employee” to receive that benefit.

b. “Occurrence” means all loss up to the Limit of Liability caused by each “employee”, whether 
the result of a single act or a series of acts.



 

VCR107 (01-20)
CRIME

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 2

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY COVERAGE FORM
(Coverage Form O - Blanket Per Loss)

A.  COVERAGE
We will pay for loss of, and loss from damage to, covered property resulting directly from the covered 
cause of loss.
1. Covered Property:  “Money”, “securities” and “property other than money and securities”.
2. Covered Cause of Loss:  “Employee dishonesty”.
3. Coverage Extension

Employees Temporarily Outside Coverage Territory:  We will pay for loss caused by any 
“employee” while temporarily outside the territory specified in General Condition B.16. for a period 
not more than 120 days.

B.  LIMIT OF INSURANCE
The most we will pay for loss in any one “occurrence” is the applicable Limit of Insurance shown in 
the Declarations.

C.  DEDUCTIBLE
1. We will not pay for loss in any one “occurrence” unless the amount of loss exceeds the deductible 

amount shown in the Declarations.  We will then pay the amount of loss in excess of the 
deductible amount, up to the Limit of Insurance.

2. You must:
a. Give us notice as soon as possible of any loss of the type insured under this coverage form 

even though it falls entirely within the deductible amount; and
b. Upon our request, give us a statement describing the loss.

D.  ADDITIONAL EXCLUSIONS, CONDITIONS AND DEFINITIONS
In addition to the Crime General Provisions, this coverage form is subject to the following:
1. Additional Exclusions:  We will not pay for loss or damages as specified below:

a. Employee Cancelled Under Prior Insurance:  Loss caused by any “employee” of yours, or 
predecessor in interest of yours, for whom similar prior insurance has been cancelled and not 
reinstated since the last such cancellation.

b. Inventory Shortages:  Loss, or that part of any loss, the proof of which as to its existence or 
amount is dependent upon:
(1) An inventory computation; or
(2) A profit and loss computation.
But if you can prove in the absence of such computations that you have sustained a covered 
loss, you may offer your inventory records and actual physical count of inventory in support of 
other evidence as to the amount of loss claimed.

c. Bonded Employee:  Loss caused by any “employee” required by law to be individually 
bonded.



 

VCR107 (01-20)
CRIME

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 2 of 2

d. Treasurer or Tax Collector:  Loss caused by a treasurer or tax collector by whatever name 
known.

e. Damages:  Damages for which you are legally liable as a result of:
(1) The deprivation or violation of the civil rights of any person by an “employee”; or
(2) The tortious conduct of an “employee”, except conversion of property of other parties 

held by you in any capacity.
2. Additional Conditions:

a. Cancellation As To Any Employee:
This insurance is cancelled as to any “employee”:
(1) Immediately upon discovery by you of any dishonest act committed by that “employee” 

whether before or after becoming employed by you; or
(2) On the date specified in a notice mailed to you.  That date will be at least 30 days after 

the date of mailing.  The mailing of notice to you at the last mailing address known to us 
will be sufficient proof of notice.  Delivery of notice is the same as mailing.

b. Sole Benefit:  This insurance is for your sole benefit.  No legal proceeding of any kind to 
recover on account of loss under this coverage may be brought by anyone other than you.

c. Indemnification:  We will indemnify any of your officials who are required by law to give 
bonds for the faithful performance of their service against loss through dishonest acts of 
persons who serve under them, subject to the Limit of Insurance.

3. Additional Definitions
a. “Employee dishonesty” in paragraph A.2. means only dishonest acts committed by an 

“employee”, whether identified or not, acting alone or in collusion with other persons, with the 
manifest intent to:
(1) Cause you, or the rightful owners of any covered property included in paragraph B.12. 

Ownership of Property; Interests Covered of the Crime General Provisions, to sustain 
loss; and also

(2) Obtain financial benefit (other than employee benefits known to you, approved by you, 
and earned in the normal course of employment, including salaries, commissions, fees, 
bonuses, promotions, awards, profit sharing or pensions) for:
(a) The “employee”; or
(b) Any person or organization intended by the “employee” to receive that benefit.

b. “Occurrence” means all loss caused by, or involving, one or more “employees”, whether the 
result of a single act or a series of acts.



 

VCR300 (01-20)
CRIME

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 6

CRIME GENERAL PROVISIONS

Various provisions in this coverage part restrict coverage. Read the entire coverage part carefully to 
determine rights, duties and what is or is not covered.

Throughout this coverage part the words “you” and “your” refer to the Named Insured shown in the 
Declarations.  The words “we,” “us” and “our” refer to the Company providing this insurance.

Various provisions of this coverage part refer to knowledge held or obtained by you, or discovery made by 
you.  Under these provisions, knowledge or discovery by you means knowledge held or obtained, or 
discovery made, by any natural person who is:
1. An officer of any corporation which is a Named Insured under this policy;
2. An elected or appointed official of any governmental entity, including an official or employee of any 

unnamed governmental entity authorized to manage, govern or control your “employees”; or
3. An officer, official, director, trustee, commissioner, board member or administrator of any plan, trust, 

union, association, club, auxilliary or other organization which is a Named Insured under this policy.

Words and phrases in quotation marks are defined in this coverage part.

Unless stated otherwise in any Crime coverage form, declarations or endorsement, the following General 
Exclusions, General Conditions and General Definitions apply to all Crime coverage forms making up this 
coverage part.

A.  GENERAL EXCLUSIONS
We will not pay for loss as specified below:
1. Acts Committed by You:  Loss resulting from any dishonest or criminal act committed by you 

whether acting alone or in collusion with other persons.
2. Governmental Action:  Loss resulting from seizure or destruction of property by order of 

governmental authority.
3. Indirect Loss:  Loss that is an indirect result of any act or “occurrence” covered by this insurance 

including, but not limited to, loss resulting from:
a. Your inability to realize income that you would have realized had there been no loss of, or 

loss from damage to, covered property.
b. Payment of damages of any type for which you are legally liable. But we will pay 

compensatory damages arising directly from a loss covered under this insurance.
c. Payment of costs, fees or other expenses you incur in establishing either the existence or the 

amount of loss under this insurance.
4. Legal Expenses:  Expenses related to any legal action.
5. Nuclear:  Loss resulting from nuclear reaction, nuclear radiation or radioactive contamination, or 

any related act or incident.
6. War and Similar Actions:  Loss resulting from war, whether or not declared, warlike action, 

insurrection, rebellion or revolution, or any related act or incident.



 

VCR300 (01-20)
CRIME

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 2 of 6

B.  GENERAL CONDITIONS
1. Concealment, Misrepresentation or Fraud:  This insurance is void in any case of fraud by you 

as it relates to this insurance at any time.  It is also void if you or any other insured, at any time, 
intentionally conceal or misrepresent a material fact concerning:
a. This insurance;
b. The covered property;
c. Your interest in the covered property; or
d. A claim under this insurance.

2. Consolidation - Merger:  If through consolidation or merger with, or purchase or acquisition of 
assets or liabilities of, some other entity:
a. Any additional persons become “employees”; or
b. You acquire the use and control of any additional premises;
any insurance afforded for “employees” or premises also applies to those additional “employees” 
and premises for a period of 60 days after the effective date of such consolidation, merger, or 
purchase or acquisition of assets or liabilities.
You must give us written notice within this 60 day period and obtain our written consent to extend 
this insurance to such additional “employees” or premises.  Upon obtaining our written consent, 
you must pay us an additional premium.
If you fail to notify us in writing within this 60 day period, then this insurance shall automatically 
terminate as to such additional “employees” or premises.  Such automatic termination shall be 
retroactive to the effective date of such consolidation, merger, or purchase or acquisition of 
assets or liabilities.

3. Coverage Extensions:  Unless stated otherwise in the coverage form, our liability under any 
Coverage Extension is part of, not in addition to, the Limit of Insurance applying to the coverage 
or coverage section.

4. Duties in the Event of Loss:  After you discover a loss or a situation that may result in loss of, or 
loss from damage to, covered property you must:
a. Notify us as soon as possible.
b. Submit to examination under oath at our request and give us a signed statement of your 

answers.
c. Give us a detailed, sworn proof of loss within 120 days.
d. Cooperate with us in the investigation and settlement of any claim.

5. Extended Period to Discover Loss:  We will pay for covered loss discovered no later than one 
year from the end of the policy period.  However, if:
a. You obtain replacement insurance not issued by us or any affiliate; and
b. Such loss is covered by your replacement insurance; and
c. Your replacement insurance provides an extended period to discover loss of less than one 

year or does not provide an extended period to discover loss;
we will pay only for covered loss discovered no later than the number of days equal to any 
extended period to discover loss provided by such replacement insurance.  If such replacement 
insurance does not provide an extended period to discover loss, we will not provide this Extended 
Period to Discover Loss.

6. Joint Insured
a. If more than one insured is named in the Declarations, the first Named Insured will act for 

itself and for every other insured for all purposes of this insurance.  If the first Named Insured 
ceases to be covered, then the next Named Insured will become the first Named Insured.



 

VCR300 (01-20)
CRIME

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 3 of 6

b. If any insured or officer of that insured has knowledge of any information relevant to this 
insurance, that knowledge is considered knowledge of every insured.

c. An “employee” of any insured is considered to be an “employee” of every insured.
d. If this insurance or any of its coverages is cancelled or terminated as to any insured, loss 

sustained by that insured is covered only if discovered no later than one year from the date of 
that cancellation or termination.

e. We will not pay more for loss sustained by more than one insured than the amount we would 
pay if all the loss had been sustained by one insured.

7. Legal Action Against Us:  You may not bring any legal action against us involving loss:
a. Unless you have complied with all the terms of this insurance; and
b. Until 90 days after you have filed proof of loss with us; and
c. Unless brought within 2 years from the date you discover the loss.

8. Loss Covered Under More Than One Coverage of This Insurance:  If two or more coverages 
of this insurance apply to the same loss, we will pay the lesser of:
a. The actual amount of loss; or
b. The sum of the limits of insurance applicable to those coverages.

9. Loss Covered Under This Insurance and/or Prior Insurance
a. If any loss is covered:

(1) Partly by this insurance; and
(2) Partly by any prior cancelled or terminated insurance that we or any affiliate had issued to 

you or any predecessor in interest;
the most we will pay is the larger of the amount recoverable under this insurance or the prior 
insurance.

b. If any loss is covered:
(1) Partly by this insurance; and
(2) Partly by any prior cancelled or terminated insurance issued to you or any predecessor in 

interest by any carrier other than us or any affiliate:
(a) Any deductible amount applicable to such loss will be reduced by any deductible 

amount applicable or sustained by you under the prior insurance; and
(b) The Limit of Insurance applicable to such loss will be reduced by any amount paid or 

payable to you under the prior insurance.
c. If you or any predecessor in interest sustained loss during the period of any prior insurance, 

and you or the predecessor in interest could have recovered under that insurance except that 
the time within which to discover loss had expired, we will pay for it under this insurance, 
provided:
(1) This insurance became effective at the time of cancellation or termination of the prior 

insurance; and
(2) The loss would have been covered by this insurance had it been in effect when the acts 

or events causing the loss were committed or occurred.
The insurance under this paragraph c. is part of, not in addition to, the Limits of Insurance 
applying to this insurance and is limited to the lesser of the amount recoverable under this 
insurance as of its effective date, or the prior insurance had it remained in effect.

10. Non-Cumulation of Limit of Insurance:  Regardless of the number of years this insurance 
remains in force, the number of premiums paid or the duration of any loss, no Limit of Insurance 
or deductible amount applicable to any coverage of this insurance cumulates from year to year or 
period to period.



 

VCR300 (01-20)
CRIME

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 4 of 6

11. Other Insurance:  This insurance does not apply to loss recoverable or recovered under other 
insurance or indemnity.  However, if the limit of the other insurance or indemnity is insufficient to 
cover the entire amount of the loss, this insurance will apply to that part of the loss, other than 
that falling within any deductible amount, not recoverable or recovered under the other insurance 
or indemnity.  But this insurance will not apply to the amount of loss that is more than the 
applicable Limit of Insurance shown in the Declarations.

12. Ownership of Property; Interests Covered:  The property covered under this insurance is 
limited to property:
a. That you own or hold; or
b. For which you are legally liable.
However, this insurance is for your benefit only. It provides no rights or benefits to any other 
person or organization.

13. Policy Period
a. The policy period is shown in the Declarations.
b. Except as provided by the Loss Covered Under This Insurance and/or Prior Insurance 

General Condition, we will pay only for loss that you sustain through acts committed or 
events occurring during the policy period.

14. Records:  You must keep records of all covered property so we can verify the amount of any 
loss.

15. Recoveries
a. Any recoveries, less the cost of obtaining them, made after settlement of loss covered by this 

insurance will be distributed as follows:
(1) To you, until you are reimbursed for any loss that you sustain that would be covered 

under this insurance, but that exceeds the Limit of Insurance and the deductible amount, 
if any;

(2) Then to us, until we are reimbursed for the settlement made;
(3) Then to you, until you are reimbursed for that part of the loss equal to the deductible 

amount, if any.
b. Recoveries do not include any recovery:

(1) From insurance, suretyship, reinsurance, security or indemnity taken for our benefit; or
(2) Of original “securities” after duplicates of them have been issued.

16. Territory:  This insurance covers only acts committed or events occurring within the United 
States of America, its territories and possessions, Puerto Rico or Canada.

17. Transfer of Your Rights of Recovery Against Others to Us:  You must transfer to us all your 
rights of recovery against any person or organization for any loss you sustained and for which we 
have paid or settled.  You must also do everything necessary to secure those rights and do 
nothing after loss to impair them.

18. Valuation - Settlement
a. Subject to the applicable Limit of Insurance provision we will pay for:

(1) Loss of “money” but only up to and including its face value. We may, at our option, pay 
for loss of “money” issued by any country other than the United States of America:
(a) At face value in the “money” issued by that country; or
(b) In the United States of America dollar equivalent determined by the rate of exchange 

on the day the loss was discovered.



 

VCR300 (01-20)
CRIME

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 5 of 6

(2) Loss of “securities” but only up to and including their value at the close of business on the 
day the loss was discovered.  We may, at our option:
(a) Pay the value of such “securities” or replace them in kind, in which event you must 

assign to us all your rights, title and interest in and to those “securities”; or
(b) Pay the cost of any Lost Securities Bond required in connection with issuing 

duplicates of the “securities”.  However, we will be liable only for the payment of so 
much of the cost of the bond as would be charged for a bond having a penalty not 
exceeding the lesser of:
i. The value of the “securities” at the close of business on the day the loss was 

discovered; or
ii. The Limit of Insurance.

(3) Loss of, or loss from damage to, “property other than money and securities” or loss from 
damage to the premises for not more than the:
(a) Actual cash value of the property on the day the loss was discovered;
(b) Cost of repairing the property or premises; or
(c) Cost of replacing the property with property of like kind and quality.
We may, at our option, pay the actual cash value of the property or repair or replace it.  If 
we cannot agree with you upon the actual cash value or the cost of repair or 
replacement, the value or cost will be determined by arbitration.

b. We may, at our option, pay for loss of, or loss from damage to, property other than “money”:
(1) In the “money” of the country in which the loss occurred; or
(2) In the United States of America dollar equivalent of the “money” of the country in which 

the loss occurred determined by the rate of exchange on the day the loss was 
discovered.

c. Any property that we pay for or replace becomes our property.

C.  GENERAL DEFINITIONS
1. “Employee” means:

a. Any natural person:
(1) While in your service (and for 30 days after termination of service); and
(2) Whom you compensate directly by salary, wages or commissions; and
(3) Whom you have the right to direct and control while performing services for you; or

b. Any natural person employed by an employment contractor while that person is subject to 
your direction and control and performing services for you; or

c. Any natural person who is a non-compensated officer or any other volunteer of any volunteer 
fire, ambulance, or other emergency service or auxiliary organization which is a Named 
Insured under this policy, while such officer or volunteer is subject to your direction and 
control and performing services for you; or

d. Any natural person who is an elected or appointed supervisory official of any governmentally 
operated fire, ambulance or other emergency service organization which is a Named Insured 
under this policy, while such official is performing services for you; or

e. Any natural person who is a director, trustee, commissioner or board member of any 
organization which is a Named Insured under this policy, while such director, trustee, 
commissioner or board member is performing services for you.



 

VCR300 (01-20)
CRIME

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 6 of 6

But “employee” does not mean any:
(1) Agent, broker, factor, commission merchant, consignee, independent contractor or 

representative of the same general character; or
(2) Director, trustee, commissioner or board member:

(a) With respect to his or her official duties as your director, trustee, commissioner or board 
member; or

(b) While executing specific acts mandated or authorized by a resolution of your board of 
directors, board of trustees or board of commissioners.

2. “Money” means:
a. Currency, coins and bank notes in current use and having a face value; and
b. Travelers checks, register checks and money orders held for sale to the public.

3. “Property other than money and securities” means any tangible property other than “money” and 
“securities” that has intrinsic value but does not include any property listed in any Crime coverage 
form as Property Not Covered.

4. “Securities” means negotiable and non-negotiable instruments or contracts representing either 
“money” or other property and includes:
a. Tokens, tickets, revenue and other stamps (whether represented by actual stamps or unused 

value in a meter) in current use; and
b. Evidences of debt issued in connection with credit or charge cards, which cards are not 

issued by you;
but “securities” does not include “money”.



 

VCR109 (01-20)
CRIME

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 5

ADDITIONAL COVERAGES
COMPUTER AND FUNDS TRANSFER FRAUD AND

FRAUDULENT IMPERSONATION

SCHEDULE

 Coverage Limit of Insurance Deductible Amount
Computer and Funds Transfer Fraud $ per Occurrence $ per Occurrence
Fraudulent Impersonation $ per Occurrence $ per Occurrence
Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A.  COMPUTER AND FUNDS TRANSFER FRAUD COVERAGE
1. We will pay for loss you sustain arising directly out of the loss of or damage to “money”, 

“securities” and “property other than money and securities” resulting directly from:
a. A fraudulent:

(1) Entry of "electronic data" or "computer program" into; or
(2) Change of "electronic data" or "computer program" within;
any "computer system" owned, leased or operated by you, provided the fraudulent entry or 
fraudulent change causes, with regard to Paragraphs A.1.a.(1) and A.1.a.(2) above:

(a) "Money", "securities" or "property other than money and securities" to be transferred, 
paid or delivered; or

(b) Your account at a "financial institution" to be debited or deleted.
b. A "fraudulent instruction" directing a "financial institution" to debit your "transfer account" and 

transfer, pay or deliver "money" or "securities" from that account.
2. As used in Paragraph A.1.a., fraudulent entry or fraudulent change of "electronic data" or 

"computer program" shall include such entry or change made by an "employee" acting, in good 
faith, upon a "fraudulent instruction" received from a computer software contractor who has a 
written agreement with you to design, implement or service "computer programs" for a "computer 
system" covered under this Coverage.

B. FRAUDULENT IMPERSONATION COVERAGE
1. We will pay for loss you sustain arising directly from your having, in good faith, transferred 

"money", "securities" or "other property" in reliance upon a "transfer instruction" purportedly 
issued by an "employee", "customer" or "vendor" but which "transfer instruction" proves to have 
been fraudulently issued by an imposter without the knowledge or consent of the "employee", 
"customer" or "vendor".

2. Verification
If the Limit of Insurance for Fraudulent Impersonation shown in the Schedule on this endorsement 
is $100,000 or greater, the following is a precondition to coverage under this endorsement:
You shall verify all "transfer instructions" for amounts greater than or equal to $25,000. This 
verification will be in accordance with a pre-arranged callback or other established verification 
procedure before acting upon any such "transfer instruction".



 

VCR109 (01-20)
CRIME

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 2 of 5

C. LIMIT OF INSURANCE
1. The most we will pay for loss in any one “occurrence” for Computer and Funds Transfer Fraud 

Coverage is the applicable Limit of Insurance shown in the Schedule.
2. The most we will pay for loss in any one “occurrence” for Fraudulent Impersonation Coverage is 

the applicable Limit of Insurance shown in the Schedule.

If any loss is covered under more than one Coverage, the most we will pay for such loss shall not 
exceed the largest Limit of Insurance available under any one of those Coverages.  

D. DEDUCTIBLE
We will not pay for loss in any one “occurrence” unless the amount of loss exceeds the deductible 
amount shown in the Schedule on this endorsement. We will then pay the amount of loss in excess of 
the deductible amount, up to the Limit of Insurance. 

E. EXCLUSIONS, CONDITIONS AND DEFINITIONS
In addition to the Crime General Provisions, this coverage form is subject to the following:
1. Additional Exclusions applicable to A. Computer and Funds Transfer Fraud Coverage and 

B. Fraudulent Impersonation Coverage:
We will not pay for loss as specified below:
a. Acts of Employees, Directors, or Trustees:  We will not pay for loss resulting from any 

dishonest or criminal act committed by any of your “employees”, directors, trustees, or 
authorized representatives:
(1) Whether acting alone or in collusion with other persons; or
(2) Whether while performing services for you or otherwise.

b. Authorized Access
Loss resulting from a fraudulent:
(1) Entry of "electronic data" or "computer program" into; or
(2) Change of "electronic data" or "computer program" within;
any "computer system" owned, leased or operated by you by a person or organization with 
authorized access to that "computer system", except when covered under Paragraph A.2.

c. Confidential Or Personal Information
Loss resulting from:
(1) The disclosure of your or another person's or organization's confidential or personal 

information including, but not limited to, patents, trade secrets, processing methods, 
customer lists, financial information, credit card information, health information or any 
other type of nonpublic information; or

(2) The use of another person's or organization's confidential or personal information 
including, but not limited to, patents, trade secrets, processing methods, customer lists, 
financial information, credit card information, health information or any other type of 
nonpublic information.

d. Data Security Breach 
Fees, costs, fines, penalties and other expenses incurred by you which are related to the 
access to or disclosure of another person's or organization's confidential or personal 
information including, but not limited to, patents, trade secrets, processing methods, 
customer lists, financial information, credit card information, health information or any other 
type of nonpublic information.



 

VCR109 (01-20)
CRIME

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 3 of 5

2. Additional Exclusions applicable to A. Computer and Funds Transfer Fraud Coverage:
We will not pay for loss as specified below:
a. Authorized Access

Loss resulting from a fraudulent:
(1) Entry of "electronic data" or "computer program" into; or
(2) Change of "electronic data" or "computer program" within;
any "computer system" owned, leased or operated by you by a person or organization with 
authorized access to that "computer system", except when covered under Paragraph A.2.

b. Credit Card Transactions
Loss resulting from the use or purported use of credit, debit, charge, access, convenience, 
identification, stored-value or other cards or the information contained on such cards.

c Exchanges Or Purchases
Loss resulting from the giving or surrendering of property in any exchange or purchase.

d. Fraudulent Instructions
Loss resulting from an "employee" or "financial institution" acting upon any instruction to:
(1) Transfer, pay or deliver "money", "securities" or "property other than money and 

securities"; or
(2) Debit or delete your account;
which instruction proves to be fraudulent, except when covered under  Paragraph A.1.b. or 
A.2.

e. Inventory Shortages
Loss, or that part of any loss, the proof of which as to its existence or amount is dependent 
upon:
(1) An inventory computation; or
(2) A profit and loss computation.

3. The Territory Condition, under Section E. Conditions, is replaced by the following as respects B. 
Fraudulent Instruction Coverage:
Territory
We will cover loss that you sustain resulting directly from an "occurrence" taking place anywhere 
in the world. 

4. Additional Definitions
a. "Computer program" means a set of related electronic instructions, which direct the operation 

and function of a computer or devices connected to it, which enable the computer or devices 
to receive, process, store or send "electronic data".

b. "Computer system" means:
(1) Computers, including Personal Digital Assistants (PDAs) and other transportable or 

handheld devices, electronic storage devices and related peripheral components;
(2) Systems and applications software; and
(3) Related communications networks;
by which "electronic data" is collected, transmitted, processed, stored or retrieved.

c. “Customer” means an entity or individual to whom you sell goods or provide services under a 
written contract. 



 

VCR109 (01-20)
CRIME

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 4 of 5

d. "Electronic data" means information, facts, images or sounds stored as or on, created or used 
on, or transmitted to or from computer software (including systems and applications software) 
on data storage devices, including hard or floppy disks, CD-ROMs, tapes, drives, cells, data 
processing devices or any other media which are used with electronically controlled 
equipment.

e. "Financial institution" means:
(1) A bank, savings bank, savings and loan association, trust company, credit union or 

similar depository institution;
(2) An insurance company; or
(3) A stock brokerage firm or investment company.

f. "Fraudulent instruction" means:
(1) With regard to  Paragraph A.1.(b):

(a) A computer, telefacsimile, telephone or other electronic instruction directing a 
"financial institution" to debit your "transfer account" and to transfer, pay or deliver 
"money" or "securities" from that "transfer account", which instruction purports to 
have been issued by you, but which in fact was fraudulently issued by someone else 
without your knowledge or consent; or

(b) A written instruction (other than those covered under Paragraph A.2. issued to a 
"financial institution" directing the "financial institution" to debit your "transfer account" 
and to transfer, pay or deliver "money" or "securities" from that "transfer account", 
through an electronic funds transfer system at specified times or under specified 
conditions, which instruction purports to have been issued by you, but which in fact 
was issued, forged or altered by someone else without your knowledge or consent.

(2) With regard to Paragraph A.2.:
A computer, telefacsimile, telephone or other electronic, written or voice instruction 
directing an "employee" to enter or change "electronic data" or "computer programs" 
within a "computer system" covered under A. Computer and Funds Transfer Fraud 
Coverage, which instruction in fact was fraudulently issued by your computer software 
contractor.

g. “Occurrence” means:
(1) An individual act or event;
(2) The combined total of all separate acts or events whether or not related; or
(3) A series of acts or events whether or not related;
committed by a person acting alone or in collusion with others, or not committed by any 
person, during the Policy Period shown in the Declarations, except as provided under the 
Crime General Provisions, General Condition 9. 

h. “Transfer account” means an account maintained by you at a financial institution from which 
you can initiate the transfer, payment or delivery of “money” and securities:
(1) By means of computer, telefacsimile, telephone or other electronic instructions; or 
(2) By means of written instructions (other than a check, draft, promissory note, or similar 

written promise, order or direction to pay a sum certain in “money”) establishing the 
conditions under which such transfers are to be initiated by such "financial institution" 
through an electronic funds transfer system.   

i. “Transfer instruction” means an instruction directing you to transfer ”money”, “securities” or 
“other property”. 

j. “Vendor” means an entity or individual from whom you purchase goods or receive services 
under a written contract.

5. Revised Definitions:



 

VCR109 (01-20)
CRIME

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 5 of 5

a. With regard to A. Computer and Funds Transfer Fraud Coverage, the following is added to 
the definition of "money" in the General Crime Provisions:
3. Deposits in your account at a "financial institution" as defined in Paragraph E.4.e.

b. As respects the coverage provided by this endorsement, the following is added to the 
definition of "property other than money and securities" in the General Crime Provisions:
"Property other than money and securities" does not include "computer programs", 
"electronic data" or any property specifically excluded under this insurance.  



 

VCR110 (01-20)
CRIME

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 2

IDENTITY FRAUD EXPENSE COVERAGE FORM

SCHEDULE
Limit of Insurance:
Deductible:
Persons Not Covered:

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. COVERAGE
We will pay for “expenses” you sustain incurred by:
1. You; or
2. Any “employee”;
resulting directly from “identity fraud”. 

B. LIMIT OF INSURANCE
The most we will pay for your “expenses” resulting directly from “identity fraud” is the applicable Limit 
of Insurance shown in the Schedule.

C. DEDUCTIBLE
We will not pay for “expenses” unless the amount of “expenses” exceeds the deductible amount 
shown in the Schedule. We will then pay the amount of “expenses” in excess of the deductible 
amount, up to the Limit of Insurance. 

D. EXCLUSIONS, CONDITIONS AND DEFINITIONS
In addition to the Crime General Provisions, this coverage form is subject to the following:
1. Additional Exclusion:  

“Expenses” due to “theft”, “identity fraud” or any other dishonest act committed by:
1. You; 
2. Any “employee”; or
3. Any person shown in the Schedule;
whether acting alone or in collusion with other persons.

2. Revised Exclusion: 
The Legal Expenses Exclusion is replaced by the following: 
Expenses incurred by you which are related to any legal action, except when covered under this 
Coverage Form.



 

VCR110 (01-20)
CRIME

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 2 of 2

3. Revised Condition: 
The following is added to the Duties In The Event Of Loss Condition:
You must send to us, within 60 days after our request, receipts, bills or other records that support 
any claim for “expenses” covered under this Coverage Form. 

4. Additional Definitions:  
a. “Expenses” means: 

(1) Advertising and public relations expenses incurred by you to restore your business 
reputation as a result of an “identity fraud”;

(2) Costs incurred by you or any “employee” for notarizing affidavits or similar documents 
attesting to fraud required by financial institutions or similar credit grantors or credit 
agencies;

(3) Costs incurred by you or any “employee” for certified mail to law enforcement agencies, 
credit agencies, financial institutions or similar credit grantors;

(4) Costs incurred by you or any “employee” for obtaining credit reports;
(5) Lost income incurred by you or any “employee” resulting from time taken off work to 

complete fraud affidavits, meet with or talk to law enforcement agencies, credit agencies 
and/or legal counsel, up to a maximum payment of $250 per day. Total payment for lost 
income is not to exceed $10,000 or the Limit of Insurance shown in the Schedule, 
whichever is less;

(6) Loan application fees, incurred by you or any “employee” for reapplying for a loan when 
the original application is rejected solely because the lender received incorrect credit 
information;

(7) Reasonable attorney fees to:
(a) Defend lawsuits brought against you by merchants, vendors, suppliers, financial 

institutions or their collection agencies;
(b) Remove any criminal or civil judgments wrongly entered against you; and
(c) Challenge the accuracy or completeness of any information in a consumer credit 

report for you;
(8) Charges incurred by you or any “employee” for long distance telephone calls to 

merchants, vendors, suppliers, customers, law enforcement agencies, financial 
institutions or similar credit grantors, or credit agencies to report or discuss an actual 
“identity fraud”; and

(9) Any other reasonable expenses incurred by you or any “employee” with our written 
consent.

b. “Identity fraud” means the act of knowingly transferring or using, without lawful authority, a 
means of identification of:
(1) Your business as shown in the Declarations; or
(2) Any “employee”; 
with the intent to commit, or to aid or abet another to commit, any unlawful activity that 
constitutes a violation of federal law or a felony under any applicable state or local law.

c. “Theft” means the unlawful taking of property to the deprivation of the Insured.



 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

VCR301 (01-20)
CRIME

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE OF DUTY

This endorsement applies only to:

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY COVERAGE FORM P - NAME SCHEDULE
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY COVERAGE FORM P - POSITION SCHEDULE
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY COVERAGE FORM P - BLANKET PER EMPLOYEE
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY COVERAGE FORM O - BLANKET PER LOSS

The following provisions apply only to the extent that:
1. Faithful performance coverage is indicated as included in any Limit of Insurance provided for the 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY COVERAGE FORM O - BLANKET PER LOSS or the 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY COVERAGE FORM P - BLANKET PER EMPLOYEE; or

2. Faithful performance coverage is indicated as included in any Limit of Insurance provided for any 
“employee” covered under the PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY COVERAGE FORM P - 
NAME SCHEDULE or the PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY COVERAGE FORM P - 
POSITION SCHEDULE;

in the Crime Declarations or any amendment thereto.

a. The following is added as a Covered Cause of Loss:
Failure of any "employee" to faithfully perform his or her duties as prescribed by law, when such 
failure has as its direct and immediate result a loss of your covered property.

b. The following Additional Exclusion is added:
Depository Failure:  Loss resulting from the failure of any entity acting as a depository for your 
property or property for which you are responsible.

c. Additional Condition 2.a.(1) of the coverage form is deleted and the following substituted:
(1) Immediately upon discovery by you or any official or “employee” authorized to manage, 

govern or control your “employees” of any act on the part of an "employee", whether before 
or after becoming employed by you, which would constitute a loss covered under the terms 
of the coverage form, as amended by this endorsement. 

d. Additional Condition 2.c. of the coverage form is deleted and the following substituted:
c. Indemnification:  We will indemnify you or any of your officials who are required by law to 

give bonds for the faithful performance of their service against loss through the failure of any 
"employee" under the supervision of that official to faithfully perform his or her duties as 
prescribed by law, when such failure has as its direct and immediate result a loss of your 
covered property.



 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

VCR308 (01-20)
CRIME

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY - PER LOSS 
EXCESS OVER 

EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY - PER EMPLOYEE

This endorsement applies only to:

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY COVERAGE FORM O - BLANKET PER LOSS
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY COVERAGE FORM P - BLANKET PER EMPLOYEE

1. In the event that you sustain an “employee dishonesty” loss committed by an "employee", we will first 
pay under the terms of the Public Employee Dishonesty Coverage Form (Coverage Form P - Blanket 
per Employee) up to the Limit of Insurance shown in the Declarations.

2. Any amount we pay to you will reflect the Deductible Amount applicable to each "employee" causing 
loss by the terms of the Public Employee Dishonesty Coverage Form (Coverage Form P - Blanket per 
Employee). The amount we pay to you will be reduced by the Deductible Amount applicable to each 
"employee" involved.

3. If the amount of loss sustained by “employee dishonesty” caused by an "employee" is in excess of the 
amount paid to you under Paragraph 1. above, we will also pay to you an additional amount up to the 
Limit of Insurance shown in the Declarations for Public Employee Dishonesty - Blanket Per Loss.
Coverage under Public Employee Dishonesty Coverage Form (Coverage Form O - Blanket Per Loss) 
only applies in excess of Coverage under Public Employee Dishonesty Coverage Form (Coverage 
Form P - Blanket per Employee) and therefore does not apply unless payment for the full limit of 
insurance available in any one “occurrence” has been made under Public Employee Dishonesty 
Coverage Form (Coverage Form P - Blanket per Employee).  

4. The Deductible Amount applicable to the Public Employee Dishonesty Coverage Form (Coverage 
Form O - Blanket Per Loss) does not apply.



 

 

From   
   To      

  

 
 
 

 
 
 

PE1000 (01/ 20)       

 

PORTABLE  EQUIPMENT  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 

 

Schedule of Portable Equipment Coverage 

Coverage Limit of Insurance Deductible 

 Coverage A Blanket 

 Coverage B Scheduled 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 Estimated Coverage Part Premium:  

 Taxes, Fees and Surcharges:   

 Total Premium:      

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Portable Equipment Forms 

See Schedule of Forms and Endorsements 

 

 
 
 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

Guaranteed Replacement Cost $    1,000

          NONE           NONE      

$    7,311.00

$    7,311.00

                                   

             

                         



 COMMERCIAL PROPERTY 
  
 

CP 00 90 07 88 Copyright, ISO Commercial Risk Services, Inc.,  1983, 1987  Page 1 of 2  
 

  

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY CONDITIONS 
 

This Coverage Part is subject to the following conditions, the Common Policy Conditions and applicable Loss 
Conditions and Additional Conditions in Commercial Property Coverage Forms.  
 

A. CONCEALMENT, MISREPRESENTATION OR 
FRAUD  

This Coverage Part is void in any case of fraud by 
you as it relates to this Coverage Part at any time. 
It is also void if you or any other insured, at any 
time, intentionally conceal or misrepresent a mate-
rial fact concerning:  

 1. This Coverage Part;  

 2. The Covered Property;  

 3. Your interest in the Covered Property; or  

 4. A claim under this Coverage Part.  

B. CONTROL OF PROPERTY  

Any act or neglect of any person other than you 
beyond your direction or control will not affect this 
insurance.  

The breach of any condition of this Coverage Part 
at any one or more locations will not affect cover-
age at any location where, at the time of loss or 
damage, the breach of condition does not exist.  

C. INSURANCE UNDER TWO OR MORE 
COVERAGES  

If two or more of this policy’s coverages apply to 
the same loss or damage, we will not pay more 
than the actual amount of the loss or damage.  

D. LEGAL ACTION AGAINST US  

No one may bring a legal action against us under 
this Coverage Part unless:  

 1. There has been full compliance with all of the 
terms of this Coverage Part; and  

 2. The action is brought within 2 years after the 
date on which the direct physical loss or dam-
age occurred.  

E. LIBERALIZATION  

If we adopt any revision that would broaden the 
coverage under this Coverage Part without addi-
tional premium within 45 days prior to or during 
the policy period, the broadened coverage will im-
mediately apply to this Coverage Part.  

 F. NO BENEFIT TO BAILEE  

No person or organization, other than you, having 
custody of Covered Property will benefit from this 
insurance.  

G. OTHER INSURANCE  

 1. You may have other insurance subject to the 
same plan, terms, conditions and provisions as 
the insurance under this Coverage Part. If you 
do, we will pay our share of the covered loss or 
damage. Our share is the proportion that the 
applicable Limit of Insurance under this Cover-
age Part bears to the Limits of Insurance of all 
insurance covering on the same basis.  

 2. If there is other insurance covering the same 
loss or damage, other than that described in 1. 
above, we will pay only for the amount of cov-
ered loss or damage in excess of the amount 
due from that other insurance, whether you 
can collect on it or not. But we will not pay 
more than the applicable Limit of Insurance.  

H. POLICY PERIOD, COVERAGE TERRITORY  

Under this Coverage Part:  

 1. We cover loss or damage commencing:  

 a. During the policy period shown in the Dec-
larations; and  

 b. Within the coverage territory.  

 2. The coverage territory is:  

 a. The United States of America (including its 
territories and possessions);  

 b. Puerto Rico; and  

 c. Canada.  



Page 2 of 2 Copyright, ISO Commercial Risk Services, Inc.,  1983, 1987  CP 00 90 07 88  
 

 I. TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY AGAINST 
OTHERS TO US  

If any person or organization to or for whom we 
make payment under this Coverage Part has rights 
to recover damages from another, those rights are 
transferred to us to the extent of our payment. 
That person or organization must do everything 
necessary to secure our rights and must do noth-
ing after loss to impair them. But you may waive 
your rights against another party in writing:  

 1. Prior to a loss to your Covered Property or 
Covered Income.  

 2. After a loss to your Covered Property or Cov-
ered Income only if, at time of loss, that party is 
one of the following:  

 a. Someone insured by this insurance;  

 b. A business firm:  

 (1) Owned or controlled by you; or  

 (2) That owns or controls you; or  

 c. Your tenant.  

This will not restrict your insurance.  



 

PE1001 (01-20)
PORTABLE EQUIPMENT

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 11

EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATION
PORTABLE EQUIPMENT COVERAGE FORM

Various provisions in this policy restrict coverage.  Read the entire policy carefully to determine rights, 
duties, and what is and is not covered.

Throughout this policy the words "you" and "your" refer to the Named Insured shown in the Declarations. 
The words "we," "us" and "our" refer to the Company providing this insurance.

Other words and phrases that appear in quotation marks have special meaning.

SECTION I. YOUR PORTABLE EQUIPMENT COVERAGE

Coverage A.  Blanket  “Portable Equipment.”

We will pay for direct physical loss or damage caused by or resulting from any “covered cause of loss” to 
"portable equipment" owned by you or furnished to you for your regular use.  The most we will pay is 
described under WHAT WE WILL PAY.

Coverage B.  Scheduled “Portable Equipment.”

We will pay for direct physical loss or damage caused by or resulting from any “covered cause of loss” to 
"portable equipment" owned by you or furnished to you for your regular use, that is specifically listed in 
the Declarations or in a schedule attached to this coverage form.  The most we will pay is described 
under WHAT WE WILL PAY.
 
SECTION II.  EXTENSIONS OF PORTABLE EQUIPMENT COVERAGE
This section adds to or extends the coverage under YOUR PORTABLE EQUIPMENT COVERAGE.  Each 
separately numbered provision is referred to as an extension.  Except to the extent specifically stated 
otherwise in an extension:

(1) each extension is limited to direct physical loss or damage caused by or resulting from 
any "covered cause of loss;"

(2) the limits in each extension are in addition to the limits applicable to YOUR PORTABLE 
EQUIPMENT COVERAGE;

(3) the limits in each extension apply separately for each occurrence; and

(4) all other applicable terms and conditions of this coverage form apply to each  extension.

Extension 1.  “Debris Removal Expenses.”

We will pay your "debris removal expenses" if they are reported to us within 180 days after the date of the 
direct physical loss or damage.  The most we will pay in any one occurrence is the greater of:

(1) 25% of the amount we pay for direct physical loss or damage under Coverage A or 
Coverage B, before the application of any deductible; or

(2) $5,000.



 

PE1001 (01-20)
PORTABLE EQUIPMENT

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 2 of 11

Extension 2.  “Personal Effects.”

a. We will pay for direct physical loss or damage to "personal effects" belonging to your volunteers, 
"employees," directors, officers or trustees while enroute to, during, and returning from any official 
duty authorized by you.

b. We will pay up to the “replacement cost” for lost or damaged “personal effects” belonging to any 
one volunteer, “employee,” director, officer or trustee under this extension, but not more than the 
smaller of the following:

(1) the amount which is actually spent to repair or replace the lost or damaged “personal 
effects” of comparable kind and quality; or

(2) the “replacement cost” of the lost or damaged “personal effects.”

The volunteer, “employee,” director, officer or trustee may substitute “personal effects” of a 
different kind or quality and still comply with the “replacement cost” provision, but we won’t pay 
more than the cost to repair or replace the lost or damaged “personal effects” with “personal 
effects” of comparable kind and quality.

c. This coverage is primary and will apply regardless of any other insurance coverage which may be 
available to the owner of the "personal effects."

d. No deductible will apply.

Extension 3.  Non-Owned “Portable Equipment.”

a. We will pay for direct physical loss or damage to "portable equipment" not owned by you and not 
furnished to you for your regular use, but that is temporarily in your possession, caused by or 
resulting from any "covered cause of loss."

b. The most we will pay under this extension in any one occurrence is $50,000.

Extension 4.  “Valuable Papers and Records.”

a. We will pay the costs you incur in restoring, researching, replacing, or reproducing the "valuable 
papers and records" associated with your firefighting, ambulance or rescue related activities, 
when the “valuable papers and records” suffer direct physical loss or damage from a “covered 
cause of loss,” away from your premises.

b. We will not pay for:

(1) irreplaceable “valuable papers and records,” unless they are specifically described in an 
endorsement and a limit is shown there;

(2) any cost that results directly from processing or copying records;

(3) any cost that results from work performed on papers or records, such as filing or binding;

(4) loss or damage to computer-based records arising from loss or damage to “software,” or 
from a “computer virus” or from mechanical breakdown of “hardware”; or

(5) loss or damage to “software.”



 

PE1001 (01-20)
PORTABLE EQUIPMENT

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 3 of 11

Extension 5.  “Watercraft.”

a. If Coverage A is indicated in the Declarations, we will pay for direct physical loss or damage to 
“watercraft” or “personal watercraft” owned by you or furnished to you for your regular use, 
resulting from a “covered cause of loss.” 

b. This extension applies to all such “personal watercraft”.    

c. This extension applies only to “watercraft” that are either:

(1) not powered by a motor or engine; or

(2) powered by a motor or combination of motors of 100 horsepower or less, regardless of 
whether the motor is inboard, outboard, or inboard/outboard.

Extension 6.  Newly Acquired “Portable Equipment.”

a. Under Coverage B, Scheduled “Portable Equipment,” we will pay for the direct physical loss or 
damage caused by or resulting from any “covered cause of loss” to newly acquired “portable 
equipment” similar to that listed in the Declarations or schedule attached to this coverage form.

b. This automatic extension of coverage will apply for a period of 30 days from the date of 
acquisition, on a “replacement cost” basis, not to exceed the purchase price of the newly acquired 
“portable equipment.”

SECTION III.  COVERED CAUSES OF LOSS
"Covered cause of loss" means any cause of direct physical loss or damage except as excluded below.

Exclusions
This policy does not apply to loss or damage caused by or resulting directly or indirectly from the following 
causes, or occurring in the following situations.  Such loss or damage is excluded regardless of 
any other cause or event that contributes concurrently with or before, during, or after the loss or damage.  
But we will cover "resulting fire or explosion" arising out of any of these excluded causes except "war."

1. "War."

2. "Nuclear activity."

3. "Neglect" except when your "portable equipment" is in use in an “emergency situation.”

4. Dishonest acts or omissions of you or your "employees" or volunteers, or anyone authorized to 
act for you.

5. Mysterious disappearance of property or an inventory shortage.

6. "Wear and tear," deterioration, rust, corrosion, marring or scratching, erosion, wet or dry rot, and 
mold.

7. Mechanical breakdown.

8. "Inherent vice." Examples of "inherent vice" are the yellowing and cracking of old paper, patina 
that forms on old bronze and the swelling of wood under moist conditions.



 

PE1001 (01-20)
PORTABLE EQUIPMENT

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 4 of 11

9. "Latent defects."

10. Faulty design, workmanship and material including the cost of correcting any faulty design,   
workmanship, material, manufacture or installation, alteration, repair or work on covered "portable 
equipment."  But we will cover loss or damage that results from any of these, if the loss or 
damage occurs in connection with any cause of loss not otherwise excluded by this policy.

11. Asbestos, including loss, damage or "clean-up" resulting from asbestos or asbestos-containing 
materials unless the damage from asbestos is caused by or results from your “emergency 
operations” conducted away from premises owned or occupied by you.

12. Pollution or contamination including the actual, alleged or threatened presence, discharge, 
seepage, migration, release, escape or “clean-up” of “pollutants” unless caused by a “specified 
cause of loss” or by your “training operations,” or by your “emergency operations” conducted 
away from premises owned or occupied by you. 

SECTION IV.  WHAT WE WILL PAY

A. Limits of Insurance

1. The most we will pay for loss or damage in any one occurrence is the guaranteed replacement 
cost for Coverage A, or for Coverage B the applicable Limit of Insurance shown in the 
Declarations or in an attached schedule.

2. If we pay the limit for any one occurrence, that will not reduce the applicable limit for any future 
covered loss resulting from an unrelated occurrence.

3. Except to the extent specifically stated otherwise in an extension, the limits in each extension are 
in addition to the limits applicable to YOUR PORTABLE EQUIPMENT COVERAGE.

B. Deductible

1. We will not pay for loss or damage in any one occurrence until the amount of loss or damage 
exceeds the applicable deductible.  We will then pay the amount of loss or damage in excess of 
the deductible, up to the applicable Limit of Insurance.

2. Deductible Waiver.  If a loss covered under this policy also involves a loss under an Emergency 
Service Organization Commercial Property or Business Auto Policy issued to you by us, only one 
deductible, the largest, will be applied.  The deductible under the other policy or policies will be 
waived.

C. Coverage A Valuation - Guaranteed Replacement Cost

In the event of loss or damage, we will determine the value of property on a guaranteed replacement cost 
basis, as follows: 

1. We will pay the entire “replacement cost” of the lost or damaged “portable equipment,” or the cost 
to repair or replace the damaged “portable equipment,” whichever is smaller, in excess of the 
deductible, provided you accurately report to us at policy inception and within 30 days after 
acquisition, the number and “types of vehicles” which carry “portable equipment” owned by you or 
furnished to you for your regular use.



 

PE1001 (01-20)
PORTABLE EQUIPMENT

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 5 of 11

2. You may substitute "portable equipment" of a different kind or quality, but we won't pay more than 
the cost to repair or replace the lost or damaged "portable equipment" with "portable equipment" 
of comparable kind and quality.

3. Our estimated value of the total “replacement cost” of all “portable equipment” is based on the 
number and “types of vehicles” reported by you which carry “portable equipment” owned by you 
or furnished to you for your regular use.

4. If you do not accurately report the number and “types of vehicles” set forth in paragraph 1. above, 
we will determine the most we will pay using the following steps:

(a) Calculate the estimated value of your “portable equipment” based on the number and 
“types of vehicles” you reported to us.

(b) Calculate the estimated value of your “portable equipment” had the number and “types of 
vehicles” been accurately reported to us.

(c) Divide the amount calculated in step (a) by the amount calculated in step (b).

(d) Multiply the resulting proportion by the total amount of loss.

(e) Subtract the applicable deductible.

We will pay the amount determined in step (e).  For the remainder of any loss, you will have to rely on 
other insurance or absorb the loss.

D. Coverage B Valuation -  Replacement Cost

In the event of loss or damage, we will determine the value of property under Coverage B as follows: 

1. We will pay the "replacement cost" of the lost or damaged "portable equipment" in excess of the 
deductible, but not more than the smallest of the following:

(a) the amount which you actually spend to repair or replace the lost or damaged "portable 
equipment" with "portable equipment" of comparable kind and quality;

(b) the "replacement cost" of the lost or damaged "portable equipment;" or

(c) the limit shown in the schedule for each item.

2. You may substitute "portable equipment" of a different kind or quality and still comply with the 
“replacement cost” provision, but we won't pay more than the cost to repair or replace the lost or 
damaged "portable equipment" with "portable equipment" of comparable kind and quality.

SECTION V.  LOSS CONDITIONS
The following conditions apply in addition to the Common Policy Conditions and the Commercial Property 
Conditions.

1. Abandonment

There can be no abandonment of any property to us.



 

PE1001 (01-20)
PORTABLE EQUIPMENT

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 6 of 11

2. Appraisal

If we cannot agree with you on the amount of the loss, either of us can demand that the following 
procedure be used to settle the amount.

a. You or we will request in writing that the dispute be submitted to appraisal within 60 days from the 
time we receive your proof of loss.  Each will then select an appraiser and notify the other of that 
choice within 20 days of the initial request.

b. The appraisers will select an impartial umpire.  If they cannot agree on an umpire within 15 days, 
either you or we can ask that an umpire be appointed by a judge of the court of record in the 
county where the property is located.

c. The appraisers will appraise each item for its value at the time of loss and the amount of loss.  If 
they can’t agree, they will submit any differences to the umpire.  An agreement in writing by any 
two of these three will determine the amount of the loss.

d. You will pay your appraiser and we will pay ours.  Each will share equally any other costs of the 
appraisal and the umpire.

e. We will not surrender our rights by any act we take relating to an appraisal.

3. Duties In The Event Of Loss Or Damage

a. You must see that the following are done in the event of loss or damage to property insured 
under this policy:

(1) Notify the police if a law may have been broken.

(2) Give us prompt notice of the loss or damage.  Include a description of the property 
involved.

(3) As soon as possible, give us a description of how, when and where the loss or damage 
occurred.

(4) Take all reasonable steps to protect the property from further damage by a "covered 
cause of loss."  If feasible, set the damaged property aside and in the best possible order 
for examination.

Also keep a record of your expenses for emergency and temporary repairs, for 
consideration in the settlement of the claim.  This will not increase the Limit of Insurance.

(5) As often as may be reasonably required, permit us to inspect the property proving the 
loss or damage and examine your books and records.

Also permit us to take samples of damaged and undamaged property for inspection, 
testing and analysis, and permit us to make copies from your books and records.

(6) Send us a signed, sworn proof of loss containing the information we request to 
investigate the claim.  You must do this within 60 days after our request.  We will supply 
you with the necessary forms.

(7) Cooperate with us in the investigation or settlement of the claim.



 

PE1001 (01-20)
PORTABLE EQUIPMENT

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 7 of 11

b. We may examine any insured under oath, while not in the presence of any other insured and at 
such times as may be reasonably required, about any matter relating to this insurance or the 
claim, including an insured's books and records.  In the event of an examination, an insured's 
answers must be signed.

4. Loss Payment

a. In the event of loss or damage covered by this policy, at our option, we will either:

(1) Pay the value of lost or damaged property;

(2) Pay the cost of repairing or replacing the lost or damaged property;

(3) Take all or any part of the property at an agreed or appraised value; or

(4) Repair, rebuild or replace the property with other property of like kind and quality.

b. We will give notice of our intentions within 30 days after we receive the sworn proof of loss.

c. We will not pay you more than your financial interest in the property.

d. We may adjust losses with the owners of lost or damaged property if other than you.  If we pay 
the owners, such payments will satisfy your claims against us for the owners’ property.  We will 
not pay the owners more than their financial interest in the property.

e. We may elect to defend you against suits arising from claims of owners of property.  We will do 
this at our expense.

f. We will pay for covered loss or damage within 30 days after we receive the sworn proof of loss if:

(1) You have complied with all of the terms of this Coverage Part; and

(2) (a) We have reached agreement with you on the amount of loss; or

(b) An appraisal award has been made.

5. Recovered Property

If either you or we recover any property after loss settlement, that party must give the other prompt notice.  
At your option, the property will be returned to you.  You must then return to us the amount we paid to you 
for the property.  We will pay recovery expenses and the expenses to repair the recovered property, 
subject to the Limit of Insurance.

SECTION VI.  PORTABLE EQUIPMENT COVERAGE DEFINITIONS
“Aircraft” means aircraft except those that are:

(1) on the ground for display or instructional purposes;

(2) not self-propelled; and

(3) not certified for flight.



 

PE1001 (01-20)
PORTABLE EQUIPMENT

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 8 of 11

However, this does not include detached aircraft engines, parts, accessories and equipment.

"Clean-up" includes testing, monitoring, removal, containment, treatment, detoxification or neutralization, 
or assessing the effects of “pollutants.”

“Computer virus” means a computer program or computer code which is entered into your computer 
system without your knowledge, and which causes a disruption of normal program or computer system 
operation, but it does not mean an error in design or programming error. 

"Covered cause of loss" is defined in the section titled COVERED CAUSES OF LOSS.

"Debris removal expense" means expenses you incur in removing debris of "portable equipment" covered 
by this policy after direct physical loss or damage caused by or resulting from any "covered cause of 
loss."

“Emergency operations” means actions:

1) Which are urgent responses for protection of property, human life, health or safety; and,

2) Which result from the performing or attempting to perform fire fighting services, 
hazardous materials unit services, first aid, ambulance or rescue squad services, or 
related services, including the stabilizing or securing of an emergency scene; and,

3) Which are sanctioned by  (i) a fire department, hazardous materials unit, or first aid, 
ambulance or rescue squad qualifying as an insured under this policy, or  (ii) an officer, 
“employee” or volunteer member of such organization.

"Emergency situation" means an unexpected situation demanding immediate official action, but does not 
include response to situations which are your normal or routine activities.

"Employees" means people who work for you in the conduct of your ordinary activities, in return for a 
salary, wages or commissions. In order to be considered an employee, a person must be subject to your 
exclusive direction in the performance of his or her activities.  Contractors and agents are not considered 
to be employees.

"Fine arts" means property that is rare or that has historic or artistic value, including antiques, rare 
articles, etchings, pictures, statuary, marbles, bronzes, porcelains and bric-a-brac.

“Hardware” means computers and their electronic data processing parts and equipment which accept, 
utilize and process raw information for conversion to machine readable form. 

"Inherent vice" means a natural condition of property that causes it to deteriorate or become damaged.

"Latent defects” are faults or weaknesses in property itself.

"Named insured" means the person(s) or organization(s) named in the Declarations.

"Neglect" means your failure to take all reasonable steps to protect your property when it is threatened 
with loss or damage and to take all reasonable steps to protect your property from further loss after loss 
or damage occurs.

"Nuclear activity" means loss from nuclear reaction, nuclear radiation or radioactive contamination, 
whether deliberate or accidental, controlled or uncontrolled, and whether or not the loss is direct or 



 

PE1001 (01-20)
PORTABLE EQUIPMENT

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 9 of 11

indirect, proximate or remote, or is contributed to or aggravated by a “covered cause of loss.”  But it does 
not include explosion, fire or smoke.

“Permanently attached equipment” means equipment that is welded, bolted or permanently screwed to 
the dashboard, firewall or body of the “vehicle.”  Equipment inserted on permanently installed slide 
brackets with or without the use of setscrews or tension, or portable firefighting and rescue related 
equipment, shall not be construed as permanently attached equipment 

"Personal effects" means property that belongs to an individual and is devoted primarily to that 
individual's personal use; for example, clothing, eyeglasses, or individually owned portable firefighting, 
ambulance, or rescue related equipment.  Personal effects does not include:

(1) money and securities;

(2) “fine arts”

(3) “aircraft”

(4) “watercraft,” except as provided for in Extension 5. for Coverage A, or in an attached 
schedule for Coverage B; or

(5) “vehicles.”

“Personal watercraft” means a vessel which uses an inboard motor powering a water jet pump as its 
primary source of motive power, and which is designed to be operated by a person sitting, standing, or 
kneeling on the vessel, rather than the conventional manner of sitting or standing inside the vessel.

"Portable equipment" means portable firefighting, ambulance, or rescue related equipment and portable 
communications equipment commonly used in fire and rescue operations away from your premises.  
Portable equipment also includes equipment specific to firefighting and rescue related activities, such as 
training videos, manuals and mannequins, and any trailer whose primary purpose is to transport covered 
portable equipment.  But portable equipment does not include:
 

(1) "personal effects" belonging to you or your volunteers or “employees,” other than 
individually owned portable firefighting, ambulance, or rescue related equipment;

(2) personal property including contents, building fixtures, or building maintenance 
equipment such as lawn mowers or tractors;

(3) money and securities;

(4) "valuable papers and records;"

(5) televisions, video cassette recorders, and other audio-visual equipment except when 
such equipment is intended for use off your premises in actual “emergency situations” or 
in training for “emergency situations;”

(6) computer hardware or software or other electronic data processing equipment except 
when such equipment is intended for use off your premises in actual “emergency 
situations” or in training for “emergency situations;”

(7) "fine arts;"

(8) jewelry (except watches);



 

PE1001 (01-20)
PORTABLE EQUIPMENT

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 10 of 11

(9) "aircraft;"

(10) "watercraft,” except as provided for in Extension 5. for Coverage A or in an attached 
schedule for Coverage B; or

(11) "vehicles."

"Pollutants" means any solid, liquid, gaseous or thermal irritant or contaminant, including vapor, fumes, 
acids, alkalis, chemicals and waste.  Waste includes materials to be recycled, reconditioned or reclaimed.

"Replacement cost” is the amount it would take to replace property with property of the same kind and 
quality, determined at the time of loss, without deduction for depreciation.

"Resulting fire or explosion" means a fire or explosion that results from any cause of loss other than "war," 
whether or not that cause of loss itself is covered under this policy.

“Software” includes all forms of computer programs, computer code, and computer readable data 
employed in your operations.  It includes the media on which computer programs, computer code, or 
computer readable data are electronically or optically recorded, such as magnetic tapes, hard disks, 
floppy disks, or compact disks. 

"Specified cause of loss" means fire, lightning, windstorm or hail, explosion, riot or civil commotion, 
“vehicles” or “aircraft,” smoke, sonic boom, vandalism and malicious mischief, sprinkler leakage, sinkhole 
collapse or volcanic action.

“Training operations” means activities used to prepare, train, or instruct members of a fire department, 
hazardous materials unit, or first aid, ambulance or rescue squad in accepted and recognized emergency 
procedures, including municipal, state and federal standards.

“Types of vehicles” means various categories of vehicles commonly used in firefighting, ambulance or 
rescue operations, such as pumpers, brush trucks, aerial devices, rescue trucks, or advanced life support 
ambulances.

"Valuable papers and records” are documents that are written, printed, or otherwise inscribed.  These 
include:

(1) books, manuscripts, abstracts, maps and drawings;

(2)  film and other photographically produced records, such as slides and microfilm; and

(3) schematics, pre-plans, and haz mat manuals.

“Vehicle” means a land motor vehicle, trailer or semi-trailer, including “permanently attached equipment,” 
designed for travel on public roads, but does not include mobile equipment or trailers whose primary 
purpose is to transport covered “portable equipment.”

"War" means any of the following:

(1) Hostile or belligerent action, including action in hindering, combating or defending against 
an actual, impending or expected attack by:

(a) any government or sovereign power (de jure or de facto);



 

PE1001 (01-20)
PORTABLE EQUIPMENT

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 11 of 11

(b) any military, naval, air or nuclear forces; or

(c) any agent of such government, power, authority or forces.

(2) Insurrection, invasion, rebellion, revolution, civil war, usurped power or action taken by 
governmental authority in hindering, combating or defending against such an event.

"Watercraft" means any watercraft used in your firefighting, ambulance or rescue related activities, 
including its motor, parts, accessories and equipment, but does not include “personal watercraft”.

"Wear and tear" includes wear, deterioration, rust, corrosion, marring or scratching, erosion, wet or dry 
rot, and mold.



 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

PE1003 (01-20)
PORTABLE EQUIPMENT

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

WATERCRAFT EXTENSION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

PORTABLE EQUIPMENT COVERAGE PART

With respect to "watercraft" (including its motor, parts, accessories and equipment) insured under this 
coverage form, all exclusions in Section III.  COVERED CAUSES OF LOSS apply except as amended 
below:

4. Dishonest acts or omissions done by you, your "employees", volunteers or anyone 
authorized to act for you, but this exclusion does not apply to a dishonest act or omission 
done by the captain or crew of your "watercraft" for a fraudulent or dishonest purpose 
contrary to their duty to you.

7. This exclusion is deleted in its entirety.

9. "Latent defects".  We will not pay the cost of replacing or repairing an item having a 
"latent defect" that causes damage to your insured property; however, resulting damage 
would be covered.

12. Pollution and contamination, which means the presence, release, discharge or dispersal 
of "pollutants" unless the damage is itself caused by or results from (1) the use of the 
"watercraft" in an emergency or (2) the activities of governmental authorities acting for 
the public welfare to prevent or mitigate a pollution incident, or the threat of a pollution 
incident.

All other exclusions remain unchanged.



 

PE1009 (01-20)
PORTABLE EQUIPMENT

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT 
PORTABLE EQUIPMENT 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

PORTABLE EQUIPMENT COVERAGE PART

The following revisions are made to the Portable Equipment Coverage Form:

1. Coverage for Replacement Chargers for Portable Equipment

The following paragraph is added to Section IV What We Will Pay, Paragraph C. Coverage A 
Valuation - Guaranteed Replacement Cost and Paragraph D. Coverage B Valuation - 
Replacement Cost:  

When "portable equipment" is replaced and the undamaged associated mobile or stationary chargers 
for such "portable equipment" are incompatible with the replacement "portable equipment", we will 
pay to replace the mobile or stationary chargers with chargers that are compatible with the 
replacement "portable equipment".   

2. Member Theft of Portable Equipment

The following extension is added:  

Member Theft of "Portable Equipment"
a. At your request, we will pay up to $5,000 in the event that:

(1) Your "portable equipment" that was assigned to a volunteer or "employee" who is no longer 
affiliated with or employed by you, has been taken by the volunteer or "employee"; 

(2) You are unable to repossess such "portable equipment"; and
(3) You now consider such "portable equipment" to be stolen.  

b. This payment is subject to the following conditions in addition to the policy provisions:
(1) You must provide the identity and last known contact information of the volunteer or 

"employee" suspected of the theft of the "portable equipment".
(2) You must provide us with reasonable documentation of your effort to re-claim the "portable 

equipment".
(3) You have notified the police that a law may have been broken.
(4) The volunteer or "employee" must have been affiliated with you or employed by you during 

the policy period.
c. The most we will pay in any one policy period, regardless of the number of volunteers or 

"employees" who do not return the "portable equipment" assigned to them is $10,000.  



 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

PE1012 (01-20)
PORTABLE EQUIPMENT

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 2

UNMANNED AIRCRAFT EXTENSION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

PORTABLE EQUIPMENT COVERAGE FORM

A. The following extension is added to Section II. Extensions of Portable Equipment Coverage:
“Unmanned Aircraft”
a. We will pay for direct physical loss or damage to “unmanned aircraft” owned by you or furnished 

to you for your regular use, resulting from a “covered cause of loss”. 
b. Coverage is not provided:

(1) While “unmanned aircraft” is rented, leased, or loaned to others without an operator who is 
your “employee” or volunteer; or

(2) While being used in any professional or organized racing or demolition contest or stunting 
activity, or while practicing or preparing for such contest or activity; or

(3) While not used in the insured’s “operations”. 
c. Subject to the limit shown in d., below, we will pay the “replacement cost” of the lost or damaged 

“unmanned aircraft” in excess of the deductible, but not more than the lesser of:
(1) The amount which you actually spend to repair or replace the lost or damaged “unmanned 

aircraft” with “unmanned aircraft” of comparable kind and quality; or
(2) The “replacement cost” of the lost or damaged “unmanned aircraft”.

d. The most we will pay under this extension in any one occurrence is $25,000.
e. A $500 deductible applies to this extension. 

B. The following changes are made to Section VI. Portable Equipment Coverage Definitions:
1. The definition of "aircraft" is replaced with the following:

“Aircraft” means aircraft, other than "unmanned aircraft", except those that are:
(1) on the ground for display or instructional purposes;
(2) not self-propelled; and
(3) not certified for flight.

However, this does not include detached aircraft engines, parts, accessories and equipment.
2. The following definition is added:

“Unmanned aircraft” means an aircraft weighing 15 pounds or less, that is not:

a. Designed; 
b. Manufactured; or
c. Modified after manufacture;
to be controlled directly by a person from within or on the aircraft. 
“Unmanned aircraft” includes equipment used with such “unmanned aircraft”, provided such 
equipment is attached to or essential for its operation.  Payload (camera) is included only when in 
connection to, stored with, or in use with the drone.



 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

PE1012 (01-20)
PORTABLE EQUIPMENT

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 2 of 2

3. Item (3) under the definition of “personal effects” is replaced by the following:
(3) "aircraft" or "unmanned aircraft".

4. Item (9) under the definition of "portable equipment" is replaced by the following:
(9) "aircraft" or "unmanned aircraft", except as provided for in the "Unmanned Aircraft" extension.



 

 

Named Insured: Policy Number: 
Policy Period: From   

  To      

 

VGL100 (01/ 20)     

 

GENERAL  LIABILITY  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 
 

Limits of Insurance 

Each Occurrence or Medical Incident $  

 Medical Expense $  Any One Person 

Personal & Advertising Injury $  

General Aggregate $   

Products - Completed Operations Aggregate $  

Products - Completed Operations are subject to the General Aggregate 

limit unless indicated otherwise 

 

Employers’ Liability  

Bodily Injury by Accident $  Each Accident 

Bodily Injury by Disease $  Policy Limit 

Bodily Injury by Disease $       Each Employee or Volunteer    

 
 
 

 
 

 

 Estimated Coverage Part Premium:   

 Taxes, Fees and Surcharges:   

 Total Premium:      

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

General Liability Forms 

See Schedule of Forms and Endorsements. 

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

1,000,000

    5,000

1,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

$   14,570.00

NOT COVERED

$   14,570.00

                                   

         

         

         

             



 

VGL101 (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 19

EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATION 
GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

Various provisions in this policy restrict coverage. Read the entire policy carefully to determine rights, 
duties and what is and is not covered. 

Throughout this coverage part the words "you" and "your" refer to the Named Insured shown in the 
Declarations, and any other person or organization qualifying as a Named Insured under this coverage 
part. The words "we", "us" and "our" refer to the company providing this insurance.  The word "insured" 
means any person or organization qualifying as such under SECTION II.  WHO IS AN INSURED. 

Other words and phrases that appear in quotation marks have special meaning. Refer to SECTION V. 
DEFINITIONS.
 
SECTION I.   COVERAGES

Coverage A.   Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability

1. Insuring Agreement
 

a. We will pay those sums that the insured becomes legally obligated to pay as damages because 
of "bodily injury" or "property damage" to which this insurance applies. We will have the right and 
duty to defend the insured against any "suit" seeking those damages. However, we will have no 
duty to defend the insured against any "suit" seeking damages for "bodily injury" or "property 
damage" to which this insurance does not apply. We may, at our discretion, investigate any 
"occurrence" and settle any claim or "suit" that may result. But:
(1)  The amount we will pay for damages is limited as described in SECTION III. LIMITS OF 

INSURANCE; and
(2)  Our right and duty to defend end when we have used up the applicable limit of insurance in 

the payment of judgments or settlements under COVERAGES A, B or C or medical 
expenses under COVERAGE D.

No other obligation or liability to pay sums or perform acts or services is covered unless explicitly 
provided for under SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS – COVERAGES A, B AND C.

b. This insurance applies to "bodily injury" and "property damage" only if:
(1)  The "bodily injury" or "property damage" is caused by an "occurrence" that takes place in the 

"coverage territory"; 
(2)  The "bodily injury" or "property damage" occurs during the policy period; and
(3)  Prior to the policy period, no officer, director, commissioner or trustee, and no volunteer or 

"employee" authorized by you to give or receive notice of an "occurrence" or claim, knew or 
had reason to know that the "bodily injury" or "property damage" had occurred, in whole or in 
part.  If any such persons knew or had reason to know, prior to the policy period, that the 
"bodily injury" or "property damage" occurred in whole or in part, then any continuation, 
change or resumption of such "bodily injury" or "property damage" during or after the policy 
period will be deemed to have been known to have occurred prior to the policy period.

c. "Bodily injury" or "property damage" which occurs during the policy period and was not, prior to 
the policy period, known to have occurred by any insured listed in paragraph b.(3) above, 
includes any continuation, change or resumption of that "bodily injury" or "property damage" after 
the end of the policy period.



 

VGL101 (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 2 of 19

d. "Bodily injury" or "property damage" will be deemed to have been known to have occurred at the 
earliest time when any insured listed in paragraph b.(3) above:
(1) Reports all, or any part, of the "bodily injury" or "property damage" to us or any other insurer;
(2) Receives a written or verbal demand or claim for damages because of the "bodily injury" or 

"property damage"; or
(3) Becomes aware by any other means that "bodily injury" or "property damage" has occurred or 

has begun to occur.
e. Damages because of "bodily injury" include damages claimed by any person or organization for 

care, loss of services or death resulting at any time from the "bodily injury".

2. Exclusions Applicable to Coverage A
 

This insurance does not apply to:
 
a. Expected or Intended Injury 

"Bodily injury" or "property damage" expected or intended from the standpoint of the insured. This 
exclusion does not apply to expected or intended “bodily injury” or “property damage” resulting 
from reasonable actions taken to protect persons or property.

b. Contractual Liability 
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" for which the insured is obligated to pay damages by reason 
of the assumption of liability in a contract or agreement. This exclusion does not apply to liability 
for damages:
(1)  That the insured would have in the absence of the contract or agreement; or 
(2)  Assumed in a contract or agreement that is an "insured contract", provided the "bodily injury" 

or "property damage" occurs subsequent to the execution of the contract or agreement. 
Solely for the purposes of liability assumed in an "insured contract", reasonable attorney fees 
and necessary litigation expenses incurred by or for a party other than an insured are 
deemed to be damages because of "bodily injury" or "property damage", provided: 
(a) Liability to such party for, or for the cost of, that party's defense has also been assumed 

in the same "insured contract"; and 
(b) Such attorney fees and litigation expenses are for defense of that party against a civil or 

alternative dispute resolution proceeding in which damages to which this insurance 
applies are alleged.

c. Workers' Compensation and Similar Laws 
Any obligation of the insured under a workers' compensation, disability benefits or unemployment 
compensation law, or any similar law. 

d. Employer's Liability 
"Bodily injury" to:
(1) An "employee" of the insured arising out of and in the course of employment by the insured, 

or performing duties related to the conduct of the insured’s business; or 
(2) Any volunteer, if you provide or are required to provide any benefits for such volunteer under 

any workers’ compensation law, disability benefits law, or any similar law; or
(3) The spouse, child, parent, brother or sister of that employee or “volunteer” as a consequence 

of paragraph (1) or (2) above.
This exclusion applies: 

(a) Whether the insured may be liable as an employer or in any other capacity; and 
(b) To any obligation to share damages with or repay someone else who must pay damages                                     

because of the injury. 
This exclusion does not apply to liability assumed by the insured under an "insured contract". 



 

VGL101 (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 3 of 19

e. Pollution 
Any injury, damage, expense, cost, loss, liability or legal obligation arising out of or in any way 
related to pollution, however caused.  Pollution includes the actual, alleged, or potential presence 
in or introduction into the environment of any substance if such substance has, or is alleged to 
have, the effect of making the environment impure, harmful or dangerous.  Environment includes 
any air, land, structure (or the air therein), watercourse or other body of water, including 
underground water.  This exclusion does not apply to:
(1)  “Emergency operations” conducted away from premises owned by or rented to you or any fire 

department, hazardous materials unit, first aid squad, ambulance squad or rescue squad 
qualifying as an insured under this coverage part; or

(2)  “Training operations”; or
(3)  Water runoff from the cleaning of equipment used in “emergency operations”; or
(4)  “Bodily injury” if sustained within a building and caused by smoke, fumes, vapor or soot from 

equipment used to heat that building; or
(5)  “Bodily injury” or “property damage” caused by heat, smoke or fumes from a “hostile fire”:

(a)   At or from premises you own, rent or occupy; or
(b)  At or from any site or “location” in connection with operations described in (1), (2) or (3) 

above.

f. Asbestos
Any injury, damage, expense, cost, loss, liability or legal obligation arising out of or in any way 
related to asbestos or asbestos-containing materials, or exposure thereto, or for the costs of 
abatement, mitigation, removal, elimination or disposal of any of them. This exclusion does not 
apply to:
(1) “Bodily injury” or “property damage” arising from; or
(2) The costs of abatement, removal or disposal of:
asbestos released as a result of “emergency operations” or “training operations” away from 
premises which are either owned by, rented to, or occupied by any insured.

g. Lead, Electromagnetic Radiation, Nuclear
(1) Any injury, damage, expense, cost, loss, liability or legal obligation arising out of or in any 

way related to:
(a) The toxic properties of lead, or any material or substance containing lead; or
(b) Electromagnetic radiation;
or exposure thereto, or for the costs of abatement, mitigation, removal, elimination or disposal 
of any of them.

(2) Any loss, cost or expense arising out of any actual, alleged or threatened injury or damage to 
any person or property from any radioactive matter or nuclear material.

h. Aircraft, Auto or Watercraft
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of the ownership, maintenance, use or 
entrustment to others of any aircraft, "auto" or watercraft owned or operated by or rented or 
loaned to any insured. Use includes operation and "loading or unloading".  This exclusion does 
not apply to: 
(1) A watercraft while ashore on premises you own or rent; 
(2) A watercraft you do not own that is not being used to carry persons or property for a charge;
(3) Liability assumed under any "insured contract" for the ownership, maintenance or use of 

aircraft or watercraft; 
(4) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of the operation of any of the equipment listed 

in paragraph f.(2) or f.(3) of the definition of "mobile equipment"; or
(5) A watercraft you own that is:

(a) Powered by a motor or combination of motors of 100 horsepower or less; or
(b) Not powered by a motor; or
(c) A “personal watercraft”. 



 

VGL101 (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 4 of 19

i. Mobile Equipment 
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of:
(1) The transportation of "mobile equipment" by an "auto" owned or operated by or rented or 

loaned to any insured; or 
(2) The use of "mobile equipment" in, or while in practice for, or while being prepared for, any 

prearranged racing, speed, demolition, or stunting activity. 

j. War 
"Bodily injury" or "property damage", however caused, arising directly or indirectly out of:
(1) War, including undeclared or civil war; or
(2) Warlike action by a military force, including action in hindering or defending against an actual 

or expected attack, by any government, sovereign or other authority using military personnel 
or other agents; or

(3) Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped power, or action taken by governmental authority 
in hindering or defending against any of these. 

k. Damage To Property  
"Property damage" to: 
(1) Property you or any insured owns, rents, or occupies; 
(2) Premises you sell, give away or abandon, if the "property damage" arises out of any part of 

those premises; 
(3) Property loaned to you or any insured; 
(4) Personal property in the care, custody or control of the insured; 
(5) That particular part of real property on which you or any contractors or subcontractors 

working directly or indirectly on your behalf are performing operations, if the "property 
damage" arises out of those operations; or 

(6) That particular part of any property that must be restored, repaired or replaced because "your 
work" was incorrectly performed on it. 

Paragraphs (1), (3) and (4) of this exclusion do not apply to "property damage" (other than 
damage by fire) to premises, including the contents of such premises, rented or loaned to you for 
a period of 30 or fewer consecutive days. The Each Occurrence or Medical Incident Limit shown 
in the Declarations will apply to this coverage.

Paragraphs (3), (4), (5) and (6) of this exclusion do not apply to liability assumed under a 
sidetrack agreement.

Paragraph (4) of this exclusion does not apply to “property damage” to personal property 
belonging to anyone receiving service from any insured because of loss by theft, physical 
damage or disappearance of such property during the period when volunteers or “employees” of 
the insured arrive on the scene or while they are rendering service to others and ending when 
they either leave the scene, complete their service, or transfer care of a transported patient to 
others.  This insurance does not apply to that portion of any loss for which the Named Insured 
has other valid and collectible insurance.  The limit of the company’s liability is the Each 
Occurrence or Medical Incident Limit stated in the Declarations, subject to a $100 deductible 
each “occurrence”.

Paragraphs (5) and (6) of this exclusion do not apply to “property damage” resulting from actions 
taken to protect persons or property. 

Paragraph (6) of this exclusion does not apply to "property damage" included in the "products-
completed operations hazard". 

l. Personal and Advertising Injury
"Bodily injury" arising out of "personal and advertising injury".



 

VGL101 (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 5 of 19

m. Sexual Abuse
“Bodily injury” arising out of the “sexual abuse” of any person.  However, this exclusion shall not 
apply to the Named Insured if no officer, director, commissioner or trustee of the Named Insured 
knew or had reason to know of the "sexual abuse".  Also, we will defend an insured for covered 
civil action subject to the other terms of this coverage part until either a judgment or final 
adjudication establishes such an act, or the insured confirms such act.

n. Professional Health Care Services
Damages arising or allegedly arising out of providing or failing to provide “professional health care 
services”.

o. Employment Practices
“Bodily injury” or “property damage” arising out of your “employment practices”.

p. Product Recall
Damages claimed for any loss, cost or expense incurred by you or others for the loss of use, 
withdrawal, recall, inspection, repair, replacement, adjustment, removal or disposal of: 
(1) "Your product"; 
(2) "Your work"; or 
(3) "Impaired property"; 
if such product, work, or property is withdrawn or recalled from the market or from use by any 
person or organization because of a known or suspected defect, deficiency, inadequacy or 
dangerous condition in it. 

Exclusions c. through p. do not apply to damage by fire to premises while rented to you or temporarily 
occupied by you with permission of the owner. The Each Occurrence or Medical Incident Limit shown 
in the Declarations will apply to this coverage.
   

Coverage B.   Personal and Advertising Injury Liability
 
1. Insuring Agreement
 

a. We will pay those sums that the insured becomes legally obligated to pay as damages because 
of "personal and advertising injury" to which this insurance applies. We will have the right and 
duty to defend the insured against any "suit" seeking those damages. However, we will have no 
duty to defend the insured against any "suit" seeking damages for "personal and advertising 
injury" to which this insurance does not apply. We may, at our discretion, investigate any offense 
and settle any claim or "suit" that may result.  But:
(1) The amount we will pay for damages is limited as described in SECTION III – LIMITS OF        

INSURANCE; and 
(2) Our right and duty to defend end when we have used up the applicable limit of insurance in 

the payment of judgments or settlements under COVERAGES A, B or C or medical 
expenses under COVERAGE D. 

No other obligation or liability to pay sums or perform acts or services is covered unless explicitly 
provided for under SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS – COVERAGES A, B AND C. 

b. This insurance applies to "personal and advertising injury" caused by an offense arising out of 
your business but only if the offense was committed in the "coverage territory" during the policy 
period.

 



 

VGL101 (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 6 of 19

2.   Exclusions Applicable to Coverage B
 

This insurance does not apply to:
 
a. Knowing Violation of the Rights of Another  

"Personal and advertising injury" caused by or at the direction of the insured with the knowledge 
that the act would violate the rights of another and would inflict "personal and advertising injury".

b. Material Published with Knowledge of Its Falsity
"Personal and advertising injury" arising out of oral or written publication of material, if done by or 
at the direction of the insured with knowledge of its falsity.

c. Material Published Prior to the Policy Period
"Personal and advertising injury" arising out of oral or written publication of material whose first 
publication took place before the beginning of the policy period.

d. Criminal Acts
“Personal and advertising injury” arising out of a criminal act committed by or at the direction of 
any insured.

e.    Contractual Liability
"Personal and advertising injury" for which the insured has assumed liability in a contract or 
agreement. This exclusion does not apply to liability for damages that the insured would have in 
the absence of the contract or agreement.

f.    Breach of Contract
"Personal and advertising injury" arising out of a breach of contract, except an implied contract to 
use another's advertising idea in your "advertisement".

g.    Quality or Performance of Goods 
"Personal and advertising injury" arising out of the failure of goods, products or services to 
conform with any statement of quality or performance made in your "advertisement".

h.    Wrong Description of Prices
"Personal and advertising injury" arising out of the wrong description of the price of goods, 
products or services stated in your "advertisement".

i.    Infringement of Copyright, Patent, Trademark or Trade Secret
“Personal and advertising injury” arising out of the infringement of copyright, patent, trademark, 
trade secret or other intellectual property rights.  However, this exclusion does not apply to 
infringement, in your “advertisement”, of copyright, trade dress or slogan.

j.    Pollution  
“Personal and advertising injury” arising out of or in any way related to pollution, however caused.  
Pollution includes the actual, alleged, or potential presence in or introduction into the environment 
of any substance if such substance has, or is alleged to have, the effect of making the 
environment impure, harmful or dangerous.  Environment includes any air, land, structure (or the 
air therein), watercourse or other body of water, including underground water.  

k.    Professional Health Care Services
"Personal and advertising injury" arising or allegedly arising out of providing or failing to provide 
“professional health care services”.

l.    Employment Practices
"Personal and advertising injury" arising out of your “employment practices”.



 

VGL101 (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 7 of 19

m.  Asbestos
Any injury, expense, cost, loss, liability or legal obligation arising out of or in any way related to 
asbestos or asbestos-containing materials.

n.    Lead, Electromagnetic Radiation, Nuclear
(1) Any injury, expense, cost, loss, liability or legal obligation arising out of or in any way related 

to:
(a) The toxic properties of lead, or any material or substance containing lead; or
(b) Electromagnetic radiation;
or exposure thereto, or for the costs of abatement, mitigation, removal, elimination or disposal 
of any of them.

(2) Any loss, cost or expense arising out of any actual, alleged or threatened injury to any person 
or property from any radioactive matter or nuclear material.

o. War
"Personal and advertising injury”, however caused, arising directly or indirectly out of:
(1) War, including undeclared or civil war; or
(2) Warlike action by a military force, including action in hindering or defending against an actual 

or expected attack, by any government, sovereign or other authority using military personnel 
or other agents; or

(3) Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped power, or action taken by governmental authority 
in hindering or defending against any of these. 

p. Sexual Abuse
“Personal and advertising injury” arising out of the “sexual abuse” of any person.

Coverage C.   Professional Health Care Liability

1. Insuring Agreement

a. We will pay those sums that the insured becomes legally obligated to pay as damages because 
of injury arising out of a “medical incident”.  We will have the right and duty to defend any claim or 
“suit” seeking those damages.  We may at our discretion investigate any “medical incident” and 
settle any claim or “suit” that may result.  But:
(1) The amount we will pay for damages is limited as described in SECTION III. LIMITS OF 

INSURANCE; and
(2) Our right and duty to defend end when we have used up the applicable limit of insurance in 

the payment of judgments or settlements.
No other obligation or liability to pay sums or perform acts or services is covered unless explicitly 
provided under SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS – COVERAGES A, B AND C or medical 
expenses under COVERAGE D.

b. This insurance applies only if the damages are caused by a “medical incident” that takes place:
(1) During the policy period; and
(2) In the “coverage territory”.

2. Exclusions Applicable to Coverage C

All exclusions under COVERAGE A. BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE LIABILITY apply 
to this COVERAGE C, except that exclusion n. Professional Health Care Services under 
COVERAGE A shall not apply.

All exclusions under COVERAGE B. PERSONAL AND ADVERTISING INJURY LIABILITY apply to 
this COVERAGE C, except that exclusion k. Professional Health Care Services under COVERAGE 
B shall not apply.



 

VGL101 (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 8 of 19

In addition, this insurance does not apply to:

a. Medical Command via Telecommunications Device
Any physician providing or failing to provide on-line medical direction or medical command via 
telecommunication to emergency medical personnel.

b. Criminal Acts
Injury arising out of a criminal act (except for "sexual abuse") committed by the insured or anyone 
for whom the insured is legally responsible.  However, we will defend the insured for covered civil 
action subject to the other terms of this coverage part until either a judgment or final adjudication 
establishes such act, or the insured confirms such act.

Coverage D.   Medical Expense
 
1. Insuring Agreement
 

a. We will pay medical expenses as described below for "bodily injury" caused by an accident: 
(1) On premises you own or rent; 
(2) On ways next to premises you own or rent; or 
(3) Because of your operations; 
provided that: 

(a) The accident takes place in the "coverage territory" and during the policy period; 
(b) The expenses are incurred and reported to us within one year of the date of the accident; 

and 
(c) The injured person submits to examination, at our expense, by physicians of our choice 

as often as we reasonably require.
b. We will make these payments regardless of fault. These payments will not exceed the applicable 

limit of insurance.  We will pay reasonable expenses for: 
(1) First aid administered at the time of an accident; 
(2) Necessary medical, surgical, x-ray and dental services, including prosthetic devices; and 
(3) Necessary ambulance, hospital, professional nursing and funeral services.

 
2. Exclusions Applicable to Coverage D

 We will not pay expenses for "bodily injury": 

a. Any Insured
To any insured.

b. Hired Person
To a person hired to do work for or on behalf of any insured or a tenant of any insured. 

c. Injury on Normally Occupied Premises
To a person injured on that part of premises you own or rent that the person normally occupies. 

d. Workers’ Compensation and Similar Laws
To a person, whether or not an "employee" of any insured, if benefits for the "bodily injury" are 
payable or must be provided under a workers' compensation or disability benefits law or a similar 
law.   

e. Athletic Activities
To a person injured while taking part in athletics. 

f. Products – Completed Operations Hazard



 

VGL101 (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 9 of 19

Included within the "products-completed operations hazard". 

g.   Professional Health Care Services
To any person for "professional health care services"  provided by you.

h. Coverage A 
Excluded under COVERAGE A.  BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE LIABILITY.

Supplementary Payments – Coverages A, B and C
 
1. We will pay, with respect to any claim we investigate or settle, or any "suit" against an insured we 

defend: 
a. All expenses we incur. 
b. Up to $250 for cost of bail bonds required because of accidents or traffic law violations arising out 

of the use of any vehicle to which the Bodily Injury Liability coverage applies. We do not have to 
furnish these bonds. 

c. The cost of bonds to release attachments, but only for bond amounts within the applicable limit of 
insurance. We do not have to furnish these bonds. 

d. All reasonable expenses incurred by the insured at our request to assist us in the investigation or 
defense of the claim or "suit", including actual loss of earnings up to $300 a day because of time 
off from work. 

e. All costs taxed against the insured in the "suit". 
f. Prejudgment interest awarded against the insured on that part of the judgment we pay. If we 

make an offer to pay the applicable limit of insurance, we will not pay any prejudgment interest 
based on that period of time after the offer. 

g. All interest on the full amount of any judgment that accrues after entry of the judgment and before 
we have paid, offered to pay, or deposited in court the part of the judgment that is within the 
applicable limit of insurance. 

These payments will not reduce the limits of insurance. 

2. If we defend an insured against a "suit" and an indemnitee of the insured is also named as a party to 
the "suit", we will defend that indemnitee if all of the following conditions are met: 
a. The "suit" against the indemnitee seeks damages for which the insured has assumed the liability 

of the indemnitee in a contract or agreement that is an "insured contract"; 
b.   This insurance applies to such liability assumed by the insured; 
c. The obligation to defend, or the cost of the defense of, that indemnitee, has also been assumed 

by the insured in the same "insured contract"; 
d. The allegations in the "suit" and the information we know about the "occurrence" are such that no 

conflict appears to exist between the interests of the insured and the interests of the indemnitee; 
e. The indemnitee and the insured ask us to conduct and control the defense of that indemnitee 

against such "suit" and agree that we can assign the same counsel to defend the insured and the 
indemnitee; and 

f. The indemnitee: 
(1) Agrees in writing to: 

(a) Cooperate with us in the investigation, settlement or defense of the "suit"; 
(b) Immediately send us copies of any demands, notices, summonses or legal papers 

received in connection with the "suit"; 
(c) Notify any other insurer whose coverage is available to the indemnitee; and 
(d) Cooperate with us with respect to coordinating other applicable insurance available to the 

indemnitee; and
(2) Provides us with written authorization to: 

(a) Obtain records and other information related to the "suit"; and 
(b) Conduct and control the defense of the indemnitee in such "suit". 



 

VGL101 (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 10 of 19

So long as the above conditions are met, attorneys' fees incurred by us in the defense of that 
indemnitee, necessary litigation expenses incurred by us and necessary litigation expenses incurred 
by the indemnitee at our request will be paid as SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS. Notwithstanding 
the provisions of paragraph 2.b.(2) of COVERAGE A. BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE 
LIABILITY, such payments will not be deemed to be damages for "bodily injury" and "property 
damage" and will not reduce the limits of insurance. 

Our obligation to defend an insured's indemnitee and to pay for attorneys' fees and necessary 
litigation expenses as SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS ends when: 
a. We have used up the applicable limit of insurance in the payment of judgments or settlements; or
b. The conditions set forth above, or the terms of the agreement described in paragraph f. above, 

are no longer met.

SECTION II.   WHO IS AN INSURED
 
1. If you are: 

a. An organization other than a partnership, joint venture or limited liability company, you are an 
insured. 

b. A partnership or joint venture, you are an insured. Your members and your partners are also 
insureds, but only within the course and scope of your operations.

c. A limited liability company, you are an insured. Your members are also insureds, but only within 
the course and scope of your operations.  Your managers are insureds, but only within the course 
and scope of your operations.

2. In addition to you, each of the following is an insured:
a. Volunteers and Employees.  Your volunteers, "employees", elected or appointed officers, 

directors, commissioners or trustees, but only for acts within the course and scope of their 
employment by you, membership with you or authorized duties on your behalf.

b. Medical Directors.   Physicians who are your medical directors, but only for acts within the 
course and scope of their medical director duties on your behalf.

c. Good Samaritans.  Your volunteers, "employees", elected or appointed officers, directors, 
commissioners or trustees while acting as a Good Samaritan independently of his or her activities 
on your behalf, but only when he or she encounters the scene of an emergency requiring sudden 
action.  In no event will such person who responds to the scene of an emergency with or for any 
other emergency service organization be an insured.

d. Owners of Commandeered Equipment.  The owner of commandeered equipment other than an 
“auto” is an insured while the equipment is in your temporary care, custody or control and is being 
used as part of an “emergency operation”.

e. Real Estate Managers.  Any person or any organization while acting as your real estate 
manager. 

f. Blanket Additional Insureds.  Any person or organization required to be an additional insured 
under an “insured contract”, if agreed to by you prior to the “bodily injury”, “property damage”, 
“personal and advertising injury”, or “medical incident”, but only with respect to liability arising out 
of your premises or operations.

3. Mobile Equipment.   With respect to "mobile equipment" registered in your name under any motor 
vehicle registration law, any person is an insured while driving such equipment along a public 
highway with your permission. Any other person or organization responsible for the conduct of such 
person is also an insured, but only with respect to liability arising out of the operation of the 
equipment, and only if no other insurance of any kind is available to that person or organization for 
this liability. However, no person or organization is an insured with respect to “property damage" to 
property owned by, rented to, in the charge of or occupied by you or the employer of any person who 
is an insured under this provision. 



 

VGL101 (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 11 of 19

4. New Organizations.  Any organization you newly acquire or form, other than a partnership, joint 
venture or limited liability company, and over which you maintain ownership or majority interest, will 
qualify as a Named Insured if there is no other similar insurance available to that organization. 
However: 
a. Coverage under this provision is afforded only until the 90th day after you acquire or form the 

organization or the end of the policy period, whichever is earlier; 
b. COVERAGE A does not apply to "bodily injury" or "property damage" that occurred before you 

acquired or formed the organization;  
c. COVERAGE B does not apply to "personal and advertising injury" arising out of an offense 

committed before you acquired or formed the organization; and
d. COVERAGE C does not apply to a “medical incident” that took place before you acquired or 

formed the organization.

No person or organization is an insured with respect to the conduct of any current or past partnership, 
joint venture or limited liability company that is not shown as a Named Insured in the Declarations. 

SECTION III.   LIMITS OF INSURANCE 

1. The Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations and the rules below fix the most we will pay 
regardless of the number of: 
a. Insureds; 
b. Claims made or "suits" brought; or 
c. Persons or organizations making claims or bringing "suits". 

2. The General Aggregate Limit is the most we will pay for the sum of: 
a. Medical expenses under COVERAGE D; 
b. Damages under COVERAGE A, except damages because of "bodily injury" or "property damage" 

included in the "products-completed operations hazard";
c. Damages under COVERAGE B; and
d. Damages under COVERAGE C;
for each Named Insured shown in the Declarations and each “location” owned by or rented to you. 

3.  The Products - Completed Operations Aggregate Limit is the most we will pay under COVERAGE A 
for damages because of "bodily injury" and "property damage" included in the "products-completed 
operations hazard", for each Named Insured shown in the Declarations. 

4. Subject to 2. above, the Personal and Advertising Injury Limit is the most we will pay under 
COVERAGE B for the sum of all damages because of all "personal and advertising injury" sustained 
by any one person or organization. 

5. Subject to 2. or 3. above, whichever applies, the Each Occurrence or Medical Incident Limit is the 
most we will pay for the sum of: 
a. Damages under COVERAGES A and C; and 
b. Medical expenses under COVERAGE D; 
because of all "bodily injury" and "property damage" arising out of any one "occurrence" and all 
damages arising out of any one “medical incident”. 

6. Subject to 5. above, the Each Occurrence or Medical Incident Limit is the most we will pay under 
COVERAGE A for damages because of "property damage" to any one premises, while rented to you, 
or in the case of damage by fire, while rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with permission 
of the owner. 

7. Subject to 5. above, the Medical Expense Limit is the most we will pay under COVERAGE D for all 
medical expenses because of "bodily injury" sustained by any one person. 



 

VGL101 (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 12 of 19

The Limits of Insurance of this coverage part apply separately to each consecutive annual period and to 
any remaining period of less than 12 months, starting with the beginning of the policy period shown in the 
Declarations, unless the policy period is extended after issuance for an additional period of less than 12 
months. In that case, the additional period will be deemed part of the last preceding period for purposes 
of determining the Limits of Insurance.
 

SECTION IV.  CONDITIONS 

 The following conditions apply in addition to the Common Policy Conditions.

1. Bankruptcy 

Bankruptcy or insolvency of the insured or of the insured's estate will not relieve us of our obligations 
under this coverage part. 

2. Duties in the Event of an Occurrence, Offense, Medical Incident, Claim or Suit 

a. You must see to it that we are notified as soon as practicable of an "occurrence", offense or 
“medical incident” which may result in a claim or "suit". To the extent possible, notice should 
include: 
(1) How, when and where the "occurrence", offense or “medical incident” took place; 
(2) The names and addresses of any injured persons and witnesses; and 
(3) The nature and location of any injury or damage arising out of the "occurrence", offense or 

“medical incident”.  
b. If a claim is made or "suit" is brought against any insured, you must: 

(1) Immediately record the specifics of the claim or "suit" and the date received; and 
(2) Notify us as soon as practicable. 
You must see to it that we receive written notice of the claim or "suit" as soon as practicable. 

c. You and any other involved insured must: 
(1) Immediately send us copies of any demands, notices, summonses or legal papers received 

in connection with the claim or "suit"; 
(2) Authorize us to obtain records and other information; 
(3) Cooperate with us in the investigation or settlement of the claim or defense against the "suit"; 

and 
(4) Assist us, upon our request, in the enforcement of any right against any person or 

organization which may be liable to the insured because of injury or damage to which this 
insurance may also apply. 

d. No insured will, except at that insured's own cost, voluntarily make a payment, assume any 
obligation, or incur any expense, other than for first aid, without our consent.

e. If you report an “occurrence”, offense or “medical incident” to an insurer providing other than 
General Liability insurance, which later develops into a General Liability claim covered under this 
coverage part, failure to report such “occurrence”, offense  or “medical incident” to us at the time 
of the “occurrence”, offense or “medical incident” shall not be deemed in violation of these 
conditions.  However, you shall give notification to us, as soon as is reasonably possible, that the 
“occurrence”, offense or “medical incident” is a General Liability claim.

f. Knowledge of an “occurrence”, offense or “medical incident” by any of your agents, volunteers or 
“employees” shall not constitute knowledge by you unless one of your officers or anyone 
responsible for administering your insurance program has received a notification from the agent, 
volunteer or “employee”.

  



 

VGL101 (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 13 of 19

3. Legal Action Against Us 

No person or organization has a right under this coverage part: 

a. To join us as a party or otherwise bring us into a "suit" asking for damages from an insured; or 
b. To sue us on this coverage part unless all of its terms have been fully complied with. 
A person or organization may sue us to recover on an agreed settlement or on a final judgment 
against an insured; but we will not be liable for damages that are not payable under the terms of this 
coverage part or that are in excess of the applicable limit of insurance. An agreed settlement means a 
settlement and release of liability signed by us, the insured and the claimant or the claimant's legal 
representative.

 

4. Other Insurance 

If other valid and collectible insurance is available to the insured volunteer, “employee”, elected or 
appointed officer, director, commissioner, trustee, medical director or owner of commandeered 
equipment for a loss we cover under COVERAGES A, B or C of this form, our insurance is primary, 
with no consideration or contribution with other insurance, except with respect to any medical 
malpractice liability insurance available to a physician who is acting on your behalf by providing on-
site medical treatment of a person.  With respect to said medical malpractice liability insurance, our 
insurance is excess over that coverage.

If other valid and collectible insurance is available to the insured, other than volunteers, “employees”, 
elected or appointed officers, directors, commissioners, trustees, medical directors or owners of 
commandeered equipment, for a loss we cover under COVERAGES A, B or C of this form, our 
obligations are limited as follows:

a. Primary Insurance
This insurance is primary except when b. below applies. If this insurance is primary, our 
obligations are not affected unless any of the other insurance is also primary. Then, we will share 
with all that other insurance by the method described in c. below. 

b. Excess Insurance 
This insurance is excess over: 
(1) Any of the other insurance, whether primary, excess, contingent or on any other basis: 

(a) That is fire, extended coverage, builder's risk, installation risk or similar coverage for 
"your work"; 

(b) That is fire insurance for premises rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with 
permission of the owner; 

(c) That is insurance purchased by you to cover your liability as a tenant for "property 
damage" to premises rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with permission of the 
owner;

(d) That is insurance covering your liability for “bodily injury” or “property damage” arising out 
of the providing, serving or selling of alcoholic beverages to others; 

(e) That is insurance covering your liability for “bodily injury” or “property damage” arising out 
of the igniting or discharging of fireworks, including but not limited to firecrackers, aerial 
or ground displays, in conjunction with any demonstration or show conducted or 
sponsored by you.  However, this coverage shall not be excess should the “bodily injury” 
or “property damage” result from an emergency response you provide in response to an 
emergency arising out of fireworks; or

(f) If the loss arises out of the maintenance or use of aircraft or watercraft to the extent not 
subject to exclusion h. of COVERAGE A. BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE 
LIABILITY. 



 

VGL101 (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 14 of 19

(2) Any other primary insurance, including pools or self-insurance, covering your liability for 
damages arising out of the premises or operations for which you have been added as an 
additional insured.

When this insurance is excess, we will have no duty under COVERAGES A, B or C to defend the 
insured against any "suit" if any other insurer has a duty to defend the insured against that "suit". 
If no other insurer defends, we will undertake to do so, but we will be entitled to the insured's 
rights against all those other insurers. 

When this insurance is excess over other insurance, we will pay only our share of the amount of 
the loss, if any, that exceeds the sum of: 

(a) The total amount that all such other insurance would pay for the loss in the absence of 
this insurance; and 

(b) The total of all deductible and self-insured amounts under all that other insurance.

 
We will share the remaining loss, if any, with any other insurance that is not described in this 
excess insurance provision and was not bought specifically to apply in excess of the limits of 
insurance shown in the Declarations of this coverage part. 

c. Method Of Sharing 
If all of the other insurance permits contribution by equal shares, we will follow this method also. 
Under this approach each insurer contributes equal amounts until it has paid its applicable limit of 
insurance or none of the loss remains, whichever comes first. 

If any of the other insurance does not permit contribution by equal shares, we will contribute by 
limits. Under this method, each insurer's share is based on the ratio of its applicable limit of 
insurance to the total applicable limits of insurance of all insurers. 

5. Representations
 

By accepting this policy, you agree: 
a. The information in the Declarations is accurate and complete; 
b. The information is based upon representations you made to us; and 
c. We have issued this policy in reliance upon your representations.
Your failure to disclose all hazards existing as of the inception date of the policy shall not prejudice 
you with respect to the coverage afforded, provided such failure or omission is not intentional. This 
coverage part is void if any material fact or circumstance relating to this insurance is intentionally 
omitted or misrepresented. 

6. Separation Of Insureds
 

Except with respect to the Limits of Insurance, and any rights or duties specifically assigned in this 
coverage part to the first Named Insured, this insurance applies: 
a.   As if each Named Insured were the only Named Insured; and 
b.   Separately to each insured against whom claim is made or "suit" is brought.

 
7. Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against Others To Us
 

If the insured has rights to recover all or part of any payment we have made under this coverage part, 
those rights are transferred to us. The insured must do nothing after loss to impair them. At our 
request, the insured will bring "suit" or transfer those rights to us and help us enforce them.

 



 

VGL101 (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 15 of 19

8. When We Do Not Renew
 

If we decide not to renew this coverage part, we will mail or deliver to the first Named Insured shown 
in the Declarations written notice of the nonrenewal not less than 30 days before the expiration date.  
If notice is mailed, proof of mailing will be sufficient proof of notice.
 

SECTION V.   DEFINITIONS
 
1. "Advertisement" means a notice that is broadcast or published to the general public or specific market 

segments about your goods, products or services for the purpose of attracting customers or 
supporters.

2. "Auto" means a land motor vehicle, trailer or semitrailer designed for travel on public roads, including 
any attached machinery or equipment.  But “auto” does not include "mobile equipment".

3. "Bodily injury" means bodily injury, sickness or disease sustained by a person, including death 
resulting from any of these at any time. 

4. "Coverage territory" means: 
a. The United States of America (including its territories and possessions), Puerto Rico and Canada;
b. International waters or airspace, provided the injury or damage does not occur in the course of 

travel or transportation to or from any place not included in a. above; or 
c. All other parts of the world if: 

(1) The injury or damage arises out of: 
(a) Goods or products made or sold by you in the territory described in a. above; or
(b) The activities of a person whose home is in the territory described in a. above, but is 

away for a short time on your business; and 
(2) The insured's responsibility to pay damages is determined in a "suit" on the merits, in the 

territory described in a. above or in a settlement we agree to.
 
5. “Emergency operations” means actions:

a. Which are urgent responses for protection of property, human life, health or safety; and
b. Which result from the performing or attempting to perform firefighting services, hazardous 

materials unit services, first aid, ambulance or rescue squad services, or related services, 
including the stabilizing or securing of an emergency scene; and

c. Which are sanctioned by:
(1) A fire department, hazardous materials unit, or first aid, ambulance or rescue squad 

qualifying as an insured under this coverage part; or
(2) An officer, volunteer member or “employee” of such organization.

6. "Employee" includes a "leased worker". "Employee" does not include a "temporary worker".
 
7. “Employment practices” means an actual or alleged improper employment related practice, policy, act 

or omission involving an actual, prospective, or former volunteer or "employee", including:
a. Failing to hire or refusing to hire;
b. Wrongful dismissal, discharge, or termination of employment or membership, whether actual or 

constructive;
c. Wrongful deprivation of a career opportunity, or failure to promote;
d. Wrongful discipline of volunteers or “employees”;
e. Negligent evaluation of volunteers or “employees”;
f. Retaliation against volunteers or “employees” for the exercise of any legally protected right or for 

engaging in any legally protected activity;
g. Failure to adopt adequate workplace or employment-related policies and procedures;
h. Harassment, including “sexual harassment”; or 



 

VGL101 (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 16 of 19

i. Violation of any federal, state or local laws (whether common law or statutory) concerning 
employment or discrimination in employment.

8. "Hostile fire" means one which becomes uncontrollable or breaks out from where it was intended to 
be.

9.  "Impaired property" means tangible property, other than "your product" or "your work", that cannot be 
used or is less useful because: 
a. It incorporates "your product" or "your work" that is known or thought to be defective, deficient, 

inadequate or dangerous; or 
b. You have failed to fulfill the terms of a contract or agreement; 
if such property can be restored to use by: 

(1) The repair, replacement, adjustment or removal of "your product" or "your work"; or 
(2) Your fulfilling the terms of the contract or agreement. 

10. "Insured contract" means:
a. A contract for a lease of premises. However, that portion of the contract for a lease of premises 

that indemnifies any person or organization for damage by fire to premises while rented to you or 
temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner is not an "insured contract"; 

b. A sidetrack agreement; 
c. Any easement or license agreement, except in connection with construction or demolition 

operations on or within 50 feet of a railroad; 
d. An obligation, as required by ordinance, to indemnify a municipality, except in connection with 

work for a municipality; 
e. An elevator maintenance agreement; 
f. That part of any other contract or agreement pertaining to your business (including an 

indemnification of a municipality in connection with work performed for a municipality) under 
which you assume the tort liability of another party to pay for "bodily injury" or "property damage" 
to a third person or organization. Tort liability means a liability that would be imposed by law in 
the absence of any contract or agreement.  

Paragraph f. does not include that part of any contract or agreement: 
(1) That indemnifies a railroad for "bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of construction 

or demolition operations, within 50 feet of any railroad property and affecting any railroad 
bridge or trestle, tracks, road-beds, tunnel, underpass or crossing; 

(2) That indemnifies an architect, engineer or surveyor for injury or damage arising out of: 
(a) Preparing, approving, or failing to prepare or approve, maps, shop drawings, opinions, 

reports, surveys, field orders, change orders or drawings and specifications; or 
(b) Giving directions or instructions, or failing to give them, if that is the primary cause of the 

injury or damage; or 
(3) Under which the insured, if an architect, engineer or surveyor, assumes liability for an injury 

or damage arising out of the insured's rendering or failure to render professional services, 
including those listed in (2) above and supervisory, inspection, architectural or engineering 
activities.

 
11. “Leased worker" means a person leased to you by a labor leasing firm under an agreement between 

you and the labor leasing firm, to perform duties related to the conduct of your business. "Leased 
worker" does not include a "temporary worker". 

12.  "Loading or unloading" means the handling of property: 
a. After it is moved from the place where it is accepted for movement into or onto an aircraft, 

watercraft or "auto"; 
b. While it is in or on an aircraft, watercraft or "auto"; or
c.  While it is being moved from an aircraft, watercraft or "auto" to the place where it is finally 

delivered; 



 

VGL101 (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 17 of 19

but "loading or unloading" does not include the movement of property by means of a mechanical 
device, other than a hand truck, that is not attached to the aircraft, watercraft or "auto".

13. “Location” means premises involving the same or connecting lots, or premises whose connection is 
interrupted only by a street, roadway, waterway or right-of-way of a railroad.

 
14. “Medical incident” means any act, error or omission in the rendering of or failure to render 

“professional health care services” by you or by anyone for whose “professional health care services” 
you are legally responsible.  Any such act, error or omission, together with all related acts, errors or 
omissions in the furnishing of such services to any one person, shall be considered one “medical 
incident”.  

15. "Mobile equipment" means any of the following types of land vehicles, including any attached 
machinery or equipment: 
a. Bulldozers, farm machinery, forklifts and other vehicles designed for use principally off public 

roads; 
b. Vehicles maintained for use solely on or next to premises you own or rent; 
c. Vehicles that travel on crawler treads; 
d. Vehicles, whether self-propelled or not, maintained primarily to provide mobility to permanently 

mounted: 
(1) Power cranes, shovels, loaders, diggers or drills; or 
(2) Road construction or resurfacing equipment such as graders, scrapers or rollers; 

e. Vehicles not described in a., b., c. or d. above that are not self-propelled and are maintained 
primarily to provide mobility to permanently attached equipment of the following types: 
(1) Air compressors, pumps and generators, including spraying, welding, building cleaning, 

geophysical exploration, lighting and well servicing equipment; or 
(2) Cherry pickers and similar devices used to raise or lower workers; 

f. Vehicles not described in a., b., c. or d. above maintained primarily for purposes other than the 
transportation of persons or cargo.

 
However, self-propelled vehicles with the following types of permanently attached equipment are not 
"mobile equipment" but will be considered "autos":

(1) Equipment designed primarily for: 
(a) Snow removal; 
(b) Road maintenance, but not construction or resurfacing; or 
(c) Street cleaning; 

(2) Cherry pickers and similar devices mounted on automobile or truck chassis and used to raise 
or lower workers; and 

(3) Air compressors, pumps and generators, including spraying, welding, building cleaning, 
geophysical exploration, lighting and well servicing equipment.

 
16. “Occurrence" means an accident, including continuous or repeated exposure to substantially the 

same general harmful conditions.

17. “Personal and advertising injury" means injury, including consequential "bodily injury", arising out of 
one or more of the following offenses: 
a. False arrest, detention or imprisonment; 
b. Malicious prosecution; 
c. The wrongful eviction from, wrongful entry into, or invasion of the right of private occupancy of a 

room, dwelling or premises that a person occupies, or any other interference with real property 
rights; 

d. Oral or written publication in any manner of material that slanders or libels a person or 
organization or disparages a person's or organization's goods, products or services;

e. Oral or written publication in any manner of material that violates a person's right of privacy; 
f. The use of another's advertising idea in your "advertisement"; or
g. Infringing upon another's copyright, trade dress or slogan in your "advertisement".



 

VGL101 (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 18 of 19

18. “Personal watercraft” means a vessel which uses an inboard motor powering a water jet pump as its 
primary source of motive power, and which is designed to be operated by a person sitting, standing, 
or kneeling on the vessel, rather than the conventional manner of sitting or standing inside the vessel.

19. "Products-completed operations hazard": 
a. Includes all "bodily injury" and "property damage" occurring away from premises you own or rent 

and arising out of "your product" or "your work" except: 
(1) Products that are still in your physical possession; or 
(2) Work that has not yet been completed or abandoned. However, "your work" will be   deemed 

completed at the earliest of the following times:
(a) When all of the work called for in your contract has been completed. 
(b) When all of the work to be done at the job site has been completed if your contract calls 

for work at more than one job site. 
(c) When that part of the work done at a job site has been put to its intended use by any 

person or organization other than another contractor or subcontractor working on the 
same project. 

Work that may need service, maintenance, correction, repair or replacement, but which is 
otherwise complete, will be treated as completed.

b. Does not include "bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of: 
(1) The transportation of property, unless the injury or damage arises out of a condition in or on a 

vehicle not owned or operated by you, and that condition was created by the "loading or 
unloading" of that vehicle by any insured; 

(2) The existence of tools, uninstalled equipment or abandoned or unused materials; or 
(3) Products or operations for which the classification, listed in the Declarations or in a policy 

schedule, states that products-completed operations are subject to the General Aggregate 
Limit.

20. “Professional health care services” means:
a.   Providing medical or nursing services;
b. Providing professional services of any other health care professional, including emergency 

medical technicians and paramedics;
c.   Furnishing or dispensing drugs or medical, surgical or dental supplies or appliances;
d.   Handling of patients:

(1) From the place where they are accepted for movement into or onto the means of transport, 
(2) During transport, and
(3) From the means of transport to the place where they are finally delivered;

e. Dispatching of, including the failure or refusal to dispatch, personnel to provide any of the above 
services;

f. Serving on, or carrying out the orders of, a health care accreditation board or similar professional 
board or committee; and

g. Establishing medical protocol, creating medical training curricula, providing medical training, 
conducting medical quality assurance programs, and carrying out similar duties.

 
21. "Property damage" means: 

a. Physical injury to tangible property, including all resulting loss of use of that property. All such 
loss of use shall be deemed to occur at the time of the physical injury that caused it; or 

b. Loss of use of tangible property that is not physically injured. All such loss of use shall be deemed 
to occur at the time of the "occurrence" that caused it.

22. “Sexual abuse” means any actual, attempted or alleged sexual conduct by a person, or by persons 
acting in concert, which causes injury.  “Sexual abuse” includes sexual molestation, sexual assault, 
sexual exploitation, or sexual injury, but does not include “sexual harassment”.



 

VGL101 (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 19 of 19

23. “Sexual harassment” means any actual, attempted or alleged unwelcome sexual advances, requests 
for sexual favors, or other conduct of a sexual nature by a person, or by persons acting in concert, 
which causes injury.  “Sexual harassment” includes:

a. The above conduct when submission to or rejection of such conduct is made either explicitly or 
implicitly a condition of a person’s employment, or a basis for employment decisions affecting a 
person; or

b. The above conduct when such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with 
a person’s work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment.

24. "Suit" means a civil proceeding in which damages because of "bodily injury", "property damage", 
"personal and advertising injury", or injury arising out of a "medical incident" to which this insurance 
applies are alleged. "Suit" includes: 
a. An arbitration proceeding in which such damages are claimed and to which the insured must 

submit or does submit with our consent; or 
b. Any other alternative dispute resolution proceeding in which such damages are claimed and to 

which the insured submits with our consent. 
But "suit" does not mean any ethical conduct review or enforcement action, or disciplinary review or 
enforcement action. 

25. "Temporary worker" means a person who is furnished to you to substitute for a permanent 
"employee" on leave or to meet seasonal or short-term workload conditions. 

26. “Training operations” means activities used to prepare, train, or instruct members of a fire 
department, hazardous materials unit, or a first aid, ambulance or rescue squad in accepted and 
recognized emergency procedures, including municipal, state and federal standards. 

27. "Your product" means: 
a. Any goods or products, other than real property, manufactured, sold, handled, distributed or   

disposed of by: 
(1) You; 
(2) Others trading under your name; or 
(3) A person or organization whose business or assets you have acquired; and 

b. Containers (other than vehicles), materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such 
goods or products. 

"Your product" includes: 
(a) Warranties or representations made at any time with respect to the fitness, quality, 

durability, performance or use of "your product"; and 
(b) The providing of or failure to provide warnings or instructions. 

"Your product" does not include vending machines or other property rented to or located for the use 
of others but not sold.

28. "Your work" means: 
a. Work or operations performed by you or on your behalf; and 
b. Materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. 
"Your work" includes: 

(1) Warranties or representations made at any time with respect to the fitness, quality, durability, 
performance or use of "your work"; and 

(2) The providing of or failure to provide warnings or instructions. 



 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

VGL212 (01-20) 
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 2

EXCLUSION 
ELECTRONIC INFORMATION SECURITY EVENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

1. The following exclusion applies to Coverage A. Bodily Injury And Property Damage Liability, 
Coverage B. Personal and Advertising Injury Liability, Coverage C. Professional Heath Care 
Liability, and any additional coverage that is provided under this General Liability Coverage Part:

This insurance does not apply to:
Any injury, damage, expense, cost, loss, liability, or legal obligation arising out of or in any way 
related to an “electronic information security event”.  

2. The following definitions are added:  
“Electronic information security event” means:  

(1) Transmission of malware from your “computer system” to a third party.  
(2) The inability of an authorized user to access your web site or your “computer system” 

because of a denial of service attack.
(3) A “personal identity event”, but this is limited to information that is obtained or released 

directly from:
(a) Your “computer system”; or 
(b) The “computer system” of an entity that has such information under a formal 

agreement with you.
(4) A “corporate privacy event”, but this is limited to information that is obtained or released 

directly from:
(a) Your “computer system”; or 
(b) The “computer system” of an entity that has such Information under a formal 

agreement with you.
As used in this definition, a denial of service attack means an intentional attack on a web site 
or a computer network that prevents or slows down access to the web site or computer 
network.  

“Computer system” means the following:
(1) Computers, including Personal Digital Assistants (PDAs) and other transportable or hand 

held devices, electronic storage devices and related peripheral components;
(2) Systems and applications software; 
(3) Communications networks (including the internet, intranets, extranets or virtual private 

networks) to the extent used by the items in (1) and (2) above;
by which “electronic data” is collected, transmitted, processed, stored or retrieved; and
(4) “Computer system” includes “electronic data” that is:

(1) Stored on any of the items described in item (1) above; or
(2) Temporarily outside of the “computer system” for use by an insured or an employee 

of an entity that has such information under a formal agreement with you. 



 

VGL212 (01-20) 
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 2 of 2

“Electronic data” means information, facts or programs stored as or on, created or used on, or 
transmitted to or from computer software, including systems and applications software, hard or 
floppy disks, CD-ROMS, tapes, drives, cells, data processing devices or any other media which 
are used with electronically controlled equipment.  This includes such information, facts or 
programs only while they are in an electronic format.  
“Personal identity event” means:    

(1) Unauthorized disclosure by you of “personally identifiable information” or your failure to 
protect “personally identifiable information” from misappropriation. 

(2) Failure by you to disclose or warn of an actual or potential disclosure or misappropriation 
of “personally identifiable information”, but only if this policy applies to such disclosure or 
misappropriation and it resulted directly from (1) above; or

(3) Violation of any federal or state privacy statute addressing disclosure or misappropriation 
of “personally identifiable information”, but only if:
(a) This policy applies to such disclosure or misappropriation and it resulted directly from 

(1) or (2) above; and
(b) The violation is not willful.

“Personally identifiable information” means any of the following in your care, custody or control:
(1) Information from which an individual may be uniquely and reliably identified or contacted, 

including an individual’s name, telephone number, social security number, drivers license 
number, state identification number, account relationships, account numbers, account 
balances, account histories, access codes, and passwords;

(2) Information concerning an individual that would be considered nonpublic personal 
information within the meaning of Title V of the Gramm-Leach Bliley Act of 1999 as 
implemented and amended; and

(3) Information concerning an individual that would be considered protected health 
information within the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 as 
implemented and amended.

“Corporate privacy event” means:
(1) Unauthorized disclosure by you of “confidential corporate information” or your failure to 

protect “confidential corporate information” from misappropriation;
(2) Failure by you to disclose or warn of an actual or potential disclosure or misappropriation 

of “confidential corporate information”, but only if this policy applies to such disclosure or 
misappropriation and it resulted directly from (1) above; or 

(3) Violation of any federal or state privacy statute addressing disclosure or misappropriation 
of “confidential corporate information”, but only if:
(a) This policy applies to such disclosure or misappropriation and it resulted directly from 

(1) or (2) above; and
(b) The violation is not willful.

“Confidential corporate information” means any commercial trade secret, data, design, 
interpretation, forecast, formula, method, practice, process record, report or other item of 
information of a non-insured third party, and which is:

(1) In your care, custody or control;
(2) Not available to the general public; and
(3) (a) Provided to you under a mutually agreed to written confidentiality/non-disclosure 

agreement; or 
(b) Marked confidential or otherwise specifically designated in writing as confidential by 

such third party.  



 

VGL213  (03-21)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2020.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

AMENDMENT TO POLLUTION EXCLUSION - 
CLASS B FIREFIGHTING FOAM

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following changes are made to SECTION V – DEFINITIONS:

1. The following is added to the definition of “emergency operations”:
“Emergency operations” does not include the use of a Class B firefighting foam containing any 
“PFAS” unless such use meets all standards of any statute, ordinance, regulation or license 
requirement of any federal, state or local government having application to those operations.

2. The following is added to the definition of “training operations”:
“Training operations” does not include the use of a Class B firefighting foam containing any “PFAS”. 

3. For the purposes of this endorsement, “PFAS” means:
Any product containing per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) or other perfluorinated 
compounds (PFC) including but not limited to, perfluorooctanic acid (PFOA), perfluorooctane sulfonic 
acid (PFOS), perfluorononanoic acid (PFNA), perfluorobutyric acid (PFBA), perfluorobutane sulfonic 
acid (PFBS), perfluoropentanoic acid (PFPeA), perfluorohexane sulfonic acid (PFHxS), 
perfluorohexonoic acid (PFHxA), perfluoroheptanoic acid (PFHpA), perflurooctane sulfonamide 
(PFSOA), perfluorodecanoic acid (PFDA), perfluorodecane sulfonate (PFDS), perfluoroundecanoic 
acid (PFUnA), perfluorododecanoic acid (PFDoA), perfluorotridecanoic acid (PFTrDA), 
perfluorotetradecanoic acid (PFTeDA), or 6:2 Fluorotelomer sulfonate (6:2 FTS).



 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

VGL317 (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

LINE OF DUTY 
ACCIDENTAL DEATH BENEFIT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following endorsement:

GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

Schedule

Coverage Limit of Insurance

Line of Duty Accidental Death Benefit $10,000 each person

A. The following coverage is added to Section I. Coverages, Coverage A - Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage Liability:

1. We will reimburse you for your voluntary payment made to the family or members of the 
household of an insured whose accidental death results directly from injury due to participation in 
your “emergency operation”.  The most we will pay for any one Line of Duty Accidental Death is 
the Limit of Insurance shown in the Schedule above.  The death must result within one year from 
the date of participation in the “emergency operation” which resulted in injury.  For the purpose of 
this endorsement, a death that results from a stroke or heart attack which occurs within 48 hours 
after participation in an “emergency operation” is considered an accidental death.  

2. For the purpose of this endorsement, paragraph 2. Exclusions Applicable to Coverage A under 
Section 1. Coverages is replaced by:

2. Exclusions
This insurance does not apply if death results from the following:
a. Suicide;
b. Performing an “emergency operation” under the influence of alcohol or drugs;
c. Injuries caused intentionally by the immediate family or members of the household who 

would be the beneficiary of this benefit; 
d. Flying in an aircraft; or
e. Heart attack or stroke which occurs more than 48 hours after participation in an 

“emergency operation”.  

B. The following is added to paragraph 2. Duties in the Event of an Occurrence, Offense, 
Medical Incident, Claim or Suit in Section IV. Conditions:

g. You must provide us with written notice of a covered death as soon as practicable after the 
death occurs and submit a request for us to reimburse the Limit of Insurance shown in the 
Schedule and documentation of your voluntary payment. Your notice must include the 
identification of the deceased and a description of the “emergency operation” that resulted in 
the death of the insured.



 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

VGL320  (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the
Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

.

Page 1 of 1

UNMANNED AIRCRAFT COVERAGE

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

A. The first paragraph of Exclusion 2.h. Aircraft, Auto Or Watercraft under Section I. Coverages, Coverage 
A. Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability is replaced by the following:
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of the ownership, maintenance, use or entrustment to others 
of any aircraft (other than “unmanned aircraft”), "auto" or watercraft owned or operated by or rented or loaned 
to any insured. Use includes operation and "loading or unloading".  This exclusion does not apply to:

B. The following exclusion is added to Section I. Coverages, Coverage A. Bodily Injury and Property 
Damage Liability, Exclusions Applicable to Coverage A:
Unmanned Aircraft

“Bodily injury” or “property damage” arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of an “unmanned 
aircraft” while: 

(1) Rented, leased or loaned to others without an operator who is your “employee” or “volunteer worker”; 

(2) Used in any professional or organized racing or demolition contest or stunting activity, or while 
practicing or preparing for such contest or activity; or

(3) Not used in the insured’s operations.

C. The following definition is added to Section V. Definitions:
“Unmanned aircraft“ means an aircraft weighing 15 pounds or less that is not:
a. Designed;
b. Manufactured; or
c. Modified after manufacture;
to be controlled directly by a person from within or on the aircraft.
“Unmanned aircraft” includes equipment used with such “unmanned aircraft”, provided such equipment is 
attached to or essential for its operation.



 

GGL330 (01-20)
GENERAL LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

MOBILE EQUIPMENT SUBJECT TO
MOTOR VEHICLE INSURANCE LAWS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PUBLIC ENTITY LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The DEFINITIONS Section is amended as follows:

1. The definition of "auto" is replaced by the following:
"Auto" means:
a. Any land motor vehicle, trailer or semitrailer designed for travel on public roads; or
b. Any other land vehicle that is subject to a compulsory or financial responsibility law or other 

motor vehicle insurance law where it is licensed or principally garaged.
However, "auto" does not include "mobile equipment".

2. The following is added to the definition of "mobile equipment":
However, "mobile equipment" does not include land vehicles that are subject to a compulsory or 
financial responsibility law or other motor vehicle insurance law where it is licensed or principally 
garaged.  Land vehicles subject to a compulsory or financial responsibility law or other motor 
vehicle insurance law are considered "autos".



 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

THIS IS CLAIMS MADE COVERAGE.  PLEASE READ THE POLICY CAREFULLY. 

 

 

From   
   To      

  

VML100 (01/ 20)    

 

MANAGEMENT  LIABILITY  COVERAGE  PART  DECLARATIONS 

 

 
 

 
 

Limits of Insurance 

 Aggregate Limit $  Coverage A and B Combined 

 Coverage A $  Each Wrongful Act or Offense 

 Coverage B $  Each Action for Injunctive Relief 

 Deductible (Coverage A only) $  Each Wrongful Act or Offense 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Estimated Coverage Part Premium:  

 Taxes, Fees and Surcharges:  

 Total Premium:  

 
 
 

 
 
 

Management Liability Forms 

See Schedule of Forms and Endorsements 

 

 

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
07-01-2023
07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

3,000,000

1,000,000

   50,000

        0

$   23,876.00

$   23,876.00

                                   

             



 

VML101 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 13

EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATION
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

CLAIMS MADE

Various provisions in this policy restrict coverage.  Read the entire policy carefully to determine rights, 
duties and what is and is not covered.  We have no duty to provide coverage unless there has been full 
compliance with all the SECTION V. CONDITIONS contained in this coverage part.

Throughout this coverage part the words "you" and "your" refer to the Named Insured shown in the 
Declarations, and any other person or organization qualifying as a Named Insured under this coverage 
part.  The words "we," "us" and "our" refer to the company providing this insurance.  The word "insured" 
means any person or organization qualifying as such under SECTION III. WHO IS AN INSURED.

Other words and phrases that appear in quotation marks have special meaning.  Refer to SECTION VII. 
DEFINITIONS.

SECTION I.   COVERAGES 

Coverage A.   Insuring Agreement - Liability for Monetary Damages

1. We will pay those sums that the insured becomes legally obligated to pay as monetary damages 
arising out of an “employment practices” offense, an offense in the “administration” of your “employee 
benefit plans”, or other "wrongful act" to which this insurance applies.  We will have the right and duty 
to defend any "suit" seeking those damages.  We may, at our discretion, investigate any such offense 
or "wrongful act" and settle any "claim" or "suit" that may result.  However:
a. The amount we will pay for damages is limited as described in SECTION IV. LIMITS OF 

INSURANCE; and
b. Our right and duty to defend end when we have used up the applicable limit of insurance in the 

payment of judgments or settlements under Coverages A and B.
No other obligation or liability to pay sums or perform acts or services is covered unless explicitly 
provided for below under Supplementary Payments.  However, we may, prior to any “claim” or “suit” 
and at our sole discretion and expense, help you with an Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 
investigation, or an equivalent state or local agency investigation.  If we choose to help you with an 
investigation, our help will be strictly voluntary, and we may discontinue it at any time.  You agree that 
our help does not admit, confirm, waive, estop, or in any way represent a determination of coverage 
of any alleged employment related violation.

2. This insurance applies to offenses or “wrongful acts” only if:
a. The offense or “wrongful act” takes place in the “coverage territory” and before the end of the 

policy period; and
b. A “claim” is first made against any insured in accordance with paragraph 3. below, during the 

policy period or any Extended Reporting Period we provide according to SECTION VI.

3. A “claim” will be deemed to have been made at the earliest of the following times:



 

VML101 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 2 of 13

a. When notice of such “claim” is received and recorded by any insured or by us, whichever comes 
first;

b. When we make settlement in accordance with paragraph 1. above; or
c. When you become aware of an offense or “wrongful act” which may subsequently give rise to a 

“claim” being made against any insured, and you give written notice to us, as described in 
SECTION V. CONDITIONS, of such circumstances as soon as practicable but no later than:
(1) The end of the policy period; or
(2) The end of any applicable Extended Reporting Period.

All “claims” based on or arising out of the same or related offenses or “wrongful acts” by one or more 
insureds shall be considered first made when the first of such “claims” is made.  Related offenses or 
“wrongful acts” shall include offenses or “wrongful acts” which are the same, related or continuous, or 
which arise from a common nucleus of facts. 

Coverage A.   Supplementary Payments

We will pay, with respect to any "claim" we investigate or settle, or any "suit" against an insured we 
defend:

1. All expenses we incur.  

2. The cost of bonds to release attachments, but only for bond amounts within the applicable Limit of 
Insurance.  We do not have to furnish these bonds.

3. All reasonable expenses incurred by the insured at our request to assist us in the investigation or 
defense of the "claim" or "suit", including actual loss of earnings up to $300 a day because of time off 
from work.

4. All costs taxed against the insured in the "suit".

5. Prejudgment interest awarded against the insured on that part of the judgment we pay.  If we make 
an offer to pay the applicable limit of insurance, we will not pay any prejudgment interest based on 
that period of time after the offer.

6. All interest earned on that part of any judgment within our limit of insurance after entry of the 
judgment and before we have paid, offered to pay, or deposited in court the part of the judgment that 
is within the applicable Limit of Insurance.

These payments will not reduce the limits of insurance.

Coverage B.   Insuring Agreement - Defense Expense for Injunctive Relief

1. We will pay those reasonable sums the insured incurs as "defense expense" to defend against an 
action for "injunctive relief" because of an “employment practices” offense, an offense in the 
“administration” of your “employee benefit plans”, or other "wrongful act" to which this insurance 
applies.  However:
a. The amount we will pay for "defense expense" is limited as described in SECTION IV. LIMITS OF 

INSURANCE; and
b. We have no obligation to arrange or provide the defense for any action for "injunctive relief". 
No other obligation or liability to pay sums or perform acts or services is covered.



 

VML101 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 3 of 13

2. This insurance applies only if:
a. The action seeking "injunctive relief" is brought in a legally authorized court or agency of the 

United States, any of its states or commonwealths, or any governmental subdivision of any of 
them;

b. Such action is filed during the policy period; and
c. The insured:

(1)  First notifies us as soon as practicable after retaining counsel to respond to such action but in 
no case later than 60 days after the end of the policy period; and

(2)  Is reasonably expedient in requesting us to pay the "defense expense".

3. All actions based on or arising out of the same or related offenses or “wrongful acts” shall be 
considered one action for "injunctive relief" regardless of the number of:
a. Insureds;
b. Plaintiffs;
c. Demands asserted; or
d. Injunctions, temporary restraining orders or prohibitive writs.
Related offenses or “wrongful acts” shall include offenses or “wrongful acts” which are the same, 
related or continuous, or which arise from a common nucleus of facts. 

SECTION II.   EXCLUSIONS

This insurance does not apply under either Coverage A or Coverage B to:

a. Other Applicable Coverage
Any offense or "wrongful act" which is insured by any other policy or policies except:
(1) A policy purchased to apply in excess of this coverage part; or
(2) That portion of monetary damages otherwise covered by this coverage part which exceeds 
the limits of liability of such other policy or policies, subject to the Other Insurance condition in 
SECTION V. CONDITIONS.

b. Known Prior Acts
Any offense or “wrongful act” which takes place prior to the inception date of this coverage part if 
the insured knew or reasonably should have foreseen that such offense or “wrongful act” would 
give rise to a “claim”.

c. Prior Litigation
Damages, loss or expense based upon, attributed to, arising out of, in consequence of, or in any 
way related to litigation or administrative or regulatory proceedings otherwise covered by this 
coverage part if such litigation or administrative or regulatory proceedings  were initiated prior to 
or were pending on the inception date of this coverage part.

d. Bodily Injury, Property Damage, Personal and Advertising Injury
"Bodily injury", “property damage”, or “personal and advertising injury” except when resulting from 
a covered “employment practices” offense.

e. Workers’ Compensation and Similar Laws
Any obligation of the insured under a workers’ compensation, disability benefits or unemployment 
compensation law, or any similar law.

f. Professional Health Care



 

VML101 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 4 of 13

Providing or failing to provide "professional health care services".

g. Fines
Fines, penalties and taxes, including those imposed by the Internal Revenue Service code or any 
similar state or local code.

h. Bonds
Any obligation related to a fidelity bond or a surety bond.

i. Contracts 
Any amount actually or allegedly due under the terms of any contract for the purchase of goods 
or services or any payment or performance contract, other than an employment contract.  

j. Employment Contracts
Any amount actually or allegedly due under the terms of any contract of employment for a definite 
term, or as severance pay under any contract of employment.

k. Wage and Hour Laws 
Back wages, overtime or similar damages if specified by the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as 
amended, or any other wage or hour law.  

l. Failure to Maintain Insurance
The failure to effect or maintain:
(1) Insurance of any kind, including adequate limits of insurance; or
(2) Suretyship or bonds.
This exclusion does not apply to the extent coverage is provided for the “administration” of 
“employee benefit plans”.

m. Performance of Employee Benefit Plans
Any “employment practices” offense or any offense in the “administration” of “employee benefit 
plans” arising out of:
(1) Failure of any investment program, individual securities or savings program to perform as 

held forth by or represented by an insured;
(2) Advice given by an insured in connection with participation or non-participation in stock 

subscription plans, savings programs or any other “employee benefit plan”;
(3) Errors in providing information or failing to provide information on past performance of 

investment vehicles;
(4) Failure of the insured or any insurer, fiduciary, trustee or fiscal agent to perform any of their 

duties or obligations or to fulfill any of their guarantees with respect to the payment of benefits 
under “employee benefit plans” or the providing, handling or investment of funds;

(5) The liability of others which is assumed by the insured under a contract or agreement, except 
to the extent the insured would have been liable in the absence of the contract or agreement;

(6) Any claim for the return of compensation paid by the insured if a court determines that the 
payment was illegal; or

(7) Any claim for benefits that are lawfully paid or payable to a beneficiary from the funds of an 
“employee benefit plan”.

n. Claims Against Other Insureds
Any actions for “injunctive relief” or "claims":
(1) By a Named Insured against any other insured; or
(2) By one Named Insured against another Named Insured.  



 

VML101 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 5 of 13

o. Criminal Acts
Damages, loss or expense arising out of or contributed to by any fraudulent, dishonest, criminal 
or malicious act of the insured (except for "sexual abuse"), or the willful violation of any statute, 
ordinance or regulation committed by or with the knowledge of the insured.  However, we will 
defend the insured for covered civil action subject to the other terms of this coverage part until 
either a judgment or final adjudication establishes such an act, or the insured confirms such act.

p. Sexual Abuse
(1) “Sexual abuse” of any person; or 
(2) The negligent:

(a) Employment;
(b) Investigation;
(c) Supervision;
(d) Reporting to the proper authorities, or failing to so report; or
(e)  Retention;
of a person for whom any insured is or ever was legally responsible and whose conduct 
would be excluded by paragraph (1) above.

q. Profit, Advantage or Remuneration
Any loss, cost or expense based upon or attributable to the insured gaining any profit, advantage 
or remuneration to which the insured is not legally entitled.

r. ERISA, COBRA and WARN Act Liability
Damages, loss or expense arising out of or contributed to by any insured's obligations under:
(1) the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA);
(2) the Comprehensive Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA); 
(3) the Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act (WARN); or
(4)  any similar federal, state, or local laws or regulations;  
including subsequent amendments or any regulations promulgated thereunder.

s. Compliance with ADA Requirements
Costs or expenses incurred as a result of physical modifications made to accommodate persons 
with disabilities as required by:
(1)  the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990;  or 
(2)  any federal, state, or local disability discrimination or accommodation laws or regulations;
including subsequent amendments or any regulations promulgated thereunder.

t. Strikes
Damages, loss or expense arising out of or contributed to by any lockout, strike, picket line, 
replacement or other similar actions resulting from labor disputes or labor negotiations.

u. Tax Assessments
Damages, loss or expense arising out of or contributed to by any tax assessments or 
adjustments, or the collection, refund, disbursement or application of any taxes.  This exclusion 
does not apply to the use or prioritization of your operating funds.

v. Debt Financing
Damages, loss or expense arising out of or contributed to by any debt financing, including but not 
limited to bonds, notes, debentures and guarantees of debt.



 

VML101 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 6 of 13

w. Pollution
Any injury, damage, expense, cost, loss, liability or legal obligation arising out of or in any way 
related to pollution, however caused.  Pollution includes the actual, alleged, or potential presence 
in or introduction into the environment of any substance if such substance has, or is alleged to 
have, the effect of making the environment impure, harmful or dangerous.  Environment includes 
any air, land, structure (or the air therein), watercourse or other body of water, including 
underground water.  This exclusion does not apply if:
(1) There is no allegation that you are liable for, the cause of, or responsible in whole or in part 

for any pollution; and
(2) You are alleged to be liable solely as a result of ordering an evacuation, a business or 

building closure, or other similar action to protect persons or property, provided you are 
authorized by law to take such actions.

x. Asbestos, Lead, Electromagnetic Radiation, Nuclear
(1)  Any injury, damage, expense, cost, loss, liability or legal obligation arising out of or in any 

way related to asbestos or asbestos-containing materials.  
(2)  Any injury, damage, expense, cost, loss, liability or legal obligation arising out of or in any 

way related to:
(a) The toxic properties of lead, or any material or substance containing lead; or
(b) Electromagnetic radiation;
or exposure thereto, or for the costs of abatement, mitigation, removal, elimination or disposal 
of any of them.

(3) Any loss, cost or expense arising out of any actual, alleged or threatened injury or damage to 
any person or property from any radioactive matter or nuclear material. 

y.   Fungi or Bacteria 
(1)  Any liability, loss, injury or damage which would not have occurred or taken place, in whole or 

in part, but for the actual, alleged or threatened inhalation of, ingestion of, contact with, 
exposure to, existence of, or presence of, any "fungi" or bacteria on or within a building or 
structure, including its contents, regardless of whether any other cause, event, material or 
product contributed concurrently or in any sequence to such injury or damage.

(2)  Any loss, cost or expenses arising out of the abating, testing for, monitoring, cleaning up, 
removing, containing, treating, detoxifying, neutralizing, remediating or disposing of, or in any 
way responding to, or assessing the effects of, "fungi" or bacteria, by any insured or by any 
other person or entity.

z. Attorney Fees and Court Costs
 Any award of costs or fees which arises out of an action for "injunctive relief".

SECTION III.   WHO IS AN INSURED

1.   If you are:
a. An organization other than a partnership, joint venture or limited liability company, you are an 

insured. 
b. A partnership or joint venture, you are an insured. Your members and your partners are also 

insureds, but only within the course and scope of your operations.
c.   A limited liability company, you are an insured. Your members are also insureds, but only within 

the course and scope of your operations.  Your managers are insureds, but only within the course 
and scope of your operations.

 



 

VML101 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 7 of 13

2. In addition to you, each of the following is an insured:
a. Volunteers and Employees. Volunteers and employees, including any elected or appointed 

officers, directors, commissioners or trustees, but only for acts within the course and scope of 
their employment by you, membership with you  or authorized duties on your behalf.

b. Medical Directors.   Physicians who are your medical directors, but only for acts within the 
course and scope of their medical director duties on your behalf.

c. Mutual Aid Agreements.  Any persons or organizations providing service to you under any 
mutual aid or similar agreement.

d. Blanket Additional Insureds.  Any person or organization liable for your “employment practices” 
offenses, offenses arising out of the “administration” of your “employee benefit plans”, or other 
“wrongful acts” committed or alleged to have been committed by you is an insured under this 
coverage part, but only to the extent of that liability. 

3. Outside Directorship Extension.  Your volunteers, employees, officers, directors, commissioners, 
or trustees, while acting independently and not on behalf of your organization, are insureds while they 
serve on the board of directors of an outside organization as specified herein:
a. The outside organization was established and is currently chartered as not-for-profit; and
b. The organization is a separate and distinct entity not subject to your direction and control; and
c. The organization exists for the purpose of supporting and furthering the efforts and welfare of the 

organizations or individuals who provide fire service, emergency medical response or rescue 
services.

This coverage shall be excess of and not contribute with:
(1) Any insurance available, whether primary or excess; and
(2) Any corporate indemnification agreements afforded by the outside organization.

In no event will this insurance inure to the benefit of the outside organization or to any of its officers, 
directors, commissioners, trustees, volunteers or employees, except to the extent that coverage is 
provided to an insured as set forth above.

4. Any organization you newly acquire or form, other than a partnership or joint venture, and over which 
you maintain ownership or majority interest, will qualify as a Named Insured if there is no other similar 
insurance available to the organization.  However:
a. Coverage under this provision is afforded only until the 90th day after you acquire or form the 

organization or the end of the policy period, whichever is earlier; and
b. Coverage does not apply to any “employment practices” offense, offense in the “administration” of 

your “employee benefit plans”, or other "wrongful act" that occurred before you acquired or 
formed the organization or of which you had notice or knowledge. 

No organization is an insured with respect to the conduct of any current or past partnership or joint 
venture that is not shown as a Named Insured in the Declarations.

SECTION IV.   LIMITS OF INSURANCE

1. The Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations and the rules below fix the most we will pay 
regardless of the number of:
a. Insureds;
b. "Claims" made or "suits" brought; or
c. Persons or organizations making "claims" or bringing "suits".

2. The Aggregate Limit is the most we will pay for the sum of:
a. Monetary damages under Coverage A; and
b. "Defense expense" under Coverage B;
for each Named Insured shown in the Declarations.



 

VML101 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 8 of 13

3. Subject to 2. above, the Each "Wrongful Act" or Offense limit is the most we will pay under Coverage 
A for the sum of all monetary damages arising out of the same or related offenses or “wrongful acts”.

4. Subject to 2. above, the Each Action for "Injunctive Relief" limit is the most we will pay under 
Coverage B for all "defense expense" arising out of all actions or proceedings for "injunctive relief" 
arising out of the same or related offenses or “wrongful acts”.

5. The Aggregate Limits of this coverage part apply separately to each consecutive annual period and to 
any remaining period of less than 12 months, starting with the beginning of the policy period shown in 
the Declarations, unless the policy period is extended after issuance for an additional period of less 
than 12 months.  In that case, the additional period will be deemed part of the last preceding period 
for purposes of determining the Limits of Insurance.

6. Our obligations under this coverage part end when the applicable Limit of Insurance available is 
exhausted.  If we pay amounts for monetary damages or "defense expense" in excess of that Limit of 
Insurance, you agree to reimburse us for such amounts.

SECTION V.   CONDITIONS

The following conditions apply in addition to the Common Policy Conditions. 

1. Bankruptcy

Bankruptcy or insolvency of the insured or of the insured's estate will not relieve us of our obligations 
under this coverage part.

2. Duties in the Event of an Offense, “Wrongful Act”, “Claim” or “Suit”

a. You must see to it that we are notified as soon as practicable of an offense or "wrongful act" 
which may result in a "claim" or “suit”. To the extent possible, notice should include:
(1) How, when and where the offense or "wrongful act" took place; and
(2) The names and addresses of any persons seeking damages or of any witnesses.

b. If a "claim" is made or “suit” is brought against any insured, you must:
(1) Immediately record the specifics of the "claim" or "suit" and the date received; and 
(2) Notify us as soon as practicable.
You must see to it that we receive written notice of the "claim" or "suit" as soon as practicable.

c. You and any other involved insured must:
(1) Immediately send us copies of any demands, notices, summonses or legal papers received 

in connection with the "claim" or "suit";
(2) Authorize us to obtain records and other information;
(3) Cooperate with us in the investigation, settlement or defense of the "claim" or "suit"; and
(4) Assist us, upon our request, in the enforcement of any right against any person or 

organization which may be liable to the insured because of damages to which this insurance 
may also apply.

d. No insureds will, except at their own cost, voluntarily make a payment, assume any obligation, or 
incur any expense without our written consent.

e. Notice shall be deemed given as soon as practicable if it is given by the person to whom you 
have delegated such responsibility as soon as practicable after they become aware of an offense 
or "wrongful act".

3. Duties in the Event of a Request to Pay "Defense Expense" for "Injunctive Relief"



 

VML101 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 9 of 13

a. You must see to it that we are notified as soon as practicable of an action or proceeding which 
may give rise to a request for us to respond for "defense expense".  To the extent possible, notice 
should include:
(1) The plaintiff in the action;
(2) The court or agency involved;
(3) The relief being sought; and
(4) The date of the action and any underlying demand.

b. You and any other involved insured must:
(1) Immediately send us copies of any legal papers received in connection with the action and 

any underlying demand;
(2) Cooperate with us in the determination of any "defense expense" which may be covered by 

this insurance; and
(3) Submit a request for us to pay any covered "defense expense".

4. Legal Action Against Us

No person or organization has a right under this coverage part:
a. To join us as a party or otherwise bring us into a "suit" asking for damages or "defense expense" 

from an insured; or
b. To sue us on this coverage part unless all of its terms have been fully complied with.
A person or organization may sue us to recover on an agreed settlement or on a final judgment 
against an insured; but we will not be liable for damages or "defense expenses" that are not payable 
under the terms of this coverage part or that are in excess of the applicable Limit of Insurance.  Under 
Coverage A, an agreed settlement means a settlement and release of liability signed by us, the 
insured and the claimant or the claimant's legal representative.

5. Other Insurance

If other valid and collectible insurance is available to the insured volunteer, employee, elected or 
appointed officer, director, commissioner, trustee or medical director for a loss or "defense expense" 
we cover under this coverage part, our insurance is primary, with no consideration or contribution with 
such other insurance.  However, this does not apply to such insureds when serving on outside 
directorships as described in the Outside Directorship Extension of SECTION III. WHO IS AN 
INSURED.  

If other valid and collectible insurance is available to insureds other than volunteers, employees, 
elected or appointed officers, directors, commissioners, trustees or medical directors for a loss or 
"defense expense" we cover under this coverage part, this insurance is excess over any of the other 
insurance and its deductible or self-insured retention provisions, whether primary, excess, contingent 
or on any other basis.

6. Representations

By accepting this policy, you agree:
a. The information in the Declarations is accurate and complete.
b. That information is based upon representations you made to us in the application for this 

insurance.  This application forms the basis of our obligations under this coverage part.
c. This coverage part is void if any material fact or circumstance relating to this insurance is 

intentionally omitted or misrepresented in the application for this insurance.

7. Separation of Insureds



 

VML101 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 10 of 13

Except with respect to the Limit of Insurance as described in SECTION IV, and any rights or duties 
specifically assigned to the first Named Insured, this insurance applies:
a. As if each Named Insured were the only Named Insured; and
b. Separately to each insured against whom "claim" is made or "suit" is brought.

8. Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against Others To Us

If the insured has rights to recover all or part of any payment we have made under this coverage part, 
those rights are transferred to us.  The insured must do nothing after loss to impair them.  At our 
request, the insured will bring “suit” or transfer those rights to us and help us enforce them.

9. When We Do Not Renew

If we decide not to renew this coverage part, we will mail or deliver to the first Named Insured shown 
in the Declarations written notice of such non-renewal not less than 30 days before the expiration 
date.  We will mail or deliver our notice to the first Named Insured's last mailing address known to us.  
If notice is mailed, proof of mailing will be sufficient proof of notice.

10. Your Right to Claim Information

Upon request, we will provide the first Named Insured shown in the Declarations the following 
information relating to this and any preceding coverage part we have issued to you during the 
previous three years:
a. A list or other record of each "wrongful act" or other offense not previously reported to any other 

insurer, of which we were notified in accordance with paragraph 2.a. or paragraph 3.a. of this 
section.  We will include the date and a brief description of such "wrongful act" or offense if that 
information was in the notice we received.

b. A summary, by policy year, of payments made and amounts reserved.

Amounts reserved are based on our judgment.  They are subject to change and should not be 
regarded as ultimate settlement values.  You must not disclose this information to any claimant or any 
claimant's representative without our consent.

We compile claim and related information for our own business purposes and exercise reasonable 
care in doing so.  In providing this information to the first Named Insured, we make no 
representations or warranties to insureds, insurers, or others to whom this information is furnished by 
or on behalf of any insured.  Cancellation or non-renewal will be effective even if we inadvertently 
provide inaccurate information.

SECTION VI.   EXTENDED REPORTING PERIODS (COVERAGE A ONLY)

With respect to Coverage A only:

1. We will provide one or more Extended Reporting Periods, as described in items 3. and 4. below, if:
a. This coverage part is cancelled or not renewed; or
b. We renew or replace this coverage part with insurance that does not apply to offenses or 

"wrongful acts" on a claims made basis.

2. Extended Reporting Periods do not extend the policy period or change the scope of coverage 
provided.  They apply only to "claims" arising out of offenses or "wrongful acts" that take place before 
the end of the policy period.  Once in effect, Extended Reporting Periods may not be cancelled.



 

VML101 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 11 of 13

3. A Basic Extended Reporting Period is automatically provided without additional charge.  This period 
starts with the end of the policy period and lasts for sixty days.

The Basic Extended Reporting Period does not apply to "claims" that are covered under any 
subsequent insurance you purchase, or that would be covered but for exhaustion of the amount of 
insurance applicable to such "claims".

4. A Supplemental Extended Reporting Period of unlimited duration is available, but only by an 
endorsement and for an extra charge.  This supplemental period starts when the Basic Extended 
Reporting Period ends.

You must give us a written request for the endorsement within 60 days after the end of the policy 
period.  The Supplemental Extended Reporting Period will not go into effect unless you pay the 
additional premium promptly when due.

We will determine the additional premium in accordance with our rules and rates.  In doing so, we will 
take into account the following:
a. The exposures insured;
b. Previous types and amounts of insurance;
c. Limit of Insurance available under this coverage part; and
d. Other related factors.
The additional premium will not exceed 200% of the annual premium for this coverage part.

This endorsement shall set forth the terms, not inconsistent with this section, applicable to the 
Supplemental Extended Reporting Period, including a provision to the effect that the insurance 
afforded for "claims" received during such period is excess over any other valid and collectible 
insurance available under policies in force after the Supplemental Extended Reporting Period starts.

5. The Basic Extended Reporting Period does not reinstate or increase the Limit of Insurance.

6. If the Supplemental Extended Reporting Period is in effect, we will provide the separate Aggregate 
Limit of Insurance described below, but only for "claims" first received and recorded during the 
Supplemental Extended Reporting Period.

The separate Aggregate Limit of Insurance will be equal to the dollar amount shown in the 
Declarations in effect at the end of the policy period for the Aggregate Limit.  The applicable Each 
"Wrongful Act" or Offense limit will continue to apply.

SECTION VII.   DEFINITIONS

1. "Administration" means any of the following acts that you do or authorize a person to do:
a. Counseling volunteers or employees, other than giving legal advice, on "employee benefit plans”;
b. Interpreting your "employee benefit plans”;
c. Handling records for your "employee benefit plans”; and
d. Effecting enrollment, termination or cancellation of volunteers or employees under your 

"employee benefit plans”.

2. "Bodily injury" means bodily injury, sickness or disease sustained by a person, including death 
resulting from any of these at any time.



 

VML101 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 12 of 13

3. "Claim" means a written or oral notice, including “suit”, from any party that it is their intention to hold 
the insured responsible for damages arising out of an offense or "wrongful act" by the insured.

4. "Coverage territory" means the United States of America (including its territories and possessions), 
Puerto Rico and Canada.

5. "Defense expense" means under Coverage B, fees or expenses incurred by the insured for:
a. Legal fees charged by the insured's attorney;
b. Court costs;
c. Expert witnesses; and
d. The cost of court bonds, but we do not have to furnish these bonds.
"Defense expense" does not include:

(1) Any salaries, charges or fees for any insured, insured's volunteers or employees, or former 
volunteers or employees; or

(2) Any expenses other than a., b., c. and d. above.

6. "Employee benefit plans" mean group life insurance, group accident or health insurance, profit 
sharing plans, pension plans, employee stock subscription plans, employee travel, vacation, or 
savings plans, workers compensation, unemployment insurance, social security and disability 
benefits insurance, and any other similar benefit program applying to volunteers or employees.

7. “Employment practices” means an actual or alleged improper employment related practice, policy, act 
or omission involving an actual, prospective, or former volunteer or employee, including: 
a. Failing to hire or refusing to hire;
b. Wrongful dismissal, discharge, or termination of employment or membership, whether actual or 

constructive;
c. Wrongful deprivation of a career opportunity, or failure to promote;
d. Wrongful discipline of volunteers or employees;
e. Negligent evaluation of volunteers or employees;
f. Retaliation against volunteers or employees for the exercise of any legally protected right or for 

engaging in any legally protected activity;
g. Failure to adopt adequate workplace or employment-related policies and procedures;
h. Harassment, including “sexual harassment”; or 
i. Violation of any federal, state or local laws (whether common law or statutory) concerning 

employment or discrimination in employment.

8.  “Fungi” means any type or form of fungus, including mold or mildew and any mycotoxins, spores, 
scents or by-products produced or released by “fungi”.

9. "Injunctive relief" means equitable relief sought through the demand for the issuance of a permanent, 
preliminary or temporary injunction, restraining order, or similar prohibitive writ against, or order for 
specific performance by, an insured provided such action is filed during the policy period.

10.  “Personal and advertising injury" means injury, including consequential "bodily injury", arising out of 
one or more of the following offenses: 
a. False arrest, detention or imprisonment; 
b. Malicious prosecution; 
c. The wrongful eviction from, wrongful entry into, or invasion of the right of private occupancy of a 

room, dwelling or premises that a person occupies, or any other interference with real property 
rights; 

d.  Oral or written publication in any manner of material that slanders or libels a person or 
organization or disparages a person's or organization's goods, products or services;

e. Oral or written publication in any manner of material that violates a person's right of privacy; 



 

VML101 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 13 of 13

f. The use of another's advertising idea in your advertisement; or
g. Infringing upon another's copyright, trade dress or slogan in your advertisement.

11. "Professional health care services" means:
a. Providing medical or nursing services;
b. Providing professional services of any other health care professional, including emergency 

medical technicians and paramedics;
c. Furnishing or dispensing drugs or medical, surgical or dental supplies or appliances;
d. Handling of patients:

(1) From the place where they are accepted for movement into or onto the means of transport,
(2) During transport, and
(3) From the means of transport to the place where they are finally delivered;

e. Dispatching of, including the failure or refusal to dispatch, personnel to provide any of the above 
services;

f. Serving on, or carrying out the orders of, a health care accreditation board or similar professional 
board or committee; and

g. Establishing medical protocol, creating medical training curricula, providing medical training, 
conducting medical quality assurance programs, and carrying out similar duties.

12. "Property damage" means:
a. Physical injury to tangible property, including all resulting loss of use of that property; and
b. Loss of use of tangible property that is not physically injured but results from a. above.

13. “Sexual abuse” means any actual, attempted or alleged sexual conduct by a person, or by persons 
acting in concert, which causes injury.  “Sexual abuse” includes sexual molestation, sexual assault, 
sexual exploitation or sexual injury, but does not include “sexual harassment”.

14. “Sexual harassment” means any actual, attempted or alleged unwelcome sexual advances, requests 
for sexual favors, or other conduct of a sexual nature by a person, or by persons acting in concert, 
which causes injury.  “Sexual harassment” includes:
a. The above conduct when submission to or rejection of such conduct is made either explicitly or 

implicitly a condition of a person’s employment, or a basis for employment decisions affecting a 
person; or

b. The above conduct when such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with 
a person’s work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment.

15. "Suit" means a civil proceeding in which damages arising out of an offense or "wrongful act" to which 
this insurance applies are alleged.  "Suit" includes:
a. An arbitration proceeding in which such damages are claimed and to which the insured must 

submit or does submit with our consent; or
b. Any other alternative dispute resolution proceeding in which such damages are claimed and to 

which the insured submits with our consent.
But “suit” does not mean any ethical conduct review or enforcement action, or disciplinary review or 
enforcement action.

16. "Wrongful act" means any actual or alleged error, act, omission, misstatement, misleading statement, 
neglect or breaches of duty committed by you or on behalf of you in the performance of your 
operations, including misfeasance, malfeasance, or nonfeasance in the discharge of duties, 
individually or collectively that results directly but unexpectedly and unintentionally in damages to 
others. 



 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

VML306 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 13

CYBER LIABILITY AND PRIVACY CRISIS 
MANAGEMENT EXPENSE

COVERAGE C AND COVERAGE D ARE FOR EVENTS DISCOVERED DURING THE POLICY PERIOD
PLEASE READ THE ENTIRE FORM CAREFULLY

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

Schedule
Coverage C Cyber Liability

Cyber Liability Each Event Limit: $1,000,000 each “electronic information security 
event”

Cyber Liability Retroactive Date: NONE

Coverage D Privacy Crisis Management Expense

Privacy Crisis Management 
Expense Each Event Limit:

$50,000 each “privacy event”

Privacy Crisis Management 
Expense Retroactive Date: NONE

Deductible for Coverage D Privacy 
Crisis Management Expense:

$0 each “privacy event”

Coverage E Cyber Extortion Expense

Cyber Extortion Expense 
Each Event Limit:

$20,000 each “cyber extortion threat”

Deductible for Coverage E Cyber 
Extortion Expense:

$0 each “cyber extortion threat”

Coverage D and Coverage E Aggregate Limit of Insurance

Privacy Crisis Management 
Expense and Cyber Extortion 

Expense Aggregate Limit:

$50,000 aggregate



 

VML306 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 2 of 13

A. COVERAGES 
The following coverages are added to Section I. Coverages. All other terms and conditions remain as is 
unless otherwise stated in this endorsement:

1. COVERAGE C CYBER LIABILITY - Insuring Agreement  
a. We will pay those sums that the insured becomes legally obligated to pay as monetary 

damages because of an “electronic information security event” to which this insurance 
applies. We will have the right and duty to defend the insured against any “suit” seeking those 
damages. However, we will have no duty to defend the insured against any “suit” seeking 
damages for an “electronic information security event” to which this insurance does not apply. 
We may, at our discretion, investigate any “electronic information security event” and settle 
any “claim” or “suit” that may result. But:
(1) The amount we pay for damages is limited as described in Section C. Limits of 

Insurance; and 
(2) Our right and duty to defend end when we have used up the applicable limit of insurance 

in the payment of judgments or settlements.
No other obligation or liability to pay sums or perform acts or services is covered unless 
explicitly provided for under Coverage A Supplementary Payments.  

b. This insurance applies to an “electronic information security event” only if:
(1) The “electronic information security event” takes place in the “coverage territory” and any 

responsibility to pay damages is determined in a “suit” on the merits brought in the United 
States of America (including its territories and possessions), Puerto Rico or Canada or in 
a settlement we agree to; 

(2) The “electronic information security event” does not result from an act, error or omission 
that occurred before the Cyber Liability Retroactive Date or after the end of the policy 
period; 

(3) The “electronic information security event” is first discovered in accordance with 
Paragraph c. below during the policy period or any Extended Reporting Period we 
provide according to Section E. Extended Reporting Period; and

(4) Written notice of the “electronic information security event” is received by us within 60 
days of its first discovery or before the end of any Extended Reporting Period, whichever 
is earlier. 

c. First Discovery And Related Events And Acts
(1) First Discovery

An “electronic information security event” will be deemed to have been discovered at the 
earliest of the following times:
(a) When such “electronic information security event” is discovered and recorded by any 

insured or by us, whichever comes first; or
(b) When you become aware of an act, error or omission that may subsequently result in 

an “electronic information security event”, and you give written notice to us, as 
described in Section V. Conditions, of such circumstances as soon as practicable 
but no later than:
(i) 60 days after becoming aware; or
(ii) The end of any applicable Extended Reporting Period; 
whichever is earlier. 

(2) Related Events
All related “electronic information security events” will be considered one event and will 
be considered first discovered when the first of such related events is discovered. 
Related “electronic information security events” include all “electronic information security 
events” that are the same, related or continuous, or that arise from a common nucleus of 
facts, circumstances, events or acts. 



 

VML306 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 3 of 13

(3) Related Acts
All acts, errors or omissions that result in the same or related “electronic information 
security events” will be considered one act, error or omission and will be considered to 
have occurred when the first of such related acts, errors or omissions occurred.  

2. COVERAGE D PRIVACY CRISIS MANAGEMENT EXPENSE - Insuring Agreement  
a. We will pay applicable “privacy crisis management expenses” incurred on behalf of the 

insured because of a “privacy event” to which this insurance applies. But the amount we will 
pay is limited as described in Section C. Limits of Insurance.
No other obligation or liability to pay sums or perform acts or services is covered.

b. This insurance applies to a “privacy event” only if:
(1) The “privacy event” takes place in the “coverage territory” and any responsibility to pay 

damages is determined in a “suit” on the merits brought in the United States of America 
(including its territories and possessions), Puerto Rico or Canada or in a settlement we 
agree to; 

(2) The “privacy event” does not result from an act, error or omission that occurred before 
the Privacy Crisis Management Expense Retroactive Date or after the end of the policy 
period;

(3) The “privacy event” is first discovered in accordance with Paragraph c. below during the 
policy period or any Extended Reporting Period we provide according to Section E. 
Extended Reporting Period; and  

(4) Written notice of the “privacy event” is received by us within 60 days of its first discovery 
or before the end of any Extended Reporting Period, whichever is earlier. 

c. First Discovery And Related Events And Acts
(1) First Discovery

A “privacy event” will be deemed to have been discovered at the earliest of the following 
times:
(a) When such “privacy event” is discovered and recorded by any insured or by us, 

whichever comes first; or 
(b) When you become aware of an act, error or omission that may subsequently result in 

a “privacy event”, and you give written notice to us, as described in Section V. 
Conditions, of such circumstances as soon as practicable but no later than: 
(i) 60 days after becoming aware; or
(ii) The end of any applicable Extended Reporting Period; 
whichever is earlier.  

(2) Related Events
All related “privacy events” will be considered one event and will be considered first 
discovered when the first of such related events is discovered. 
Related “privacy events” include all “privacy events” that are the same, related or 
continuous, or that arise from a common nucleus of facts, circumstances, events or acts. 

(3) Related Acts
All acts, errors or omissions that result in the same or related “privacy events” will be 
considered one act, error or omission and will be considered to have occurred when the 
first of such related acts, errors or omissions occurred.



 

VML306 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 4 of 13

d. This insurance applies to “privacy crisis management expenses” only if:
(1) The “privacy crisis management expenses” are because of a “privacy event” to which this 

insurance applies;
(2) The “privacy crisis management expenses” are incurred within 6 months from the date 

the “privacy event” was first discovered in accordance with Paragraph c. above or within 
12 months as respects costs included in Section F. Definitions, Paragraph 3.j.(1)(e) 
Services for Individuals Affected by Personal Identity Event in the definition of “privacy 
crisis management expenses”; and

(3) Any consultants, vendors or suppliers providing the materials or services included in 
“privacy crisis management expenses” are approved by us.

3. COVERAGE E CYBER EXTORTION EXPENSE - Insuring Agreement  
a. We will reimburse you for “cyber extortion expenses” that you have paid because of a “cyber 

extortion threat” to which this insurance applies.  But the amount we will pay is limited as 
described in Section C. Limits of Insurance.
No other obligation to pay sums or perform acts or services is covered.

b. This insurance applies to a “cyber extortion threat” only if the "cyber extortion threat":
(1) Takes place in the “coverage territory”; 
(2) Is first made against you during the policy period and;  
(3) Is reported to us as soon as practicable, but in no event more than 60 days after the date 

it is first made against you.
c. Related Cyber Extortion Threat Events

All related “cyber extortion threats” will be considered one “cyber extortion threat” event and 
will be considered first made when the first “cyber extortion threat” is received. 
Related “cyber extortion threat” events include all “cyber extortion threats” that are the same, 
related or continuous, or that arise from a common nucleus of facts, circumstances, events or 
acts. 

d. This insurance applies to “cyber extortion expenses” only if:
(1) The “cyber extortion expenses” are because of a “cyber extortion threat” to which this 

insurance applies; and
(2) The “cyber extortion expenses” are incurred within 6 months from the date the “cyber 

extortion threat” was first received by you in accordance with Paragraph b. above.
4. Exclusions 

a. Exclusions Applicable To Management Liability
The following exclusion is added to Section II. Exclusions: 

This insurance does not apply under either Coverage A or Coverage B to:
Electronic Information Security Event
Damages, loss or expense arising directly or indirectly from an “electronic information 
security event”. 

b. Management Liability Exclusions Applicable to Cyber Liability, Privacy Crisis 
Management Expense And Cyber Extortion Expense
All exclusions under Section II. Exclusions apply to Coverage C Cyber Liability, Coverage D 
Privacy Crisis Management Expense and Coverage E Cyber Extortion Expense, except:
(1) The Electronic Information Security Event exclusion in 4.a. above does not apply to this 

Cyber Liability And Privacy Crisis Management Expense endorsement;
(2) As respects Coverage D Privacy Crisis Management Expense, Exclusion 1. Other 

Applicable Coverage does not apply; and



 

VML306 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 5 of 13

(3) As respects Coverage D Privacy Crisis Management Expense and Coverage E Cyber 
Extortion Expense, exclusion d. Bodily Injury, Property Damage or Personal and 
Advertising Injury (in form VML101) or exclusion b. Bodily Injury, Property Damage or 
Personal and Advertising Injury (in form VML102), as applicable, do not apply to: 

(a) Oral or written publication in any manner of material that slanders or libels a person 
or organization or disparages a person's or organization's goods, products or 
services; or

(b) Oral or written publication in any manner of material that violates a person's right of 
privacy. 

c. Exclusions Applicable To Coverage C Cyber Liability
The following exclusion applies to Coverage C Cyber Liability:

This insurance does not apply to:
1. General Liability

Damages, loss or expense that your General Liability Coverage Form applies to. This 
includes any damages, loss or expense that your General Liability Coverage Form 
would apply to except for the exhaustion of its limits, its cancellation prior to the end 
of its policy period or your failure to fulfill its requirements. 

d. Exclusions Applicable to Cyber Liability, Privacy Crisis Management Expense, And 
Cyber Extortion Expense
The following exclusions apply to Coverage C Cyber Liability, Coverage D Privacy Crisis 
Management Expense and Coverage E Cyber Extortion Expense: 
This insurance does not apply to:
1. Failure to Follow Risk Management Procedures and Inadequacy of Software

Damages, loss, or expense arising directly or indirectly from:
a. Any shortcoming in security that you knew about prior to the inception of this policy 

and for which you failed to take corrective action within a reasonable time, not to 
exceed 60 days; 

b. Your failure to comply with all data security standards issued by credit card issuers or 
financial institutions with whom you transact business, if you process, store or handle 
credit card information;

c. Your reckless disregard for the security of "personally identifiable information" and 
"confidential corporate information”; or

d. The inability to use, or the lack of performance of, software: 
(1) Due to the expiration, cancellation, or withdrawal of such software;
(2) That has not yet been released from its development stage; or
(3) That has not passed all test runs or proven successful in applicable daily 

operations.
2. Unauthorized Collection of Personal Information

Damages, loss or expense arising directly or indirectly from:
a. The illegal, unauthorized or wrongful collection of “personally identifiable information”, 

including collection of “personally identifiable information” using cookies or malware, 
if committed by or with the knowledge of the insured; or 

b. The failure to provide required notice that such “personally identifiable information” is 
being collected.  



 

VML306 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 6 of 13

3. Governmental Seizure of Computer System
Damages, loss or expense arising directly or indirectly from the seizure, confiscation, 
expropriation, nationalization, or destruction of a “computer system” by order of any 
governmental authority.

4. Known Prior Acts
Any “electronic information security event” or “privacy event” that results from an act, 
error or omission that takes place prior to the inception date of this coverage part if the 
insured knew or reasonably should have foreseen that such act, error or omission would 
give rise to a “claim” or “privacy crisis management expenses”.

5. Prior Litigation
Damages, loss or expense based upon, attributed to, arising out of, in consequence of, or 
in any way related to litigation or administrative or regulatory proceedings otherwise 
covered by this coverage part if such litigation or administrative or regulatory proceedings 
were initiated prior to or were pending on the inception date of this coverage part.

B. SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS
For the purposes of the coverage provided by this endorsement:
All references to Supplementary Payments under Section I. Coverages are replaced by 
Supplementary Payments - Coverages A and C.

C. LIMITS OF INSURANCE  
1. For the purposes of the coverage provided by Coverage C Cyber Liability of this endorsement the 

following revisions are made to Section IV. Limits Of Insurance:
a. Paragraph 2. is replaced by the following:

2. The Aggregate Limit is the most we will pay for the sum of:
a. Monetary damages under Coverage A;
b. “Defense expense” under Coverage B; and
c. Monetary damages under Coverage C;
for each Named Insured shown in the Declarations.

b. The following paragraph is added:
Subject to 2. above, the Cyber Liability Each Event Limit shown in the Schedule of this 
endorsement is the most we will pay under Coverage C for the sum of all monetary damages 
arising out of any one or all related “electronic information security event(s)”.  

2. For the purposes of the coverage provided by Coverage D Privacy Crisis Management Expense 
and Coverage E Cyber Extortion Expense of this endorsement, the following is added to Section 
IV. Limits Of Insurance:
Privacy Crisis Management Expense and Cyber Extortion Expense Limits of Insurance
1. The Privacy Crisis Management Expense and Cyber Extortion Expense Aggregate Limit 

shown in the Schedule of this endorsement is the most we will pay for the sum of “privacy 
crisis management expenses” under Coverage D and “cyber extortion expenses” under 
Coverage E, regardless of the number of persons, “privacy events”, “cyber extortion threats” 
or entities covered by this policy. 

2. Subject to the Privacy Crisis Management Expense and Cyber Extortion Expense Aggregate 
Limit, the Privacy Crisis Management Expense Each Event Limit is the most we will pay 
under Coverage D for the sum of all “privacy crisis management expenses” arising out of any 
one or all related “privacy event(s)”.  



 

VML306 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 7 of 13

3. Subject to the Privacy Crisis Management Expense and Cyber Extortion Expense Aggregate 
Limit, the Cyber Extortion Expense Each Event Limit is the most we will pay under Coverage 
E for the sum of all “cyber extortion expenses” arising out of any one or all related “cyber 
extortion threat” event(s). 

4. The Privacy Crisis Management Expense and Cyber Extortion Expense Aggregate Limit 
applies separately to each consecutive annual period and to any remaining period of less 
than 12 months, starting with the beginning of the policy period shown in the Declarations, 
unless the policy period is extended after issuance for an additional period of less than 12 
months.  In that case, the additional period will be deemed part of the preceding period for 
the purposes of determining the Limit of Insurance. 

D. CONDITIONS  
1. For the purposes of the coverage provided by Coverage C of this endorsement:

a. In Condition 2. the following is added:
You must cooperate with us and our designated representatives in the provision of the 
services described in “privacy crisis management expense”.

b. The following condition is added:
11. Deductible - Coverage C

No deductible applies to Coverage C.

2. For the purposes of the coverage provided by Coverage D and Coverage E of this endorsement, 
the following conditions are added:
12. Duties in the Event of a Privacy Event or a Cyber Extortion Threat

a. You must notify us as soon as practicable of a “privacy event” or “cyber extortion threat”, 
but in no event later than 60 days after you incur “privacy crisis management expenses” 
or “cyber extortion expenses” for which coverage will be requested under this 
endorsement. 

b. With respect to a “privacy event”, you must notify us in writing as soon as practicable but 
no later than sixty days after the first discovery of the “privacy event” by you.  Notice must 
include: 
(1) How, when and where the “privacy event” took place; 
(2) A description of the “privacy event”;
(3) The number of individuals and type of personal identification involved in a “personal 

identity event”; and
(4) Upon request by us, the names and addresses of individuals affected by a “personal 

identity event”.
c. With respect to a “cyber extortion threat”, you must notify us in writing as soon as 

practicable but no later than sixty days after the first “cyber extortion threat” is received by 
you.  Notice must include:
(1) How, when and where the “cyber extortion threat” took place; 
(2) A description of the “cyber extortion threat”; and
(3) Names and addresses of the negotiator or investigator retained by you in connection 

with a “cyber extortion threat”.
d. You must provide us all information and assistance that we request and cooperate with 

us and our designated representatives in the:
(1) Investigation of any “privacy event” or any acts, errors or omissions that may result in 

a “privacy event”; and
(2) Provision of the services described in “privacy crisis management expense”. 



 

VML306 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 8 of 13

13. Deductible - Coverage D and Coverage E

Our obligation to pay “privacy crisis management expenses” or “cyber extortion expenses” on 
your behalf applies only to the amount of such expense in excess of any deductible amount 
shown in the above schedule.  This deductible applies to each occurrence of a “privacy 
event” or a “cyber extortion threat” event.  

14. Your Right to Claim Information  

Upon request, we will provide the first Named Insured shown in the Declarations the following 
information relating to this and any preceding coverage part we have issued to you during the 
previous three years:
a. A list or other record of each “electronic information security event” or “privacy event”, not 

previously reported to any other insurer, of which we were notified in accordance with 
Paragraph 2.a. or Paragraph 12. of this section. We will include the date and a brief 
description of such “electronic information security event” or “privacy event” if that 
information was in the notice we received.

b. A summary, by policy year, of payments made and amounts reserved.
Amounts reserved are based on our judgment. They are subject to change and should not be 
regarded as ultimate settlement values. You must not disclose this information to any 
claimant or any claimant's representative without our consent.
We compile claim and related information for our own business purposes and exercise 
reasonable care in doing so. In providing this information to the first Named Insured, we 
make no representations or warranties to insureds, insurers, or others to whom this 
information is furnished by or on behalf of any insured. Cancellation or non-renewal will be 
effective even if we inadvertently provide inaccurate information.

3. For the purposes of the coverage provided by Coverage C, D and Coverage E of this 
endorsement the following is added to Condition 5. Other Insurance:

However, if the insured has another policy, coverage part or endorsement issued by us or 
one of our affiliated companies that applies to a loss or expense we cover under this Cyber 
Liability And Privacy Crisis Management Expense endorsement, the most we will pay in total 
is the single largest applicable limit. This does not apply to a policy bought specifically to 
apply in excess of this policy. 

E. EXTENDED REPORTING PERIODS – Applicable to Coverage C – Cyber Liability and Coverage 
D – Privacy Crisis Management Expense   
1. We will provide one or more Extended Reporting Periods, as described in items 3. and 4. below, 

if:
a. The policy or coverage part to which this endorsement is attached is cancelled or not 

renewed; 
b. This endorsement is removed; or
c. We renew or replace this endorsement with insurance that does not apply to an “electronic 

information security event” and/or a “privacy event” on a first discovered and reported basis.
2. Extended Reporting Periods do not extend the policy period or change the scope of coverage 

provided. They apply only to:
a. “Claims” arising out of an “electronic information security event”; or
b. “Privacy crisis management expenses” incurred as a result of a “privacy event”;
that is caused by an act, error or omission that occurred on or after the Cyber Liability Retroactive 
Date or Privacy Crisis Management Expense Retroactive Date, as applicable, and before the end 
of the policy period.  
Once in effect, Extended Reporting Periods may not be cancelled.



 

VML306 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 9 of 13

3. A Basic Extended Reporting Period is automatically provided without additional charge. This 
period starts with the end of the policy period and lasts for sixty days.
The Basic Extended Reporting Period does not apply to “electronic information security events” 
and/or “privacy events” that are covered under any subsequent insurance you purchase, or that 
would be covered but for exhaustion of the amount of insurance applicable to such “electronic 
information security events” and/or “privacy events”.
A Basic Extended Reporting Period does not reinstate or increase the Limit of Insurance.

4. A Supplemental Extended Reporting Period of five years is available, but only by an endorsement 
and for an extra charge. This supplemental period starts when the Basic Extended Reporting 
Period ends. 
You must give us a written request for the endorsement within 60 days after the end of the policy 
period. The Supplemental Extended Reporting Period will not go into effect unless you pay the 
additional premium promptly when due.
We will determine the additional premium in accordance with our rules and rates. In doing so, we 
will take into account the following:
a. The exposures insured;
b. Previous types and amounts of insurance;
c. Limit of Insurance available under this coverage; and
d. Other related factors.
The additional premium will not exceed 200% of the annual premium for this coverage.
This endorsement shall set forth the terms, not inconsistent with this section, applicable to the 
Supplemental Extended Reporting Period, including a provision to the effect that the insurance 
afforded for “electronic information security events” and/or “privacy events” first discovered during 
such period is excess over any other valid and collectible insurance available under policies in 
force after the Supplemental Extended Reporting Period starts.

5. If this Supplemental Extended Reporting Period is in effect, we will provide the separate 
Aggregate Limit of Insurance described below, but only for “electronic information security events” 
first discovered during the Supplemental Extended Reporting Period.  
The separate Aggregate Limit of Insurance will be equal to the dollar amount shown in the 
Declarations in effect at the end of the policy period for the Aggregate Limit. The applicable Cyber 
Liability Each Event Limit will continue to apply.
If there is a Supplemental Extended Reporting Period in force for any other coverage under this 
policy that was subject to the original Aggregate Limit, this separate Aggregate Limit is shared 
with that other coverage. Any payments made under a Supplemental Extended Reporting Period 
for those other coverages will reduce this separate Aggregate Limit.

6. If this Supplemental Extended Reporting Period is in effect, we will provide the separate Privacy 
Crisis Management Expense Aggregate Limit of Insurance described below, but only for “privacy 
events” first discovered during the Supplemental Extended Reporting Period.  
The separate Privacy Crisis Management Expense Aggregate Limit will be equal to the dollar 
amount shown in the Schedule in effect at the end of the policy period for the Privacy Crisis 
Management Expense Aggregate Limit. The applicable Privacy Crisis Management Expense 
Each Event Limit will continue to apply. 



 

VML306 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 10 of 13

F. DEFINITIONS  
For the purposes of the coverage provided by this endorsement, the following changes are made to 
Section VIII. Definitions:
1. The following definition is amended:

a. Definition 16. “wrongful act” is amended to include the following:
“Wrongful act” also means an “electronic information security event”. 

2. The following definitions are replaced:  
a. Definition 4. “coverage territory” is replaced by the following:

4. “Coverage territory” means worldwide, but the “electronic information security event”, 
“privacy event” or “cyber extortion threat” must take place in the United States of America 
(including its territories and possessions), Puerto Rico or Canada. 

b. Definition 12. “property damage” is replaced by the following:
12. “Property damage” means:

a. Physical injury to tangible property, including all resulting loss of use of that property; 
and

b. Loss of use of tangible property that is not physically injured but results from a. 
above.

For the purposes of this insurance, “electronic data” is not tangible property.

3. The following definitions are added:
a. “Computer system” means the following:

(1) Computers, including Personal Digital Assistants (PDAs) and other transportable or hand 
held devices, electronic storage devices and related peripheral components;

(2) Systems and applications software; and
(3) Communications networks (including the internet, intranets, extranets, virtual private 

networks, or cloud computing environments) to the extent used by the items in (1) and (2) 
above;

by which “electronic data” is collected, transmitted, processed, stored or retrieved; and
(4) “Computer system” includes “electronic data” that is

(a) Stored on any of the items described in item (1) above; or
(b) Temporarily outside of the “computer system” for use by an insured or an employee 

of an entity that has such information under a formal agreement with you.
b. “Confidential corporate information” means any commercial trade secret, data, design, 

interpretation, forecast, formula, method, practice, process record, report or other item of 
information of a non-insured third party, and which is:
(1) In your care, custody or control;
(2) Not available to the general public; and
(3) (a) Provided to you under a mutually agreed upon written confidentiality/non-disclosure 

agreement; or 
(b) Marked confidential or otherwise specifically designated in writing as confidential by 

such third party.  
c. “Corporate privacy event” means:

(1) Unauthorized disclosure by you of “confidential corporate information” or your failure to 
protect “confidential corporate information” from misappropriation;

(2) Failure by you to disclose or warn of an actual or potential disclosure or misappropriation 
of “confidential corporate information”, but only if this policy applies to such disclosure or 
misappropriation and it resulted directly from (1) above; or 



 

VML306 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 11 of 13

(3) Violation of any federal or state privacy statute addressing disclosure or misappropriation 
of “confidential corporate information”, but only if:
(a) This policy applies to such disclosure or misappropriation and it resulted directly from 

(1) or (2) above; and
(b) The violation is not willful.

d. “Cyber extortion expenses” means:
(1) The reasonable and necessary expenses paid by you in response to a “cyber extortion 

threat” to the party that made the “cyber extortion threat” for the purposes of eliminating 
the “cyber extortion threat”; and

(2) The expense you incur to complete the mandatory transaction in (1).  
e. “Cyber extortion threat” means a demand for monetary payment from you based on a 

credible threat, or series of related credible threats to:
(1) Launch a denial of service attack against your “computer system” for the purpose of 

denying you or authorized third party users access to your services provided through the 
“computer system” via the internet. A denial of service attack which affects the internet at 
large and prevents access by you or authorized third party users to your services 
provided through the "computer system" is not a "cyber extortion threat";

(2) Gain access to your “computer system” and use that access to steal, release or publish 
“personally identifiable information”, or “confidential corporate information”;

(3) Alter, damage or destroy “electronic data” that is stored within your “computer system”;
(4) Launch a computer attack against your “computer system” in order to alter, damage or 

destroy “electronic data” while such “electronic data” is stored within your “computer 
system”; or

(5) Cause you to transfer, pay or deliver any funds or property using a “computer system” 
without your authorization.

“Cyber extortion threat” does not mean or include any threat made in connection with a 
legitimate commercial dispute.  

f. “Electronic data” means information, facts or programs stored as or on, created or used on, 
or transmitted to or from computer software, including systems and applications software, 
hard or floppy disks, CD-ROMS, tapes, drives, cells, data processing devices or any other 
media which are used with electronically controlled equipment.

g. “Electronic information security event” means:
(1) Transmission of malware from your “computer system” to a third party;  
(2) The inability of an authorized user to access your web site or your “computer system” 

because of a denial of service attack;
(3) A “personal identity event”, but this is limited to information that is obtained or released 

directly from 
(a) Your “computer system”; or 
(b) The “computer system” of an entity that has such information under a formal 

agreement with you; or
(4) A “corporate privacy event”, but this is limited to information that is obtained or released 

directly from your “computer system”. 
As used in this definition, a denial of service attack means an intentional attack directly on 
your ”computer system” that prevents or slows down access to your web site or your 
computer network. However, a denial of service attack which affects the internet at large and 
is not directed at your "computer system" is not an "electronic information security event".  

h. “Personally identifiable information” means any of the following in your care, custody or 
control:



 

VML306 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 12 of 13

(1) Information from which an individual may be uniquely and reliably identified or contacted, 
including an individual’s name, telephone number, social security number, drivers license 
number, state identification number, account relationships, account numbers, account 
balances, account histories, access codes, and passwords;

(2) Information concerning an individual that would be considered nonpublic personal 
information within the meaning of Title V of the Gramm-Leach Bliley Act of 1999 as 
implemented and amended; and

(3) Information concerning an individual that would be considered protected health 
information within the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 as 
implemented and amended.

i. “Personal identity event” means:    
(1) Unauthorized disclosure by you of “personally identifiable information” or your failure to 

protect “personally identifiable information” from misappropriation. 
(2) Failure by you to disclose or warn of an actual or potential disclosure or misappropriation 

of “personally identifiable information”, but only if this policy applies to such disclosure or 
misappropriation and it resulted directly from (1) above; or

(3) Violation of any federal or state privacy statute addressing disclosure or misappropriation 
of “personally identifiable information”, but only if:
(a) This policy applies to such disclosure or misappropriation and it resulted directly from 

(1) or (2) above; and
(b) The violation is not willful.

j. “Privacy crisis management expense” means:
(1) Reasonable and necessary fees and expenses for:  

(a) Computer Forensic Analysis 
An approved outside vendor to conduct a computer forensic analysis with reasonable 
allocation of time and resources to investigate your “computer system” to determine 
the cause and extent of the “privacy event”; 

(b) Crisis Management Review and Advice 
The approved crisis management or legal firm to review the “privacy event” and 
advise you on the appropriate response;  

(c) Travel Expenses
Travel by directors, “executive officers”, partners, or “employees” of the insured, that 
is done to mitigate the damage from the “privacy event”;  

(d) Notification to Affected Parties
Printing, advertising, mailing of materials or other costs to provide notice to affected 
parties of the “privacy event” for the purposes of maintaining goodwill or compliance 
with any notification requirements imposed by law; and 

(e) Services for Individuals Affected by Personal Identity Event  
The following services provided to any individual whose personal identification is the 
subject of a “personal identity event”, but only if the primary purpose of such services 
is mitigating the effect of the “personal identity event”: 
(i) Call Center Services

Reasonable fees and expenses to establish, maintain and provide call center 
services; 

(ii) Credit Monitoring Services
Credit file monitoring services; or 

(iii) Other Services



 

VML306 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 13 of 13

Reasonable fees and expenses for any other service specifically approved by us 
in writing. 

(2) However, “privacy crisis management expenses” shall not include: 
(a) Compensation, fees, benefits or overhead of any insured or “employee” of any 

insured;
(b) Costs or expenses that would have been incurred in the absence of the “privacy 

event”;
(c) Costs or expenses associated with upgrading, maintaining, improving, repairing or 

remediating any “computer system” as a result of a “privacy event”; or
(d) Costs or expenses associated with upgrading, maintaining, improving, repairing or 

remediating any procedures, services or property as a result of a “privacy event”.
k. “Privacy event” means any one of the following events: 

(1) A “corporate privacy event”; or 
(2) A “personal identity event”.  



 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

VML310 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 2

AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

MANAGEMENT LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following revisions are made to the Management Liability Coverage Form:

1. HIPAA Fines and Penalties

HIPAA Fines and Penalties Schedule
Limit of Insurance

$100,000  Each HIPAA Claim 
$100,000  Aggregate

The exclusion for Fines in Section II. Exclusions is replaced by the following:
Fines

Fines, penalties and taxes, including those imposed by the Internal Revenue Service code or any 
similar state or local code. 
Except for violations due to willful neglect as defined by the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act (HIPAA), this exclusion does not apply to the payment of fines and penalties 
assessed for HIPAA violations up to the limit of insurance shown in the above HIPAA Fines and 
Penalties Schedule for the coverage provided under Coverage A.  The Each HIPAA Claim Limit 
of Insurance is part of and not in addition to the Each Wrongful Act Limit shown on the 
Declarations.  The Aggregate Limit of Insurance is part of and not in addition to the Aggregate 
Limit shown in the Declarations.  

2. FLSA Suit Defense Only Coverage

FLSA Defense Costs Schedule
Limit of Insurance

$100,000  Each FLSA Claim
$100,000 Aggregate 

a. The exclusion for Wage and Hour Laws in Section II. Exclusions is replaced by the following:
Wage and Hour Laws

Back wages, overtime or similar damages if specified by the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) 
of 1938, as amended, or any other wage or hour laws.  
However, this exclusion does not apply to “defense costs” as a result of a "suit" for such back 
wages, overtime or similar damages,  
Our duty to defend ends upon payment of the Each FLSA Claim Limit of Insurance shown in 
the above FLSA Defense Costs Schedule for “defense costs” for such “suit”.  The Aggregate 
Limit of Insurance is the most we will pay for FLSA Suit Defense Only Coverage arising out of 
all “suits” in any one policy period.  



 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

VML310 (01-20)
MANAGEMENT LIABILITY

Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 2 of 2

b. The following definitions only apply to this FLSA Suit Defense Only Coverage:

"Defense costs" means fees or expenses for:
(1) Legal fees;
(2) Court costs;
(3) Expert witnesses; and
(4) The cost of court bonds, but we do not have to furnish these bonds.

"Suit" means a civil proceeding in which damages arising out of an offense or "wrongful act" are 
alleged.  "Suit" includes:
(1) An arbitration proceeding in which such damages are claimed and to which the insured must 

submit or does submit with our consent; or
(2) Any other alternative dispute resolution proceeding in which such damages are claimed and 

to which the insured submits with our consent.
But “suit” does not mean any ethical conduct review or enforcement action, or disciplinary review 
or enforcement action.

3. Spouses, Estates, Heirs, and Legal Representatives added as Insureds 
The following additions are made to Paragraph 2. Of Section III. Who Is An Insured:

e. Spouses.  The spouse of an insured but only for claims arising solely out of his or her status 
as such.

f.    Estates, Heirs and Legal Representatives. If an insured is deceased, the estates, heirs, 
legal representatives, and assigns, but only for claims arising solely out of their status as 
such.  In the event of the incompetency, insolvency or bankruptcy of an insured, the legal 
representative of such insured, but only for claims arising solely out of their status as legal 
representative. 



Named Insured: 

 
Policy Number:  

Policy Period: From  

 To  

 
 

COMMERCIAL  EXCESS  LIABILITY  COVERAGE  PART 
DECLARATIONS 

 

 

Limits of Insurance 

 Each Occurrence Limit  

 Products - Completed Operations Aggregate Limit  
  (where applicable) 

 Aggregate Limit  

  

 Retroactive Date See Schedule of Controlling 
  (applicable to Claims Made coverages) Underlying Insurance 

 

 
 
 

 

 Estimated Coverage Part Premium: 

 Taxes, Fees and Surcharges: 

 Total Premium: 

 
 
 

Commercial Excess Liability Forms 

See Schedule of Forms and Endorsements. 

 

This coverage part consists of these declarations, the schedule of controlling underlying insurance, the schedule 
of forms and endorsements, and any forms and endorsements we may later attach to reflect changes.

VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000

07-01-2023

07-01-2024

07-05-2023

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$20,000,000

$     27,197.00

$     27,197.00

               THIS COVERAGE PART CONTAINS CLAIMS MADE COVERAGE.                

                           PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.                            

                                   

               



 

Named Insured: Policy Number: VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
Policy Period: From 07-01-2023EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

To 07-01-2024

SCHEDULE OF CONTROLLING UNDERLYING INSURANCE

Controlling Underlying Insurer Type of Coverage Limits of Insurance

EXS100 (01-20) 07-05-2023

Automobile Liability

Name:
NATIONAL UNION FIRE INS. CO. OF PITTSBURGH, PA.  Bodily Injury Liability – Each Person
  Bodily Injury Liability – Each Accident
Policy Number:
VFNUCM0008429-03  Property Damage Liability – Each Accident

Policy Period: or
07/01/2023 to 07/01/2024

$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit

General Liability

Name:
NATIONAL UNION FIRE INS. CO. OF PITTSBURGH, PA. $1,000,000 Each Occurrence

$1,000,000 Personal & Advertising Injury
Policy Number:
VFNUTR0008430-03 $3,000,000 General Aggregate

$3,000,000 Products–Completed Operations Aggregate
Policy Period:
07/01/2023 to 07/01/2024

[ X ] Occurrence
[  ] Claims Made

Management Liability

Name:
NATIONAL UNION FIRE INS. CO. OF PITTSBURGH, PA. $1,000,000 Each Wrongful Act or Offense

Policy Number: $3,000,000 Aggregate
VFNUTR0008430-03

NONE Retroactive Date
Policy Period:
07/01/2023 to 07/01/2024

[  ] Occurrence
[ X ] Claims Made



 

Named Insured: Policy Number: VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
Policy Period: From 07-01-2023EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

To 07-01-2024

SCHEDULE OF CONTROLLING UNDERLYING INSURANCE

Controlling Underlying Insurer Type of Coverage Limits of Insurance

EXS100 (01-20) 07-05-2023

Employer’s Liability

Name:
SEE CONTROLLING UNDERLYING INSURANCE $100,000 Bodily Injury by Accident – Each Accident

Policy Number: $500,000 Bodily Injury by Disease – Policy Limit
 

$100,000 Bodily Injury by Disease – Each Employee
Policy Period:
  to  

  



 COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY 

 CX 00 01 04 13 
 

CX 00 01 04 13  Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012  Page 1 of 5  
 

COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 
 

Various provisions in this policy restrict coverage. 
Read the entire policy carefully to determine rights, 
duties and what is and is not covered.  

Throughout this policy the words ‘‘you’’ and ‘‘your’’ 
refer to the Named Insured shown in the Declarations, 
and any other person or organization qualifying as a 
Named Insured under this policy. The words ‘‘we’’, 
‘‘us’’ and ‘‘our’’ refer to the company providing this 
insurance. The word ‘‘insured’’ means any person or 
organization qualifying as such under the ‘‘controlling 
underlying insurance’’.  

Other words and phrases that appear in quotation 
marks in this Coverage Part have special meaning. 
Refer to Section IV ---- Definitions. Other words and 
phrases that are not defined under this Coverage Part 
but defined in the ‘‘controlling underlying insurance’’ 
will have the meaning described in the policy of 
‘‘controlling underlying insurance’’. 

The insurance provided under this Coverage Part will 
follow the same provisions, exclusions and limitations 
that are contained in the applicable ‘‘controlling 
underlying insurance’’, unless otherwise directed by 
this insurance. To the extent such provisions differ or 
conflict, the provisions of this Coverage Part will 
apply. However, the coverage provided under this 
Coverage Part will not be broader than that provided 
by the applicable ‘‘controlling underlying insurance’’. 

There may be more than one ‘‘controlling underlying 
insurance’’ listed in the Declarations and provisions in 
those policies conflict, and which are not superseded 
by the provisions of this Coverage Part. In such a 
case, the provisions, exclusions and limitations of the 
‘‘controlling underlying insurance’’ applicable to the 
particular ‘‘event’’ for which a claim is made or suit is 
brought will apply. 

SECTION I ---- COVERAGES 

 1. Insuring Agreement 

 a. We will pay on behalf of the insured the 
‘‘ultimate net loss’’ in excess of the ‘‘retained 
limit’’ because of ‘‘injury or damage’’ to which 
insurance provided under this Coverage Part 
applies. 

We will have the right and duty to defend the 
insured against any suit seeking damages for 
such ‘‘injury or damage’’ when the applicable 
limits of ‘‘controlling underlying insurance’’ 
have been exhausted in accordance with the 
provisions of such ‘‘controlling underlying 
insurance’’.  

When we have no duty to defend, we will have 
the right to defend, or to participate in the 
defense of, the insured against any other suit 
seeking damages for ‘‘injury or damage’’.  

However, we will have no duty to defend the 
insured against any suit seeking damages for 
which insurance under this policy does not 
apply. 

At our discretion, we may investigate any 
‘‘event’’ that may involve this insurance and 
settle any resultant claim or suit, for which we 
have the duty to defend.  

But: 

 (1) The amount we will pay for ‘‘ultimate net 
loss’’ is limited as described in Section II ---- 
Limits Of Insurance; and 

 (2) Our right and duty to defend ends when we 
have used up the applicable limit of 
insurance in the payment of judgments or 
settlements under this Coverage Part. 
However, if the policy of ‘‘controlling 
underlying insurance’’ specifies that limits 
are reduced by defense expenses, our right 
and duty to defend ends when we have 
used up the applicable limit of insurance in 
the payment of defense expenses, 
judgments or settlements under this 
Coverage Part. 

 b. This insurance applies to ‘‘injury or damage’’ 
that is subject to an applicable ‘‘retained limit’’. 
If any other limit, such as, a sublimit, is 
specified in the ‘‘controlling underlying 
insurance’’, this insurance does not apply to 
‘‘injury or damage’’ arising out of that exposure 
unless that limit is specified in the Declarations 
under the Schedule of ‘‘controlling underlying 
insurance’’. 

 c. If the ‘‘controlling underlying insurance’’ 
requires, for a particular claim, that the ‘‘injury 
or damage’’ occur during its policy period in 
order for that coverage to apply, then this 
insurance will only apply to that ‘‘injury or 
damage’’ if it occurs during the policy period of 
this Coverage Part. If the ‘‘controlling 
underlying insurance’’ requires that the ‘‘event’’ 
causing the particular ‘‘injury or damage’’ takes 
place during its policy period in order for that 
coverage to apply, then this insurance will 
apply to the claim only if the ‘‘event’’ causing 
that ‘‘injury or damage’’ takes place during the 
policy period of this Coverage Part. 



 d. Any additional insured under any policy of 
‘‘controlling underlying insurance’’ will 
automatically be an additional insured under 
this insurance. If coverage provided to the 
additional insured is required by a contract or 
agreement, the most we will pay on behalf of 
the additional insured is the amount of 
insurance required by the contract, less any 
amounts payable by any ‘‘controlling 
underlying insurance’’.  

Additional insured coverage provided by this 
insurance will not be broader than coverage 
provided by the ‘‘controlling underlying 
insurance’’. 

 2. Exclusions 

The following exclusions, and any other 
exclusions added by endorsement, apply to this 
Coverage Part. In addition, the exclusions 
applicable to any ‘‘controlling underlying 
insurance’’ apply to this insurance unless 
superseded by the following exclusions, or 
superseded by any other exclusions added by 
endorsement to this Coverage Part. 

Insurance provided under this Coverage Part does 
not apply to:  

 a. Medical Payments 

Medical payments coverage or expenses that 
are provided without regard to fault, whether or 
not provided by the applicable ‘‘controlling 
underlying insurance’’. 

 b. Auto 

Any loss, cost or expense payable under or 
resulting from any of the following auto 
coverages: 

 (1) First-party physical damage coverage; 

 (2) No-fault coverage; 

 (3) Personal injury protection or auto medical 
payments coverage; or 

 (4) Uninsured or underinsured motorists 
coverage. 

 c. Pollution 

 (1) ‘‘Injury or damage’’ which would not have 
occurred, in whole or in part, but for the 
actual, alleged or threatened discharge, 
dispersal, seepage, migration, release or 
escape of pollutants at any time. 

 (2) Any loss, cost or expense arising out of 
any:  

 (a) Request, demand, order or statutory or 
regulatory requirement that any insured 
or others test for, monitor, clean up, 
remove, contain, treat, detoxify or 
neutralize, or in any way respond to, or 
assess the effects of, pollutants; or  

 (b) Claim or suit by or on behalf of a 
governmental authority for damages 
because of testing for, monitoring, 
cleaning up, removing, containing, 
treating, detoxifying or neutralizing, or in 
any way responding to, or assessing the 
effects of, pollutants. 

This exclusion does not apply to the extent that 
valid ‘‘controlling underlying insurance’’ for the 
pollution liability risks described above exists 
or would have existed but for the exhaustion of 
underlying limits for ‘‘injury or damage’’. 

 d. Workers’ Compensation And Similar Laws 

Any obligation of the insured under a workers’ 
compensation, disability benefits or 
unemployment compensation law or any similar 
law. 

SECTION II ---- LIMITS OF INSURANCE 

 1. The Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations, 
and the rules below fix the most we will pay 
regardless of the number of:  

 a. Insureds;  

 b. Claims made or suits brought, or number of 
vehicles involved;  

 c. Persons or organizations making claims or 
bringing suits; or 

 d. Limits available under any ‘‘controlling 
underlying insurance’’. 

 2. The Limits of Insurance of this Coverage Part will 
apply as follows: 

 a. This insurance only applies in excess of the 
‘‘retained limit’’. 

 b. The Aggregate Limit is the most we will pay for 
the sum of all ‘‘ultimate net loss’’, for all ‘‘injury 
or damage’’ covered under this Coverage Part. 

However, this Aggregate Limit only applies to 
‘‘injury or damage’’ that is subject to an 
aggregate limit of insurance under the 
‘‘controlling underlying insurance’’. 

 c. Subject to Paragraph 2.b. above, the Each 
Occurrence Limit is the most we will pay for the 
sum of all ‘‘ultimate net loss’’ under this 
insurance because of all ‘‘injury or damage’’ 
arising out of any one ‘‘event’’. 



 d. If the Limits of Insurance of the ‘‘controlling 
underlying insurance’’ are reduced by defense 
expenses by the terms of that policy, any 
payments for defense expenses we make will 
reduce our applicable Limits of Insurance in the 
same manner. 

 3. If any ‘‘controlling underlying insurance’’ has a 
policy period that is different from the policy period 
of this Coverage Part then, for the purposes of 
this insurance, the ‘‘retained limit’’ will only be 
reduced or exhausted by payments made for 
‘‘injury or damage’’ covered under this insurance. 

The Aggregate Limit of this Coverage Part applies 
separately to each consecutive annual period of this 
Coverage Part and to any remaining period of this 
Coverage Part of less than 12 months, starting with 
the beginning of the policy period shown in the 
Declarations, unless the policy period is extended 
after issuance for an additional period of less than 12 
months. In that case, the additional period will be 
deemed part of the last preceding period for purposes 
of determining the Limits of Insurance. 

SECTION III ---- CONDITIONS 

The following conditions apply. In addition, the 
conditions applicable to any ‘‘controlling underlying 
insurance’’ are also applicable to the coverage 
provided under this insurance unless superseded by 
the following conditions. 

 1. Appeals 

If the ‘‘controlling underlying insurer’’ or insured 
elects not to appeal a judgment in excess of the 
amount of the ‘‘retained limit’’, we may do so at our 
own expense. We will also pay for taxable court 
costs, pre- and postjudgment interest and 
disbursements associated with such appeal. In no 
event will this provision increase our liability 
beyond the applicable Limits of Insurance 
described in Section II ---- Limits Of Insurance. 

 2. Bankruptcy 

 a. Bankruptcy Of Insured 

Bankruptcy or insolvency of the insured or of 
the insured’s estate will not relieve us of our 
obligations under this Coverage Part.  

 b. Bankruptcy Of Controlling Underlying Insurer 

Bankruptcy or insolvency of the ‘‘controlling 
underlying insurer’’ will not relieve us of our 
obligations under this Coverage Part. 

However, insurance provided under this Coverage 
Part will not replace any ‘‘controlling underlying 
insurance’’ in the event of bankruptcy or 
insolvency of the ‘‘controlling underlying insurer’’. 
The insurance provided under this Coverage Part 
will apply as if the ‘‘controlling underlying 
insurance’’ were in full effect and recoverable. 

 3. Duties In The Event Of An Event, Claim Or Suit 

 a. You must see to it that we are notified as soon 
as practicable of an ‘‘event’’, regardless of the 
amount, which may result in a claim under this 
insurance. To the extent possible, notice 
should include:  

 (1) How, when and where the ‘‘event’’ took 
place;  

 (2) The names and addresses of any injured 
persons and witnesses; and  

 (3) The nature and location of any ‘‘injury or 
damage’’ arising out of the ‘‘event’’.  

 b. If a claim is made or suit is brought against any 
insured, you must:  

 (1) Immediately record the specifics of the claim 
or suit and the date received; and  

 (2) Notify us as soon as practicable.  

You must see to it that we receive written 
notice of the claim or suit as soon as 
practicable.  

 c. You and any other insured involved must:  

 (1) Immediately send us copies of any 
demands, notices, summonses or legal 
papers received in connection with the 
claim or suit;  

 (2) Authorize us to obtain records and other 
information;  

 (3) Cooperate with us in the investigation or 
settlement of the claim or defense against 
the suit; and  

 (4) Assist us, upon our request, in the 
enforcement of any right against any 
person or organization which may be liable 
to the insured because of ‘‘injury or 
damage’’ to which this insurance may also 
apply. 

 d. No insured will, except at that insured’s own 
cost, voluntarily make a payment, assume any 
obligation, or incur any expense, other than for 
first aid, without our consent. 

 4. First Named Insured Duties 

The first Named Insured is the person or 
organization first named in the Declarations and is 
responsible for the payment of all premiums. The 
first Named Insured will act on behalf of all other 
Named Insureds for giving and receiving of notice 
of cancellation or the receipt of any return 
premium that may become payable.  



At our request, the first Named Insured will furnish 
us, as soon as practicable, with a complete copy 
of any ‘‘controlling underlying insurance’’ and any 
subsequently issued endorsements or policies 
which may in any way affect the insurance 
provided under this Coverage Part. 

 5. Cancellation 

 a. The first Named Insured shown in the 
Declarations may cancel this policy by mailing 
or delivering to us advance written notice of 
cancellation.  

 b. We may cancel this policy by mailing or 
delivering to the first Named Insured written 
notice of cancellation at least:  

 (1) 10 days before the effective date of 
cancellation if we cancel for nonpayment of 
premium; or  

 (2) 30 days before the effective date of 
cancellation if we cancel for any other 
reason. 

 c. We will mail or deliver our notice to the first 
Named Insured’s last mailing address known to 
us. 

 d. Notice of cancellation will state the effective 
date of cancellation. The policy period will end 
on that date. 

 e. If this policy is cancelled, we will send the first 
Named Insured any premium refund due. If we 
cancel, the refund will be pro rata. If the first 
Named Insured cancels, the refund may be less 
than pro rata. The cancellation will be effective 
even if we have not made or offered a refund. 

 f. If notice is mailed, proof of mailing will be 
sufficient proof of notice. 

 6. Changes 

This Coverage Part contains all the agreements 
between you and us concerning the insurance 
afforded. The first Named Insured is authorized by 
all other insureds to make changes in the terms of 
this Coverage Part with our consent. This 
Coverage Part’s terms can be amended or waived 
only by endorsement. 

 7. Maintenance Of/Changes To Controlling 
Underlying Insurance 

Any ‘‘controlling underlying insurance’’ must be 
maintained in full effect without reduction of 
coverage or limits except for the reduction of 
aggregate limits in accordance with the provisions 
of such ‘‘controlling underlying insurance’’ that 
results from ‘‘injury or damage’’ to which this 
insurance applies. 

Such exhaustion or reduction is not a failure to 
maintain ‘‘controlling underlying insurance’’. 
Failure to maintain ‘‘controlling underlying 
insurance’’ will not invalidate insurance provided 
under this Coverage Part, but insurance provided 
under this Coverage Part will apply as if the 
‘‘controlling underlying insurance’’ were in full 
effect. 

The first Named Insured must notify us in writing, 
as soon as practicable, if any ‘‘controlling 
underlying insurance’’ is cancelled, not renewed, 
replaced or otherwise terminated, or if the limits or 
scope of coverage of any ‘‘controlling underlying 
insurance’’ is changed. 

 8. Other Insurance 

 a. This insurance is excess over, and shall not 
contribute with any of the other insurance, 
whether primary, excess, contingent or on any 
other basis. This condition will not apply to 
insurance specifically written as excess over 
this Coverage Part. 

When this insurance is excess, if no other 
insurer defends, we may undertake to do so, 
but we will be entitled to the insured’s rights 
against all those other insurers. 

 b. When this insurance is excess over other 
insurance, we will pay only our share of the 
‘‘ultimate net loss’’ that exceeds the sum of: 

 (1) The total amount that all such other 
insurance would pay for the loss in the 
absence of the insurance provided under 
this Coverage Part; and  

 (2) The total of all deductible and self-insured 
amounts under all that other insurance. 

 9. Premium Audit 

 a. We will compute all premiums for this Coverage 
Part in accordance with our rules and rates. 

 b. If this policy is auditable, the premium shown in 
this Coverage Part as advance premium is a 
deposit premium only. At the close of each 
audit period, we will compute the earned 
premium for that period and send notice to the 
first Named Insured. The due date for audit 
premium is the date shown as the due date on 
the bill. If the sum of the advance and audit 
premiums paid for the policy period is greater 
than the earned premium, we will return the 
excess to the first Named Insured.  

 c. The first Named Insured must keep records of 
the information we need for premium 
computation, and send us copies at such times 
as we may request. 



10. Loss Payable 

Liability under this Coverage Part does not apply 
to a given claim unless and until: 

 a. The insured or insured’s ‘‘controlling 
underlying insurer’’ has become obligated to 
pay the ‘‘retained limit’’; and 

 b. The obligation of the insured to pay the 
‘‘ultimate net loss’’ in excess of the ‘‘retained 
limit’’ has been determined by a final settlement 
or judgment or written agreement among the 
insured, claimant, ‘‘controlling underlying 
insurer’’ (or a representative of one or more of 
these) and us. 

11. Legal Action Against Us 

No person or organization has a right under this 
Coverage Part:  

 a. To join us as a party or otherwise bring us into 
a suit asking for damages from an insured; or  

 b. To sue us on this Coverage Part unless all of 
its terms have been fully complied with. 

A person or organization may sue us to recover 
on an agreed settlement or on a final judgment 
against an insured; but we will not be liable for 
damages that are not payable under the terms of 
this Coverage Part or that are in excess of the 
applicable limit of insurance. An agreed settlement 
means a settlement and release of liability signed 
by us, the insured, ‘‘controlling underlying insurer’’ 
and the claimant or the claimant’s legal 
representative. 

12. Transfer Of Defense 

 a. Defense Transferred To Us 

When the limits of ‘‘controlling underlying 
insurance’’ have been exhausted, in 
accordance with the provisions of ‘‘controlling 
underlying insurance’’, we may elect to have 
the defense transferred to us. We will 
cooperate in the transfer of control to us of any 
outstanding claims or suits seeking damages to 
which this insurance applies and which would 
have been covered by the ‘‘controlling 
underlying insurance’’ had the applicable limit 
not been exhausted. 

 b. Defense Transferred By Us 

When our limits of insurance have been 
exhausted our duty to provide a defense will 
cease. 

We will cooperate in the transfer of control of 
defense to any insurer specifically written as 
excess over this Coverage Part of any 
outstanding claims or suits seeking damages to 
which this insurance applies and which would 
have been covered by the ‘‘controlling 
underlying insurance’’ had the applicable limit 
not been exhausted. 

In the event that there is no insurance written 
as excess over this Coverage Part, we will 
cooperate in the transfer of control to the 
insured and its designated representative. 

13. When We Do Not Renew 

If we decide not to renew this Coverage Part, we 
will mail or deliver to the first Named Insured 
shown in the Declarations written notice of the 
nonrenewal not less than 30 days before the 
expiration date. 

If notice is mailed, proof of mailing will be sufficient 
proof of notice. 

SECTION IV ---- DEFINITIONS 

The definitions applicable to any ‘‘controlling 
underlying insurance’’ also apply to this insurance. In 
addition, the following definitions apply. 

 1. ‘‘Controlling underlying insurance’’ means any 
policy of insurance or self-insurance listed in the 
Declarations under the Schedule of ‘‘controlling 
underlying insurance’’. 

 2. ‘‘Controlling underlying insurer’’ means any insurer 
who provides any policy of insurance listed in the 
Declarations under the Schedule of ‘‘controlling 
underlying insurance’’. 

 3. ‘‘Event’’ means an occurrence, offense, accident, 
act, or other event, to which the applicable 
‘‘controlling underlying insurance’’ applies. 

 4. ‘‘Injury or damage’’ means any injury or damage, 
covered in the applicable ‘‘controlling underlying 
insurance’’ arising from an ‘‘event’’. 

 5. ‘‘Retained limit’’ means the available limits of 
‘‘controlling underlying insurance’’ applicable to 
the claim. 

 6. ‘‘Ultimate net loss’’ means the total sum, after 
reduction for recoveries, or salvages collectible, 
that the insured becomes legally obligated to pay 
as damages by reason of: 

 a. Settlements, judgments, binding arbitration; or  

 b. Other binding alternate dispute resolution 
proceeding entered into with our consent. 

‘‘Ultimate net loss’’ includes defense expenses if 
the ‘‘controlling underlying insurance’’ specifies 
that limits are reduced by defense expenses.  



 COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY 

 CX 02 29 09 08 
 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
 

CX 02 29 09 08  ISO Properties, Inc., 2007 Page 1 of 1  
 

NEVADA CHANGES --- CANCELLATION  
AND NONRENEWAL 

 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:  

 
COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

 

A. The following are added to Paragraph 5. Cancella-
tion of Section III ---- Conditions:  

MIDTERM CANCELLATION 

If this policy has been in effect for 70 days or 
more, or if this policy is a renewal of a policy we 
issued, we may cancel only for one or more of the 
following reasons:  

 1. Nonpayment of premium;  

 2. Conviction of the insured of a crime arising out 
of acts increasing the hazard insured against;  

 3. Discovery of fraud or material misrepresenta-
tion in obtaining the policy or in presenting a 
claim thereunder;  

 4. Discovery of an act or omission or a violation 
of any condition of the policy which occurred 
after the first effective date of the current pol-
icy, and substantially and materially increases 
the hazard insured against;  

 5. A material change in the nature or extent of the 
risk, occurring after the first effective date of 
the current policy, which causes the risk of 
loss to be substantially and materially increased 
beyond that contemplated at the time the policy 
was issued or last renewed;  

 6. A determination by the commissioner that con-
tinuation of our present volume of premiums 
would jeopardize our solvency or be hazard-
ous to the interests of our policyholders, credi-
tors or the public;  

 7. A determination by the commissioner that the 
continuation of the policy would violate, or 
place us in violation of, any provision of the 
code.  

ANNIVERSARY CANCELLATION 

If this policy is written for a term longer than one 
year, we may cancel for any reason at an anniver-
sary, by mailing or delivering written notice of can-
cellation to the first Named Insured at the last mail-
ing address known to us at least 60 days before 
the anniversary date.  

B. Paragraph 13. When We Do Not Renew of Section 
III ---- Conditions is replaced by the following:  

NONRENEWAL 

 1. If we elect not to renew this policy, we will mail 
or deliver to the first Named Insured shown in 
the Declarations a notice of intention not to re-
new at least 60 days before the agreed expira-
tion date.  

If notice is mailed, proof of mailing will be suffi-
cient proof of notice.  

 2. We need not provide this notice if:  

 a. You have accepted replacement coverage;  

 b. You have requested or agreed to nonre-
newal; or  

 c. This policy is expressly designated as non-
renewable.  

C. Notices 

 1. Notice of cancellation or nonrenewal in accor-
dance with A. and B. of this endorsement, will 
be mailed, first-class or certified, or delivered to 
the first Named Insured at the last mailing ad-
dress known to us and will state the reason for 
cancellation or nonrenewal.  

 2. We will also provide a copy of the notice of 
cancellation, for both policies in effect less than 
70 days and policies in effect 70 days or more, 
to the agent who wrote the policy.  



 COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY 

 CX 21 01 09 08 
 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
 

CX 21 01 09 08 ISO Properties, Inc., 2007  Page 1 of 2  
 

NUCLEAR ENERGY LIABILITY  
EXCLUSION ENDORSEMENT 

(BROAD FORM) 

 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:  

 
COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

 

The following exclusion is added to Paragraph 2., 
Exclusions: 

 2. Exclusions 

NUCLEAR ENERGY LIABILITY 

 a. Under any Liability Coverage, to ‘‘injury or 
damage’’: 

 (1) With respect to which an insured under the 
policy is also an insured under a nuclear 
energy liability policy issued by Nuclear En-
ergy Liability Insurance Association, Mutual 
Atomic Energy Liability Underwriters, Nu-
clear Insurance Association of Canada or 
any of their successors, or would be an in-
sured under any such policy but for its ter-
mination upon exhaustion of its limit of li-
ability; or 

 (2) Resulting from the ‘‘hazardous properties’’ 
of ‘‘nuclear material’’ and with respect to 
which (a) any person or organization is re-
quired to maintain financial protection pur-
suant to the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, or 
any law amendatory thereof, or (b) the in-
sured is, or had this policy not been issued 
would be, entitled to indemnity from the 
United States of America, or any agency 
thereof, under any agreement entered into 
by the United States of America, or any 
agency thereof, with any person or organi-
zation. 

 b. Under any Liability Coverage, to ‘‘injury or 
damage’’ resulting from ‘‘hazardous properties’’ 
of ‘‘nuclear material’’, if: 

 (1) The ‘‘nuclear material’’ (a)  is at any ‘‘nuclear 
facility’’ owned by, or operated by or on be-
half of, an insured or (b) has been dis-
charged or dispersed therefrom; 

 

 (2) The ‘‘nuclear material’’ is contained in ‘‘spent 
fuel’’ or ‘‘waste’’ at any time possessed, han-
dled, used, processed, stored, transported 
or disposed of, by or on behalf of an in-
sured; or 

 (3) The ‘‘injury or damage’’ arises out of the 
furnishing by an insured of services, mate-
rials, parts or equipment in connection with 
the planning, construction, maintenance, 
operation or use of any ‘‘nuclear facility’’, 
but if such facility is located within the 
United States of America, its territories or 
possessions or Canada, this Exclusion (3) 
applies only to property damage to such 
‘‘nuclear facility’’ and any property thereat. 

 c. As used in this endorsement: 

‘‘Hazardous properties’’ includes radioactive, 
toxic or explosive properties. 

‘‘Nuclear material’’ means ‘‘source material’’, 
‘‘special nuclear material’’ or ‘‘by-product mate-
rial’’. 

‘‘Source material’’, ‘‘special nuclear material’’, 
and ‘‘by-product material’’ have the meanings 
given them in the Atomic Energy Act of 1954 or 
in any law amendatory thereof. 

‘‘Spent fuel’’ means any fuel element or fuel 
component, solid or liquid, which has been 
used or exposed to radiation in a ‘‘nuclear reac-
tor’’. 

‘‘Waste’’ means any waste material (a)  contain-
ing ‘‘by-product material’’ other than the tailings 
or wastes produced by the extraction or con-
centration of uranium or thorium from any ore 
processed primarily for its ‘‘source material’’ 
content, and (b) resulting from the operation 
by any person or organization of any ‘‘nuclear 
facility’’ included under the first two paragraphs 
of the definition of ‘‘nuclear facility’’. 



‘‘Nuclear facility’’ means:  

 (a) Any ‘‘nuclear reactor’’;  

 (b) Any equipment or device designed or 
used for (1)  separating the isotopes of 
uranium or plutonium, (2) processing or 
utilizing ‘‘spent fuel’’, or (3) handling, 
processing or packaging ‘‘waste’’;  

 (c) Any equipment or device used for the 
processing, fabricating or alloying of 
‘‘special nuclear material’’ if at any time 
the total amount of such material in the 
custody of the ‘‘insured’’ at the premises 
where such equipment or device is lo-
cated consists of or contains more than 
25 grams of plutonium or uranium 233 or 
any combination thereof, or more than 
250 grams of uranium 235; 

 (d) Any structure, basin, excavation, prem-
ises or place prepared or used for the 
storage or disposal of ‘‘waste’’; 

and includes the site on which any of the fore-
going is located, all operations conducted on 
such site and all premises used for such opera-
tions. 

‘‘Nuclear reactor’’ means any apparatus de-
signed or used to sustain nuclear fission in a 
self-supporting chain reaction or to contain a 
critical mass of fissionable material. 

‘‘Injury or damage’’ includes all forms of radio-
active contamination of property.  

 



 COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY 

 CX 21 13 04 13 
 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
 

CX 21 13 04 13 Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012  Page 1 of 1  
 

EXCLUSION --- FUNGI OR BACTERIA 
 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 
COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

 

A. The following exclusion is added to Paragraph 2. 
Exclusions of Section I ---- Coverages: 

 2. Exclusions 

Insurance provided under this Coverage Part 
does not apply to: 

Fungi Or Bacteria 

 a. ‘‘Injury or damage’’ which would not have 
occurred, in whole or in part, but for the 
actual, alleged or threatened inhalation of, 
ingestion of, contact with, exposure to, 
existence of, or presence of, any ‘‘fungi’’ or 
bacteria on or within a building or structure, 
including its contents, regardless of 
whether any other cause, event, material or 
product contributed concurrently or in any 
sequence to such ‘‘injury or damage’’. 

 b. Any loss, cost or expenses arising out of 
the abating, testing for, monitoring, 
cleaning up, removing, containing, treating, 
detoxifying, neutralizing, remediating or 
disposing of, or in any way responding to, 
or assessing the effects of, ‘‘fungi’’ or 
bacteria, by any insured or by any other 
person or entity. 

This exclusion does not apply to any ‘‘fungi’’ or 
bacteria that are, are on, or are contained in, a 
good or product intended for bodily 
consumption. 

B. The following definition is added to the Definitions 
section: 

‘‘Fungi’’ means any type or form of fungus, 
including mold or mildew and any mycotoxins, 
spores, scents or by-products produced or 
released by fungi. 



 

COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY
CX 21 30 01 15

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CX 21 30 01 15 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2015 Page 1 of 1

CAP ON LOSSES FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

A. Any endorsement addressing acts of terrorism 
(however defined) in any "controlling underlying 
insurance" does not apply to this excess 
insurance. The following provisions addressing 
acts of terrorism apply with respect to this excess 
insurance:
If aggregate insured losses attributable to terrorist 
acts certified under the federal Terrorism Risk 
Insurance Act exceed $100 billion in a calendar 
year and we have met our insurer deductible 
under the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, we shall 
not be liable for the payment of any portion of the 
amount of such losses that exceeds $100 billion, 
and in such case insured losses up to that amount 
are subject to pro rata allocation in accordance 
with procedures established by the Secretary of 
the Treasury.

"Certified act of terrorism" means an act that is 
certified by the Secretary of the Treasury, in 
accordance with the provisions of the federal 
Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, to be an act of 
terrorism pursuant to such Act. The criteria 
contained in the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act for 
a "certified act of terrorism" include the following:
1. The act resulted in insured losses in excess of 

$5 million in the aggregate, attributable to all 
types of insurance subject to the Terrorism 
Risk Insurance Act; and 

2. The act is a violent act or an act that is 
dangerous to human life, property or 
infrastructure and is committed by an individual 
or individuals as part of an effort to coerce the 
civilian population of the United States or to 
influence the policy or affect the conduct of the 
United States Government by coercion.

B. The terms and limitations of any terrorism 
exclusion, or the inapplicability or omission of a 
terrorism exclusion, do not serve to create 
coverage for "injury or damage" that is otherwise 
excluded under this Coverage Part.



 

POLICY NUMBER: VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000 COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY
CX 27 00 12 19

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CX 27 00 12 19 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 1 of 2

UNDERLYING CLAIMS-MADE COVERAGE
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Retroactive Date:  

(Enter Date Or "NONE" If No Retroactive Date Applies.)
Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

If any "controlling underlying insurance" is written on a 
claims-made basis, the following applies to the 
insurance provided by this Coverage Part which is 
excess over that underlying insurance:
A. Paragraph 1.c. under Section I – Coverages is 

replaced by the following:
c. If the "controlling underlying insurance" 

requires, for a particular claim, that the 
"injury or damage" occur on or after the 
Retroactive Date shown in the Declarations 
of that insurance in order for that coverage 
to apply, then this insurance will only apply 
to that "injury or damage" which occurs on or 
after the Retroactive Date shown in the 
Schedule of this endorsement but before the 
end of the policy period of this Coverage 
Part. If the "controlling underlying insurance" 
requires, for a particular claim, that the 
"event" causing the particular "injury or 
damage" takes place on or after the 
Retroactive Date shown in the Declarations 
of that insurance in order for that coverage 
to apply, then this insurance will apply to the 
claim only if the "event" causing that "injury 
or damage" takes place on or after the 
Retroactive Date shown in the Schedule of 
this endorsement but before the end of the 
policy period of this Coverage Part. 

A claim for damages for such "injury or 
damage" must be first made against the 
insured during this policy period or any 
extended reporting period provided under 
this Coverage Part. A claim will be 
considered first made under this Coverage 
Part:

(1) When notice of such claim is received 
and recorded by any insured or by us, 
whichever comes first, if the "controlling 
underlying insurance" is written on a 
claims-made and recorded basis; or

(2) When notice of such claim, after being 
received by any insured, is reported to us 
in writing, if the "controlling underlying 
insurance" is written on any other claims-
made basis.

B. The following is added to Section II – Limits Of 
Insurance:
The "retained limit" will only be reduced or 
exhausted by payments made for:

(1) Claims made during the policy period or 
any Extended Reporting Period of this 
Coverage Part; or 

(2) Defense expenses if the limits of 
"controlling underlying insurance" are 
reduced by defense expenses for that 
insurance.



 

Page 2 of 2 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 CX 27 00 12 19

C. The following section is added:
Claims-made Extended Reporting Period
1. Any provisions under the "controlling underlying 

insurance" relating to an Extended Reporting 
Period for which a separate premium charge is 
made do not apply to this insurance, unless an 
Extended Reporting Period is purchased under 
this insurance.

2. An Extended Reporting Period, consistent with 
the terms, conditions and duration of any 
Extended Reporting Period available in 
accordance with the terms of any "controlling 
underlying insurance", will be available for this 
Coverage Part by endorsement, for an 
additional charge, if:
a. This Policy is cancelled or not renewed; or
b. This Policy is renewed or replaced with 

insurance that:
(1) Has a Retroactive Date later than the 

date shown in the Schedule of this 
endorsement; or 

(2) Does not apply to "injury or damage" on 
a claims-made basis.

3. If this Policy and the "controlling underlying 
insurance" are cancelled or not renewed and an 
Extended Reporting Period has been provided 
under the "controlling underlying insurance", 
then an Extended Reporting Period will be 
available for this Coverage Part. The Extended 
Reporting Period available under this Coverage 
Part will be consistent with the terms, conditions 
and duration of any Extended Reporting Period 
provided in accordance with the terms of the 
"controlling underlying insurance".

4. You must give us a written request for the 
Extended Reporting Period endorsement under 
this Coverage Part no later than the time 
allowed to purchase such endorsement under 
the "controlling underlying insurance". The 
Extended Reporting Period will not go into effect 
unless you pay the additional premium promptly 
when due. 

5. We will determine the additional premium in 
accordance with our rules and rates. In doing 
so, we may take into account the following:
a. The exposures insured;
b. Previous types and amounts of insurance;
c. Limits of Insurance available under this 

Policy for future payment of damages; and
d. Other related factors.

6. If the provisions of the Extended Reporting 
Period in any "controlling underlying insurance" 
provide for supplemental aggregate limits of 
insurance when the Extended Reporting Period 
is purchased, a supplementary aggregate limit 
of insurance, equal to the Aggregate Limit 
shown in the Declarations of this Coverage Part, 
will apply to claims first made during the 
Extended Reporting Period if the Extended 
Reporting Period is purchased for this 
insurance.

  



 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CXE0112 (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

PER LOCATION AGGREGATE LIMIT OF INSURANCE
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

Paragraph 2.b. under Section II – Limits Of Insurance is deleted and replaced by the following: 
2.b. The Aggregate Limit is the most we will pay for the sum of all "ultimate net loss", for all "injury or 

damage" covered under this Coverage Part.
However, this Aggregate Limit only applies to "injury or damage" that is subject to an aggregate limit of 
insurance under the "controlling underlying insurance".
The above described Aggregate Limit applies separately to each location owned by or rented to or 
managed by the named insured.
As used herein, location means premises involving the same or connecting lots, or premises whose 
connection is interrupted only by a street, roadway, waterway or right-of-way of a railroad.

 



 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CXE0172 (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

FIREWORKS OR PYROTECHNICS EXCLUSION
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following exclusion is added to Paragraph 2. Exclusions of Section I - Coverages: 
This insurance does not apply to any "injury or damage" caused directly or indirectly by fireworks, pyrotechnics 
or any similar explosive material.
 
 



 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CXE0279 (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

SUBLIMITED COVERAGES ENDORSEMENT
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to Paragraph 1.b. under Insuring Agreement in Section I – Coverages:

As described in Paragraph 1.b., any limits or sublimits of insurance must be:
(1) Specifically listed under the Schedule of "controlling underlying insurance"; or 
(2) Subject to the applicable available limits of "controlling underlying insurance" listed under the Schedule of 

"controlling underlying insurance";
in order for this insurance to apply.



 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CXE0286 (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

ERISA EXCLUSION
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following exclusion is added to Paragraph 2. Exclusions of Section I - Coverages:
This insurance does not apply to any "injury or damage" arising out of or associated with any obligation of the 
insured under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA), and any amendments thereto or 
any similar federal, state or local statute.



 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CXE0328 (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

PRODUCTS-COMPLETED OPERATIONS 
AGGREGATE LIMIT OF INSURANCE

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Products-completed Operations Aggregate Limit:

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

Section II – Limits Of Insurance is replaced by the 
following: 
1. The Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations, 

and the Schedule of this endorsement, and the 
following rules fix the most we will pay regardless 
of the number of: 
a. Insureds; 
b. Claims made or suits brought, or number of 

vehicles involved; 
c. Persons or organizations making claims or 

bringing suits; or
d. Limits available under any "controlling 

underlying insurance".
2. The Limits of Insurance will apply as follows:

a. This insurance only applies in excess of the 
"retained limit".

b. The Aggregate Limit is the most we will pay for 
the sum of all "ultimate net loss", for all "injury 
or damage" covered under this Coverage Part, 
except "ultimate net loss" because of "injury or 
damage":

(1) That is not subject to an aggregate limit of 
insurance under the "controlling underlying 
insurance"; or 

(2) Included in the products-completed 
operations hazard.

c. The Products-completed Operations Aggregate 
Limit shown in the Schedule of this 
endorsement is the most we will pay for the 
sum of all "ultimate net loss" under this 
insurance because of all "injury or damage" 
included in a products-completed operations 
hazard.

d. Subject to Paragraph b. or c. of this 
endorsement, whichever applies, the Each 
Occurrence Limit is the most we will pay for the 
sum of all "ultimate net loss" under this 
insurance because of all "injury or damage" 
arising out of any one "event".

e. If the Limits of Insurance of the "controlling 
underlying insurance" are reduced by defense 
expenses by the terms of that policy, any 
payments for defense expenses we make will 
reduce our applicable Limits of Insurance in the 
same manner.

3. If any "controlling underlying insurance" has a 
policy period that is different from the policy period 
of this Coverage Part then, for the purposes of this 
insurance, the "retained limit" will only be reduced 
or exhausted by payments made for "injury or 
damage" covered under this insurance.

The Aggregate Limits, as described in Paragraphs b. 
and c. above, apply separately to each consecutive 
annual period of this Coverage Part and to any 
remaining period of this Coverage Part of less than 12 
months, starting with the beginning of the policy 
period shown in the Declarations, unless the policy 
period is extended after issuance for an additional 
period of less than 12 months. In that case, the 
additional period will be deemed part of the last 
preceding period for purposes of determining the 
Limits of Insurance.  



 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CXEG0287 (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATION AMENDATORY 
ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

I. The following is added to Paragraph 1.a. Insuring Agreement  under Section I – Coverages:
When we have the right and duty to defend the insured against any suit seeking damages for "injury or 
damage" to which this insurance applies and when the applicable limits of "controlling underlying insurance" 
have been exhausted, we will pay the insured’s expenses incurred at our request, including actual loss of 
earnings not to exceed $300 per day. 
We will assume such charge only if such expense was not included in the "controlling underlying insurance".
When we assume such charge, we will pay in addition to the applicable limit of insurance only if the policy of 
"controlling underlying insurance" specifies that limits are not reduced by any defense expenses.

II. Paragraph 3. Duties In The Event Of An Event, Claim or Suit under Section III – Conditions is deleted 
and replaced by the following:
a. You must see to it that we are notified as soon as possible of an "event", regardless of the amount, which 

may result in a claim under this insurance. To the extent possible, notice should include: 
(1) How, when and where the "event" took place; 
(2) The names and addresses of any injured persons and witnesses; and 
(3) The nature and location of any "injury or damage" arising out of the "event". 

b. If a claim is made or suit is brought against any insured, you must: 
(1) Immediately record the specifics of the claim or suit and the date received; and 
(2) Notify us as soon as possible. 
You must see to it that we receive written notice of the claim or suit as soon as possible. 

c. You and any other insured involved must: 
(1) Immediately send us copies of any demands, notices, summonses or legal papers received in 

connection with the claim or suit; 
(2) Authorize us to obtain records and other information; 
(3) Cooperate with us in the investigation or settlement of the claim or defense against the suit; and 
(4) Assist us, upon our request, in the enforcement of any right against any person or organization which 

may be liable to the insured because of "injury or damage" to which this insurance may also apply.
d. No insured will, except at that insured's own cost, voluntarily make a payment, assume any obligation, or 

incur any expense, other than for first aid, without our consent.

 



 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CXEG0297 (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

OTHER VALID AND COLLECTABLE INSURANCE 
AMENDMENT – EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATIONS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to Paragraph 8. Other Insurance of Section III Conditions:
However, in the event other insurance exists for the following:
(1) An auto the Named Insured doesn’t own, hire or borrow which is being used by a person, commission, 

authority, board or agency as described under paragraphs d., e., and f. of Section II –Liability Coverage, 
Coverage A.1., Who Is An Insured of the BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM of the "controlling underlying 
insurance";

(2) A substitute auto as described under paragraph g. of Section II – Liability Coverage, Coverage A.1. Who Is 
An Insured of the BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM of the "controlling underlying insurance";

(3) A commandeered auto as described under paragraph h. of Section II – Liability Coverage, Coverage A.1. 
Who Is An Insured of the BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM of the "controlling underlying insurance"; or

(4) Commandeered equipment other than an auto as described under paragraph d. of Section II – Who Is An 
Insured of the EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATION GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM of the 
"controlling underlying insurance";

This insurance will be excess over the applicable "controlling underlying insurance" and will not take into 
consideration nor will seek contribution from the applicable other insurance, described in paragraphs (1) through 
(4) above.



 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CXEG0329 (01-20) Copyright, American International Group, Inc., 2019.
All rights reserved. Includes copyrighted material of the

Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission.

Page 1 of 1

UNMANNED AIRCRAFT LIABILITY COVERAGE SUBLIMIT 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Unmanned Aircraft Liability Each Occurrence Limit Of Insurance: $1,000,000
Unmanned Aircraft Liability Aggregate Limit Of Insurance: $1,000,000
Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. This insurance applies to "injury or damage" attributable to "unmanned aircraft" only to the extent that valid 
"controlling underlying insurance" for such "unmanned aircraft" exists or would have existed but for the 
exhaustion of underlying limits. Coverage provided will follow the provisions and exclusions of the applicable 
"controlling underlying insurance" unless otherwise directed by this insurance. 

B. The following is added to Section II – Limits Of Insurance: 
(1) The Unmanned Aircraft Liability Aggregate Limit of Insurance shown in the Schedule of this endorsement 

is the most we will pay for the sum of all "ultimate net loss" for all "injury or damage" attributable to 
"unmanned aircraft"” covered under this Coverage Part. 

(2) Subject to Paragraph B.(1) above, the Unmanned Aircraft Liability Each Occurrence Limit of Insurance 
shown in the Schedule of this endorsement is the most we will pay for the sum of all "ultimate net loss" 
under this insurance because of all "injury or damage" arising out of any one "event" attributable to 
"unmanned aircraft" covered under this Coverage Part.

The above described limits of insurance in paragraphs B.(1) and B.(2) are subject to, and not in addition to, 
the Aggregate Limit or Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit shown in the Declarations page of 
this policy. Any payments under the Unmanned Aircraft Liability Aggregate Limit of Insurance and Unmanned 
Aircraft Liability Each Occurrence Limit of Insurance will erode the Aggregate Limit or Products-Completed 
Operations Aggregate Limit.

C. The following definition is added to the Section IV - Definitions:
"Unmanned aircraft" means an aircraft weighing 15 pounds or less that is not:
1. Designed;
2. Manufactured; or
3. Modified after manufacture;

to be controlled directly by a person from within or on the aircraft.
"Unmanned aircraft" includes equipment used with such "unmanned aircraft", provided such equipment is 
attached to or essential for its operation.

           



 

VPJ100 (01-20)

CLAIM REPORTING

Successful claim handling begins with prompt notification.  Incidents that will or might give rise to a claim 
should be immediately reported to your agent.  The agent will relay pertinent information to Glatfelter 
Claims Management, Inc. (GCM). Minimum information needed is:

 Name and telephone number of insured contact person.
 Date, time and location of the accident or incident.
 Description of how the incident occurred.
 Description of the vehicle or property involved.
 Description of the damage and/or injuries.
 Description of any other automobiles, property, persons and witnesses involved, including 

addresses and telephone numbers, if available.
 If known, the name and incident report number of the responding police department or other 

authority.

Do not delay reporting an incident to your agent waiting on information such as a police report, repair 
estimate, or other claim details.  When additional information is obtained, it should be promptly reported 
to your agent or the claim handler assigned by GCM.

Should a claim arise, some important points to remember are:

 Provide assistance to injured persons.
 Protect property from further damage.
 Do not divulge information to anyone other than the assigned claim handler or GCM’s authorized 

representative.
 If a lawsuit is filed, contact your agent immediately who will transmit copies to GCM.

If an after-hours emergency should arise, please contact our office for assistance.

Glatfelter Claims Management, Inc.
P.O. Box 5126
York, PA 17405
Telephone: (800) 233-1957
Claims Fax: (717) 747-7051
E-Mail: claims@glatfelters.com

License Number: 2D89880  (California only)

Glatfelter Claims Management, Inc., a division of Glatfelter Insurance Group, is a wholly owned, third-party claims 
administrator charged with the handling of claims for VFIS, on behalf of National Union Fire Insurance Company 
of Pittsburgh, Pa.



 

VPJ100 (01-20)

(800) 233-1957

www.vfis.com

Volunteer Firemen’s Insurance Services, Inc.®
VFIS®, VFIS® with design and Volunteer Firemen’s Insurance Services, Inc.®
 are all registered service marks of the same PA Corporation.  



 

125595 (03/20) ©American International Group, Inc.
All Rights Reserved.

Page 1 of 1

ENDORSEMENT 

This endorsement, effective 07/01/2023 12:01 A.M., 
Forms a part of Policy No.:  VFNU-TR-0008430-03/000
Issued to:  EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
By:  NATIONAL UNION FIRE INS. CO. OF PITTSBURGH, PA.

FEDERAL SHARE OF COMPENSATION UNDER TRIA AND CAP ON LOSSES 
ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided by this Policy:

DISCLOSURE

You should know that where coverage is provided by this Policy for losses resulting from “Certified Acts of 
Terrorism” (as defined by Section 102 (1) of United States Terrorism Risk Insurance Act), such losses 
may be partially reimbursed by the United States Government under a formula established by federal law.  
However, your Policy may contain other exclusions which might affect your coverage such as, an 
exclusion for nuclear events.  Under the formula, the United States Government generally reimburses 
80% beginning on January 1, 2020, of covered terrorism losses exceeding the statutorily established 
deductible paid by the insurance company providing the coverage.

You should also know that the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, as amended, contains a $100 billion cap 
that limits United States Government reimbursement as well as insurers’ liability for losses resulting from 
“Certified Acts of Terrorism” when the amount of such losses in any one calendar year exceeds $100 
billion. If the aggregate insured losses for all insurers exceed $100 billion in a calendar year and if we 
have met our insurer deductible, we are not liable for the payment of any portion of the amount of such 
losses that exceeds $100 billion; and for aggregate insured losses up to $100 billion, we will only pay a 
pro rata share of such insured losses as determined by the Secretary of the Treasury.

All other terms and conditions of the Policy remain the same.

____________________________
Authorized Representative



 

96556 (3/20)0
© 2020 National Association of Insurance Commissioners

POLICYHOLDER DISCLOSURE 
NOTICE OF TERRORISM INSURANCE COVERAGE

(COVERAGE INCLUDED)

Coverage for acts of terrorism is included in your policy. You are hereby notified that under the Terrorism 

Risk Insurance Act, as amended in 2015, the definition of act of terrorism has changed.  As defined in 

Section 102(1) of the Act: The term “act of terrorism” means any act that is certified by the Secretary of the 

Treasury—in consultation with the Secretary of Homeland Security, and the Attorney General of the United 

States—to be an act of terrorism; to be a violent act or an act that is dangerous to human life, property, or 

infrastructure; to have resulted in damage within the United States, or outside the United States in the case 

of certain air carriers or vessels or the premises of a United States mission; and to have been committed by 

an individual or individuals as part of an effort to coerce the civilian population of the United States or to 

influence the policy or affect the conduct of the United States Government by coercion. Under your 

coverage, any losses resulting from certified acts of terrorism may be partially reimbursed by the United 

States Government under a formula established by the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, as amended. However, 

your policy may contain other exclusions which might affect your coverage, such as an exclusion for nuclear 

events. Under the formula, the United States Government generally reimburses 80% beginning on January 

1, 2020 of covered terrorism losses exceeding the statutorily established deductible paid by the insurance 

company providing the coverage. The Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, as amended, contains a $100 billion 

cap that limits U.S. Government reimbursement as well as insurers’ liability for losses resulting from 

certified acts of terrorism when the amount of such losses exceeds $100 billion in any one calendar year. If 

the aggregate insured losses for all insurers exceed $100 billion, your coverage may be reduced. 

The portion of your annual premium that is attributable to coverage for acts of terrorism is 

$     0          , and does not include any charges for the portion of losses covered by the United 

States government under the Act.



 

118477 (3/15)

POLICYHOLDER NOTICE

Taxes, Assessments and/or Surcharges 

The taxes, assessments and/or surcharges shown on the declarations page or any premium 
schedule are collected on behalf of the applicable State(s) and in accordance with such State’s 
laws and regulations.  The payment of these taxes, assessments and/or surcharges is the 
responsibility of the Named Insured.  In the event the applicable State implements a new tax, 
assessment and/or surcharge or increases such tax, assessment and/or surcharge during the 
term of this policy, the Named Insured shall remain responsible for the payment of all amounts 
due under the policy, including those newly implemented or increased taxes, assessments 
and/or surcharges. 

Any newly implemented or increased taxes, assessments and/or surcharges shall apply on the 
effective date dictated by the applicable State regardless: 

1. Of when the Insurance Company implements the new or increased tax, assessment or 
surcharge into its systems; or

2. If the Insurance Company recalculates the Named Insured’s premium in accordance 
with the policy’s terms and conditions as part of a premium audit after the end of the 
policy period.



 

91222 (9/16)

POLICYHOLDER NOTICE

Thank you for purchasing insurance from a member company of American International 
Group, Inc. (AIG).  The AIG member companies generally pay compensation to brokers 
and independent agents, and may have paid compensation in connection with your policy.  
You can review and obtain information about the nature and range of compensation paid 
by AIG member companies to brokers and independent agents in the United States by 
visiting our website at www.aig.com/producer-compensation or by calling 1-800-706-
3102.



 

AGLC105774NUFIC (01-2022)

Reasons we can share your personal information Does AIG share? Can you limit
this sharing?

For our everyday business purposes — such as to process your 
transactions, maintain your account(s), respond to court orders 
and legal investigations, conduct research including data analytics, 
or report to credit bureaus

Yes No

For our marketing purposes — to offer our products 
and services to you 

Yes No

For joint marketing with other financial companies Yes No

For our affiliates’ everyday business purposes — 
information about your transactions and experiences Yes No

For our affiliates’ everyday business purposes — 
information about your creditworthiness No We don’t share

For nonaffiliates to market to you No We don’t share

Questions?
For AIG Insurance Companies: Call 866-244-4786; Fax: 212-458-7081 or E-Mail: 
CIPrivacy@aig.com
For Pet insurance sold by AIG Insurance Companies: Call 866-937-7387 or E-Mail:
CIPrivacy@aig.com

For LiveTravel, Inc., Travel Guard Group, Inc. or AIG Travel Assist, Inc.: Call 866-244-4786 or 
E-Mail: CIPrivacy@aig.com

Rev 8/2021

FACTS 

Why?

What?

How?

WHAT DOES AMERICAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP, INC. (AIG) DO WITH YOUR 
PERSONAL INFORMATION?

Financial companies choose how they share your personal information. Federal law 
gives consumers the right to limit some but not all sharing. Federal law also requires 
us to tell you how we collect, share, and protect your personal information. Please 
read this notice carefully to understand what we do.

The types of personal information we collect and share depend on the product or 
service you have with us. This information can include:
• Social Security number and Medical Information
• Income and Credit History
• Payment History and Employment Information
When you are no longer our customer, we continue to share your information as 
described in this notice.

All financial companies need to share customers' personal information to run 
their everyday business. In the section below, we list the reasons financial 
companies can share their customers' personal information; the reasons AIG 
chooses to share; and whether you can limit this sharing.



 

AGLC105774NUFIC (01-2022)

Rev 8/2021

Who we are 
Who is providing this notice? The insurance company subsidiaries of American International Group, Inc. (AIG) 

underwriting property-casualty, accident & health, life insurance and related 
services and certain marketing subsidiaries of AIG listed below.

What we do 
How does AIG protect my 
personal information?

To protect your personal information from unauthorized access and use, we use 
security measures that comply with federal law.  These measures include 
computer safeguards and secured files and buildings.  We restrict access to 
employees, representatives, agents, or selected third parties who have been 
trained to handle nonpublic personal information. 

How does AIG collect my 
personal information?

We collect your personal information, for example, when you 
•apply for insurance or pay insurance premiums
•file an insurance claim or give us your income information
•provide employment information

We also collect your personal information from others, such as credit bureaus, 
affiliates, or other companies. 

Why can’t I limit all sharing? Federal law gives you the right to limit only
•sharing for affiliates’ everyday business purposes— information about your 
creditworthiness

•affiliates from using your information to market to you
•sharing for nonaffiliates to market to you

State laws and individual companies may give you additional rights to limit sharing. 
See below for more on your rights under state law.

Definitions 
Affiliates Companies related by common ownership or control. They can be financial and 

nonfinancial companies.
•Our affiliates include the member companies of American International Group, Inc., 
such as National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, Pa.

Nonaffiliates Companies not related by common ownership or control.  They can be financial 
and nonfinancial companies. 

•AIG does not share with nonaffiliates so they can market to you.
Joint marketing A formal agreement between nonaffiliated financial companies that together 

market financial products or services to you.
•Our joint marketing partners include companies with which we jointly offer 
insurance products, such as a bank.

Other important information 
This notice is provided by  American Home Assurance Company; AIG Assurance Company; AIG Property Casualty Company; AIG Specialty 
Insurance Company; Commerce and Industry Insurance Company; Granite State Insurance Company; Illinois National Insurance Co.; Lexington 
Insurance Company; AIU Insurance Company; National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, Pa.; National Union Fire Insurance Company of 
Vermont; New Hampshire Insurance Company; The Insurance Company of the State of Pennsylvania; (collectively  the “AIG Insurance Companies”). 
This notice is also provided by certain marketing subsidiaries of AIG, including Morefar Marketing, Inc., LLC, Travel Guard Group, Inc., AIG Travel 
Assist, Inc. and LiveTravel, Inc. who market insurance or non-insurance products and services to consumers.  

For Vermont Residents only. We will not disclose information about your creditworthiness to our affiliates and will not disclose your personal 
information, financial information, credit report, or health information to nonaffiliated third parties to market to you, other than as permitted by 
Vermont law, unless you authorize us to make those disclosures.  Additional information concerning our privacy policies can be found using the 
contact information above for Questions.

For California Residents only. We will not share information we collect about you with nonaffiliated third parties, except as permitted by California law, 
such as to process your transactions or to maintain your account.

For Nevada Residents Only. We are providing this notice pursuant to Nevada state law.  You may elect to be placed on our internal Do Not Call list by 
contacting us as listed above.   Nevada law requires that we also provide you with the following contact information: Bureau of Consumer Protection, 
Office of the Nevada Attorney General, 555 E. Washington Street, Suite 3900, Las Vegas, NV 89101; Phone number: 702-486-3132; email: 
aginfo@ag.nv.gov.   You may contact the applicable customer service department using the contact information above or by writing to us at Privacy 
Officer, 1271 Ave of the Americas, FL 37, New York, NY 10020-1304. 



 

AGLC105774NUFIC (01-2022)

You have the right to see and, if necessary, correct personal data. This requires a written request, both to see your personal data and to request 
correction. We do not have to change our records if we do not agree with your correction, but we will place your statement in our file. If you would like a 
more detailed description of our information practices and your rights, please write to us at: Privacy Officer, CIPrivacy@aig.com.  



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

1. Title: For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve the first 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the East Fork Fire Protection District 
and the East Fork Professional Firefighters’ Association-General Membership, which 
revises the contract in effect to reflect changes in Article 68 (Lateral Transfers) to expand 
the District’s ability to recruit positions laterally.  (Lisa Owen, Director of Administrative 
Services) 10 minutes. 

 
2. Recommended Motion:  To approve the first Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

between the East Fork Fire Protection District and the East Fork Professional Firefighters’ 
Association-General Membership, which revises the contract in effect to reflect changes 
in Article 68 (Lateral Transfers) to expand the District’s ability to recruit positions 
laterally. 

 
3. Funds Available:  NA Amount: NA 

 Fund Name:  NA Account Number:  NA 
 
4. Prepared by:  Lisa Owen, Director of Administrative Services 
 
5. Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 Time Required: 10 minutes 
 
6.  Agenda: Administrative Agenda  
 
7. Background Information:  The District Administration is recommending approval of 

the first Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to the collective bargaining agreement 
(CBA) between the East Fork Professional Firefighters’ Association – General 
Membership and the District, as recorded July 11, 2023, as (document number 2023-
998391) by the Douglas County Recorder. With this first MOU, Article 68 would be 
amended to expand the District’s ability to recruit laterally.  Currently, the CBA only 
allows for lateral Firefighter/Paramedic recruitments.  This MOU will expand the lateral 
recruitments to also include Firefighter/AEMT and Firefighter/EMT positions. 

 
8.          Reviewed by: 

       District Fire Chief      Board President  
      Legal Counsel      Other 

 
9.          Board Action: 

     Approved       Approved with Modifications 
     Denied       Deferred 
     Other 

 
Agenda Item # 5 



Memorandum of Understanding – Lateral Firefighter 

This First Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is entered into this 18th day of July 2023, 
(the “Effective Date”) by and between the East Fork Fire Protection District (the District) and the 

East Fork Professional Firefighters Association (the Association). 
 

Recitals 
Pursuant to NRS Chapter 288, the Fire District and the Association are parties to certain non-
supervisor and supervisor collective bargaining agreements, effective, July 1, 2023-June 30, 2026 
(the “CBA’s”) as recorded under document number 2023-998391 on July 11, 2023. 
 
The District and the Association desire to enter into this MOU in order to amend and add the 
addition of Lateral Firefighter language the CBA’s in accordance with the terms set forth below. 

Agreement 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and agreements 
contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 
 
Amendment of CBA – Article 68 of the non-supervisor agreement to include the following 
language: 
 
A. Eligibility Requirements: 

1. The applicant must have a minimum of two (2) years (may include probationary time) of 
current, full-time continuous employment as a Firefighter/EMT, Firefighter/EMTA, or 
Firefighter/Paramedic (or higher ranking fire operations line personnel) with a public fire 
agency, authority, or department that provides all risk Fire/ALS EMS/Patient Transport 
services and is comparable to the East Fork Fire Protection District as identified by 
NFPA standards, NFPA 1710 or have been employed in such a position within the past 
twelve (12) months. 

2. Paid call, extra help, temporary, and/or volunteer firefighting experience is not an 
acceptable substitute for the required two (2) years outlined above. 

3. Must complete a Fire District Employment Application by established deadline. 
4. Must have completed a fire academy equivalent to the Capital City Regional Fire 

Academy and as reviewed and approved by an Academy Curriculum Review Committee 
composed of three Association members, the District Fire Chief Fire, Deputy Chief of 
Operations and the Deputy Chief of Training and Safety in consultation with current or 
past EFFPD Regional Training Officers (RTO). 

5. Meet the qualifications of the Job Description for the position for which they are 
applying. 

6. All licenses, certifications, and/or qualifications are required to be kept current and 
maintained for continued employment. 

7. Successfully pass a required medical evaluation prior to employment. 
8. Successfully pass an oral review board, composed of four (4) Association members 

including at least one (1) Firefighter/Paramedic and one (1) Captain, and the District Fire 
Chief or his/her designee. 



9. Successfully pass the District’s established EMS skills for the position they are applying 
for prior to being offered the position. 

10. Successfully pass the District’s established fire skills test based on current probationary 
Firefighter job sheets, prior to being offered the position for which they are applying. 

 
B. All lateral Firefighters hired into one of these classifications: 

(Firefighter/Advanced EMT’s or Firefighter/EMT Basics) hired by the District after July 15, 
2020, shall be required, as a condition of his or her employment, to achieve certification (or 
be in the process of) as a Paramedic within forty-eight (48) months of the date of 
employment with the District.  Employees hired pursuant to this provision who do not attain 
Paramedic certification within the required time period will be terminated without cause as 
if they were an initial probationary employee who did not successfully complete the 
probationary period. 

 
C. Lateral Firefighter/EMT, Firefighter/EMTA or Firefighter/Paramedic Probation: 

1. Newly hired lateral fire suppression employees will spend a minimum of eighty (80) 
hours, as a forty (40) hour work week employee, to gain administrative, human resource 
and operational knowledge prior to being assigned to a unit in a safety sensitive position. 

2. No probationary employee will be eligible for voluntary or forced overtime or shift trades 
until the employee has completed EMS and fire related core competencies as determined 
by the District.  The core competencies must be achieved within the first thirty (30) 
shifts worked after being assigned as a fifty-six (56) hour employee and “third rides” 
have been completed (Paramedics Only). 

3. To be eligible for promotional opportunities, Lateral Transfers must meet the same full-
time career fire suppression and EMS experience requirements at East Fork Fire 
Protection District as other District employees. 

4. Lateral Transfers will serve an initial probation as set forth in Article 61.  
5. Once Lateral Transfers have passed their core competencies as established by the 

District, they will then be eligible to use Annual Leave and participate in trades. 
 
D. Lateral Firefighter/EMT, Firefighter/EMTA or Firefighter/Paramedic Pay: 

Employees hired by the District will be assigned to a pay step in the Pay Plan for the 
position they were hired, which recognizes compensation steps based on a one-year for 
one-year experience factor.  However, any such credit for work experience may not result 
in assignment to a pay step greater than the fourth (4th) step in the current pay plan.  
Further step increase will occur on their anniversary date. 
 
Example:  A Firefighter/Paramedic with six (6) years’ experience will be placed in Step 4 
of the Firefighter/Paramedic Pay Plan.  A Firefighter/Paramedic with four (4) years’ 
experience will be placed in Step 4 of the Pay Plan. 



 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is in effect upon passage by the District 
Board of Directors and the Association as documented by the signatures below: 
 
East Fork Fire Protection Districts   Association 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Jacques Etchegoyhen, President   Kevin May, President 
East Fork Fire Protection District   East Fork Professional Firefighters 

Association – Local 3726  



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 
1. Title: For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to adopt revisions to Policy #606.2 

(Annual Leave) for full time non-represented employees, specific to annual leave accrual rates and 
maximums, to align with full-time represented employees. (Lisa Owen, Director of Administrative 
Services) 10 minutes. 

 

2. Recommended Motion:  Motion to adopt revisions to Policy #606.2 (Annual Leave) for full time 
non-represented employees specific to annual leave accrual rates and maximums to align with full-
time represented employees. 

 

3. Funds Available:   Amount:  NA 

 Fund Name:   Account Number:   
 

4. Prepared by:  Lisa Owen, Director of Administrative Services 
 

5. Meeting Date:  July 18, 2023 Time Required: 10 minutes 
 

6. Agenda:  Administrative Agenda  
 

7. Background Information:  The District Board has been committed to offering paid leave benefits 
that are beneficial and competitive for both represented and non-represented staff.  This not only 
fosters equity, but also provides for consistency in the administration of these paid leave benefits, 
thus reducing confusion and the overall time it takes to administer them. 
 
On May 21, 2019, the District Board approved Policy 606.2 (Annual Leave) for non-represented 
employees, which aligned with the EFPF Collective Bargaining Agreement in effect at the time.  
With the approval of the revised Collective Bargaining Agreement on May 16, 2023, and the 
preceding commitment in mind in terms of equity, the District Administration recommends 
revisions to Annual Leave Policy 606.2 to change the accrual calculation from an hourly accrual to 
an accrual by pay period, to increase the maximum annual leave carry over balance from 280 to 
360 hours, and to increase the accrual rate consistent with the 40-hour represented staff as follows: 
 
0-4 Completed Years  No Increase 
5-9 Completed Years  Annual Increase of 12 hours 
10-14 Completed Years Annual Increase of 23 hours 
15-19 Completed Years Annual Increase of 37 hours 
20 years or more  Annual Increase of 40 hours 
 
These are not mandatory-filled position.  The actual cost would be realized in terms of payout upon 
separation should the employee maintain a maximum accrual balance. This policy is applicable 
only to non-represented, full-time and part-time employees of the East Fork Fire Protection 
District. 

 

8.          Reviewed by: 
       District Fire Chief      Board President  
      Legal Counsel      Other 

 

9.          Board Action: 
    Approved       Approved with Modifications 
    Denied       Deferred 
    Other 

 
Agenda Item # 6 



1 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 
 

LEAVE PLAN 
 

606.2 – ANNUAL LEAVE  

 
 

 
1. Policy Purpose:   To provide policy and procedures regarding annual leave eligibility, usage 

and payout upon separation and/or retirement.  The established annual leave year is the 
calendar year, January 1st through December 31st each year. 
 
Policy Coverage:  This Policy is applicable to all non-represented, full-time (exempt and non-
exempt) and part-time employees of the East Fork Fire Protection District.   
 
Adopted Date: 05/21/2019 
 
Revised Date: 07/18/2023 
 
Policy #:  606.2 
 
**The procedure established in this policy will be superseded and have no effect when 
covered by a similar or conflicting provision in a Collective Bargaining Agreement. For 
detailed information, please refer to your Collective Bargaining Agreement. ** 
 

2. Policy: 
 
A. Basis of Accrual 
 

All employees who are employed on a continuous full-time basis will accrue annual 
leave based on the schedule below, provided they are regularly assigned to a 40-hour 
work week.  Employees do not accrue annual leave for overtime hours worked.  Regular 
part-time employees working 21 hours per week or more shall accrue annual leave on a 
pro-rated basis (full-time equivalency). Employees working less than 20 hours per week, 
and employees hired on an intermittent, seasonal, temporary or emergency basis are 
not entitled to annual leave and do not accrue annual leave. 

 
CONTINUOUS SERVICE  HOURS EARNED/PAID  HOURS PER PP 
0-4 Completed years   120 hours   4.62 hours per PP 
5-9 Completed years   168 hours   6.47 hours per PP 
10-14 Completed years  192 hours   7.39 hours per PP 
15-19 Completed years  216 hours   8.31 hours per PP 
20 years or more   240 hours   9.24 hours per PP   



2 | P a g e  
 

Employees who are hired during the middle of a pay period will have their hours 
prorated based on a 14-day pay period. 
 
Annual leave accrues to the employee on a biweekly basis coinciding with pay periods.  

Annual leave is not accrued during leave of absence without pay.  No employee may 
accumulate more than 360 hours of annual leave in a calendar year (see Section E of this 
policy – Carry Over of Annual Leave to Following Year). 

 

B. Accrual During Probation 
 
Employees will accrue annual leave during their probationary period but will not be 
granted annual leave during their probationary period until they have been employed 
continuously for at least six months.  Exceptions to the use of annual leave prior to 
being employed continuously for at least six months may be made under extenuating 
circumstances with approval of the District Fire Chief or his designee or the Executive 
Office Manager/Human Resource Manager). 

 

C. Payment on Separation 
 
Employees who have completed at least six months of continuous full-time service and 
leave the District will be paid for accrued, unused annual leave.  The employee shall be 
compensated at his or her current base rate of pay at the time of separation for any 
accrued unused annual leave.  The final payment for accrued leave will follow the 
District’s regular payroll cycle and will be issued with the employee’s final pay check. 

 
D. Payment on Death 

 
If an employee dies and the employee was otherwise entitled to accumulated annual 
leave under the provisions of this Policy, the legal heir of the deceased employee will be 
paid the amount that would have been due to the employee as set forth in Section 2(C). 
 

E. Carry-over of Annual Leave to Following Year 
 
No more than 360 hours (for 40-hour employees) of annual leave may accrue to an 
employee in a calendar year.  Any accrued, unused hours in excess of 360 hours as of 
December 31, or the end of the last pay period of the calendar year, will be transferred 
to the employee’s Sick Leave bank by January 15 of the following year. 

  



3 | P a g e  
 

F. Approval and Usage of Annual Leave 
 
1. An employee shall be paid at his/her base hourly rate for each hour of annual leave 

time taken. Annual leave taken during a biweekly period shall be charged before 
annual leave earned during that pay period is credited.  Annual leave hours will be 
considered hours worked for FLSA (Federal Labor Standards Act) purposes. 
 

2. Holidays as defined by Policy 606.1 occurring within the annual leave period will not 
be counted against annual leave hours.  

 
3. Employees shall request annual leave by providing advance notice to their 

supervisor or Division Head.  Employees must obtain prior approval from their 
supervisor or Division Head before the annual leave time is taken.  The supervisor or 
Division Head reserves the right to designate when some or all annual leave must be 
taken and may change or cancel annual leave requests if such is required to 
accomplish District workload objectives.   

 
4. An employee becoming ill while on annual leave shall have leave taken while ill 

charged to sick leave upon request and upon presentation of proper documentation 
as set forth in Policy 606.4(C)(4). 

 

G. Compliance with FLSA (Fair Labor Standards Act) 
 
The District will make such changes in this policy and any others, as well as in practice, in 
order to fully comply with the Fair Labor Standards, Act (FLSA) and any implementing 
regulations thereto.  This practice by the District will not be construed to provide any 
benefit beyond what is required by FLSA. 

 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW:  The District Fire Chief, or his designee and/or the Executive 
Office Manager, or his/her designee will review this policy every 3 years or sooner as necessary. 



1 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 
 

LEAVE PLAN 
 

606.2 – ANNUAL LEAVE  

 
 

 
1. Policy Purpose:   To provide policy and procedures regarding annual leave eligibility, usage 

and payout upon separation and/or retirement.  The established annual leave year is the 
calendar year, January 1st through December 31st each year. 
 
Policy Coverage:  This Policy is applicable to all non-represented, full-time (exempt and non-
exempt) and part-time employees of the East Fork Fire Protection District.   
 
Adopted Date: 05/21/2019 
 
Revised Date: 07/18/2023N/A 
 
Policy #:  606.2 
 
**The procedure established in this policy will be superseded and have no effect when 
covered by a similar or conflicting provision in a Collective Bargaining Agreement. For 
detailed information, please refer to your Collective Bargaining Agreement. ** 
 

2. Policy: 
 
A. Basis of Accrual 
 

All employees who are employed on a continuous full-time basis will accrue annual 
leave based on the schedule below, provided they are regularly assigned to a 40-hour 
work week.  Employees do not accrue annual leave for overtime hours worked.  Regular 
part-time employees working 21 hours per week or more shall accrue annual leave on a 
pro-rated basis (full-time equivalency). Employees working less than 20 hours per week, 
and employees hired on an intermittent, seasonal, temporary or emergency basis are 
not entitled to annual leave and do not accrue annual leave. 

 
CONTINUOUS SERVICE  HOURS EARNED/PAID  HOURS PER 
PPFACTOR 
0-4 Completed years   120 hours   4.620577 hours per 
PP 
5-9 Completed years   16856 hours   6.470750 hours per 
PP 



2 | P a g e  
 

10-14 Completed years  19269 hours   7.390813 hours per 
PP 
15-19 Completed years  216179 hours   8.310861 hours per 
PP 
20 years or more   2400 hours   9.240962 hours per 
PP   



3 | P a g e  
 

Employees who are hired during the middle of a pay period will have their hours 
prorated based on a 14-day pay period. 
 
Accrual rates are expressed in terms of fractions of an hour earned for every regularly 
scheduled hour worked on paid leave. Annual leave is not accrued for any other hours. 
Annual leave accrues to the employee on a biweekly basis coinciding with pay periods.  

Annual leave is not accrued during leave of absence without pay.  No employee may 
accumulate more than 360280 hours of annual leave in a calendar year (see Section E of 
this policy – Carry Over of Annual Leave to Following Year). 

 

B. Accrual During Probation 
 
Employees will accrue annual leave during their probationary period but will not be 
granted annual leave during their probationary period until they have been employed 
continuously for at least six months.  Exceptions to the use of annual leave prior to 
being employed continuously for at least six months may be made under extenuating 
circumstances with approval of the District Fire Chief or his designee or the Executive 
Office Manager/Human Resource Manager). 

 

C. Payment on Separation 
 
Employees who have completed at least six months of continuous full-time service and 
leave the District will be paid for accrued, unused annual leave.  The employee shall be 
compensated at his or her current base rate of pay at the time of separation for any 
accrued unused annual leave.  The final payment for accrued leave will follow the 
District’s regular payroll cycle and will be issued with the employee’s final pay check. 

 
D. Payment on Death 

 
If an employee dies and the employee was otherwise entitled to accumulated annual 
leave under the provisions of this Policy, the legal heir of the deceased employee will be 
paid the amount that would have been due to the employee as set forth in Section 2(C). 
 

E. Carry-over of Annual Leave to Following Year 
 
No more than 360280 hours (for 40-hour employees) of annual leave may accrue to an 
employee in a calendar year.  Any accrued, unused hours in excess of 360280 hours as 
of December 31, or the end of the last pay period of the calendar year, will be 
transferred to the employee’s Sick Leave bank by January 15 of the following year. 

 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt



4 | P a g e  
 

F. Approval and Usage of Annual Leave 
 
1. An employee shall be paid at his/her base hourly rate for each hour of annual leave 

time taken. Annual leave taken during a biweekly period shall be charged before 
annual leave earned during that pay period is credited.  Annual leave hours will be 
considered hours worked for FLSA (Federal Labor Standards Act) purposes. 
 

2. Holidays as defined by Policy 606.1 occurring within the annual leave period will not 
be counted against annual leave hours.  

 
3. Employees shall request annual leave by providing advance notice to their 

supervisor or Division Head.  Employees must obtain prior approval from their 
supervisor or Division Head before the annual leave time is taken.  The supervisor or 
Division Head reserves the right to designate when some or all annual leave must be 
taken and may change or cancel annual leave requests if such is required to 
accomplish District workload objectives.   

 
4. An employee becoming ill while on annual leave shall have leave taken while ill 

charged to sick leave upon request and upon presentation of proper documentation 
as set forth in Policy 606.4(C)(4). 

 

G. Compliance with FLSA (Fair Labor Standards Act) 
 
The District will make such changes in this policy and any others, as well as in practice, in 
order to fully comply with the Fair Labor Standards, Act (FLSA) and any implementing 
regulations thereto.  This practice by the District will not be construed to provide any 
benefit beyond what is required by FLSA. 

 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW:  The District Fire Chief, or his designee and/or the Executive 
Office Manager, or his/her designee will review this policy every 3 years or sooner as necessary. 



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 
1. Title: For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to adopt revisions to Policy #606.4 

(Sick Leave) for full time non-represented employees, specific to sick leave accrual rates and 
maximums, to align with full-time represented employees. (Lisa Owen, Director of Administrative 
Services) 10 minutes. 

 
2. Recommended Motion:  Motion to adopt revisions to Policy #606.4 (Sick Leave) for full time 

non-represented employees, specific to sick leave accrual rates and maximums, to align with full-
time represented employees. 

  
3.          Funds Available:   Amount:  NA 

 Fund Name:   Account Number:   
 
4.          Prepared by:  Lisa Owen, Director of Administrative Services 
 
5.          Meeting Date:  July 18, 2023 Time Required: 10 minutes 
 
6.          Agenda:  Administrative Agenda  
 
7. Background Information: The District Board has been committed to offering paid leave benefits 

that are beneficial and competitive for both represented and non-represented staff.  This not only 
fosters equity, but also provides for consistency in the administration of these paid leave benefits, 
thus reducing confusion and the overall time it takes to administer them. 
 
On May 21, 2019, the District Board approved Policy 606.4 (Sick Leave) for non-represented 
employees, which aligned with the EFPF Collective Bargaining Agreement in effect at the time.  
With the approval of the revised Collective Bargaining Agreement on May 16, 2023, and the 
preceding commitment in mind in terms of equity, the District Administration recommends 
revisions to Sick Leave Policy 606.4 to change the accrual calculation from an hourly accrual to an 
accrual by pay period, and to increase the sick leave yearly maximum from 88 hours to 130 hours, 
a yearly increase of 42 hours, which is consistent with 40-hour represented staff. 
 
These are not mandatory-filled position.  The actual cost would be realized in terms of payout upon 
separation should the employee maintain a maximum sick leave balance and qualify based on years 
of service.  This policy is applicable only to non-represented, full-time and part-time employees of 
the East Fork Fire Protection District. 

 
8.          Reviewed by: 

       District Fire Chief      Board President  
      Legal Counsel      Other 

 
9.          Board Action: 

    Approved       Approved with Modifications 
    Denied       Deferred 
    Other 

 
Agenda Item # 7 



1 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 
 

LEAVE PLAN 
 

606.4 – SICK LEAVE  

 
 

 

1. Policy Purpose:   To provide policy and procedures regarding sick leave accrual, eligibility, 
and usage. 

 
Policy Coverage:  This policy applies to all non-represented (non-exempt and exempt), full-
time and part-time employees of the East Fork Fire Protection District. 

 
Adopted Date: 05/21/2019 

 
Revised Date: 07/18/2023 

 
Policy #:  606.4 
 
**The procedure established in this policy will be superseded and have no effect when 
covered by a similar or conflicting provision in a Collective Bargaining Agreement. For 
detailed information, please refer to your Collective Bargaining Agreement. ** 

 
2. Policy: 

 
A. Eligibility for Sick Leave 

 
The District has established a sick leave program to provide regular employees (both full-
time and part-time) paid time off if the employee is unable to work due to personal illness, 
injury, doctor’s appointment, bereavement and/or to care for an immediate family 
member who is ill or injured.  Sick leave pay for regular full-time and part-time employees 
will consist of the employee’s regular rate of pay for the period of leave.  The established 
sick leave accrual year is January 1 through December 31 of each year. 

 
“Immediate family” as used in this Policy and defined by Nevada law, including NAC 
284.5235, means: 
 
 (1) The employee’s parents, spouse, children (regardless of age), brothers, 
sisters, grandparents, great-grandparents, uncles, aunts, nephews, nieces, grandchildren, 
great-grandchildren, mother-in-law, father-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, step-
parents and step-children; 

  



2 | P a g e  
 

 
 (2) If they are living in the employee’s household, the employee’s grandfather-
in-law, grandmother-in-law, great-grandfather-in-law, great-grandmother-in-law, uncle-
in-law, aunt-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, grandson-in-law, granddaughter-in-law, 
nephew-in-law, niece-in-law, great-grandson-in-law and great-granddaughter-in-law. 
 
 (3) The employee’s next of kin if the employee is entitled to take leave 
pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act to care for a covered service member; and. 
 
 (4) An employee’s registered domestic partner as defined by NRS 122A.030. 

 
B. Basis of Accrual 

 
1. The District requires each employee to be available for work on a regular and 

reliable basis.  The District will monitor attendance and leave use whether or not the 
employee has accumulated leave balances remaining in his or her sick leave account. 
Sick leave may be used as soon as it is accrued.  (NRS 284.355, NAC 284.113, 
284.5415) 
 

2. Regular employees not covered by a collective bargaining agreement who are 
employed on a continuous full-time schedule (40-hours per week), shall accrue sick 
leave at a rate of 5 hours per pay period (130 hours per year). 

 
3. Regular part-time employees working 21 hours per week or more shall earn sick 

leave hours at a pro-rated amount based on the number of hours worked. 
 
4. Employees may accrue a maximum of 800 hours of sick leave except that employees 

who have 800 hours of sick leave accrued as of January 1 of each calendar year may 
accrue an additional 88 hours during the calendar year which should be used during 
that calendar year, or the end of the last pay period of the year.  Any accrued, 
unused hours in excess of 800 as of December 31, or the end of the last pay period 
of the year, will be removed from the employee’s account balance by January 15 of 
the following year. 

 
5. Employees working less than 20 hours per week, and employees hired on an 

intermittent, seasonal, temporary or emergency basis are not entitled to sick leave 
and do not accrue sick leave hours. 

 
6. Holidays occurring during Sick Leave periods shall be counted as Holidays, not Sick 

Leave. 
  



3 | P a g e  
 

 
C. Authorized Use of Sick Leave Hours  

 
1. An employee is entitled to use sick leave hours if an absence from work is the result 

of: 
 
a. Personal illness, injury or physical incapacitation due to a medical condition. 

 
b. Sickness of an immediate family member. 

 
c. Involuntary or enforced quarantine. 

 
d. A required personal or immediate family member’s medical, psychological, 

optometry or dental service, appointment or examination. 
 

e. Compliance with counseling or treatment through the employee assistance 
program. 
 

f. A death in the immediate family.  Sick leave granted because of a death in the 
immediate family shall not exceed five days (unless a longer period is been 
authorized by the District Fire Chief or his/her designee). 

 
2. As described in NAC 284.554, a Supervisor, Division Head or the District Fire Chief or 

his/her designee shall approve a request for sick leave of an employee who is a victim 
of an act which constitutes domestic violence or whose family or household member 
is a victim of an act which constitutes domestic violence, and the employee is not the 
alleged perpetrator if: 
 
a. The employee has been employed in public service for at least 90 days; 

 
b. The employee has accrued the amount of sick leave necessary to cover the time 

requested; and 
 

c. The combination of all leave taken by the employee for this purpose does not 
exceed 160 hours in the 12-month period immediately following the date on 
which the act which constitutes domestic violence occurred. (NAC 284.554) 
 

3. An employee who is collecting worker’s compensation temporary disability benefits 
as a result of an on-the-job injury may use accrued sick leave benefits to supplement 
such payments in an amount sufficient to equal the employee’s regular rate of pay 
during the period of temporary disability. 
 

4. If an employee on annual leave suffers an illness or injury which requires medical 
treatment from a licensed physician or health practitioner, the employee may elect 
to use accrued, unused sick leave provided that the employee furnishes the District 
with documentation issued by a licensed physician or health care provider who 
provided treatment. 
 



4 | P a g e  
 

 
5. The District Fire Chief or his designee, Executive Office Manager, or the employee’s 

Division Head or supervisor may approve sick leave only after having ascertained 
that the absence was for an authorized reason.  For absences in excess of 5 
consecutive work shifts, or for cases of excessive utilization or suspected abuse of 
sick leave, the appointing authority may require that the employee submit 
substantiating evidence, which may include but is not limited to, documentation 
from a provider of health care describing the medical reason for the absence or an 
examination by a physician selected by the District.  “Provider of health care” shall 
be a duly licensed Doctor of Medicine or Doctor of Osteopathy. 

 
6. No sick leave shall be given to an employee in excess of the amount accrued and 

available to the employee.  Sick leave hours will be considered hours worked for 
FLSA purposes. 

 
7. Accrued sick leave hours must be exhausted prior to taking an unpaid medical leave 

of absence. 
 
8. An extended sick leave may be classified as Family Medical Leave hours if the leave 

meets the requirements of that policy. 
 
9. It is the responsibility of the District Fire Chief, or his designee, the Executive Office 

Manager (Human Resources), and the employee’s Division Head and/or Supervisor 
to ensure the provisions of this policy are adhered to.  Corrective and/or disciplinary 
action shall be taken in instances of abuse of sick leave or misrepresentation of the 
reasons for use of sick leave in consultation with the Executive Office Manager 
(Human Resources) and District Fire Chief.  All District supervisors and Division 
Heads are responsible for ensuring that any sick leave utilized is accurately reflected 
on employee time sheets. 

 

D. Notification Requirements 
 
1. If utilizing sick leave, an employee must notify his or her Supervisor or Division Head, 

or his/her designee as soon as possible, but no later than within one hour of the 
beginning of the scheduled work shift unless circumstance exist that make it 
extremely difficult or impossible to give such notice.  Failure to provide reasonable 
notification may result in denial of such leave pay.  The employee must also notify 
the supervisor or Division Head when the employee expects to return to work. 
 

2. An employee who is on sick leave shall keep his/her supervisor or Division Head 
advised as to the condition and expected date of return to duty. 

 
3. Non-exempt employees must report any sick leave taken, even if it is for an 

appointment or part of the day. Exempt employees must report sick leave only if 
absent for a full day unless authorized for Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) 
leave.  (NAC 284.5235, 284.5895) 

 



5 | P a g e  
 

 
E. Sick Leave Payout 

 
1. Regular employees (40-hours per week) may be compensated for a maximum of 800 

accrued, unused sick leave hours upon separation/retirement from the District 
based on the following total years of service: 
 

• 9 completed years   50% 
• 10 completed years   53.3% 
• 11 completed years   56.6% 
• 12 completed years   59.9% 
• 13 completed years   63.2% 
• 14 completed years   66.5% 
• 15 completed years   69.8% 
• 16 completed years   73.1% 
• 17 completed years   76.4% 
• 18 completed years   79.7% 
• 19 completed years   83% 
• 20 completed years   86.3% 
• 21 completed years    89.6% 
• 22 completed years   92.9% 
• 23 completed years   96.2% 
• 24 completed years   100% 

 
2. No employee shall be entitled to receive the compensation provided for by this 

Section E for accrued, unused sick leave until he/she has served a minimum of nine 
consecutive years within the District.  Payment pursuant to this section will be based 
on the employee’s accrued, unused sick leave balance on the date they separate 
from District employment and shall not exceed 800 hours.  The final payment for 
accrued sick leave will follow the District’s regular payroll cycle and will be issued 
with the employee’s final pay check. 
 

3. Sick leave payoff amounts may be directed by the employee into a post-retirement 
account if such a post-retirement program is offered by the District. 
 

4. At the employee’s option, instead of being compensated directly for sick leave, the 
District, with the approval of PERS, will transfer compensable sick leave at the rate 
referenced in E(1) through the provided Deferred Compensation Programs offered 
and then, at the employee’s initiative, be converted to PERS retirement credits. 
 

5. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of a job-related death or total 
permanent disability as determined under Nevada worker’s compensation laws (NRS 
Chapters 616/617 in effect on the date of the determination), the District shall pay 
one hundred percent (100%) of the accrued, unused sick leave balance to either the 
employee or in the case of death, his/her legal heirs.  The payment shall be 
computed at the employee’s Base Hourly Wage of compensation at the time of the 
death or total permanent disability. 



6 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 

F. Sick Leave Alternative  
 
If an employee who otherwise would qualify to take sick leave does not have adequate 
accrued, unused Sick Leave time, the employee may be granted the use of Annual Leave 
or other accrued leave time for this purpose. In no case, however, may sick leave time 
be used or granted for use as Annual Leave or Vacation time.  
 
Employees may donate their accrued, unused Sick Leave to those employees that do not 
have adequate accrued Sick Leave as provided for in Policy No. 606.6 governing 
Catastrophic Sick Leave. 
 
 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW:  The District Fire Chief, or his designee, and/or the Director of 
Administrative Services, or his/her designee will review this policy every 3 years or sooner as 
necessary. 



1 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 
 

LEAVE PLAN 
 

606.4 – SICK LEAVE  

 
 

 

1. Policy Purpose:   To provide policy and procedures regarding sick leave accrual, eligibility, 
and usage. 
 
Policy Coverage:  This policy applies to all non-represented (non-exempt and exempt), full-
time and part-time employees of the East Fork Fire Protection District.   

 
Adopted Date: 05/21/2019 

 
Revised Date: 07N/18/A2023 

 
Policy #:  606.4 
 
**The procedure established in this policy will be superseded and have no effect when 
covered by a similar or conflicting provision in a Collective Bargaining Agreement. For 
detailed information, please refer to your Collective Bargaining Agreement. ** 

 
2. Policy: 

 
A. Eligibility for Sick Leave 

 
The District has established a sick leave program to provide regular employees (both full-
time and part-time) paid time off if the employee is unable to work due to personal illness, 
injury, doctor’s appointment, bereavement and/or to care for an immediate family 
member who is ill or injured.  Sick leave pay for regular full-time and part-time employees 
will consist of the employee’s regular rate of pay for the period of leave.  The established 
sick leave accrual year is January 1 through December 31 of each year.   

 
“Immediate family” as used in this Policy and defined by Nevada law, including NAC 
284.5235, means: 
 
 (1) The employee’s parents, spouse, children (regardless of age), brothers, 
sisters, grandparents, great-grandparents, uncles, aunts, nephews, nieces, grandchildren, 
great-grandchildren, mother-in-law, father-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, step-
parents and step-children; 

  



2 | P a g e  
 

 
 (2) If they are living in the employee’s household, the employee’s grandfather-
in-law, grandmother-in-law, great-grandfather-in-law, great-grandmother-in-law, uncle-
in-law, aunt-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, grandson-in-law, granddaughter-in-law, 
nephew-in-law, niece-in-law, great-grandson-in-law and great-granddaughter-in-law. 
 
 (3) The employee’s next of kin if the employee is entitled to take leave 
pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act to care for a covered service member; and.  
 
 (4) An employee’s registered domestic partner as defined by NRS 122A.030. 

 
B. Basis of Accrual 

 
1. The District requires each employee to be available for work on a regular and 

reliable basis.  The District will monitor attendance and leave use whether or not the 
employee has accumulated leave balances remaining in his or her sick leave account. 
Sick leave may be used as soon as it is accrued.  (NRS 284.355, NAC 284.113, 
284.5415) 
 

2. Regular employees not covered by a collective bargaining agreement who are 
employed on a continuous full-time schedule (40-hours per week), shall accrue sick 
leave at a rate of 5 .0423 hours per pay period (130 hours per year)for each hour of 
time that is classified as “time worked”. 

 
3. Regular part-time employees working 21 hours per week or more shall earn sick 

leave hours at a pro-rated amount based on the number of hours worked.(.0423 
hours for each regular hour worked).  

 
4. Employees may accrue a maximum of 800 hours of sick leave except that employees 

who have 800 hours of sick leave accrued as of January 1 of each calendar year may 
accrue an additional 88 hours during the calendar year which should be used during 
that calendar year, or the end of the last pay period of the year.  Any accrued, 
unused hours in excess of 800 as of December 31, or the end of the last pay period 
of the year, will be removed from the employee’s account balance by January 15 of 
the following year. 

 
5. Employees working less than 20 hours per week, and employees hired on an 

intermittent, seasonal, temporary or emergency basis are not entitled to sick leave 
and  do not accrue sick leave hours. 

 
6. Holidays occurring during Sick Leave periods shall be counted as Holidays, not Sick 

Leave. 
  



3 | P a g e  
 

 
C. Authorized Use of Sick Leave Hours  

 
1. An employee is entitled to use sick leave hours if an absence from work is the result 

of: 
 
a. Personal illness, injury or physical incapacitation due to a medical condition. 

 
b. Sickness of an immediate family member. 

 
c. Involuntary or enforced quarantine. 

 
d. A required personal or immediate family member’s medical, psychological, 

optometry or dental service, appointment or examination. 
 

e. Compliance with counseling or treatment through the employee assistance 
program. 
 

f. A death in the immediate family.  Sick leave granted because of a death in the 
immediate family shall not exceed five days (unless a longer period is been 
authorized by the District Fire Chief or his designee). 

 
2. As described in NAC 284.554, a Supervisor, Division Head or the District Fire Chief or 

his or her designee shall approve a request for sick leave of an employee who is a 
victim of an act which constitutes domestic violence or whose family or household 
member is a victim of an act which constitutes domestic violence, and the employee 
is not the alleged perpetrator if: 
 
a. The employee has been employed in public service for at least 90 days; 

 
b. The employee has accrued the amount of sick leave necessary to cover the time 

requested; and 
 

c. The combination of all leave taken by the employee for this purpose does not 
exceed 160 hours in the 12-month period immediately following the date on 
which the act which constitutes domestic violence occurred. (NAC 284.554) 
 

3. An employee who is collecting worker’s compensation temporary disability benefits 
as a result of an on-the-job injury may use accrued sick leave benefits to supplement 
such payments in an amount sufficient to equal the employee’s regular rate of pay 
during the period of temporary disability. 
 

4. If an employee on annual leave suffers an illness or injury which requires medical 
treatment from a licensed physician or health practitioner, the employee may elect 
to use accrued, unused sick leave provided that the employee furnishes the District 
with documentation issued by a licensed physician or health care provider who 
provided treatment. 
 



4 | P a g e  
 

 
5. The District Fire Chief or his designee, Executive Office Manager, or the employee’s 

Division Head or supervisor may approve sick leave only after having ascertained 
that the absence was for an authorized reason.  For absences in excess of 5 
consecutive work shifts, or for cases of excessive utilization or suspected abuse of 
sick leave, the appointing authority may require that the employee submit 
substantiating evidence, which may include but is not limited to, documentation 
from a provider of health care describing the medical reason for the absence or an 
examination by a physician selected by the District.  “Provider of health care” shall 
be a duly licensed Doctor of Medicine or Doctor of Osteopathy. 

 
6. No sick leave shall be given to an employee in excess of the amount accrued and 

available to the employee.  Sick leave hours will be considered hours worked for 
FLSA purposes. 

 
7. Accrued sick leave hours must be exhausted prior to taking an unpaid medical leave 

of absence. 
 
8. An extended sick leave may be classified as Family Medical Leave hours if the leave 

meets the requirements of that policy. 
 
9. It is the responsibility of the District Fire Chief, or his designee, the Executive Office 

Manager (Human Resources), and the employee’s Division Head and/or Supervisor 
to ensure the provisions of this policy are adhered to.  Corrective and/or disciplinary 
action shall be taken in instances of abuse of sick leave or misrepresentation of the 
reasons for use of sick leave in consultation with the Executive Office Manager 
(Human Resources) and District Fire Chief.  All District supervisors and Division 
Heads are responsible for ensuring that any sick leave utilized is accurately reflected 
on employee time sheets. 

 

D. Notification Requirements 
 
1. If utilizing sick leave, an employee must notify his or her Supervisor or Division Head, 

or his/her designee as soon as possible, but no later than within one hour of the 
beginning of the scheduled work shift unless circumstance exist that make it 
extremely difficult or impossible to give such notice.  Failure to provide reasonable 
notification may result in denial of such leave pay.  The employee must also notify 
the supervisor or Division Head when the employee expects to return to work. 
 

2. An employee who is on sick leave shall keep his/her supervisor or Division Head 
advised as to the condition and expected date of return to duty. 

 
3. Non-exempt employees must report any sick leave taken, even if it is for an 

appointment or part of the day. Exempt employees must report sick leave only if 
absent for a full day unless authorized for Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) 
leave.  (NAC 284.5235, 284.5895) 

 



5 | P a g e  
 

 
E. Sick Leave Payout 

 
1. Regular employees (40-hours per week) may be compensated for a maximum of 800 

accrued, unused sick leave hours upon separation/retirement from the District 
based on the following total years of service: 
 

• 9 completed years   50% 
• 10 completed years   53.3% 
• 11 completed years   56.6% 
• 12 completed years   59.9% 
• 13 completed years   63.2% 
• 14 completed years   66.5% 
• 15 completed years   69.8% 
• 16 completed years   73.1% 
• 17 completed years   76.4% 
• 18 completed years   79.7% 
• 19 completed years   83% 
• 20 completed years   86.3% 
• 21 completed years    89.6% 
• 22 completed years   92.9% 
• 23 completed years   96.2% 
• 24 completed years   100% 

 
2. No employee shall be entitled to receive the compensation provided for by this 

Section E for accrued, unused sick leave until he/she has served a minimum of nine 
consecutive years within the District.  Payment pursuant to this section will be based 
on the employee’s accrued, unused sick leave balance on the date they separate 
from District employment and shall not exceed 800 hours.  The final payment for 
accrued sick leave will follow the District’s regular payroll cycle and will be issued 
with the employee’s final pay check. 
 

3. Sick leave payoff amounts may be directed by the employee into a post-retirement 
account if such a post-retirement program is offered by the District. 
 

4. At the employee’s option, instead of being compensated directly for sick leave, the 
District, with the approval of PERS, will transfer compensable sick leave at the rate 
referenced in E(1) through the provided Deferred Compensation Programs offered 
and then, at the employee’s initiative, be converted to PERS retirement credits. 
 

5. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of a job-related death or total 
permanent disability as determined under Nevada worker’s compensation laws (NRS 
Chapters 616/617 in effect on the date of the determination), the District shall pay 
one hundred percent (100%) of the accrued, unused sick leave balance to either the 
employee or in the case of death, his/her legal heirs.  The payment shall be 
computed at the employee’s Base Hourly Wage of compensation at the time of the 
death or total permanent disability. 



6 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 

F. Sick Leave Alternative  
 
If an employee who otherwise would qualify to take sick leave does not have adequate 
accrued, unused Sick Leave time, the employee may be granted the use of Annual Leave 
or other accrued leave time for this purpose. In no case, however, may sick leave time 
be used or granted for use as Annual Leave or Vacation time.  
 
Employees may donate their accrued, unused Sick Leave to those employees that do not 
have adequate accrued Sick Leave as provided for in Policy No. 606.6 governing 
Catastrophic Sick Leave. 
 
 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW:  The District Fire Chief, or his designee, and/or the Executive 
Office Manager, or his/her designee will review this policy every 3 years or sooner as necessary. 



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

1. Title: For Possible Action. Discussion and possible action to authorize the transfer of 
$322,224 into the contingency line item for FY 23/24 and take the contingency amount to 
the maximum of 3%.  (Kathy Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director of Finance) 10 minutes. 

 
2. Recommended Motion:  Motion to approve the transfer of $322,224 into the contingency 

line item for FY 23/24 and take the contingency amount to the maximum of 3%.  
 
3. Funds Available:  Yes Amount:  $322,224 

 Fund Name:  FY 23/24 General Fund - 
Contingency Fund Line Item  

Account Number: 650-231-619-000 

 
4. Prepared by:  Kathy Lewis, CPA, CFO/Director of Finance 
 
5. Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 Time Required: 10 minutes 
 
6. Agenda:  Administrative Agenda 
 
7. Background Information:  In June 2023, the Board of Directors approved a contract 

with 7710 Insurance to provide Worker’s Compensations services.  With this contract 
approval, the District realized savings from the amount that was budgeted for Worker’s 
Compensation under PACT.  The District Administration would like to use the majority 
of this savings to increase the District’s contingency line item to the full 3% as authorized 
by state law.  With the uncertainty of the economy and possible recession, these funds 
could be used as a buffer between the amounts budgeted for certain revenues and 
amounts realized in FY 23/24.  The administration recommends approval. 

 
8. Reviewed by: 

       District Fire Chief        Board President  
      Legal Counsel     Other 

 
9. Board Action: 

     Approved      Approved with Modifications 
     Denied      Deferred 
     Other 

 
Agenda Item # 8 



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

1. Title: For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve the East Fork Fire 
Protection District, Fire Prevention Division schedule for Development Review Fees in 
accordance with the requirements of NAC 477 and the 2018 International Fire Code, 
effective September 1, 2023. First reading. (Amy Ray, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal) 
10 minutes 

 
2. Recommended Motion:  Motion to approve the East Fork Fire Protection District, Fire 

Prevention Division schedule for Development Review Fees in accordance with the 
requirements of NAC 477 and the 2018 International Fire Code, effective September 1, 
2023. 

  
3. Funds Available:  NA Amount:  NA 

 Fund Name:  NA Account Number:  NA 
 
4. Prepared by:  Amy Ray, Deputy Chief/Fire Marshal 
 
5. Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 Time Required: 10 minutes 
 
6. Agenda:  Administrative Agenda 
 
7. Background Information:  The East Fork Fire Protection District has been conducting fire 

life safety inspections under an interlocal agreement that was first established under a 
provision adopted by the Nevada Department of Public Safety Fire Marshals Division in 
1994. Under Nevada Revised Statute 277.180, the interlocal contract sets forth the 
permission to perform the duties as required by the State of Nevada Fire Marshal 
Division (SFM), in turn allowing the Fire District to establish a fee schedule for 
Development Review in accordance with the International Fire Code (IFC) Sections 
105.6.1-105.7.25, and collect associated fees in accordance with IFC Section 106. The 
East Fork Fire Protection District currently charges fees for Development Reviews and is 
proposing a fee increase of 5% from the 2020 fees.   
 
This is the first reading of the proposed adoption of fees with the 5% increase from 2020. 

 
8. Reviewed by: 

       District Fire Chief      Board President  
      Legal Counsel      Other 

 
9. Board Action: 

    Approved       Approved with Modifications 
    Denied       Deferred 
    Other 

 
Agenda Item # 9 



Description of Fees Fee Rate
Minimum 

Admin Fee
Minimum 

Plan Review Fee
Minimum 

Review Hours

Minimum 
Inspection 

Fee
Minimum 

Permit Fee
Technology 
Fee Added Rounded

Pre-Application Review/Meeting minimum hourly 36.75$          178.50$        1 215.25$         223.86$    224.00$    
Major Project Review minimum hourly 36.75$          178.50$        1 215.25$         223.86$    224.00$    
Special Use Permit minimum hourly 36.75$          178.50$        1 215.25$         223.86$    224.00$    
Conditional Use Permit minimum hourly 36.75$          178.50$        1 215.25$         223.86$    224.00$    
Development Review Application minimum hourly 36.75$          178.50$        2 393.75$         409.50$    410.00$    
Site Improvement Plan minimum hourly 36.75$          178.50$        2 393.75$         409.50$    410.00$    
Plan Amendments minimum hourly 36.75$          178.50$        1 215.25$         223.86$    224.00$    
Special Events > 100 people each 50.00$          1 50.00$           52.00$      52.00$      
Temporary Use Permit minimum hourly 36.75$          178.50$        1 215.25$         223.86$    224.00$    
Engineering Permit Plan Review minimum hourly 36.75$          178.50$        1 215.25$         223.86$    224.00$    
Grading Permit Plan Review minimum hourly 36.75$          178.50$        1 215.25$         223.86$    224.00$    
Tentative Subdivision Map minimum hourly 36.75$          178.50$        1 215.25$         223.86$    224.00$    
Final Parcel Map Review minimum hourly 36.75$          178.50$        1 215.25$         223.86$    224.00$    
Map Amendment Review minimum hourly 36.75$          178.50$        1 215.25$         223.86$    224.00$    

Development Reviews 

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT FEE SCHEDULE



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

1. Title: For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve the East Fork Fire 
Protection District, Fire Prevention Division schedule for Fire and Life Safety Plan 
Review Fees in accordance with the requirements of NAC 477 and the 2018 International 
Fire Code, effective September 1, 2023. First reading. (Amy Ray, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire 
Marshal) 10 minutes 

 
2. Recommended Motion:  Motion to approve the East Fork Fire Protection District, Fire 

Prevention Division schedule for Fire and Life Safety Plan Review Fees in accordance 
with the requirements of NAC 477 and the 2018 International Fire Code, effective 
September 1, 2023. 

 
3.          Funds Available:  NA Amount:  NA 

 Fund Name:  NA Account Number:  NA 
 
4.          Prepared by:  Amy Ray, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 
 
5.          Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 Time Required: 10 minutes 
 
6.          Agenda:  Administrative Agenda 
 
7. Background Information:  The East Fork Fire Protection District has been conducting 

Fire Life Safety Plan Review under an interlocal agreement that was first established 
under a provision adopted by the Nevada Department of Public Safety Fire Marshals 
Division in 1994. Under Nevada Revised Statute 277.180, the interlocal contract sets 
forth the permission to perform the duties as required by the State of Nevada Fire 
Marshal Division (SFM), in turn allowing the Fire District to establish a fee schedule for 
Fire Life Safety Plan Review in accordance with the International Fire Code (IFC) 
Sections 105.6.1-105.7.25, and collect associated fees in accordance with IFC Section 
106. The East Fork Fire Protection District currently charges fees for Fire Life Safety 
Plan Review, but would like to propose a 5% increase from the 2020 fees, and to include 
fees for plan review and inspection of properties under the provisions of the International 
Wildland Urban Interface Code, as adopted by The Board and effective July 1, 2023.  
 
This is the first reading of the proposed adoption of fees to include a 5% increase from 
2020 and fees for plan review and inspection under the provisions of the International 
Wildland Urban Interface Code.   

 
8. Reviewed by: 

       District Fire Chief      Board President  
      Legal Counsel      Other 

 



9. Board Action: 
    Approved       Approved with Modifications 
    Denied       Deferred 
    Other 

Agenda Item # 10 



 Plan Check Technology Total  Plan Check Technology Total  Plan Check  Technology Total
  Fee  Fee 4%   Fee  Fee 4%  Fee  Fee 4% 

0-2,000.00 87.55$           91.93$               3.50$            3.68$                91.05$           95.60$           52,000.00$          1,895.20$       1,989.96$        75.81$         79.60$           1,971.01$      2,069.56$      120,000.00$        3,965.50$     4,163.78$     158.62$          166.55$        4,124.12$         4,330.33$         
3,000.00$          126.00$        132.30$             5.04$            5.29$                131.04$         137.59$         53,000.00$          1,936.40$       2,033.22$        77.46$         81.33$           2,013.86$      2,114.55$      130,000.00$        4,011.85$     4,212.44$     160.47$          168.50$        4,172.32$         4,380.94$         
4,000.00$          162.75$        170.89$             6.51$            6.84$                169.26$         177.72$         54,000.00$          1,977.60$       2,076.48$        79.10$         83.06$           2,056.70$      2,159.54$      140,000.00$        4,058.20$     4,261.11$     162.33$          170.44$        4,220.53$         4,431.55$         
5,000.00$          199.50$        209.48$             7.98$            8.38$                207.48$         217.85$         55,000.00$          2,018.80$       2,119.74$        80.75$         84.79$           2,099.55$      2,204.53$      150,000.00$        4,104.55$     4,309.78$     164.18$          172.39$        4,268.73$         4,482.17$         
6,000.00$          236.25$        248.06$             9.45$            9.92$                245.70$         257.99$         56,000.00$          2,060.00$       2,163.00$        82.40$         86.52$           2,142.40$      2,249.52$      160,000.00$        4,150.90$     4,358.45$     166.04$          174.34$        4,316.94$         4,532.78$         
7,000.00$          273.00$        286.65$             10.92$          11.47$              283.92$         298.12$         57,000.00$          2,101.20$       2,206.26$        84.05$         88.25$           2,185.25$      2,294.51$      170,000.00$        4,197.25$     4,407.11$     167.89$          176.28$        4,365.14$         4,583.40$         
8,000.00$          309.75$        325.24$             12.39$          13.01$              322.14$         338.25$         58,000.00$          2,142.40$       2,249.52$        85.70$         89.98$           2,228.10$      2,339.50$      180,000.00$        4,243.60$     4,455.78$     169.74$          178.23$        4,413.34$         4,634.01$         
9,000.00$          345.80$        363.09$             13.83$          14.52$              359.63$         377.61$         59,000.00$          2,183.60$       2,292.78$        87.34$         91.71$           2,270.94$      2,384.49$      190,000.00$        4,289.95$     4,504.45$     171.60$          180.18$        4,461.55$         4,684.63$         

10,000.00$        381.85$        400.94$             15.27$          16.04$              397.12$         416.98$         60,000.00$          2,224.80$       2,336.04$        88.99$         93.44$           2,313.79$      2,429.48$      200,000.00$        4,336.30$     4,553.12$     173.45$          182.12$        4,509.75$         4,735.24$         
11,000.00$        417.90$        438.80$             16.72$          17.55$              434.62$         456.35$         61,000.00$          2,266.00$       2,379.30$        90.64$         95.17$           2,356.64$      2,474.47$      210,000.00$        4,387.80$     4,607.19$     175.51$          184.29$        4,563.31$         4,791.48$         
12,000.00$        453.95$        476.65$             18.16$          19.07$              472.11$         495.71$         62,000.00$          2,307.20$       2,422.56$        92.29$         96.90$           2,399.49$      2,519.46$      220,000.00$        4,439.30$     4,661.27$     177.57$          186.45$        4,616.87$         4,847.72$         
13,000.00$        490.00$        514.50$             19.60$          20.58$              509.60$         535.08$         63,000.00$          2,348.40$       2,465.82$        93.94$         98.63$           2,442.34$      2,564.45$      230,000.00$        4,490.80$     4,715.34$     179.63$          188.61$        4,670.43$         4,903.95$         
14,000.00$        526.05$        552.35$             21.04$          22.09$              547.09$         574.45$         64,000.00$          2,389.60$       2,509.08$        95.58$         100.36$         2,485.18$      2,609.44$      240,000.00$        4,542.30$     4,769.42$     181.69$          190.78$        4,723.99$         4,960.19$         
15,000.00$        562.10$        590.21$             22.48$          23.61$              584.58$         613.81$         65,000.00$          2,430.80$       2,552.34$        97.23$         102.09$         2,528.03$      2,654.43$      250,000.00$        4,593.80$     4,823.49$     183.75$          192.94$        4,777.55$         5,016.43$         
16,000.00$        598.15$        628.06$             23.93$          25.12$              622.08$         653.18$         66,000.00$          2,472.00$       2,595.60$        98.88$         103.82$         2,570.88$      2,699.42$      260,000.00$        4,645.30$     4,877.57$     185.81$          195.10$        4,831.11$         5,072.67$         
17,000.00$        634.20$        665.91$             25.37$          26.64$              659.57$         692.55$         67,000.00$          2,513.20$       2,638.86$        100.53$       105.55$         2,613.73$      2,744.41$      270,000.00$        4,696.80$     4,931.64$     187.87$          197.27$        4,884.67$         5,128.91$         
18,000.00$        670.25$        703.76$             26.81$          28.15$              697.06$         731.91$         68,000.00$          2,554.40$       2,682.12$        102.18$       107.28$         2,656.58$      2,789.40$      280,000.00$        4,748.30$     4,985.72$     189.93$          199.43$        4,938.23$         5,185.14$         
19,000.00$        706.30$        741.62$             28.25$          29.66$              734.55$         771.28$         69,000.00$          2,595.60$       2,725.38$        103.82$       109.02$         2,699.42$      2,834.40$      290,000.00$        4,799.80$     5,039.79$     191.99$          201.59$        4,991.79$         5,241.38$         
20,000.00$        742.35$        779.47$             29.69$          31.18$              772.04$         810.65$         70,000.00$          2,636.80$       2,768.64$        105.47$       110.75$         2,742.27$      2,879.39$      300,000.00$        4,851.30$     5,093.87$     194.05$          203.75$        5,045.35$         5,297.62$         
21,000.00$        778.40$        817.32$             31.14$          32.69$              809.54$         850.01$         71,000.00$          2,678.00$       2,811.90$        107.12$       112.48$         2,785.12$      2,924.38$      310,000.00$        4,907.95$     5,153.35$     196.32$          206.13$        5,104.27$         5,359.48$         
22,000.00$        814.45$        855.17$             32.58$          34.21$              847.03$         889.38$         72,000.00$          2,719.20$       2,855.16$        108.77$       114.21$         2,827.97$      2,969.37$      320,000.00$        4,964.60$     5,212.83$     198.58$          208.51$        5,163.18$         5,421.34$         
23,000.00$        850.50$        893.03$             34.02$          35.72$              884.52$         928.75$         73,000.00$          2,760.40$       2,898.42$        110.42$       115.94$         2,870.82$      3,014.36$      330,000.00$        5,021.25$     5,272.31$     200.85$          210.89$        5,222.10$         5,483.21$         
24,000.00$        886.55$        930.88$             35.46$          37.24$              922.01$         968.11$         74,000.00$          2,801.60$       2,941.68$        112.06$       117.67$         2,913.66$      3,059.35$      340,000.00$        5,077.90$     5,331.80$     203.12$          213.27$        5,281.02$         5,545.07$         
25,000.00$        922.60$        968.73$             36.90$          38.75$              959.50$         1,007.48$     75,000.00$          2,842.80$       2,984.94$        113.71$       119.40$         2,956.51$      3,104.34$      350,000.00$        5,134.55$     5,391.28$     205.38$          215.65$        5,339.93$         5,606.93$         
26,000.00$        958.65$        1,006.58$          38.35$          40.26$              997.00$         1,046.85$     76,000.00$          2,884.00$       3,028.20$        115.36$       121.13$         2,999.36$      3,149.33$      360,000.00$        5,191.20$     5,450.76$     207.65$          218.03$        5,398.85$         5,668.79$         
27,000.00$        994.70$        1,044.44$          39.79$          41.78$              1,034.49$     1,086.21$     77,000.00$          2,925.20$       3,071.46$        117.01$       122.86$         3,042.21$      3,194.32$      370,000.00$        5,247.85$     5,510.24$     209.91$          220.41$        5,457.76$         5,730.65$         
28,000.00$        1,030.75$     1,082.29$          41.23$          43.29$              1,071.98$     1,125.58$     78,000.00$          2,966.40$       3,114.72$        118.66$       124.59$         3,085.06$      3,239.31$      380,000.00$        5,304.50$     5,569.73$     212.18$          222.79$        5,516.68$         5,792.51$         
29,000.00$        1,066.80$     1,120.14$          42.67$          44.81$              1,109.47$     1,164.95$     79,000.00$          3,007.60$       3,157.98$        120.30$       126.32$         3,127.90$      3,284.30$      390,000.00$        5,361.15$     5,629.21$     214.45$          225.17$        5,575.60$         5,854.38$         
30,000.00$        1,102.85$     1,157.99$          44.11$          46.32$              1,146.96$     1,204.31$     80,000.00$          3,048.80$       3,201.24$        121.95$       128.05$         3,170.75$      3,329.29$      400,000.00$        5,417.80$     5,688.69$     216.71$          227.55$        5,634.51$         5,916.24$         
31,000.00$        1,138.90$     1,195.85$          45.56$          47.83$              1,184.46$     1,243.68$     81,000.00$          3,090.00$       3,244.50$        123.60$       129.78$         3,213.60$      3,374.28$      410,000.00$        5,479.60$     5,753.58$     219.18$          230.14$        5,698.78$         5,983.72$         
32,000.00$        1,174.95$     1,233.70$          47.00$          49.35$              1,221.95$     1,283.05$     82,000.00$          3,131.20$       3,287.76$        125.25$       131.51$         3,256.45$      3,419.27$      420,000.00$        5,541.40$     5,818.47$     221.66$          232.74$        5,763.06$         6,051.21$         
33,000.00$        1,211.00$     1,271.55$          48.44$          50.86$              1,259.44$     1,322.41$     83,000.00$          3,172.40$       3,331.02$        126.90$       133.24$         3,299.30$      3,464.26$      430,000.00$        5,603.20$     5,883.36$     224.13$          235.33$        5,827.33$         6,118.69$         
34,000.00$        1,247.05$     1,309.40$          49.88$          52.38$              1,296.93$     1,361.78$     84,000.00$          3,213.60$       3,374.28$        128.54$       134.97$         3,342.14$      3,509.25$      440,000.00$        5,665.00$     5,948.25$     226.60$          237.93$        5,891.60$         6,186.18$         
35,000.00$        1,283.10$     1,347.26$          51.32$          53.89$              1,334.42$     1,401.15$     85,000.00$          3,254.80$       3,417.54$        130.19$       136.70$         3,384.99$      3,554.24$      450,000.00$        5,726.80$     6,013.14$     229.07$          240.53$        5,955.87$         6,253.67$         
36,000.00$        1,319.15$     1,385.11$          52.77$          55.40$              1,371.92$     1,440.51$     86,000.00$          3,296.00$       3,460.80$        131.84$       138.43$         3,427.84$      3,599.23$      460,000.00$        5,788.60$     6,078.03$     231.54$          243.12$        6,020.14$         6,321.15$         
37,000.00$        1,355.20$     1,422.96$          54.21$          56.92$              1,409.41$     1,479.88$     87,000.00$          3,337.20$       3,504.06$        133.49$       140.16$         3,470.69$      3,644.22$      470,000.00$        5,850.40$     6,142.92$     234.02$          245.72$        6,084.42$         6,388.64$         
38,000.00$        1,391.25$     1,460.81$          55.65$          58.43$              1,446.90$     1,519.25$     88,000.00$          3,378.40$       3,547.32$        135.14$       141.89$         3,513.54$      3,689.21$      480,000.00$        5,912.20$     6,207.81$     236.49$          248.31$        6,148.69$         6,456.12$         
39,000.00$        1,427.30$     1,498.67$          57.09$          59.95$              1,484.39$     1,558.61$     89,000.00$          3,419.60$       3,590.58$        136.78$       143.62$         3,556.38$      3,734.20$      490,000.00$        5,974.00$     6,272.70$     238.96$          250.91$        6,212.96$         6,523.61$         
40,000.00$        1,463.35$     1,536.52$          58.53$          61.46$              1,521.88$     1,597.98$     90,000.00$          3,460.80$       3,633.84$        138.43$       145.35$         3,599.23$      3,779.19$      500,000.00$        6,035.80$     6,337.59$     241.43$          253.50$        6,277.23$         6,591.09$         
41,000.00$        1,499.40$     1,574.37$          59.98$          62.97$              1,559.38$     1,637.34$     91,000.00$          3,502.00$       3,677.10$        140.08$       147.08$         3,642.08$      3,824.18$      510,000.00$        6,040.95$     6,343.00$     241.64$          253.72$        6,282.59$         6,596.72$         
42,000.00$        1,535.45$     1,612.22$          61.42$          64.49$              1,596.87$     1,676.71$     92,000.00$          3,543.20$       3,720.36$        141.73$       148.81$         3,684.93$      3,869.17$      520,000.00$        6,102.75$     6,407.89$     244.11$          256.32$        6,346.86$         6,664.20$         
43,000.00$        1,571.50$     1,650.08$          62.86$          66.00$              1,634.36$     1,716.08$     93,000.00$          3,584.40$       3,763.62$        143.38$       150.54$         3,727.78$      3,914.16$      530,000.00$        6,107.90$     6,413.30$     244.32$          256.53$        6,352.22$         6,669.83$         
44,000.00$        1,607.55$     1,687.93$          64.30$          67.52$              1,671.85$     1,755.44$     94,000.00$          3,625.60$       3,806.88$        145.02$       152.28$         3,770.62$      3,959.16$      540,000.00$        6,169.70$     6,478.19$     246.79$          259.13$        6,416.49$         6,737.31$         
45,000.00$        1,643.60$     1,725.78$          65.74$          69.03$              1,709.34$     1,794.81$     95,000.00$          3,666.80$       3,850.14$        146.67$       154.01$         3,813.47$      4,004.15$      550,000.00$        6,174.85$     6,483.59$     246.99$          259.34$        6,421.84$         6,742.94$         
46,000.00$        1,679.65$     1,763.63$          67.19$          70.55$              1,746.84$     1,834.18$     96,000.00$          3,708.00$       3,893.40$        148.32$       155.74$         3,856.32$      4,049.14$      560,000.00$        6,236.65$     6,548.48$     249.47$          261.94$        6,486.12$         6,810.42$         
47,000.00$        1,715.70$     1,801.49$          68.63$          72.06$              1,784.33$     1,873.54$     97,000.00$          3,749.20$       3,936.66$        149.97$       157.47$         3,899.17$      4,094.13$      570,000.00$        6,241.80$     6,553.89$     249.67$          262.16$        6,491.47$         6,816.05$         
48,000.00$        1,751.75$     1,839.34$          70.07$          73.57$              1,821.82$     1,912.91$     98,000.00$          3,790.40$       3,979.92$        151.62$       159.20$         3,942.02$      4,139.12$      580,000.00$        6,303.60$     6,618.78$     252.14$          264.75$        6,555.74$         6,883.53$         
49,000.00$        1,787.80$     1,877.19$          71.51$          75.09$              1,859.31$     1,952.28$     99,000.00$          3,831.60$       4,023.18$        153.26$       160.93$         3,984.86$      4,184.11$      590,000.00$        6,308.75$     6,624.19$     252.35$          264.97$        6,561.10$         6,889.16$         
50,000.00$        1,823.85$     1,915.04$          72.95$          76.60$              1,896.80$     1,991.64$     100,000.00$        3,872.80$       4,066.44$        154.91$       162.66$         4,027.71$      4,229.10$      600,000.00$        6,370.55$     6,689.08$     254.82$          267.56$        6,625.37$         6,956.64$         
51,000.00$        1,859.90$     1,952.90$          74.40$          78.12$              1,934.30$     2,031.01$     110,000.00$        3,919.15$       4,115.11$        156.77$       164.60$         4,075.92$      4,279.71$      610,000.00$        6,442.65$     6,764.78$     257.71$          270.59$        6,700.36$         7,035.37$         

If your project value is  between valuation amounts round up to the nearest valuation.  

East Fork Fire Protection District
Plan Check Fee Schedule

 Valuation  Valuation  Valuation 



 Plan Check  Technology Total  Plan Check Technology Total  Plan Check Technology Total
 Fee  Fee 4%   Fee  Fee 4%   Fee  Fee 4% 

620,000.00$     6,849.50$     7,191.98$          273.98$       287.68$           7,123.48$     7,479.65$     1,240,000.00$     11,010.70$     11,561.24$      440.43$       462.45$         11,451.13$   12,023.68$   2,360,000.00$     15,712.65$   16,498.28$   628.51$          659.93$        16,341.16$       17,158.21$       
630,000.00$     6,921.60$     7,267.68$          276.86$       290.71$           7,198.46$     7,558.39$     1,260,000.00$     11,190.73$     11,750.27$      447.63$       470.01$         11,638.36$   12,220.28$   2,390,000.00$     15,810.50$   16,601.03$   632.42$          664.04$        16,442.92$       17,265.07$       
640,000.00$     6,993.70$     7,343.39$          279.75$       293.74$           7,273.45$     7,637.12$     1,280,000.00$     11,370.76$     11,939.30$      454.83$       477.57$         11,825.59$   12,416.87$   2,420,000.00$     15,908.35$   16,703.77$   636.33$          668.15$        16,544.68$       17,371.92$       
650,000.00$     7,065.80$     7,419.09$          282.63$       296.76$           7,348.43$     7,715.85$     1,300,000.00$     11,550.79$     12,128.33$      462.03$       485.13$         12,012.82$   12,613.46$   2,450,000.00$     16,006.20$   16,806.51$   640.25$          672.26$        16,646.45$       17,478.77$       
660,000.00$     7,137.90$     7,494.80$          285.52$       299.79$           7,423.42$     7,794.59$     1,320,000.00$     11,730.82$     12,317.36$      469.23$       492.69$         12,200.05$   12,810.06$   2,480,000.00$     16,104.05$   16,909.25$   644.16$          676.37$        16,748.21$       17,585.62$       
670,000.00$     7,210.00$     7,570.50$          288.40$       302.82$           7,498.40$     7,873.32$     1,340,000.00$     11,910.85$     12,506.39$      476.43$       500.26$         12,387.28$   13,006.65$   2,510,000.00$     16,201.90$   17,012.00$   648.08$          680.48$        16,849.98$       17,692.47$       
680,000.00$     7,282.10$     7,646.21$          291.28$       305.85$           7,573.38$     7,952.05$     1,360,000.00$     12,090.88$     12,695.42$      483.64$       507.82$         12,574.52$   13,203.24$   2,540,000.00$     16,299.75$   17,114.74$   651.99$          684.59$        16,951.74$       17,799.33$       
690,000.00$     7,354.20$     7,721.91$          294.17$       308.88$           7,648.37$     8,030.79$     1,380,000.00$     12,270.91$     12,884.46$      490.84$       515.38$         12,761.75$   13,399.83$   2,570,000.00$     16,397.60$   17,217.48$   655.90$          688.70$        17,053.50$       17,906.18$       
700,000.00$     7,426.30$     7,797.62$          297.05$       311.90$           7,723.35$     8,109.52$     1,400,000.00$     12,450.94$     13,073.49$      498.04$       522.94$         12,948.98$   13,596.43$   2,600,000.00$     16,495.45$   17,320.22$   659.82$          692.81$        17,155.27$       18,013.03$       
710,000.00$     7,503.55$     7,878.73$          300.14$       315.15$           7,803.69$     8,193.88$     1,420,000.00$     12,630.97$     13,262.52$      505.24$       530.50$         13,136.21$   13,793.02$   2,630,000.00$     16,593.30$   17,422.97$   663.73$          696.92$        17,257.03$       18,119.88$       
720,000.00$     7,580.80$     7,959.84$          303.23$       318.39$           7,884.03$     8,278.23$     1,440,000.00$     12,811.00$     13,451.55$      512.44$       538.06$         13,323.44$   13,989.61$   2,660,000.00$     16,691.15$   17,525.71$   667.65$          701.03$        17,358.80$       18,226.74$       
730,000.00$     7,658.05$     8,040.95$          306.32$       321.64$           7,964.37$     8,362.59$     1,460,000.00$     12,991.03$     13,640.58$      519.64$       545.62$         13,510.67$   14,186.20$   2,690,000.00$     16,789.00$   17,628.45$   671.56$          705.14$        17,460.56$       18,333.59$       
740,000.00$     7,735.30$     8,122.07$          309.41$       324.88$           8,044.71$     8,446.95$     1,480,000.00$     13,171.06$     13,829.61$      526.84$       553.18$         13,697.90$   14,382.80$   2,720,000.00$     16,886.85$   17,731.19$   675.47$          709.25$        17,562.32$       18,440.44$       
750,000.00$     7,812.55$     8,203.18$          312.50$       328.13$           8,125.05$     8,531.30$     1,500,000.00$     13,351.09$     14,018.64$      534.04$       560.75$         13,885.13$   14,579.39$   2,750,000.00$     16,984.70$   17,833.94$   679.39$          713.36$        17,664.09$       18,547.29$       
760,000.00$     7,889.80$     8,284.29$          315.59$       331.37$           8,205.39$     8,615.66$     1,520,000.00$     13,531.12$     14,207.68$      541.24$       568.31$         14,072.36$   14,775.98$   2,780,000.00$     17,082.55$   17,936.68$   683.30$          717.47$        17,765.85$       18,654.14$       
770,000.00$     7,967.05$     8,365.40$          318.68$       334.62$           8,285.73$     8,700.02$     1,540,000.00$     13,711.15$     14,396.71$      548.45$       575.87$         14,259.60$   14,972.58$   2,810,000.00$     17,180.40$   18,039.42$   687.22$          721.58$        17,867.62$       18,761.00$       
780,000.00$     8,044.30$     8,446.52$          321.77$       337.86$           8,366.07$     8,784.38$     1,560,000.00$     13,891.18$     14,585.74$      555.65$       583.43$         14,446.83$   15,169.17$   2,840,000.00$     17,278.25$   18,142.16$   691.13$          725.69$        17,969.38$       18,867.85$       
790,000.00$     8,121.55$     8,527.63$          324.86$       341.11$           8,446.41$     8,868.73$     1,580,000.00$     14,071.21$     14,774.77$      562.85$       590.99$         14,634.06$   15,365.76$   2,870,000.00$     17,376.10$   18,244.91$   695.04$          729.80$        18,071.14$       18,974.70$       
800,000.00$     8,198.80$     8,608.74$          327.95$       344.35$           8,526.75$     8,953.09$     1,600,000.00$     14,251.24$     14,963.80$      570.05$       598.55$         14,821.29$   15,562.35$   2,900,000.00$     17,473.95$   18,347.65$   698.96$          733.91$        18,172.91$       19,081.55$       
810,000.00$     8,281.20$     8,695.26$          331.25$       347.81$           8,612.45$     9,043.07$     1,620,000.00$     14,431.27$     15,152.83$      577.25$       606.11$         15,008.52$   15,758.95$   2,930,000.00$     17,571.80$   18,450.39$   702.87$          738.02$        18,274.67$       19,188.41$       
820,000.00$     8,363.60$     8,781.78$          334.54$       351.27$           8,698.14$     9,133.05$     1,640,000.00$     14,611.30$     15,341.87$      584.45$       613.67$         15,195.75$   15,955.54$   2,960,000.00$     17,669.65$   18,553.13$   706.79$          742.13$        18,376.44$       19,295.26$       
830,000.00$     8,446.00$     8,868.30$          337.84$       354.73$           8,783.84$     9,223.03$     1,660,000.00$     14,791.33$     15,530.90$      591.65$       621.24$         15,382.98$   16,152.13$   2,990,000.00$     17,767.50$   18,655.88$   710.70$          746.23$        18,478.20$       19,402.11$       
840,000.00$     8,528.40$     8,954.82$          341.14$       358.19$           8,869.54$     9,313.01$     1,680,000.00$     14,971.36$     15,719.93$      598.85$       628.80$         15,570.21$   16,348.73$   3,030,000.00$     17,870.50$   18,764.03$   714.82$          750.56$        18,585.32$       19,514.59$       
850,000.00$     8,610.80$     9,041.34$          344.43$       361.65$           8,955.23$     9,402.99$     1,700,000.00$     15,151.39$     15,908.96$      606.06$       636.36$         15,757.45$   16,545.32$   3,070,000.00$     17,973.50$   18,872.18$   718.94$          754.89$        18,692.44$       19,627.06$       
860,000.00$     8,693.20$     9,127.86$          347.73$       365.11$           9,040.93$     9,492.97$     1,720,000.00$     15,331.42$     16,097.99$      613.26$       643.92$         15,944.68$   16,741.91$   3,110,000.00$     18,076.50$   18,980.33$   723.06$          759.21$        18,799.56$       19,739.54$       
870,000.00$     8,775.60$     9,214.38$          351.02$       368.58$           9,126.62$     9,582.96$     1,740,000.00$     15,511.45$     16,287.02$      620.46$       651.48$         16,131.91$   16,938.50$   3,150,000.00$     18,179.50$   19,088.48$   727.18$          763.54$        18,906.68$       19,852.01$       
880,000.00$     8,858.00$     9,300.90$          354.32$       372.04$           9,212.32$     9,672.94$     1,760,000.00$     15,691.48$     16,476.05$      627.66$       659.04$         16,319.14$   17,135.10$   3,190,000.00$     18,282.50$   19,196.63$   731.30$          767.86$        19,013.80$       19,964.49$       
890,000.00$     8,940.40$     9,387.42$          357.62$       375.50$           9,298.02$     9,762.92$     1,780,000.00$     15,871.51$     16,665.09$      634.86$       666.60$         16,506.37$   17,331.69$   3,230,000.00$     18,385.50$   19,304.78$   735.42$          772.19$        19,120.92$       20,076.97$       
900,000.00$     9,022.80$     9,473.94$          360.91$       378.96$           9,383.71$     9,852.90$     1,800,000.00$     16,051.54$     16,854.12$      642.06$       674.16$         16,693.60$   17,528.28$   3,270,000.00$     18,488.50$   19,412.93$   739.54$          776.52$        19,228.04$       20,189.44$       
910,000.00$     9,110.35$     9,565.87$          364.41$       382.63$           9,474.76$     9,948.50$     1,820,000.00$     16,231.57$     17,043.15$      649.26$       681.73$         16,880.83$   17,724.87$   3,310,000.00$     18,591.50$   19,521.08$   743.66$          780.84$        19,335.16$       20,301.92$       
920,000.00$     9,197.90$     9,657.80$          367.92$       386.31$           9,565.82$     10,044.11$   1,840,000.00$     16,411.60$     17,232.18$      656.46$       689.29$         17,068.06$   17,921.47$   3,350,000.00$     18,694.50$   19,629.23$   747.78$          785.17$        19,442.28$       20,414.39$       
930,000.00$     9,285.45$     9,749.72$          371.42$       389.99$           9,656.87$     10,139.71$   1,860,000.00$     16,591.63$     17,421.21$      663.67$       696.85$         17,255.30$   18,118.06$   3,390,000.00$     18,797.50$   19,737.38$   751.90$          789.49$        19,549.40$       20,526.87$       
940,000.00$     9,373.00$     9,841.65$          374.92$       393.67$           9,747.92$     10,235.32$   1,880,000.00$     16,771.66$     17,610.24$      670.87$       704.41$         17,442.53$   18,314.65$   3,430,000.00$     18,900.50$   19,845.53$   756.02$          793.82$        19,656.52$       20,639.35$       
950,000.00$     9,460.55$     9,933.58$          378.42$       397.34$           9,838.97$     10,330.92$   1,900,000.00$     16,951.69$     17,799.27$      678.07$       711.97$         17,629.76$   18,511.25$   3,470,000.00$     19,003.50$   19,953.68$   760.14$          798.15$        19,763.64$       20,751.82$       
960,000.00$     9,548.10$     10,025.51$        381.92$       401.02$           9,930.02$     10,426.53$   1,920,000.00$     17,131.72$     17,988.31$      685.27$       719.53$         17,816.99$   18,707.84$   3,510,000.00$     19,106.50$   20,061.83$   764.26$          802.47$        19,870.76$       20,864.30$       
970,000.00$     9,635.65$     10,117.43$        385.43$       404.70$           10,021.08$   10,522.13$   1,940,000.00$     17,311.75$     18,177.34$      692.47$       727.09$         18,004.22$   18,904.43$   3,550,000.00$     19,209.50$   20,169.98$   768.38$          806.80$        19,977.88$       20,976.77$       
980,000.00$     9,723.20$     10,209.36$        388.93$       408.37$           10,112.13$   10,617.73$   1,960,000.00$     17,491.78$     18,366.37$      699.67$       734.65$         18,191.45$   19,101.02$   3,590,000.00$     19,312.50$   20,278.13$   772.50$          811.12$        20,085.00$       21,089.25$       
990,000.00$     9,810.75$     10,301.29$        392.43$       412.05$           10,203.18$   10,713.34$   1,980,000.00$     17,671.81$     18,555.40$      706.87$       742.22$         18,378.68$   19,297.62$   3,630,000.00$     19,415.50$   20,386.28$   776.62$          815.45$        20,192.12$       21,201.73$       

1,000,000.00$  9,898.30$     10,393.22$        395.93$       415.73$           10,294.23$   10,808.94$   2,000,000.00$     17,851.84$     18,744.43$      714.07$       749.78$         18,565.91$   19,494.21$   3,670,000.00$     19,518.50$   20,494.43$   780.74$          819.78$        20,299.24$       21,314.20$       
1,020,000.00$  9,991.00$     10,490.55$        399.64$       419.62$           10,390.64$   10,910.17$   2,030,000.00$     17,949.69$     18,847.17$      717.99$       753.89$         18,667.68$   19,601.06$   3,710,000.00$     19,621.50$   20,602.58$   784.86$          824.10$        20,406.36$       21,426.68$       
1,040,000.00$  10,083.70$   10,587.89$        403.35$       423.52$           10,487.05$   11,011.40$   2,060,000.00$     18,047.54$     18,949.92$      721.90$       758.00$         18,769.44$   19,707.91$   3,750,000.00$     19,724.50$   20,710.73$   788.98$          828.43$        20,513.48$       21,539.15$       
1,060,000.00$  10,176.40$   10,685.22$        407.06$       427.41$           10,583.46$   11,112.63$   2,090,000.00$     18,145.39$     19,052.66$      725.82$       762.11$         18,871.21$   19,814.77$   3,790,000.00$     19,827.50$   20,818.88$   793.10$          832.75$        20,620.60$       21,651.63$       
1,080,000.00$  10,269.10$   10,782.56$        410.76$       431.30$           10,679.86$   11,213.86$   2,120,000.00$     18,243.24$     19,155.40$      729.73$       766.22$         18,972.97$   19,921.62$   3,830,000.00$     19,930.50$   20,927.03$   797.22$          837.08$        20,727.72$       21,764.11$       
1,100,000.00$  10,361.80$   10,879.89$        414.47$       435.20$           10,776.27$   11,315.09$   2,150,000.00$     18,341.09$     19,258.14$      733.64$       770.33$         19,074.73$   20,028.47$   3,870,000.00$     20,033.50$   21,035.18$   801.34$          841.41$        20,834.84$       21,876.58$       
1,120,000.00$  10,454.50$   10,977.23$        418.18$       439.09$           10,872.68$   11,416.31$   2,180,000.00$     18,438.94$     19,360.89$      737.56$       774.44$         19,176.50$   20,135.32$   3,910,000.00$     20,136.50$   21,143.33$   805.46$          845.73$        20,941.96$       21,989.06$       
1,140,000.00$  10,547.20$   11,074.56$        421.89$       442.98$           10,969.09$   11,517.54$   2,210,000.00$     18,536.79$     19,463.63$      741.47$       778.55$         19,278.26$   20,242.17$   3,950,000.00$     20,239.50$   21,251.48$   809.58$          850.06$        21,049.08$       22,101.53$       
1,160,000.00$  10,639.90$   11,171.90$        425.60$       446.88$           11,065.50$   11,618.77$   2,240,000.00$     18,634.64$     19,566.37$      745.39$       782.65$         19,380.03$   20,349.03$   3,990,000.00$     20,342.50$   21,359.63$   813.70$          854.38$        21,156.20$       22,214.01$       
1,180,000.00$  10,732.60$   11,269.23$        429.30$       450.77$           11,161.90$   11,720.00$   2,270,000.00$     18,732.49$     19,669.11$      749.30$       786.76$         19,481.79$   20,455.88$   4,040,000.00$     20,450.65$   21,473.18$   818.03$          858.93$        21,268.68$       22,332.11$       
1,200,000.00$  10,825.30$   11,366.57$        433.01$       454.66$           11,258.31$   11,821.23$   2,300,000.00$     18,830.34$     19,771.86$      753.21$       790.87$         19,583.55$   20,562.73$   4,090,000.00$     20,558.80$   21,586.74$   822.35$          863.47$        21,381.15$       22,450.21$       
1,220,000.00$  10,918.00$   11,463.90$        436.72$       458.56$           11,354.72$   11,922.46$   2,330,000.00$     18,928.19$     19,874.60$      757.13$       794.98$         19,685.32$   20,669.58$   4,140,000.00$     20,666.95$   21,700.30$   826.68$          868.01$        21,493.63$       22,568.31$       

East Fork Fire Protection District
Plan check Fee Schedule

 Valuation  Valuation  Valuation 



Plan Check Technology Total  Plan Check  Technology Total
 Fee  Fee 4%  Fee  Fee 4% 

4,190,000.00$  20,771.95$   21,810.55$        830.88$       872.42$           21,602.83$   22,682.97$   7,250,000.00$     27,611.05$     28,991.60$      1,104.44$   1,159.66$     28,715.49$   57,707.09$   
4,240,000.00$  20,876.95$   21,920.80$        835.08$       876.83$           21,712.03$   22,797.63$   7,330,000.00$     27,731.05$     29,117.60$      1,109.24$   1,164.70$     28,840.29$   57,957.89$   
4,290,000.00$  20,981.95$   22,031.05$        839.28$       881.24$           21,821.23$   22,912.29$   7,410,000.00$     27,851.05$     29,243.60$      1,114.04$   1,169.74$     28,965.09$   58,208.69$   
4,340,000.00$  21,086.95$   22,141.30$        843.48$       885.65$           21,930.43$   23,026.95$   7,490,000.00$     27,971.05$     29,369.60$      1,118.84$   1,174.78$     29,089.89$   58,459.49$   
4,390,000.00$  21,191.95$   22,251.55$        847.68$       890.06$           22,039.63$   23,141.61$   7,570,000.00$     28,091.05$     29,495.60$      1,123.64$   1,179.82$     29,214.69$   58,710.29$   
4,440,000.00$  21,296.95$   22,361.80$        851.88$       894.47$           22,148.83$   23,256.27$   7,650,000.00$     28,211.05$     29,621.60$      1,128.44$   1,184.86$     29,339.49$   58,961.09$   
4,490,000.00$  21,401.95$   22,472.05$        856.08$       898.88$           22,258.03$   23,370.93$   7,730,000.00$     28,331.05$     29,747.60$      1,133.24$   1,189.90$     29,464.29$   59,211.89$   
4,540,000.00$  21,506.95$   22,582.30$        860.28$       903.29$           22,367.23$   23,485.59$   7,810,000.00$     28,451.05$     29,873.60$      1,138.04$   1,194.94$     29,589.09$   59,462.69$   
4,590,000.00$  21,611.95$   22,692.55$        864.48$       907.70$           22,476.43$   23,600.25$   7,890,000.00$     28,571.05$     29,999.60$      1,142.84$   1,199.98$     29,713.89$   59,713.49$   
4,640,000.00$  21,716.95$   22,802.80$        868.68$       912.11$           22,585.63$   23,714.91$   7,970,000.00$     28,691.05$     30,125.60$      1,147.64$   1,205.02$     29,838.69$   59,964.29$   
4,690,000.00$  21,821.95$   22,913.05$        872.88$       916.52$           22,694.83$   23,829.57$   8,060,000.00$     28,816.05$     30,256.85$      1,152.64$   1,210.27$     29,968.69$   60,225.54$   
4,740,000.00$  21,926.95$   23,023.30$        877.08$       920.93$           22,804.03$   23,944.23$   8,150,000.00$     28,941.05$     30,388.10$      1,157.64$   1,215.52$     30,098.69$   60,486.79$   
4,790,000.00$  22,031.95$   23,133.55$        881.28$       925.34$           22,913.23$   24,058.89$   8,240,000.00$     29,066.05$     30,519.35$      1,162.64$   1,220.77$     30,228.69$   60,748.04$   
4,840,000.00$  22,136.95$   23,243.80$        885.48$       929.75$           23,022.43$   24,173.55$   8,330,000.00$     29,191.05$     30,650.60$      1,167.64$   1,226.02$     30,358.69$   61,009.29$   
4,890,000.00$  22,241.95$   23,354.05$        889.68$       934.16$           23,131.63$   24,288.21$   8,420,000.00$     29,316.05$     30,781.85$      1,172.64$   1,231.27$     30,488.69$   61,270.54$   
4,940,000.00$  22,346.95$   23,464.30$        893.88$       938.57$           23,240.83$   24,402.87$   8,510,000.00$     29,441.05$     30,913.10$      1,177.64$   1,236.52$     30,618.69$   61,531.79$   
4,990,000.00$  22,451.95$   23,574.55$        898.08$       942.98$           23,350.03$   24,517.53$   8,600,000.00$     29,566.05$     31,044.35$      1,182.64$   1,241.77$     30,748.69$   61,793.04$   
5,050,000.00$  22,561.95$   23,690.05$        902.48$       947.60$           23,464.43$   24,637.65$   8,690,000.00$     29,691.05$     31,175.60$      1,187.64$   1,247.02$     30,878.69$   62,054.29$   
5,110,000.00$  22,671.95$   23,805.55$        906.88$       952.22$           23,578.83$   24,757.77$   8,780,000.00$     29,816.05$     31,306.85$      1,192.64$   1,252.27$     31,008.69$   62,315.54$   
5,170,000.00$  22,781.95$   23,921.05$        911.28$       956.84$           23,693.23$   24,877.89$   8,870,000.00$     29,941.05$     31,438.10$      1,197.64$   1,257.52$     31,138.69$   62,576.79$   
5,230,000.00$  22,891.95$   24,036.55$        915.68$       961.46$           23,807.63$   24,998.01$   8,960,000.00$     30,066.05$     31,569.35$      1,202.64$   1,262.77$     31,268.69$   62,838.04$   
5,290,000.00$  23,001.95$   24,152.05$        920.08$       966.08$           23,922.03$   25,118.13$   9,060,000.00$     30,196.05$     31,705.85$      1,207.84$   1,268.23$     31,403.89$   63,109.74$   
5,350,000.00$  23,111.95$   24,267.55$        924.48$       970.70$           24,036.43$   25,238.25$   9,160,000.00$     30,326.05$     31,842.35$      1,213.04$   1,273.69$     31,539.09$   63,381.44$   
5,410,000.00$  23,221.95$   24,383.05$        928.88$       975.32$           24,150.83$   25,358.37$   9,260,000.00$     30,456.05$     31,978.85$      1,218.24$   1,279.15$     31,674.29$   63,653.14$   
5,470,000.00$  23,331.95$   24,498.55$        933.28$       979.94$           24,265.23$   25,478.49$   9,360,000.00$     30,586.05$     32,115.35$      1,223.44$   1,284.61$     31,809.49$   63,924.84$   
5,530,000.00$  23,441.95$   24,614.05$        937.68$       984.56$           24,379.63$   25,598.61$   9,460,000.00$     30,716.05$     32,251.85$      1,228.64$   1,290.07$     31,944.69$   64,196.54$   
5,590,000.00$  23,551.95$   24,729.55$        942.08$       989.18$           24,494.03$   25,718.73$   9,560,000.00$     30,846.05$     32,388.35$      1,233.84$   1,295.53$     32,079.89$   64,468.24$   
5,650,000.00$  23,661.95$   24,845.05$        946.48$       993.80$           24,608.43$   25,838.85$   9,660,000.00$     30,976.05$     32,524.85$      1,239.04$   1,300.99$     32,215.09$   64,739.94$   
5,710,000.00$  23,771.95$   24,960.55$        950.88$       998.42$           24,722.83$   25,958.97$   9,760,000.00$     31,106.05$     32,661.35$      1,244.24$   1,306.45$     32,350.29$   65,011.64$   
5,770,000.00$  23,881.95$   25,076.05$        955.28$       1,003.04$        24,837.23$   26,079.09$   9,860,000.00$     31,236.05$     32,797.85$      1,249.44$   1,311.91$     32,485.49$   65,283.34$   
5,830,000.00$  23,991.95$   25,191.55$        959.68$       1,007.66$        24,951.63$   26,199.21$   9,960,000.00$     31,366.05$     32,934.35$      1,254.64$   1,317.37$     32,620.69$   65,555.04$   
5,890,000.00$  24,101.95$   25,307.05$        964.08$       1,012.28$        25,066.03$   26,319.33$   10,070,000.00$  31,501.05$     33,076.10$      1,260.04$   1,323.04$     32,761.09$   65,837.19$   
5,950,000.00$  24,211.95$   25,422.55$        968.48$       1,016.90$        25,180.43$   26,439.45$   10,180,000.00$  31,636.05$     33,217.85$      1,265.44$   1,328.71$     32,901.49$   66,119.34$   
6,020,000.00$  24,326.95$   25,543.30$        973.08$       1,021.73$        25,300.03$   26,565.03$   10,290,000.00$  31,771.05$     33,359.60$      1,270.84$   1,334.38$     33,041.89$   66,401.49$   
6,090,000.00$  24,441.95$   25,664.05$        977.68$       1,026.56$        25,419.63$   26,690.61$   10,400,000.00$  31,906.05$     33,501.35$      1,276.24$   1,340.05$     33,182.29$   66,683.64$   
6,160,000.00$  24,556.95$   25,784.80$        982.28$       1,031.39$        25,539.23$   26,816.19$   10,510,000.00$  32,041.05$     33,643.10$      1,281.64$   1,345.72$     33,322.69$   66,965.79$   
6,230,000.00$  24,671.95$   25,905.55$        986.88$       1,036.22$        25,658.83$   26,941.77$   10,620,000.00$  32,176.05$     33,784.85$      1,287.04$   1,351.39$     33,463.09$   67,247.94$   
6,300,000.00$  24,786.95$   26,026.30$        991.48$       1,041.05$        25,778.43$   27,067.35$   10,730,000.00$  32,311.05$     33,926.60$      1,292.44$   1,357.06$     33,603.49$   67,530.09$   
6,370,000.00$  24,901.95$   26,147.05$        996.08$       1,045.88$        25,898.03$   27,192.93$   10,840,000.00$  32,446.05$     34,068.35$      1,297.84$   1,362.73$     33,743.89$   67,812.24$   
6,440,000.00$  25,016.95$   26,267.80$        1,000.68$    1,050.71$        26,017.63$   27,318.51$   10,950,000.00$  32,581.05$     34,210.10$      1,303.24$   1,368.40$     33,884.29$   68,094.39$   
6,510,000.00$  25,131.95$   26,388.55$        1,005.28$    1,055.54$        26,137.23$   27,444.09$   11,070,000.00$  32,721.05$     34,357.10$      1,308.84$   1,374.28$     34,029.89$   68,386.99$   
6,580,000.00$  25,246.95$   26,509.30$        1,009.88$    1,060.37$        26,256.83$   27,569.67$   11,190,000.00$  32,861.05$     34,504.10$      1,314.44$   1,380.16$     34,175.49$   68,679.59$   
6,650,000.00$  25,361.95$   26,630.05$        1,014.48$    1,065.20$        26,376.43$   27,695.25$   11,310,000.00$  33,001.05$     34,651.10$      1,320.04$   1,386.04$     34,321.09$   68,972.19$   
6,720,000.00$  25,476.95$   26,750.80$        1,019.08$    1,070.03$        26,496.03$   27,820.83$   11,430,000.00$  33,141.05$     34,798.10$      1,325.64$   1,391.92$     34,466.69$   69,264.79$   
6,790,000.00$  25,591.95$   26,871.55$        1,023.68$    1,074.86$        26,615.63$   27,946.41$   11,550,000.00$  33,281.05$     34,945.10$      1,331.24$   1,397.80$     34,612.29$   69,557.39$   
6,860,000.00$  25,706.95$   26,992.30$        1,028.28$    1,079.69$        26,735.23$   28,071.99$   11,670,000.00$  33,421.05$     35,092.10$      1,336.84$   1,403.68$     34,757.89$   69,849.99$   
6,930,000.00$  25,821.95$   27,113.05$        1,032.88$    1,084.52$        26,854.83$   28,197.57$   11,790,000.00$  33,561.05$     35,239.10$      1,342.44$   1,409.56$     34,903.49$   70,142.59$   
7,010,000.00$  25,941.95$   27,239.05$        1,037.68$    1,089.56$        26,979.63$   28,328.61$   11,910,000.00$  33,701.05$     35,386.10$      1,348.04$   1,415.44$     35,049.09$   70,435.19$   
7,090,000.00$  26,061.95$   27,365.05$        1,042.48$    1,094.60$        27,104.43$   28,459.65$   12,040,000.00$  33,846.05$     35,538.35$      1,353.84$   1,421.53$     35,199.89$   70,738.24$   
7,170,000.00$  26,181.95$   27,491.05$        1,047.28$    1,099.64$        27,229.23$   28,590.69$   12,170,000.00$  33,991.05$     35,690.60$      1,359.64$   1,427.62$     35,350.69$   71,041.29$   

Per Plan

 3rd Plan 
Review and 

every 
subsequent 

review 

 Second Re-
inspection and 

every subsequent 
inspection due to 

deficiency or 
incomplete 

inspection - per 
hour, 2-hour 

minimum Admin Fee
 Total per Re-

Inspection 

$1,200.00 $300.00 100.00$                38.00$            238.00$           
*Miscellaneous Fee Table to apply for cancellation, after hours, revisions, etc.

Plan Check Fee
-$                                   to 12,170,000.00$                           Use Chart

Example :
12,170,000.00$                           35,350.69$                         

2,830,000.00$                             18,142.16$                         
15,000,000.00$                           53,492.85$                         

Valuation

$15,000,000 valuation = $ 53,492.85

East Fork Fire Protection District
Plan check Fee Schedule

 Valuation  Valuation 

 Wildland Urban Interface Code Residential Plan Review and 
Inspection Fees:* 



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

1. Title: For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve the East Fork Fire 
Protection District, Fire Prevention Division schedule for Miscellaneous fees for service, 
in accordance with the requirements of NAC 477 and the 2018 International Fire Code 
effective September 1, 2023. First reading.  (Amy Ray, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal) 
10 minutes 

 
2. Recommended Motion:  Motion to approve the East Fork Fire Protection District, Fire 

Prevention Division schedule for Miscellaneous fees for service, in accordance with the 
requirements of NAC 477 and the 2018 International Fire Code effective September 1, 
2023. 

  
3. Funds Available:  NA Amount:  NA 

 Fund Name:  NA Account Number:  NA 
 
4. Prepared by:  Amy Ray, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 
 
5. Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 Time Required: 10 minutes 
 
6. Agenda:  Administrative Agenda 
 
7. Background Information:  The East Fork Fire Protection District has been conducting fire 

life safety plan review and inspections under an interlocal agreement that was first 
established under a provision adopted by the Nevada Department of Public Safety Fire 
Marshals Division in 1994. Under Nevada Revised Statute 277.180, the interlocal 
contract sets forth the permission to perform the duties as required by the State of Nevada 
Fire Marshal Division (SFM), in turn allowing the Fire District to establish a schedule for 
Miscellaneous fees for service International Fire Code (IFC) in accordance with IFC 
Section 106. The East Fork Fire Protection District currently charges the fees listed in the 
table, and is proposing a 5 % increase from the 2020 fees. 
 
This is the first reading of the proposed adoption of fees with the 5% increase from 2020. 

 
8. Reviewed by: 

       District Fire Chief      Board President  
      Legal Counsel      Other 

 
9. Board Action: 

    Approved       Approved with Modifications 
    Denied       Deferred 
    Other 

Agenda Item # 11 



Description of Fees
 Minimum 
Admin Fee 

 
Plan 

Review/Inspe
ction Hourly 

 Minimum 
Inspection/Plan 
Review Hours

 Total Minimum 
Inspection/Plan 

Review Fee 
 Technology 
Fee Added  Rounded 

Inspection Items  $      36.75  $    178.50 1 215.25$             223.86  $    224.00 
Reinspection Fee
After Hours Inspection 

Technology Fee

Revisions to Issued Permits
Expedited/Overtime Reviews 

Third review of plans
High-Piled Storage Review

4% of combined Fees charged for the permit

Plan Review Items
Hourly rate based on fully-burdened rate of involved staff. 

Miscellaneous Fee Schedule

Hourly rate based on fully-burdened rate of involved staff, not less than 1 hour.

Cancellation of Inspection with 24 
   Inspection for which no fee is 

 

Hourly rate based on fully-burdened rate of involved staff, calculated at time and a half, not less than 2 hours. 
Hourly rate based on fully-burdened rate of involved staff.
Hourly rate based on fully-burdened rate of involved staff. 

Based on valuation fees as adopted

Hourly rate based on fully-burdened rate of involved staff, calculated at time and a half. 2 hour minimum*
Expedited plan acceptance is at the discretion of the Fire Marshal dependent upon workload.
25% of original application fee, but not less than the hourly rate spent on the review



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

1. Title: For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to approve the East Fork Fire 
Protection District, Fire Prevention Division schedule for Required Operational Permits 
and Inspection Fees in accordance with the requirements of NAC 477 and the 2018 
International Fire Code, effective September 1, 2023. First reading. (Amy Ray, Deputy 
Fire Chief/Fire Marshal) 10 minutes 

 
2. Recommended Motion:  Motion to approve the East Fork Fire Protection District, Fire 

Prevention Division schedule for Required Operational Permits and Inspection Fees in 
accordance with the requirements of NAC 477 and the 2018 International Fire Code, 
effective September 1, 2023. 

 
3.          Funds Available:  NA Amount:  NA 

 Fund Name:  NA Account Number:  NA 
 
4.          Prepared by:  Amy Ray, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 
 
5.          Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 Time Required: 10 minutes 
 
6.          Agenda:  Administrative Agenda 
 
7. Background Information:  The East Fork Fire Protection District has been conducting fire 

life safety inspections under an interlocal agreement that was first established under a 
provision adopted by the Nevada Department of Public Safety Fire Marshals Division in 
1994. Under Nevada Revised Statute 277.180, the interlocal contract sets forth the 
permission to perform the duties as required by the State of Nevada Fire Marshal 
Division (SFM), in turn allowing the Fire District to establish a fee schedule for Required 
Operational Permits and Inspection, in accordance with the International Fire Code (IFC) 
Sections 105.6.1-105.7.25, and collect associated fees in accordance with IFC Section 
106. The East Fork Fire Protection District currently charges the fees for Operational 
Permits and Inspections but is proposing a 5% increase from the 2020 fees.   
 
This is the first reading of the proposed adoption of fees with the 5% increase from 2020. 

 
8. Reviewed by: 

       District Fire Chief      Board President  
      Legal Counsel      Other 

 
9. Board Action: 

    Approved       Approved with Modifications 
    Denied       Deferred 
    Other 

 
Agenda Item # 12 



Description of Fees Fee Rate
Minimum 

Admin Fee
Minimum 

Plan Review Fee

Minimum 
Inspection 

Hours

 Minimum 
Inspection 

Fee 
Minimum 

Permit Fee
Technonogy 
Fee Added Rounded

minimum hourly 36.75$          2 178.50$    393.75$         409.50$    410.00$    
minimum hourly 36.75$          2 178.50$    393.75$         409.50$    410.00$    
minimum hourly 36.75$          2 178.50$    393.75$         409.50$    410.00$    
minimum hourly 36.75$          2 178.50$    393.75$         409.50$    410.00$    
minimum hourly 36.75$          2 178.50$    393.75$         409.50$    410.00$    
minimum hourly 36.75$          2 178.50$    393.75$         409.50$    410.00$    
minimum hourly 36.75$          4 178.50$    393.75$         409.50$    410.00$    
minimum hourly 36.75$          2 178.50$    393.75$         409.50$    410.00$    
minimum hourly 36.75$          2 178.50$    393.75$         409.50$    410.00$    
minimum hourly 36.75$          2 178.50$    393.75$         409.50$    410.00$    
minimum hourly 36.75$          2 178.50$    393.75$         409.50$    410.00$    
minimum hourly 36.75$          178.50$        1 178.50$    215.25$         223.86$    224.00$    
minimum hourly 36.75$          2 178.50$    393.75$         409.50$    410.00$    
minimum hourly

Required Operational Fire Permits & Inspection Fees 

EAST FORK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT FEE SCHEDULE

Vacation Home Rentals

Amusement Buildings/Haunted Houses
Aviation Facilities 
Cannabis/Hemp Cultivation Facility
Cannabis/Hemp Production Facility
Compressed Gases 
Dipping/Spraying
Explosives 
Flammable & Combustible Liquids 
Hazardous Materials 
High-Piled Storage 
Pyrotechnic/Special Effects Material 
Solar Photovoltaic
Temporary Membrane 
Structures/Tents/Stage Canopy 



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

1. Title:  For Presentation Only. Reports/updates from East Fork Professional Firefighters 
Association concerning the various assignments and committees they may be a member 
of, a liaison to, and meetings/functions they have attended.  No action will be taken on 
these reports/updates.  (Jacques Etchegoyhen, President) 5 minutes. 

 
2. Recommended Motion:  For Presentation Only.  No motion or action is necessary. 
 
3.          Funds Available:  NA Amount:  NA 

 Fund Name:  NA Account Number:  NA 
 
4. Prepared by:  Tod F. Carlini, District Fire Chief 
 
5. Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 Time Required: 5 minutes 
 
6. Agenda:  Administrative Agenda 
 
7. Background Information:  This portion of the meeting will allow for reports and 

updates from East Fork Professional Firefighters Association including, but not limited 
to, the various assignments and committees they may be a member of, a liaison to, and 
meetings/functions they have attended.  No action taken on these reports/updates. 

 
8. Reviewed by: 

       District Fire Chief      Board President  
      Legal Counsel      Other 

 
9. Board Action: 

    Approved       Approved with Modifications 
    Denied       Deferred 
    Other 

 
Agenda Item # 13 

 



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

1. Title:  For Presentation Only. Reports/updates from East Fork Volunteer Firefighters 
Association concerning the various assignments and committees they may be a member 
of, a liaison to, and meetings/functions they have attended.  No action will be taken on 
these reports/updates.  (Jacques Etchegoyhen, President) 5 minutes. 

 
2. Recommended Motion:  For Presentation Only.  No motion or action is necessary. 
 
3. Funds Available:  NA Amount:  NA 

 Fund Name:  NA Account Number:  NA 
 
4. Prepared by:  Tod F. Carlini, District Fire Chief 
 
5. Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 Time Required: 5 minutes 
 
6. Agenda:  Administrative Agenda 
 
7. Background Information:  This portion of the meeting will allow for reports and 

updates from East Fork Volunteer Firefighters Association including, but not limited to, 
the various assignments and committees they may be a member of, a liaison to, and 
meetings/functions they have attended.  No action taken on these reports/updates. 

 
8. Reviewed by: 

       District Fire Chief      Board President  
      Legal Counsel      Other 

 
9. Board Action: 

    Approved       Approved with Modifications 
    Denied       Deferred 
    Other 

 
Agenda Item # 14 

 



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

1. Title:  For Presentation Only. Reports/updates from District Board Members and 
Administration concerning the various assignments and committees they may be a 
member of, a liaison to, and meetings/functions they have attended.  No action will be 
taken on these reports/updates.  (Jacques Etchegoyhen, President) 10 minutes. 

 
2. Recommended Motion:  For Presentation Only.  No motion or action is necessary. 
 
3. Funds Available:  NA Amount:  NA 

 Fund Name:  NA Account Number:  NA 
 
4. Prepared by:  Tod F. Carlini, District Fire Chief 
 
5. Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 Time Required: 10 minutes 
 
6. Agenda:  Administrative Agenda 
 
7. Background Information:  This portion of the meeting will allow for reports and 

updates from District Board Members and Administration including, but not limited to, 
the various assignments and committees they may be a member of, a liaison to, and 
meetings/functions they have attended.  No action taken on these reports/updates. 

 
8. Reviewed by: 

       District Fire Chief      Board President  
      Legal Counsel      Other 

 
9. Board Action: 

    Approved       Approved with Modifications 
    Denied       Deferred 
    Other 

 
Agenda Item # 15 

 



East Fork Fire Protection District 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

1. Title: For Possible Action.  Discussion and possible action to adjourn the East Fork 
Fire Protection District Board Meeting.  (Jacques Etchegoyhen, President) 5 minutes. 

 
2. Recommended Motion:  Motion to adjourn the East Fork Fire Protection District 

Board Meeting. 
 
3.          Funds Available:  NA Amount:  NA 

 Fund Name:  NA Account Number:  NA 
 
4. Prepared by:  Tod F. Carlini, District Fire Chief 

 
5. Meeting Date:  July 18, 2023 Time Required: 5 minutes 

 
6. Agenda:  Administrative Agenda  

 
7. Background Information:  Motion to adjourn the East Fork Fire Protection District 

Board Meeting. 
 
8. Reviewed by: 

       District Fire Chief      Board President  
      Legal Counsel      Other 

 
9. Board Action: 

    Approved       Approved with Modifications 
    Denied       Deferred 
    Other 

 
Agenda Item # 16 


	ADP39BD.tmp
	Agenda Item # 1

	ADP8A7F.tmp
	Agenda Item # 2

	ADP4795.tmp
	Agenda Item # 3

	ADPCFA4.tmp
	Agenda Item # 3A

	Back-up for Action Item #3A -June Cross Fund Report.pdf
	rptCrossFund (2)

	ADP3AE3.tmp
	Agenda Item # 3B

	Back-up for Action Item #3B - Payables for June, 2023.pdf
	Payables for Prior Month (25)

	ADPAFD6.tmp
	Agenda Item # 3C

	ADP2297.tmp
	Agenda Item # 3D

	Back-up for Action Item #3D -June CC Transactions-Board.pdf
	BOC

	ADP94D6.tmp
	Agenda Item # 3E

	Back-up for Action Item #3E- May Ambulance Billing History Report.pdf
	2223

	ADPF567.tmp
	Agenda Item # 3F

	Back-up for Action Item #3F- April Consolidated Tax Summary.pdf
	202223 Report

	ADP5B18.tmp
	Agenda Item # 4

	Back-up for Action Item #4-auto policy.pdf
	IMAGERIGHT
	COMMON
	VFIS AUTO JACKET - FRONT ~ VFIAUJKTFT ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2

	AUTO CVG PART DEC - COMMON - VFIS GCA ~ AU1000 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2

	SCHEDULE OF FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS ~ COF100 ~ 0205
	INSTALLMENT SCHEDULE ~ COI100 ~ 0205
	SCHEDULE OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST ~ CON100 ~ 0705
	SCHEDULE OF NAMED INSURED(S) ~ CON100 ~ 0104
	ECONOMIC SANCTIONS ENDORSEMENT ~ 89644 ~ 0613
	COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS ~ IL 00 17 ~ 1198
	NUCLEAR ENERGY LIABILITY EXCLUSION ENDT ~ IL 00 21 ~ 0908
	Page 1
	Page 2

	NEVADA CHGS-CONCEALMENT, MISREP OR FRAUD ~ IL 01 10 ~ 0907
	NEVADA CHANGES - DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIP ~ IL 01 15 ~ 0110
	NEVADA CHANGES-CANC & NONRENL ~ IL 02 51 ~ 0907
	Page 1
	Page 2


	AUTOMOBILE
	AUTO COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS - PAGE 1 ~ AU1000 ~ 0120
	AUTO COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS - PAGE 2 ~ AU1000 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2

	AUTO COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS - PAGE 3 ~ AU1000 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42

	AUTO COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS - PAGE 4 ~ AU1000 ~ 0120
	AUTO COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS - PAGE 5 ~ AU1000 ~ 0120
	AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE EXTENSION ENDORSEME ~ AU1001 ~ 0120
	AGREED VALUE ENDORSEMENT ~ AU1002 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2

	WAIVER OF GOVERNMENTAL OR CHARITABLE IMM ~ AU1005 ~ 0120
	CARE, CUSTODY OR CONTROL EXCLUSION ENDOR ~ AU1006 ~ 0120
	COMMANDEERED AUTO DEFINITION ENDORSEMENT ~ AU1007 ~ 0120
	INCIDENTAL GARAGE OPERATIONS ~ AU1009 ~ 0120
	AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE EXTENSION ENDORSEME ~ AU1017 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4

	AUTO LIABILITY EXTENSION ENDORSEMENT EME ~ AU1023 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3

	BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM ~ CA 00 01 ~ 1013
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12

	ADDL INSD-LESSOR ~ CA 20 01 ~ 1013
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6

	NEVADA CHANGES ~ CA 01 36 ~ 1013
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3

	NEVADA UNINSURED MOTORISTS COVERAGE ~ CA 21 27 ~ 1013
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4

	SOUND RECEIVING EQUIP COVG -FIRE, POLICE ~ CA 20 02 ~ 1013
	PROFESSIONAL SERVICES NOT COVERED ~ CA 20 18 ~ 1013
	AUTO MEDICAL PAYMENTS COVERAGE ~ CA 99 03 ~ 1013
	Page 1
	Page 2

	LOSS PAYABLE CLAUSE ~ CA 99 44 ~ 1013
	POLLUTION LIAB BROAD COV FOR COV AUTO ~ CA 99 48 ~ 1013

	POLICYHOLDER NOTICES
	VFIS JACKET - BACK ~ VFISCOJKTB ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2

	POLICYHOLDER NOTICE - TAXES, ASSESSMENTS ~ 118477 ~ 0315
	POLICYHOLDER NOTICE ~ 91222 ~ 0916
	AIG PRIVACY NOTICE ~ AGLC105774 ~ 0122
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3




	Back-up for Action Item #4-pkg policy.pdf
	IMAGERIGHT
	COMMON
	VFIS PORTFOLIO JACKET - FRONT ~ VFIPTJKTFT ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2

	COMMON POLICY DECLARATIONS ~ TR1000 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2

	SCHEDULE OF FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS ~ COF100 ~ 0205
	Page 1
	Page 2

	INSTALLMENT SCHEDULE ~ COI100 ~ 0205
	SCHEDULE OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST ~ CON100 ~ 0705
	SCHEDULE OF NAMED INSURED(S) ~ CON100 ~ 0104
	ECONOMIC SANCTIONS ENDORSEMENT ~ 89644 ~ 0613
	COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS ~ VCO300 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2

	CAP ON LOSSES FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TER ~ CG 21 70 ~ 0115
	CAP ON LOSSES FROM CERT ACTS/TERRORISM ~ IL 09 52 ~ 0115
	NEVADA CHANGES - CANCELLATION AND NONREN ~ VCONV1 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2

	NEVADA CHANGES - CONCEALMENT, MISREPRESE ~ VCONV2 ~ 0120
	NEVADA CHANGES - DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIP ~ VCONV3 ~ 0120

	PROPERTY
	PROPERTY COVERAGE PART DEC - SCHEDULE ~ VPR100 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2

	PROPERTY COVERAGE PART DEC - COVERAGE ~ VPR100 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16

	PROPERTY COVERAGE PART DEC - BLANKET ~ VPR100 ~ 0120
	ESO PROPERTY COVERAGE FORM ~ VPR101 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34

	CRISIS INCIDENT RESPONSE COVERAGE ~ VPR319 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2

	AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT ~ VPR322 ~ 0120
	LOSS PAYABLE PROVISIONS ~ VPR301 ~ 0120

	CRIME
	CRIME COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS ~ VCR100 ~ 0120
	CRIME COVERED ENTITY SCHEDULE ~ VCR100 ~ 0120
	EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY-BLANKET DECLARATIONS ~ VCR100 ~ 0120
	PUBLIC EMPL DISHONESTY-BLKT PER EMPL DEC ~ VCR100 ~ 0120
	PUBLIC EMPL DISHONESTY-BLKT PER LOSS DEC ~ VCR100 ~ 0120
	COMPUTER FRAUD DECLARATIONS ~ VCR100 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5

	IDENTITY FRAUD EXPENSE DECLARATIONS ~ VCR100 ~ 0120
	EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY COVERAGE FORM (COVER ~ VCR105 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2

	PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY COVERAGE FORM ~ VCR106 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2

	PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY COVERAGE FORM ~ VCR107 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2

	CRIME GENERAL PROVISIONS ~ VCR300 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6

	ADDITIONAL COVERAGES COMPUTER AND FUNDS ~ VCR109 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5

	IDENTITY FRAUD EXPENSE COVERAGE FORM ~ VCR110 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2

	FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE OF DUTY ~ VCR301 ~ 0120
	EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY - PER LOSS EXCESS OV ~ VCR308 ~ 0120

	PORTABLE EQUIPMENT
	PORTABLE EQUIPMENT COV PART DECLARATIONS ~ PE1000 ~ 0120
	COMMERCIAL PROPERTY CONDITIONS ~ CP 00 90 ~ 0788
	Page 1
	Page 2

	EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATION PORTABLE ~ PE1001 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11

	WATERCRAFT EXTENSION ~ PE1003 ~ 0120
	AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT PORTABLE EQUIPMEN ~ PE1009 ~ 0120
	UNMANNED AIRCRAFT EXTENSION ~ PE1012 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2


	GENERAL LIABILITY
	GENERAL LIABILITY COV PART DECLARATIONS ~ VGL100 ~ 0120
	EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATION GENERAL L ~ VGL101 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19

	EXCLUSION ELECTRONIC INFORMATION SECURIT ~ VGL212 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2

	AMENDMENT TO POLLUTION EXCLUSION ~ VGL213 ~ 0321
	LINE OF DUTY ACCIDENTAL DEATH BENEFITS ~ VGL317 ~ 0120
	UNMANNED AIRCRAFT COVERAGE ~ VGL320 ~ 0120
	MOBILE EQUIPMENT SUBJECT TO MOTOR VEHICL ~ GGL330 ~ 0120

	MANAGEMENT LIABILITY
	MANAGEMENT LIABILITY COVERAGE PART DEC ~ VML100 ~ 0120
	EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATION MANAGEMEN ~ VML101 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13

	CYBER LIABILITY AND PRIVACY CRISIS MANAG ~ VML306 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13

	AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT MANAGEMENT LIAB ~ VML310 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2


	EXCESS LIABILITY
	VFIS EXCESS DECLARATIONS - LIMITS ~ EXD100 ~ 0120
	VFIS EXCESS DECLARATIONS - UL SCHEDULE ~ EXS100 ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2

	COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY COVRG FORM ~ CX0001 ~ 0413
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5

	NV CHANGES - CANCELLATION AND NONRENEWAL ~ CX0229 ~ 0908
	NUCLEAR ENERGY LIABILITY EXCLUSION ENDO ~ CX2101 ~ 0908
	Page 1
	Page 2

	EXCLUSION - FUNGI OR BACTERIA ~ CX2113 ~ 0413
	CAP ON LOSSES FROM CERTFD ACTS OF TERROR ~ CX2130 ~ 0115
	UNDERLYING CLAIMS-MADE COVERAGE ~ CX2700 ~ 1219
	Page 1
	Page 2

	PER LOCATION AGGREGATE LIMIT OF INSURANC ~ CXE0112 ~ 0120
	FIREWORKS OR PYROTECHNICS EXCLUSION ~ CXE0172 ~ 0120
	SUBLIMITED COVERAGES ENDORSEMENT ~ CXE0279 ~ 0120
	ERISA EXCLUSION ~ CXE0286 ~ 0120
	PRODUCTS-COMPLETED OPERATIONS AGGREGATE ~ CXE0328 ~ 0120
	EMERGENCY SERVICE ORGANIZATION AMENDATOR ~ CXEG0287 ~ 0120
	OTHER VALID AND COLLECTIBLE INSURANCE AM ~ CXEG0297 ~ 0120
	UNMANNED AIRCRAFT LIABILITY COVERAGE SUB ~ CXEG0329 ~ 0120

	POLICYHOLDER NOTICES
	VFIS JACKET - BACK ~ VFISCOJKTB ~ 0120
	Page 1
	Page 2

	FEDERAL SHARE OF COMPENSATION UNDER TRIA ~ 125595 ~ 0320
	POLICYHOLDER DISCLOSURE NOTICE OF TERROR ~ 965560 ~ 0320
	POLICYHOLDER NOTICE - TAXES, ASSESSMENTS ~ 118477 ~ 0315
	POLICYHOLDER NOTICE ~ 91222 ~ 0916
	AIG PRIVACY NOTICE ~ AGLC105774 ~ 0122
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3




	ADPFB90.tmp
	Agenda Item # 6

	ADPE181.tmp
	Agenda Item # 7

	ADPED88.tmp
	Agenda Item # 8

	ADP489B.tmp
	Agenda Item # 9

	ADP9F0A.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPB8E8.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPF74B.tmp
	Agenda Item # 10

	ADPD29A.tmp
	Agenda Item # 11

	ADP351E.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP4B0.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP43BF.tmp
	Agenda Item # 12

	ADPE523.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP16B5.tmp
	Agenda Item # 13

	ADP6554.tmp
	Agenda Item # 14

	ADPA8B8.tmp
	Agenda Item # 15

	ADPF515.tmp
	Agenda Item # 16

	ADP8CC0.tmp
	Sheet1


